
Meeting Cabinet

Date and Time Wednesday, 12th December, 2018 at 4.30 pm.

Venue Walton Suite, Winchester Guildhall

AGENDA

PROCEDURAL ITEMS 

1.  Apologies 
To record the names of apologies given.

2.  Membership of Cabinet Committees etc. 
To give consideration to the approval of alternative arrangements for 
appointments to bodies set up by Cabinet or external bodies, or the 
making or terminating of such appointments.

a) Cabinet (Traffic & Parking) Committee : Councillor Learney to 
replace Councillor Clear as a non-voting invited Member for the 
remainder of the 2018/19 Municipal Year.

b) Cabinet (Housing) Committee – Councillor Scott to replace 
Councillor Burns as a non-voting invited Member for the remainder 
of the 2018/19 Municipal Year.

3.  Disclosure of Interests 
To receive any disclosure of interests from Members and Officers in 
matters to be discussed.
Note: Councillors are reminded of their obligations to declare disclosable 
pecuniary interests, personal and/or prejudicial interests in accordance 
with legislation and the Council’s Code of Conduct.

Public Document Pack



4.  To note any request from Councillors to make representations on an 
agenda item under Council Procedure Rule 35 
Note: Councillors wishing to speak about a particular agenda item are 
requested to advise the Democratic Services Officer before the meeting.  
Councillors will normally be invited by the Chairman to speak during the 
appropriate item (after the Portfolio Holder’s introduction, questions from 
Cabinet Members and public participation).

BUSINESS ITEMS 

5.  Minutes of the previous meeting held on 31 October 2018. (Pages 5 - 12)

6.  Public Participation 
– to note the names of members of the public wishing to speak on general 
matters affecting the District or on agenda items (in the case of the latter, 
representations will normally be received at the time of the agenda item, after 
the Portfolio Holder’s introduction and any questions from Cabinet Members).

7.  Leader and Portfolio Holders' Announcements 

8.  Council Strategy Update (Pages 13 - 46)

Key Decision (CAB3094)

9.  Medium Term Financial Planning (Pages 47 - 66)

Key Decision (CAB3103)

10.  Q2 Financial and Performance Monitoring (Pages 67 - 114)

Key Decision (CAB3095)

11.  Winchester Flood Relief Scheme ( Durngate ) Phase II – Allocation of 
additional funds/Planning Permission (Pages 115 - 156)

Key Decision (CAB3072)

12.  Approval of Brief for Strategic Development Advisor (Pages 157 - 168)

Key Decision (CAB3105)

13.  Adoption of revised Statement of Community Involvement (Pages 169 - 240)

Key Decision (CAB3086(LP))

14.  Community and Voluntary Sector Grants Review (Report and Addendum) 
(Pages 241 - 290)

Key Decision (CAB3079)



15.  Minute extracts from Winchester Town Forum held 14 November and 
Personnel Committee held 22 November 2018 (Pages 291 - 296)

(CAB3119)

16.  Review of Terms and Conditions of Employment (Pages 297 - 310)

(PER318)

17.  Minutes of Cabinet (Housing) Committee held 21 November 2018 (Pages 
311 - 316)

(CAB3118)

18.  Minutes of Cabinet (Central Winchester Regeneration) Committee held 27 
November 2018 (Pages 317 - 322)

(CAB3122)

19.  Use of Chief Executive's Emergency Powers - West of Waterlooville Open 
Space (less exempt appendix) (Pages 323 - 328)

(CAB3116)

20.  To note the future items for consideration by Cabinet as shown on the 
January 2019 Forward Plan. (Pages 329 - 334)

21.  EXEMPT BUSINESS: 
To consider whether in all the circumstances of the case the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information.

(i) To pass a resolution that the public be excluded from the meeting 
during the consideration of the following items of business because it is 
likely that, if members of the public were present, there would be 
disclosure to them of ‘exempt information’ as defined by Section 100 (I) 
and Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972.

22.  Use of Chief Executive's Emergency Powers - West of Waterlooville Open 
Space (exempt appendix) (Pages 335 - 338)

(CAB3116)

L Hall
Head of Legal Services (Interim)



Members of the public are able to easily access all of the papers 
for this meeting by opening the QR Code reader on your phone 
or tablet. Hold your device over the QR Code below so that it's 
clearly visible within your screen and you will be redirected to the 
agenda pack.

4 December 2018

Agenda Contact: Nancy Graham, Senior Democratic Services Officer
Tel: 01962 848 235, Email: ngraham@winchester.gov.uk

*With the exception of exempt items, Agenda, reports and previous minutes are 
available on the Council’s Website www.winchester.gov.uk

CABINET – Membership 2018/19

Chairman: Horrill (The Leader with Portfolio for Housing)
Vice Chairman: Humby (Portfolio Holder for Business Partnerships)

Ashton - Portfolio Holder for Finance
Brook - Portfolio Holder for Built Environment
Godfrey - Portfolio Holder for Professional Services
Griffiths - Portfolio Holder for Health & Wellbeing
Miller - Portfolio Holder for Estates
Warwick - Portfolio Holder for Environment

Quorum = 3 Members

Corporate Priorities:
As Cabinet is responsible for most operational decisions of the Council, its work 
embraces virtually all elements of the Council Strategy and Portfolio Plans.

Public Participation
Public Participation is at the Chairman’s discretion.  If your question relates to an 
item on the agenda, you will normally be asked to speak at the time of the relevant 
item.  Representations will be limited to a maximum of 3 minutes, subject to a 
maximum 15 minutes set aside for all questions and answers.  If several people wish 
to speak on the same subject, the Chairman may ask for one person to speak on 
everyone's behalf.  As time is limited, a "first come first served" basis will be 
operated. 

To reserve your place to speak, you are asked to arrive no later than 10 minutes 
before the start of the meeting to register your intention to speak.  Please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer in advance for further details.

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/councillors-committees/portfolio-holder-plans


Disabled Access:
Disabled access is normally available, but please phone Democratic Services on 
01962 848 264 or email democracy@winchester.gov.uk to ensure that the necessary 
arrangements are in place.

Terms Of Reference

Included within the Council’s Constitution (Part 3, Section 2) which is available here

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/assets/attach/11853/Part%203a%20-%20Resp%20for%20functions--170518%20-NGchangesfromCabinet1.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



1

CABINET

Wednesday, 31 October 2018

Attendance:

Councillor Horrill (Chairman)  The Leader with Portfolio for Housing
Councillor Ashton  Portfolio Holder for Finance
Councillor Griffiths  Portfolio Holder for Health & Wellbeing
Councillor Miller  Portfolio Holder for Estates
Councillor Warwick  Portfolio Holder for Environment

Others in attendance who addressed the meeting:

Councillors Bell and Thompson

Others in attendance who did not address the meeting:

Councillors Prince and Porter

Apologies for Absence: 

Councillors Humby, Brook and Godfrey

1.   MEMBERSHIP OF CABINET COMMITTEES ETC. 

RESOLVED:

That Councillor Weston be appointed as a deputy on the Project 
Integra Management Board for the remainder of the 2018/19 Municipal 
Year. 

2.   DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 

Councillor Warwick declared a disclosable pecuniary interest as she was a 
County Councillor.  However as there was no material conflict of interest, she 
voted on items as below, under the dispensation granted by the Standards 
Committee.

Councillor Ashton declared a personal but not prejudicial interest in respect of 
Report CAB3089 as his wife was a trustee of “Allegra’s Ambition” which was 
involved with the project for the new Leisure Centre.

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



2

3.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 19 SEPTEMBER 2018, 
LESS EXEMPT MINUTE. 

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 19 September 
2018, less exempt minute, be approved and adopted.

4.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Patrick Davies spoke during public participation as summarised below:
 in connection with the venue for the Cabinet meeting (South Wonston Village 

Hall), he supported the principle of holding Cabinet meetings outside of 
Winchester.  However he believed more thought should be had to the 
suitability of the agenda items under discussion, the ease of accessibility of 
the venue, and the availability of Wi-Fi to view agendas and reports. 

 He emphasised that the business items on the agenda for this meeting 
primarily related to projects in the centre of Winchester.  In addition, he 
highlighted that no local residents were in attendance.

 With regard to Report CAB3093, he expressed concern about the proposal to 
establish an Informal Policy Group as he considered the significance of the 
matter warranted a formal committee meeting in public.

The Chairman responded that Cabinet had given a commitment to hold alternate 
Cabinet meetings at different locations around the district, publicised in advance.  
She noted the comment regarding Wi-Fi but it was highlighted that a paper copy 
of the agenda and reports was available on request.

At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillors Thompson and Bell concurred with 
the comments made by Mr Davies regarding the practice of holding Cabinet 
meetings at different venues.  In summary, they considered that when the 
agenda predominantly related to items regarding Winchester town centre, it was 
more appropriate for the meeting to be held in Winchester.

5.   LEADER AND PORTFOLIO HOLDERS' ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Portfolio Holders made a number of announcements as summarised below:

 Planning permission for the new Leisure Centre at Bar End had been granted 
at a Planning Committee meeting that morning.  Councillor Griffiths thanked 
the Project Team and all others involved;

 The Council had submitted a response to the Southampton Airport Draft 
Masterplan;

 The Movement Strategy would be published for consultation shortly 
(consultation until end of January 2019) with a Member Briefing to be held on 
12 November 2018;

 Work had begun on the installation of the new security barriers in Winchester 
High Street;

  New refuse and recycling bin collection calendars had been posted out and 
would be available on the Council’s website;

Page 8



3

 Similar parking arrangements would be in place in the run up to Christmas as 
in previous years, including an extended park and ride service.

 A specialist card shop in Bishops Waltham had been shortlisted to be named 
Britain’s Best Small Shop of 2018.

 There had been a good level of interest in the new business units in Bishops 
Waltham;

 Following the recent Government announcement regarding business rate 
relief, work was underway to ensure measures to benefit local businesses 
could be in place as soon as possible.

6.   RIVER PARK LEISURE CENTRE - FUTURE USE OF SITE 
(CAB3093)

Councillor Miller introduced the report.

At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillors Thompson and Bell addressed 
Cabinet as summarised below:

Councillor Thompson
 Requested clarity of the status of the Informal Policy Group and in 

particular, how it would coordinate with the Winchester Town Forum, 
highlighting that the Forum had already established a group to consider 
matters relating to North Walls.  In addition, income from hiring pitches was 
a substantial portion of the Town Account budget;

 What was included in the area referred to as the brownfield site?
 Would there be consultation with other interested parties, such as the 

Winchester School of Art?
 Careful regard should be had to the existing covenant on the land and the 

Local Plan as the land was designated countryside.

Councillor Bell
 In consideration of the whole site, there were a large number of components 

and existing use for sporting and leisure activities which could be preserved 
and enhanced and there should not be a presumption in favour of demolition;

 Alternative ideas for the area included provision of a camp site, a youth 
hostel and a lido;

 The decision to build an eight court hall at the new Leisure Centre (rather 
than 12 courts) recognised that additional court space might be provided 
elsewhere and this area might be appropriate for such a facility.

In response to comments made, Cabinet noted that Paragraph 11.7 of the report 
acknowledged that further work was required to clarify the implications of the 
covenant. The reference to previously developed (brownfield) site referred to the 
existing developed footprint.  The Chairman highlighted that there was a 
commitment to retaining existing pitches and open spaces, whilst considering 
enhancing facilities in the area.  In addition, there were opportunities relating to 
some important historical monuments in the area.

The Chairman emphasised that the work of the Informal Policy Group (IPG) 
would include engaging with a wide number of consultees, including the 

Page 9



4

Winchester Town Forum.  It was agreed that Winchester City Football Club be 
included in the groups consulted and acknowledged that there were a range of 
other stakeholders in the area who should also be engaged. 

Cabinet agreed to the following for the reasons outlined above and set out in the 
Report.

RESOLVED:

1. That the scope of the work and process for starting the 
project, as detailed in this report, be agreed, including an Informal Policy 
Group comprising a chairman and four other elected members of the 
council, two from each group with Councillor Rose Burns appointed as 
Chairman. 

2. That a budget of £150,000 be approved for the initial stage 
of the project with authority given to the Strategic Director: Place for 
stakeholder engagement, consultation and development of options 
including the appointment of external advisors as required, as detailed in 
the report.

7.   CENTRAL WINCHESTER REGENERATION COITBURY HOUSE 
REFURBISHMENT 
(CAB3100)

Councillor Horrill introduced the report and stated that the proposals were 
supported by the Coitbury House Advisory Panel (one of three Advisory Panels 
established by the Cabinet (Central Winchester Regeneration) Committee).  The 
City of Winchester Trust had been a member of the Panel and provided useful 
advice, in addition to helpful contributions from RIBA.

At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor Thompson addressed Cabinet and 
in summary welcomed the proposals to refurbish Coitbury House and bring the 
building back into use.  She suggested that the potential use of local architects’ 
practices be investigated when seeking submissions.  The availability of the 
refurbished office would provide a test of the market for such accommodation in 
Winchester.

The Chairman responded that advice had been sought from the City of 
Winchester Trust and RIBA in deciding which architects to contact, having 
particular regard to proven experience with refurbishing buildings, rather than 
their location.  Cabinet noted that paragraph 11.1 stated that there was a 
significant shortage of grade A office space in Winchester.  The intention was for 
Coitbury House to be refurbished to a high standard to meet this demand.

Cabinet noted a minor correction to Appendix A of the report as bidders would 
be expected to present submissions on 23 November 2018. 

Cabinet agreed to the following for the reasons set out above and outlined in the 
Report.

Page 10



5

RESOLVED:

1. That the proposed strategic brief for architectural services 
be approved, as set out in Appendix A of the report.

2. That the Head of Programme be authorised to make minor 
amendments to the strategic brief if required.

3. That the Head of Programme, in consultation with the 
Leader (with Portfolio for Central Winchester Regeneration) and the 
Corporate Head of Asset Management be authorised to appoint the 
architect as set out in the report and any cost consultants, Structural and 
M&E Engineers and other professional consultants required for the works 
set out in the report be appointed in accordance with Contract Procedure 
Rule 9.2.

4. That the quotation for architectural services be evaluated on 
a 40/60 price/quality split as set out in the report which deviates from the 
Contract Procedure Rules 9.1(d) and authority be given to the Head of 
Programme in consultation with the Leader to agree the evaluation criteria 
for the appointment of an architect.

8.   MINUTES OF CABINET (CENTRAL WINCHESTER REGENERATION) 
COMMITTEE HELD 10 JULY 2018 
(CAB3099)

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the Cabinet (Central Winchester Regeneration) 
Committee held 10 July 2018 be received.

9.   MINUTES OF CABINET (CENTRAL WINCHESTER REGENERATION) 
COMMITTEE HELD 25 SEPTEMBER 2018 
(CAB3092)

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the Cabinet (Central Winchester Regeneration) 
Committee held 25 September 2018 be received.

10.   MINUTES OF CABINET (STATION APPROACH) COMMITTEE HELD 12 JULY 
2018 
(CAB3090)

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the Cabinet (Station Approach) Committee 
held 12 July 2018 be received.

Page 11



6

11.   MINUTES OF CABINET (STATION APPROACH) COMMITTEE HELD 4 
OCTOBER 2018 
(CAB3091)

Cabinet noted a correction to the minutes as Councillor Warwick was in 
attendance as a Committee member and not Councillor Humby.

RESOLVED:

That, subject to the correction outlined above, the minutes of 
the Cabinet (Station Approach) Committee held 4 October 2018 be 
received.

12.   MINUTES OF CABINET (LEISURE CENTRE) COMMITTEE HELD 18 
SEPTEMBER 2018 
(CAB3089)

Councillor Ashton requested an amendment to his statement in the minutes 
under the item relating to CAB3076(LC) and the operator procurement section 
to reflect that the potential risk related to the revenue provided by the operator 
contract rather than the cost of the operator contract as currently stated.  This 
was agreed.

Cabinet noted a further amendment requested to the public participation 
section of the minutes to state that Sue Falconer was speaking on behalf of 
Winchester SALT.  This was also agreed.

RESOLVED:

That subject to the two amendments outlined above, the 
minutes of the Cabinet (Leisure Centre) Committee held 18 
September 2018 be received.

13.   TO NOTE THE FUTURE ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION BY CABINET AS 
SHOWN ON THE DECEMBER 2018 FORWARD PLAN (TO BE PUBLISHED 31 
OCTOBER 2018). 

RESOLVED:

That the list of future items, as set out in the Forward Plan 
for December 2018, be noted.

14.   EXEMPT BUSINESS: 
RESOLVED:

1. That in all the circumstances, the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information.

2. That the public be excluded from the meeting during the 
consideration of the following items of business because it is likely that, if 

Page 12



7

members of the public were present, there would be disclosure to them of 
‘exempt information’ as defined by Section 100I and Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972.

Minute
Number

Item Description of
Exempt Information

15 Exempt Minute of 
previous meeting held 
on 19 September 2018

)
)
)
)
)
)

Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including 
the authority holding that 
information). (Para 3 Schedule 
12A refers)

15.   EXEMPT MINUTE OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 19 SEPTEMBER 
2018 

RESOLVED:

That the exempt minute of the previous meeting held 19 
September 2018, be approved and adopted.

The meeting commenced at 4.35 pm and concluded at 5.30 pm

Chairman

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



CAB3094
CABINET

REPORT TITLE: COUNCIL STRATEGY UPDATE

12 DECEMBER 2018

REPORT OF CABINET

Contact Officer:  Joseph Holmes    Tel No: 01962 848 220 Email 
jholmes@winchester.gov.uk 

WARD(S):  ALL

PURPOSE

The Council Strategy 2017-20 was adopted by Council on 23 February 2017 and 
refreshed in January 2018 to take account of external changes and sharpen the 
Council’s focus on the delivery methods and intended outcomes.

The Strategy document outlines the actions, commitments and measures to deliver 
overall outcomes by March 2020.

This report sets out the updated Council Strategy for the year 2019/20 which will be 
the final year of the current three year strategy.  This update sets out to further refine 
the actions and objectives for 2019/20 taking into consideration external factors and 
opportunities that have presented themselves to the Council.  

There are no proposed changes to the four strategic outcomes. 

RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. That Cabinet approves the refreshed Council Strategy covering the period 
2019/20 and recommends adoption to full Council.

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



CAB3094

IMPLICATIONS:

1 COUNCIL STRATEGY OUTCOME

1.1 This report provides details of the activities the Council will undertake during 
the next financial year to deliver the four priority outcomes included in the 
Council Strategy.

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

2.1 None directly included in this report.  The Strategy, along with Medium Term 
Financial Strategy will be the guiding document behind how the financial 
resources will be allocated in the future.  Proposals for budget growth will be 
brought forward for approval as required.

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS

3.1 None in the Strategy, though individual projects and actions will be subject to 
review as required by Legal Services.

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS

4.1 None directly arising from the Report. To deliver the aims and objectives in 
the Council Strategy, resources will need to be assigned as required, 
following the principles as laid out in the Employee Strategy

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS

5.1 None directly, although the Strategy does include commitments that will see 
implications for asset management.  

5.2 Investment in asset management is a core part of the delivery of the Strategy, 
as well as the Council’s Efficiency Plan 

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION 

6.1 Executive Leadership Board and Senior Managers have been consulted on 
the content of the refreshed Strategy. All Cabinet members have contributed 
to the refreshed strategy.

6.2 Given that this is only a minor refresh to the Council Strategy it is not 
proposed that there will be any formal consultation, although liaison with 
partners and key stakeholders who will share the delivery of the Strategy or 
are affected by any of the amendments will be undertaken.

6.3 The content of the report has also been considered by The Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 26 November 2018 (Report OS213 
refers.

6.4 At that meeting Members concluded that there were no items of significance 
that it wished to be drawn to the attention of Cabinet. 

Page 16

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/s2812/OS213%20Council%20Strategy%20Update.pdf


CAB3094

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS

7.1 None directly included in the report, however the Council Strategy includes 
aims to reduce carbon emissions across the District and take steps to improve 
air quality that contribute to improving the health and happiness of our 
community and improving the quality of the District’s environment.  

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT

8.1 None, although individual projects included in the Strategy may be subject to 
an equality impact assessment if required

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT

9.1 None.

10 RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Mitigation Opportunities
Property - none
Community Support Provide engagement 

opportunities especially 
through key projects.

Further opportunity to 
engage with our residents 
and community. 

Timescales – 
delivery against

Quarterly monitoring of the 
measures included in the 
Strategy by Cabinet and 
Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee

Project capacity Project Team structure 
supports the aims as set out in 
the Strategy.

Ensuring that all new 
schemes include appropriate 
project support as well as 
support service costs, as 
part of the business case.

Financial / VfM – 
Entrepreneurial 
Council

The Council’s Risk Appetite as 
set out in the Risk 
Management Policy 2017 
defines the amount of financial 
risk that the Council is willing 
to consider. 
All major projects have their 
own risk register which 
identifies among others, 
financial risks and includes 
relevant actions to manage 
these risks.

New revenue streams are 
proposed, as well as 
enhancing existing schemes 
to enhance the Council’s 
financial position.

Legal Each significant item will be 
subject to its own legal 
consideration in appropriate 

Page 17



CAB3094

Risk Mitigation Opportunities
reports.

Innovation Innovation through the 
Strategy alters the risk profile. 
In one way, there is increased 
risk through exploring new 
ways of working and new 
projects which have not been 
considered before.

This Strategy proposes 
some innovative proposals, 
and innovation is a theme 
which is proposed to support 
the delivery of the Strategy. 
The risk of remaining the 
same is significant in that 
funding reductions are such 
that the Council would be 
unable to fund some of its 
core services.

Reputation The risk of delivering the 
Strategy is mitigated through 
the monitoring of the outcome 
measures contained within the 
Strategy, and ensuring 
corrective action is taken. Not 
delivering on some of these 
items, especially some of the 
major projects will have a large 
financial risk to the Council 
through impacting on future 
revenue streams.

This Strategy gives the 
Council the opportunity to 
enhance its reputation 
through establishing a more 
targeted ambition for the 
District that is based on clear 
measures. Success against 
these key measures will 
enhance the Council’s 
reputation to move key 
programmes of work forward 
and deliver for residents of 
the District.

Other - none

11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION:

11.1 The Council Strategy 2017-20 was formally adopted by Council on 23 
February 2017.  This report presents the refreshed Council Strategy for the 
period 2019/20 which will be the final year of the current three year strategy.

11.2 The Council Strategy outlines the Councils key ambitions and is a focus for 
resources required to deliver the outcomes which are:

 Winchester District will be a premier business location
 Delivering quality housing options
 Improve the health and happiness of our community
 Improving the quality of the District’s environment

11.3 The Strategy document outlines 59 measures across 24 aims and 
commitments to deliver the four outcomes by March 2020.  This document 
guides the work of the Council and progress is reported quarterly to Overview 
and Scrutiny and Cabinet.  Recent reports show that good progress is being 
made to achieve the outcomes. 

Page 18



CAB3094

11.4 Given that the Council Strategy was last refreshed earlier this year, this 
update does not fundamentally change the content of the document, however 
it has provided the opportunity to: 

 Review the aims under the strategic outcomes,

 Take account of external factors such as relating to recent government 
announcements,

 Sharpen the Council’s focus on our delivery methods and outcomes,

 Refine the measures/ metrics that are to be used to prioritise our 
resources,

 Revise any target dates to reflect changed circumstances,

 Remove or update any actions that have been completed as reported 
in the quarterly Finance and Performance reports,

 Include objectives for 2019/20 to take advantage of opportunities that 
have arisen,

 Ensure the listing of lead officers is up to date and in line with any 
recent staff changes.  

11.5 There are six new actions that have been added to the Council Strategy for 
2019/20 and are set out as follows:

Winchester Will be a Premier Business Location

11.6 Work with strategic partners to deliver digital infrastructure projects 
across the District – a new outcome has been added for 2019/20 to reflect 
the aims of the recently adopted Council Digital Strategy.  This new outcome 
is to improve the digital experience and accessibility for residents, businesses 
and visitors including Wi-Fi enablement of the city centre and development of 
a smart app.

11.7 Be innovative by exploring opportunities to reduce revenue expenditure 
and maximise key income streams – to reflect the Council’s ambition to 
provide all Council services online by the end of 2019, a new outcome has 
been added to the Council Strategy.  This new outcome is to support the 
delivery of the ten actions as set out in the Digital Strategy including working 
with partners to ensure that all Council services can be accessed online.

Improving the Quality of the District’s Environment

11.8 Protect, enhance and respect the District’s rich heritage and landscape 
whilst allowing appropriate development to take place enabling our 
historic environment to evolve over time having due regard for the 
landscape character - as the council is planning to build a state-of-the-art 
leisure centre in Bar End, it has set up a new Informal Policy Group (IPG) to 
examine how it can best use the land at and around the existing leisure centre 
once the proposed new Sport & Leisure Park is up and running.   In support of 
this, a new action is proposed for the Council Strategy which is to explore the 

Page 19



CAB3094

options open to it to redevelop the current RPLC site working towards a more 
detailed strategic business case and feasibility study. 

11.9 A further action has been added under this aim for 2019/20 to begin working 
on a new Green Infrastructure Strategy for the District, which will include the 
necessary policy information; an implementation plan and developers tool kit 
to support planners.

11.10 By working with our partners and by using powers available to us, make 
Winchester a safe and pleasant place to live, work and visit – the Council 
is planning to undertake a thorough review of its taxi licensing policy during 
2019/20 so as to introduce higher standards of public safety and improve air 
quality.  A new action setting out the review has been added to the updated 
Council Strategy.

11.11 The Council is planning to undertake a biodiversity audit for the District during 
2019 to support a thorough refresh of its Biodiversity Action Plan that is based 
on up to date and robust evidence. These two new actions are proposed to be 
included in the 2019/20 Council Strategy and under a new aim that is to 
“Work with strategic partners to identify opportunities to protect, 
enhance and restore the biodiversity in the District”.  

12 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

12.1 The Council could choose not to have a Council Strategy or not to refresh the 
existing document.  It is the Council Strategy that sets out the key delivery 
programme for the Council and enables effective business planning for teams. 
To not have a Strategy is not recommended.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:-

Previous Committee Reports:-

CAB2899 – Council Strategy 2017-20

CAB2980 – Council Strategy Refresh

Other Background Documents:-

None

APPENDICES:

Appendix 1 Proposed refreshed Council Strategy 2019/20

Appendix 2 Proposed Performance Measures

Page 20

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/meetings/documents/41574/CAB2980%20Council%20Strategy%20Refresh.pdf


COUNCIL STRATEGY 
2017 – 2020

2019 EDITION

Page 21



ENTREPRENEURIAL APPROACH

BUSINESS HOUSING HEALTH & HAPPINESS ENVIRONMENT

Vision

A blueprint for Winchester’s future

The overarching vision of Winchester City 
Council is to combine a blend of innovation, 
aspiration and pragmatism when delivering 
local services, looking beyond the traditional 
ways of doing things.

We are committed to:

• Making the District a premier business 
location

• Developing quality housing with a 
balanced range of tenures

• Protecting and enhancing our unique 
environment

• Delivering services that encourage 
residents to lead healthy and fulfilling 
lives

The outcome of our combined aims will 
be a district where everyone enjoys the 
opportunities and quality of life that come 
from living in the Winchester District.

Farley Mount Winchester

Page 22



3Council Strategy 2017 – 2020

© Crown copyright and database rights
Winchester City Council license 100019531

This strategy outlines how the Council will deliver 
its vision up until 31 March 2020. We face many 
challenges, and our strategy sets out the key outcomes 
and core principles which underpin our work.

About this strategy document

The Worthys

Badger Farm & Oliver’s Battery

Colden Common & Twyford

Southwick & Wickham

Bishop’s Waltham

Denmead

Whiteley & Shedfield

Upper Meon Valley

Central Meon Valley

Wonston & Micheldever

Alresford & Itchen Valley

St Barnabas

Winchester

St Paul
St Bartholomew

St Michael
St Luke

Page 23



4 Winchester City Council

Winchester City Council manages a wide variety of services. We have 
responsibility for: 

 • Planning management • Building control 
 • Housing • Waste collection  
 • Council tax  • Business rates collection  
 • Leisure services • Tourism  
 • Benefits administration • Economic development

Routinely praised as being one of the most desirable places to live in the UK, 
the Winchester District boasts up to 250 square miles of rolling countryside and 
economic heartland. The conservation of this unique setting is central to this 
document, which sets in stone the Council’s ambitious and sustainable vision for 
the future.

The Winchester District is renowned for its strong economic foundations; 
contributing £4.8 billion in total output Gross Value Added (GVA) in 2015. 
Despite this, we know that a healthy and happy population needs more than 
a strong economy, which is why this strategy seeks to tackle a wide range of 
issues, from air quality to the condition of the public realm.

As a result, we have set out a bold vision for Winchester, driven forward by 
greater public engagement and investment in our city centre. 

Ultimately, this document will seek to ensure that we continue to provide high 
quality housing, greater support for our local businesses and improve the health 
and happiness of our community. 

Your Council

Winchester District will be 
a premier business location

Deliver quality  
housing options

Improve the health and 
happiness of our community

Environment

8,200 
The number of businesses in Winchester 

District in 2016

91%  
The number of tenants who said they were 

satisfied with the Council as a landlord 

TOP 30 
Our District’s ranking for life  

satisfaction in the UK

86%
Of our residents wish to maintain the 

District’s environmental character

Page 24



5Council Strategy 2017 – 2020

By 2019 we will cease to receive any core 
government grant. Our financial future 
relies upon council tax from residents, 
a small share of business rates from 
businesses in our District, new homes 
bonus incentive from government 
(though no forecast can be made on this 
beyond 2020), and fees and charges we 
raise locally for services.

For us to maintain or even grow our 
excellent services and deliver our Council 
Strategy, we need to balance these 
pressures on our funding and make 
sure we are able to grow these income 
streams as well as seek to obtain new 
sources of income. As well as setting out 
what we want to achieve for the District, 
our council strategy also sets out how we 
aim to be financially resilient when facing 
these challenges.

To deliver the strategy we also have a 
significant capital programme. We are 
planning some major schemes for a new 
leisure centre, regeneration and building 
new homes; these need to be affordable 
so that we do not put undue additional 
financial burdens on our residents and 
businesses.

How we are financed and the role of government has 

fundamentally changed over this decade

Changes in Council funding 2010/11 – 2022/23

Financial challenge

The Guildhall in Winchester - civic and community hub

2010/11

 Council Tax

 Other Government Funding

 Business Rates Retention

 New Homes Bonus
Core Funding Assumptions

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

Page 25



6 Winchester City Council

One

Winchester District will be a premier business location

Our four strategic outcomes

We will

• Promote a sustainable economy 
by enabling major regeneration 
schemes.

• Prioritise support for the 
knowledge-based, creative and 
tourism sectors.

• Utilise our environment to drive 
business growth and create 
employment opportunities across 
the District.

• Work with strategic partners 
to deliver digital infrastructure 
projects across the District.

• Be innovative by exploring 
opportunities to reduce revenue 
expenditure and maximise key 
income streams.

We have

• Driven forward our plans to 
regenerate the Central Winchester 
area, materialising opportunities 
for businesses and residents alike. 

• Prioritised the reinforcement of our 
digital infrastructure, by rolling out 
access to superfast broadband for 
95% of Hampshire.

• Hosted well attended events, such 
as Hack! Winchester, that seek to 
inspire our local businesses to work 
collaboratively and share ideas with 
one another.

• Celebrated the pioneering 
innovation of our local businesses, 
by holding our popular annual 
Winchester District Business 
Excellence Awards. 

• Encouraged our smaller businesses 
to compete in the ‘Business 
Innovation Fund’, the winner 
of which will receive Council 
funding to further develop their 
organisational aspirations.

Why?

The District is an attractive place 
to do business. We know that we 
have great transport links and low 
unemployment levels. It is vital to us 
that we help support business growth 
and success by enabling the supply of 
new office and employment space, 
and increase job opportunities to 
match our growing population. 

As finances for local government 
continue to be squeezed, we need to 
help drive growth in business rates 
to continue to provide the excellent 
services our residents deserve. 

Whiteley - a popular retail destination in our District

Winchester Hack an agenda to support 
businesses, attract and retain young people and 
create co-working spaces

Virgin Voom providing support for new start-up 
businesses

Page 26



7Council Strategy 2017 – 2020

Two

Delivering quality housing options

Our four strategic outcomes

We have

• Completed the Chesil Lodge 
project, a specifically suited 
apartment complex aimed to 
provide affordable lets and 
support for elderly residents. 

• Delivered and approved over 200 
new Council houses since 2017. 

• Secured a £3.2 million grant for 
housing and community facility 
development at Stanmore. 

• Creation of a Social Inclusion 
Forum, to further our efforts 
in preventing homelessness in 
Winchester District.

• First shared home purchase 
completed through the Council’s 
innovative PHP scheme in October 
2018.

We will

• Deliver good housing stock 
condition and energy performance 
for Council-owned dwellings that 
meet the Decent Homes standard.

• Respond to the need to provide 
more affordable housing in the 
District.

• Drive down homelessness across 
the District and support partner 
agencies in the drive for an 
improved life for those in need

• Provide good access to affordable 
housing options across a range 
of tenures, including affordable 
and sub-market rent (within local 
housing allowance rates), shared 
ownership, student housing etc.

• Be proactive in our tenant 
engagement, achieving effective 
representation and insight across 
all tenant and customer groups.

• Restrict permitted development 
rights in Winchester so that new 
houses in multiple occupation 
require planning permission.

• Support residents to buy their own 
homes.

Chesil Lodge, providing brand new affordable accommodation for our vulnerable elderly residents 

Award-winning new homes 

© Joe Low 2017 

New homes at Ashburton Road, Alresford

Why?

We believe that it is vital that our 
residents have access to quality 
housing options, and we recognise 
the importance of having the right 
mix of housing within the District. We 
know that housing is expensive here, 
and we want to be active in helping 
to provide different options for our 
residents. At the same time, we wish 
to ensure that we increase the supply 
and quality of housing that we control 
(currently over 6,000 properties). 

Enabling home ownership via the 
Partnered Home Purchase scheme

Page 27



8 Winchester City Council

Three

Improve the health and happiness of our community

Our four strategic outcomes

Tackling childhood obesity at Stanmore Primary School

We will

• Work with partners to reduce 
health inequalities in the District 
and promote good mental and 
physical health.

• Provide new leisure facilities in 
Winchester that meet the needs 
of a broad cross-section of our 
communities for now and the 
future.

• Encourage volunteering to support 
and extend local services.

• Support the delivery of a 
programme of festivals and events 
across the District.

• Work with partners to achieve 
significant and sustained change 
for vulnerable and troubled 
families with multiple, complex and 
persistent problems.

We have

• Planning recommended for 
approval for the construction of 
the new sport and leisure centre at 
Bar End to begin in Spring 2019.

• Recorded the completion of 1,259 
health walks in Spring 2018, 
supporting our campaign to 
promote healthier lifestyles for our 
residents. 

• Supported our local sport 
organisations, providing £220,000 
worth of business rate relief for 
Winchester’s sport associated 
enterprises. 

• Delivered on our promise of 
promoting healthier lifestyles for 
our young people, with 1,017 
junior participants taking part in 
our weekly park run. 

• Just under 2,500 pupils from 
19 schools across the District 
took part in the inspiring Golden 
Mile initiative, aimed at tackling 
childhood obesity. 

Why?

We know that people’s health is key 
to enjoying a high quality of life. We 
want to focus on reducing inequalities 
and improving our community’s 
health and happiness, particularly 
through sport and other types of 
activity. We also want to retain 
festivals and programmes of events 
that take place across the District, and 
provide a sense of cultural vibrancy. 

Sport & Leisure Park

Page 28



9Council Strategy 2017 – 2020

Four

Improving the quality of the District’s environment

Our four strategic outcomes

We have

• Promoted our work to raise our 
resident’s awareness of recycling 
at home, where we continue to 
see positive engagement from our 
communities. 

• Finalised and completed work on 
two more parking schemes for 
Stanmore, with similar schemes at 
Colden Common and Highcliffe 
being proposed.  

• Bolstered the capacity of our Park 
and Ride service, by providing an 
additional bus during peak times. 

• Broadened our public consultation 
regarding the standard of our 
open spaces, with the latest 
online survey ending in November. 

• Spearheaded efforts to become 
a Carbon Neutral Council, 
with figures for this year 
demonstrating that our carbon 
emissions have fallen by 22.5% 
since 2009. 

We will

• Protect, enhance and respect 
the District’s rich heritage 
and landscape while allowing 
appropriate development to take 
place.

• Enable our historic environment to 
evolve over time, with due regard 
for the landscape character.

• Work with our partners and using 
powers available to us, make 
Winchester a safe and pleasant 
place to live, work and visit.

• Protect, enhance and increase the 
use of open spaces in both the 
towns and more rural areas of the 
District.

• Work to change attitudes to 
waste, fly-tipping and littering 
and significantly improve recycling 
levels. 

• Work with strategic partners 
to continue to develop flood 
resilience measures to protect our 
communities.

• Improve the environment and 
reduce harmful emissions through 
holistic transport planning.

• Working with strategic partners to 
identify opportuniites to enhance 
and restore biodiversity in the 
District.

Why?

We provide services in a fantastic and 
diverse location. We want to keep 
the District’s environmental character 
but also find ways of improving the 
quality of the environment to benefit 
as many people as we can. We expect 
the District’s population to increase by 
3% by 2020 and we want to ensure 
people can continue to expect a clean 
and safe environment to live and 
work in, as well as be able to enjoy 
our beautiful countryside and rural 
landscape. 

Launch of the Enterprise Car Hire Club

The North Pond near Bishop’s Waltham The Winchester District features a mix of 
urban character and rural charm

Working with partners

Page 29



10 Winchester City Council

The Council will adopt an entrepreneurial approach to 
achieving all the outcomes in this strategy.

Significant challenges face the public sector. To ensure that 
Winchester District continues to thrive requires different 
ways of thinking and new approaches to achieving the 
same, or more with less. Traditional methods of tackling 
this problem (such as salami slicing council budgets) are 
no longer an option if we want to maintain excellent 
services for our residents, businesses and visitors. This is 
why Winchester City Council is adopting an entrepreneurial 
approach to how it delivers its services and secures its 
medium-term financial strategy. 
 

• Adopt an imaginative and innovative mind-set towards 
using our resources.

• Clearly understand the needs of our residents, businesses 
and visitors, and design our services to meet these needs.

• Maintain an open mind when exploring new models for 
service delivery and provide options for the Council to 
consider in order to secure the best opportunities for the 
District.

• When exploring new opportunities, adopt an agile 
approach which allows us to rapidly review and learn 
from experience to ensure the best result.

• Actively look for ways to work with partners – public, 
private and voluntary sector – to secure the best value for 
money for taxpayers.

The Council’s Risk Management Strategy was approved 
in 2017 and set out a new risk appetite which is more 
aspirational but also more pragmatic.

In working entrepreneurially, 
we aim to exhibit the following 
behaviours

What do we mean by an 
entrepreneurial approach?

We want our staff to be inspired and motivated to work 
for the Council and engage with our residents, acting in a 
manner which is consultative, considerate and courageous 
to deliver the strategy.

Sport and Leisure Park - planning recommended for approval

Welcoming student to Stanmore

Winchester Unconference - you set the 
agenda

Page 30



11Council Strategy 2017 – 2020

How we will deliver the Strategy – core principles

We want to engage 
better with our 
residents and 
businesses, to really 
understand their 
needs and how 
they can utilise our 
services to drive 
change across 
the District.

We want to use the 
best that the public 
and private sector 
offer to explore 
new ways of 
providing services 
across the District.

We will focus 
our services 
on improving 
standards so that 
they meet the 
expectations of 
our customers and 
reflect changes 
over the coming 
three years.

We will use our 
resources to invest 
in our services to 
improve them, 
but also to take 
advantage of 
commercial 
opportunities 
where they arise 
to help secure our 
financial future.

We want our staff 
to be inspired and 
motivated to work 
for the Council and 
engage with our 
residents, acting 
in a manner which 
is consultative, 
considerate and 
courageous to 
deliver the strategy.

INSIGHT

H
O

W

W
E 

W
IL

L
W

E 
H

A
V

E

H
O

W

W
E 

W
IL

L
W

E 
H

A
V

E

INNOVATION IMPROVEMENT INVESTMENT INSPIRATION

• Commissioned 
Winchester Business 
Survey for 2019

• Preventing 
Homelessness and 
Rough Sleeping 
Strategy 2019-2024 
Online Survey

• Parks and Green 
Spaces Visitor Survey 

• Business Innovation 
Fund – an 
opportunity for 
members of the 
public to vote on 
which innovative 
business ideas the 
council should fund.

• Partnered Home 
Purchase Scheme – 
offers residents the 
chance to choose a 
home on the open 
market which is then 
purchased by the 
council

• Cultural Innovative 
Grants Scheme - a 
grant payment for 
festivals, cultural 
events or arts 
activities

• Ongoing efforts to 
improve recycling 
across the District 

• Creation of a Social 
Inclusion Forum, as 
part of our overall 
strategy to tackle 
rough sleeping in the 
District 

• Taking part in a 
customer service 
improvement project 
to understand our 
strengths and areas 
of improvement in 
the organisation

• Central Winchester 
Regeneration

• Station Approach 
• Building new 

communities and 
infrastructure 
at Whiteley and 
Waterlooville

• Green Impact 
Awards 

• Establishment of 
the Golden Mile 
initiative, to support 
our strategy to 
reduce childhood 
obesity across the 
District 

Page 31



If you would like to receive this document in another format, 
please contact Winchester City Council’s customer service centre on 01962 840 222. 

Alternatively, you can request this information online.

©
W

in
ch

es
te

r 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
65

46
 D

ec
18

Page 32



COUNCIL STRATEGY 
2017 – 2020

2019 PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Page 33



2 Council Strategy 2018 – 2020

Page 34



32019 Performance Measures 

Aim How we will deliver our 
outcomes

Suggested Performance Measure / 
Target & Data Source

Delivery 
Date

Portfolio 

OUTCOME: Winchester District will be a premier business location

Promote a sustainable 
economy by enabling 
major regeneration 
schemes 

Support the regeneration of the 
Central Winchester area

Measure: Deliver Meanwhile Uses on 
Central Winchester Regeneration site

Target: By March 2020

(Data Source: Project Data)

Mar-20 Built 
Environment

Project manage and support the 
redevelopment of the Station 
Approach area of Winchester

Measure: Office floorspace on the 
Carfax / Station Approach site

Target: Increase of 140,000 ft2 secured 
in planning permission

(Data Source: Project Data)

Mar-20 Estates

Prioritise support for 
the knowledge-based, 
creative and tourism 
sectors

Development of an Economic 
Strategy

Measure: Adoption of updated 
Economic Strategy

Target: Measures and Action Plan 
included in Strategy

(Data Source: Economic Data)

Mar-20 Business 
Partnership

Sustain our rural economy by 
supporting existing businesses 
to grow and new enterprises to 
start including Fieldfare LEADER 
Programme

Measure: Number of businesses 
support, financial amount of support/ 
grant given

Target: LEADER 70 enterprises 
supported (WCC only)

(Data Source: LEADER funding 
performance reports)

Mar-20 Business 
Partnership

OUTCOME: WINCHESTER DISTRICT WILL BE A  
PREMIER BUSINESS LOCATION

Page 35



4 Council Strategy 2018 – 2020

OUTCOME: WINCHESTER DISTRICT WILL BE A  
PREMIER BUSINESS LOCATION

Aim How we will deliver our 
outcomes

Suggested Performance Measure / 
Target & Data Source

Delivery 
Date

Portfolio 

OUTCOME: Winchester District will be a premier business location

Utilise our 
environment to drive 
business growth and 
create employment 
opportunities across 
the District

Facilitate and support the 
development and delivery of 
strategically important sites 
across the District and working 
with partners to deliver 
employment opportunities

Measure: New floorspace identified / 
provided 

Target: Fixed target not appropriate. 
Measures data will be monitored with 
regard to securing overall ambitions. 

(Data Source: Estates Team)

Mar-20 Business 
Partnership

Seek to secure partners for a 
public service hub to be based 
around the City Offices/West 
Wing/Guildhall buildings

Measure: Number of partners secured / 
Floorspace utilised

Target: Fixed target not appropriate. 
Measures data will be monitored with 
regard to securing overall ambitions. 

(Data Source:  Not yet known)

Mar-20 Estates

Use a Strategic Asset Purchase 
Scheme to generate financial 
and community returns

Measure: Returns from a Strategic Asset 
Purchase Scheme 
Target: Gross £500k p.a. generated, plus 
other community benefits

(Data Source: Financial Data)

Mar-20 Business 
Partnership

Adopt and start to implement 
measures in a new Car Parking 
Strategy

Measure: Progress of measures in new 
strategy

Target: Adopt new Strategy by  
March 2019

(Data Source: Car Parking occupancy 
surveys, income, park & ride monitoring, 
City of Winchester Movement Strategy)

Mar-20 Environment

Develop a plan to deliver the 
measures needed to achieve the 
priorities set out in the City of 
Winchester Movement Strategy

Measure: Status of City of Winchester 
Movement Strategy (with HCC).

Target: Development of plan

(Data Source: Local traffic, transport and 
parking information and additional data 
commissioned specifically as part of the 
project)

Mar-20 Environment

Support new businesses set up 
in the District with advice to 
thrive and prosper

Measure: Number of new businesses 
supported, including with grants and 
advice 
 
Target:  Not yet known. Will be included 
in refreshed Economic Strategy 
 
(Data Source: Economy Team)

Mar-20 Business 
Partnership

Directly develop space to 
support SMEs to grow

Measure: New net floorspace for SME 
Provision 
 
Target: Fixed target not appropriate. 
Measures data will be monitored with 
regard to securing overall ambitions.  
 
(Data Source: Estates Team)

Mar-20 Business 
Partnership

Page 36



52019 Performance Measures 

Aim How we will deliver our 
outcomes

Suggested Performance Measure / 
Target & Data Source

Delivery 
Date

Portfolio 

OUTCOME: Winchester District will be a premier business location

Work with strategic 
partners to deliver 
digital infrastructure 
projects across the 
District

Improve the digital experience 
and accessibility for residents, 
businesses and visitors including 
wifi enablement of the city 
centre and development of a 
smart app.

Measure: Number of downloads of 
smart app 

Target:  Baseline assessment for 2019

(Data Source: Customer Service Centre 
and IMT)

Mar-20 Professional 
Services

Be innovative 
by exploring 
opportunities to 
reduce revenue 
expenditure and 
maximise key income 
streams

Support the delivery of the ten 
actions as set out in the Digital 
Strategy including working 
with partners to ensure that 
all Council Services can be 
accessed online

Measure: Percentage of services that are 
fully available online 

Target:  100% availability of services 
online

(Data Source: Customer Service Centre 
and IMT)

Dec-19 Professional 
Services

Deliver a programme of 
transformation that will 
deliver an improved customer 
experience for residents and 
businesses when contacting the 
Council

Measure: Improved customer 
satisfaction 

Target:  Baseline assessment for 2019

(Data Source: Customer Service Centre 
and IMT)

Mar-20 Professional 
Services

Explore the opportunities to 
establish joint-ventures to 
enable more efficient services

Measure: Number of joint ventures 
opportunities explored, potential 
efficiency savings

Target: Fixed target not appropriate. 
Measures data will be monitored with 
regard to securing overall ambitions. 

(Data Source: Project Team)

Mar-20 Business 
Partnership

Carry out improvements to 
the current City Offices while 
reviewing the long term options 
for staff office accommodation

Measures: Percentage of WCC City 
Offices improved. Options for the long 
term explored and considered 
 
Targets: Refurbishment - March 2019. 
Works and Longer-Term Study complete 
- March 2020 
 
(Data Source: Project Team)

Mar-20 Professional 
Services

Aim How we will deliver our 
outcomes

Suggested Performance Measure / 
Target & Data Source

Delivery 
Date

Portfolio 

OUTCOME: Winchester District will be a premier business location

Utilise our 
environment to drive 
business growth and 
create employment 
opportunities across 
the District

Facilitate and support the 
development and delivery of 
strategically important sites 
across the District and working 
with partners to deliver 
employment opportunities

Measure: New floorspace identified / 
provided 

Target: Fixed target not appropriate. 
Measures data will be monitored with 
regard to securing overall ambitions. 

(Data Source: Estates Team)

Mar-20 Business 
Partnership

Seek to secure partners for a 
public service hub to be based 
around the City Offices/West 
Wing/Guildhall buildings

Measure: Number of partners secured / 
Floorspace utilised

Target: Fixed target not appropriate. 
Measures data will be monitored with 
regard to securing overall ambitions. 

(Data Source:  Not yet known)

Mar-20 Estates

Use a Strategic Asset Purchase 
Scheme to generate financial 
and community returns

Measure: Returns from a Strategic Asset 
Purchase Scheme 
Target: Gross £500k p.a. generated, plus 
other community benefits

(Data Source: Financial Data)

Mar-20 Business 
Partnership

Adopt and start to implement 
measures in a new Car Parking 
Strategy

Measure: Progress of measures in new 
strategy

Target: Adopt new Strategy by  
March 2019

(Data Source: Car Parking occupancy 
surveys, income, park & ride monitoring, 
City of Winchester Movement Strategy)

Mar-20 Environment

Develop a plan to deliver the 
measures needed to achieve the 
priorities set out in the City of 
Winchester Movement Strategy

Measure: Status of City of Winchester 
Movement Strategy (with HCC).

Target: Development of plan

(Data Source: Local traffic, transport and 
parking information and additional data 
commissioned specifically as part of the 
project)

Mar-20 Environment

Support new businesses set up 
in the District with advice to 
thrive and prosper

Measure: Number of new businesses 
supported, including with grants and 
advice 
 
Target:  Not yet known. Will be included 
in refreshed Economic Strategy 
 
(Data Source: Economy Team)

Mar-20 Business 
Partnership

Directly develop space to 
support SMEs to grow

Measure: New net floorspace for SME 
Provision 
 
Target: Fixed target not appropriate. 
Measures data will be monitored with 
regard to securing overall ambitions.  
 
(Data Source: Estates Team)

Mar-20 Business 
Partnership

Page 37



6 Council Strategy 2018 – 2020

Aim How we will deliver our 
outcomes

Suggested Performance Measure / 
Target & Data Source

Delivery 
Date

Portfolio 

OUTCOME: Delivering quality housing options

Deliver good housing 
stock condition and 
energy performance 
for Council-owned 
dwellings that meet 
the Decent Homes 
standard

Carry out repairs and 
maintenance improvements 
as per the capital repairs 
programme

Measures:  Stock meets Decent Homes 
Standard and energy performance 
ratings 
 
Target: Maintain 0% "Non Decent" 
Stock.  Average Standard Assessment 
Procedure (SAP) rating > 65 
 
(Data Source: Local Authority Housing 
Data/Keystone system)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Respond to the need 
to provide more 
affordable housing in 
the District

Significantly increase the 
number of Council houses built 
in the period 2017 - 2020

Measure: Provide additional new homes 
through Council funded development 
programme 
 
Target: An additional 600 new homes 
by 2020 
 
(Data Source: New Homes Delivery 
Team)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Bid for grant to support 
additional development

Measure: % of New Homes programme 
supported by grant 
 
Target: 50% by 2020 
 
(Data Source: Housing Team)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Housing Company be used 
to support the delivery of sub 
market rented housing

Measure: Number of units delivered

Target:  No target

(Data Source: Housing Team)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Drive down 
homelessness across 
the District and 
support partner 
agencies in the drive 
for an improved life 
for those in need

Avoiding reliance on B&B as a 
housing option by focussing 
on preventing homelessness 
and effective use of temporary 
accommodation

Measure: Number of people in B&B 
and Homeless  (Total nights in B&B / 
Homeless) 
 
Target: No use of B&B (save in 
exceptional circumstances) 
 
(Data Source: DCLG Return)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Support an increase in the 
provision of supported housing 
units/move on accommodation 
by establishing and leading 
multi agency Homelessness/
Social Inclusion forum

Measure:  Number of supported/move-
on units available 
 
Target:  The provision of another 10 
supported / move-on units 
 
(Data Source: Housing OptionsTeam)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

OUTCOME: DELIVERING QUALITY HOUSING OPTIONS

Page 38



72019 Performance Measures 

Aim How we will deliver our 
outcomes

Suggested Performance Measure / 
Target & Data Source

Delivery 
Date

Portfolio 

OUTCOME: Delivering quality housing options

Provide good access 
to affordable housing 
options across a 
range of tenures, 
including affordable 
and sub market rent 
(within Local Housing 
Allowance rates) 
market rent, shared 
ownership, student 
housing etc

Support and enable 
development partners/
Registered Social Landlords 
(RSLs) to develop more 
affordable housing

Measure: Number of affordable homes 
developed by other organisations in the 
district 
 
Target: No target - provision funded by 
other providers 
 
(Data Source: Housing Team)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Develop an effective "shared 
ownership" programme

Measure:  Number of affordable shared 
ownership homes developed by the 
Council 
 
Target:    At least 30 by 2020  
 
(Data Source: Local Authority Housing 
Data and Annual Monitoring Report)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Be proactive in our 
tenant engagement, 
achieving effective 
representation and 
insight across all 
tenant and customer 
groups

Making a more effective use 
of the Survey of Tenants and 
Residents through better use 
of data and wider engagement 
with a particular emphasis on 
digital engagement 

Measure: Number of "involved" tenants 
 
Target: increase number of “involved 
tenants” from 200 to 400 by March 
2020 
(Data Source: Housing Projects Team)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Restrict permitted 
development rights 
in Winchester so 
that new Houses in 
Multiple Occupation 
(HMOs) require 
planning permission

Make an Article 4 Direction(s) 
where evidence shows the 
proliferation of HMOs is 
unbalancing housing stock in 
Winchester, or parts of the city

Measure:  Article 4 Directions approved  
 
Target:   2 currently established. Fixed 
target not appropriate. Measures 
data will be monitored with regard to 
securing overall ambitions 
 
(Data Source: Local Authority Housing 
Data and Annual Monitoring Report)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Aim How we will deliver our 
outcomes

Suggested Performance Measure / 
Target & Data Source

Delivery 
Date

Portfolio 

OUTCOME: Delivering quality housing options

Deliver good housing 
stock condition and 
energy performance 
for Council-owned 
dwellings that meet 
the Decent Homes 
standard

Carry out repairs and 
maintenance improvements 
as per the capital repairs 
programme

Measures:  Stock meets Decent Homes 
Standard and energy performance 
ratings 
 
Target: Maintain 0% "Non Decent" 
Stock.  Average Standard Assessment 
Procedure (SAP) rating > 65 
 
(Data Source: Local Authority Housing 
Data/Keystone system)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Respond to the need 
to provide more 
affordable housing in 
the District

Significantly increase the 
number of Council houses built 
in the period 2017 - 2020

Measure: Provide additional new homes 
through Council funded development 
programme 
 
Target: An additional 600 new homes 
by 2020 
 
(Data Source: New Homes Delivery 
Team)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Bid for grant to support 
additional development

Measure: % of New Homes programme 
supported by grant 
 
Target: 50% by 2020 
 
(Data Source: Housing Team)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Housing Company be used 
to support the delivery of sub 
market rented housing

Measure: Number of units delivered

Target:  No target

(Data Source: Housing Team)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Drive down 
homelessness across 
the District and 
support partner 
agencies in the drive 
for an improved life 
for those in need

Avoiding reliance on B&B as a 
housing option by focussing 
on preventing homelessness 
and effective use of temporary 
accommodation

Measure: Number of people in B&B 
and Homeless  (Total nights in B&B / 
Homeless) 
 
Target: No use of B&B (save in 
exceptional circumstances) 
 
(Data Source: DCLG Return)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Support an increase in the 
provision of supported housing 
units/move on accommodation 
by establishing and leading 
multi agency Homelessness/
Social Inclusion forum

Measure:  Number of supported/move-
on units available 
 
Target:  The provision of another 10 
supported / move-on units 
 
(Data Source: Housing OptionsTeam)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Page 39



8 Council Strategy 2018 – 2020

Aim How we will deliver our 
outcomes

Suggested Performance Measure / 
Target & Data Source

Delivery 
Date

Portfolio 

OUTCOME: Delivering quality housing options

Support residents to 
buy their own home

Develop an effective "shared 
ownership" programme (shared 
target with aim to "Provide 
good access to affordable 
housing options")

Measure:  Number of affordable shared 
ownership homes developed by the 
Council 
 
Target:    At least 30 by 2020  
 
(Data Source: Local Authority Housing 
Data and Annual Monitoring Report)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Provide access to custom build 
initiatives 

Measure:  Number of custom build plots 
identified  
 
Target:    2 sites by 2020  
 
(Data Source: Local Authority Housing 
Data and Annual Monitoring Report)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Review the Partnered Home 
Purchase pilot scheme that 
enables residents to buy their 
own home in a shared equity 
scheme with the Council

Measure: No of households utilising the 
open-market shared ownership scheme. 
 
Target: 30 households by March 2020 
 
(Data Source: Local data)

Mar-20 Finance

OUTCOME: DELIVERING QUALITY HOUSING OPTIONS

Page 40



92019 Performance Measures 

Aim How we will deliver our 
outcomes

Suggested Performance Measure / 
Target & Data Source

Delivery 
Date

Portfolio 

OUTCOME: Improve the health and happiness of our community 

Work with partners 
to reduce health 
inequalities in the 
District and to 
promote good mental 
and physical health

Council grants programme to 
prioritise sports and physical 
activity programmes

Measure: Number of grants and the 
total financial amount approved for 
sports groups

Target: Maintain or increase level of 
grants and support using 2017/18 as 
base line

(Data Source: Grants Programme)

Mar-20 Estates

Develop the Exercise Referral 
programme to include classes 
for adults with long term health 
conditions

Measure: Number of exercise referrals 
 
Target: Achieve 270 referrals and class 
attendance during 2019/20 
 
(Data Source: Sports & Physical Activity 
Team data)

Mar-20 Health & 
Wellbeing

Promote and encourage health 
walks across the District helping 
everyone live longer, healthier 
and happier lives

Measure: Throughput of attendees at 
health walks 
 
Target: Increase the number of health 
walks in the District to 6,000 during 
2019/20 
 
(Data Source: Healthwalk Data)

Mar-20 Health & 
Wellbeing

Target discretionary business 
rates relief towards sports clubs

Measure: Number of sports clubs 
receiving rate relief support

Target: Maintain or increase rate relief 
using 2017/18 as base line

(Data Source: )

Mar-20 Finance

Increase the number of adults 
participating in sport or physical 
activity

Measure: Number of adults participating 
in sport and  physical activity per week

Target: Inactive People (less than 30 
minutes) 19%, Fairly Active (30 - 149 
minutes) 14.5%,  Active (at least 150 
minutes) 66.5%

Baseline Data 2017/18: Inactive People 
19.8%, Fairly Active 11%,  Active 
69.2%

(Data Source: Sport England Active Lives 
Data)

Mar-20 Health & 
Wellbeing

OUTCOME: IMPROVE THE HEALTH AND HAPPINESS OF 
OUR COMMUNITY 

Aim How we will deliver our 
outcomes

Suggested Performance Measure / 
Target & Data Source

Delivery 
Date

Portfolio 

OUTCOME: Delivering quality housing options

Support residents to 
buy their own home

Develop an effective "shared 
ownership" programme (shared 
target with aim to "Provide 
good access to affordable 
housing options")

Measure:  Number of affordable shared 
ownership homes developed by the 
Council 
 
Target:    At least 30 by 2020  
 
(Data Source: Local Authority Housing 
Data and Annual Monitoring Report)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Provide access to custom build 
initiatives 

Measure:  Number of custom build plots 
identified  
 
Target:    2 sites by 2020  
 
(Data Source: Local Authority Housing 
Data and Annual Monitoring Report)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Review the Partnered Home 
Purchase pilot scheme that 
enables residents to buy their 
own home in a shared equity 
scheme with the Council

Measure: No of households utilising the 
open-market shared ownership scheme. 
 
Target: 30 households by March 2020 
 
(Data Source: Local data)

Mar-20 Finance

Page 41



10 Council Strategy 2018 – 2020

Aim How we will deliver our 
outcomes

Suggested Performance Measure / 
Target & Data Source

Delivery 
Date

Portfolio 

OUTCOME: Improve the health and happiness of our community 

Work with partners 
to reduce health 
inequalities in the 
District and to 
promote good mental 
and physical health 
(continued)

Invest annually in disabled 
facilities grants in line with 
Government funding to help 
keep people in their own home 

Measure: Number of residents assisted 
to remain in their own home 
 
Target: 100 per annum 
 
(Data Source: Housing Team)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Support the delivery of the 
Winchester Health and 
Wellbeing Action Plan which 
includes the following high 
priorities; improving workplace 
health, reducing the number of 
'increasing risk' alcohol drinkers 
and supporting people with 
dementia and their carers to 
lead active and fulfilling lives in 
their communities for as long as 
possible

Measure: As set out in the Health & 
Wellbeing Action Plan 
 
Target: To achieve the targets as set out 
in current Action Plan 
 
(Data Source: Health and Wellbeing 
Board)

Mar-20 Health & 
Wellbeing

OUTCOME: IMPROVE THE HEALTH AND HAPPINESS OF 
OUR COMMUNITY

Page 42



112019 Performance Measures 

Aim How we will deliver our 
outcomes

Suggested Performance Measure / 
Target & Data Source

Delivery 
Date

Portfolio 

OUTCOME: Improve the health and happiness of our community 

Provide new leisure 
facilities in Winchester 
Town that meet the 
needs of a broad 
cross section of our 
communities for now 
and the future

Build a new sport and leisure 
park at Bar End

Measure: Start date for building of a 
new leisure facility

Target: Start construction by Spring 
2019

(Data Source: Project)

Spring 
-19

Health & 
Wellbeing

Encourage 
volunteering to 
support and extend 
local services

Promote and encourage adults 
to volunteer in community 
events and sporting activities

Measure: Increase the number of adults 
volunteering in sport

Target: Increase to 22% from current 
baseline of 21.7% ( 2017/18)

(Data Source: Sport England Active Lives 
Data)

Mar-20 Health & 
Wellbeing

Support the delivery 
of a programme of 
festivals and events 
across the District

Support the Winchester Festivals 
Group to deliver a range of 
high quality sustainable events 
and festivals that are safe, well 
organised and well attended

Measure: Number of events supported, 
held and number of attendees 
 
Target: Increase particpation in each 
year (base year 2017/18) 
 
(Data Source: Winchester Bid - Footfall 
Software)

Mar-20 Business 
Partnership

Develop the Winchester 
Criterium and Cyclefest to 
increase participation and 
spectators

Measure: Number of spectators at 
Criterium event 
 
Target: 2019/20 13,000 spectators 
 
(Data Source: Winchester BID  
footfall data)

Jun-19 Health & 
Wellbeing

Work with partners 
to achieve significant 
and sustained change 
for vulnerable and 
troubled families with 
multiple, complex and 
persistent problems

Lead the implementation of 
the Government's Supporting 
(Troubled) Families Programme 
in the Winchester District

Measure: Number of families identified 
and engaged with Winchester 
Supporting Families 
 
Target: To support 73 families (including 
12 for intensive support) in Cohort 6 
(17/18) and subsequent cohorts 
 
(Data Source: Health & Wellbeing data)

Mar-20 Health & 
Wellbeing

Aim How we will deliver our 
outcomes

Suggested Performance Measure / 
Target & Data Source

Delivery 
Date

Portfolio 

OUTCOME: Improve the health and happiness of our community 

Work with partners 
to reduce health 
inequalities in the 
District and to 
promote good mental 
and physical health 
(continued)

Invest annually in disabled 
facilities grants in line with 
Government funding to help 
keep people in their own home 

Measure: Number of residents assisted 
to remain in their own home 
 
Target: 100 per annum 
 
(Data Source: Housing Team)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Support the delivery of the 
Winchester Health and 
Wellbeing Action Plan which 
includes the following high 
priorities; improving workplace 
health, reducing the number of 
'increasing risk' alcohol drinkers 
and supporting people with 
dementia and their carers to 
lead active and fulfilling lives in 
their communities for as long as 
possible

Measure: As set out in the Health & 
Wellbeing Action Plan 
 
Target: To achieve the targets as set out 
in current Action Plan 
 
(Data Source: Health and Wellbeing 
Board)

Mar-20 Health & 
Wellbeing

Page 43



12 Council Strategy 2018 – 2020

Aim How we will deliver our 
outcomes

Suggested Performance Measure / 
Target & Data Source

Delivery 
Date

Portfolio 

OUTCOME: Improving the quality of the District’s environment

Protect, enhance and 
respect the District's 
rich heritage and 
landscape whilst 
allowing appropriate 
development to take 
place enabling our 
historic environment 
to evolve over time 
having due regard 
for the landscape 
character.

Having an adopted up-to-date 
Local Plan with positive policies 
which allow development 
to take place which protects 
and enhances the heritage 
associated with the built and 
natural environment

Measure: progress with local plan 
preparation  
 
Target: commence local plan review in 
2018 within timescales in LDS 
 
(Data Source: Local Development 
Scheme)

Mar-20 Built 
Environment

Explore the options open to the 
Council to redevelop the current 
RPLC centre working towards a 
more detailed strategic business 
case and feasibility study.

Measure: Presenation of viable scheme 
on RPLC site

Target: presentation of strategic 
business case and feasibility study

(Data Source: Options Appraisal)

Mar-20 Estates

By working with our 
partners and by using 
powers available to 
us, make Winchester 
a safe and pleasant 
place to live, work and 
visit

Be proactive in tackling 
incidents reported of fly-tipping 
within the District

Measure: Reported fly-tipping incidents 
including in fly-tipping hot spots 
 
Target: To reduce the overall incidents of 
fly-tipping across the District, including 
fly tip hotspot locations.  
 
(Data Source: Neighbourhood Services 
Officers)

Mar-20 Health & 
Wellbeing

Always evaluate prosecution as 
a deterrent to those who fly-tip 
within the District

Measure: Successful fly-tipping 
prosecutions 
 
Target: 100% success rate for all fly-
tips that have been moved forward as 
application to the court for prosecution 
 
(Data Source: Neighbourhood Services 
Officers)

Mar-20 Health & 
Wellbeing

Investigate introducing litter 
fines and other incentives 
/ penalties (new legislation 
and not rolled out within the 
Council yet)

Measure: Fixed Penalty Notices issued 
for low level fly-tip 
 
Target: Fixed target not appropriate. 
Measures data will be monitored with 
regard to securing overall ambitions.  
 
(Data Source: Neighbourhood Services 
officers)

Mar-20 Health & 
Wellbeing

Conduct the area specific 
satisfaction survey to take action 
to reduce incidents or concerns 
of Anti Social Behaviour in 
priority locations, the first being 
in 2017.

Measure: Satisfaction levels recorded by 
the survey. 
 
Target: 2017 Baseline year.  
 
(Data Source: Annual Survey)

Mar-20 Health & 
Wellbeing

Utilise the tools and powers 
provided within the ASB, Police 
& Crime Act 2014 to tackle and 
reduce crime in the District

Measure: Number of interventions to 
reduce incidents of ASB 
 
Target: Fixed target not appropriate. 
Measures data will be monitored with 
regard to securing overall ambitions.  
 
(Data Source: Area specific survey)

Mar-20 Health & 
Wellbeing

OUTCOME: IMPROVING THE QUALITY OF THE 
DISTRICT’S ENVIRONMENT

Page 44



132019 Performance Measures 

Aim How we will deliver our 
outcomes

Suggested Performance Measure / 
Target & Data Source

Delivery 
Date

Portfolio 

OUTCOME: Improving the quality of the District’s environment

By working with our 
partners and by using 
powers available to 
us, make Winchester 
a safe and pleasant 
place to live, work and 
visit

(continued)

To undertake a thorough review 
of taxi licensing policy so as to 
introduce higher standards of 
public safety and air quality.

Measure: The adoption of positive 
changes within Winchester City 
Council’s taxi license policy. 
 
Target: Positive change to the Licensing 
regime to ensure taxi licensing provides 
a safer service for taxi users and to 
ensure a higher emissions standard for 
taxi’s licensed by the City Council.

Jun-20 Built 
Environment

Protect, enhance and 
increase the use of 
open spaces in both 
the towns and more 
rural areas of the 
District

Deliver a rolling programme for 
estate improvements, including 
environmental and parking 
schemes

Measure: Delivery of Estate 
Improvements annually 
 
Target: Deliver £250k annually with 
a range of benefits for the local 
communities. 
 
(Data Source: Housing Team)

Mar-20 Leader with 
Housing 
Services

Analyse and act upon the 
visitors user survey on key open 
spaces to ascertain current use 
and future demand for such 
space

Measure: Visitor usage and satisfaction 
rates 
 
Target: Fixed target not appropriate. 
Measures data will be monitored with 
regard to securing overall ambitions.  
 
(Data Source: User Survey)

Mar-20 Environment

Develop a Green Infrastructure 
Strategy to facilitate the 
enhancement of our public 
amenities and support 
the management of our 
environmental assets.

Measure: Identify opportunities to 
reinforce local assets to improve the 
environmental health of the Winchester 
District. 
 
Target: Turn environmental priorities into 
action points for the Local Plan.

Mar-20 Environment

Work to change 
attitudes to waste, fly-
tipping and littering 
and significantly 
improve recycling 
levels

Support and encourage 
residents living in the District 
to recycle through public 
awareness campaigns including 
a focus on reducing the rates 
of contamination of materials 
collected for recycling

Measure: Waste recycling rates 
 
Target: Increase from the 2016-17 
baseline position  (35.87%) 
 
(Data Source: EHDC/WCC Recycling 
Data)

Mar-20 Environment

We will investigate options 
for additional income through 
increased recycling

Measure: Income collected through 
additional channels 
 
Target: Fixed target not appropriate. 
Measures data will be monitored with 
regard to securing overall ambitions.  
 
(Data Source: Financial Data)

Mar-20 Environment

Work with strategic 
partners to continue 
to develop flood 
resilience measures 
to protect our 
communities

Support schemes that will 
protect residents' homes and 
property from the threat of 
flooding

Measure: Flood scheme assessment 
on all completed schemes to achieve a 
reduction in affected properties 
 
Target:  Properties within the District at 
risk of flooding 
 
(Data Source: Individual Schemes)

Mar-20 Environment

Aim How we will deliver our 
outcomes

Suggested Performance Measure / 
Target & Data Source

Delivery 
Date

Portfolio 

OUTCOME: Improving the quality of the District’s environment

Protect, enhance and 
respect the District's 
rich heritage and 
landscape whilst 
allowing appropriate 
development to take 
place enabling our 
historic environment 
to evolve over time 
having due regard 
for the landscape 
character.

Having an adopted up-to-date 
Local Plan with positive policies 
which allow development 
to take place which protects 
and enhances the heritage 
associated with the built and 
natural environment

Measure: progress with local plan 
preparation  
 
Target: commence local plan review in 
2018 within timescales in LDS 
 
(Data Source: Local Development 
Scheme)

Mar-20 Built 
Environment

Explore the options open to the 
Council to redevelop the current 
RPLC centre working towards a 
more detailed strategic business 
case and feasibility study.

Measure: Presenation of viable scheme 
on RPLC site

Target: presentation of strategic 
business case and feasibility study

(Data Source: Options Appraisal)

Mar-20 Estates

By working with our 
partners and by using 
powers available to 
us, make Winchester 
a safe and pleasant 
place to live, work and 
visit

Be proactive in tackling 
incidents reported of fly-tipping 
within the District

Measure: Reported fly-tipping incidents 
including in fly-tipping hot spots 
 
Target: To reduce the overall incidents of 
fly-tipping across the District, including 
fly tip hotspot locations.  
 
(Data Source: Neighbourhood Services 
Officers)

Mar-20 Health & 
Wellbeing

Always evaluate prosecution as 
a deterrent to those who fly-tip 
within the District

Measure: Successful fly-tipping 
prosecutions 
 
Target: 100% success rate for all fly-
tips that have been moved forward as 
application to the court for prosecution 
 
(Data Source: Neighbourhood Services 
Officers)

Mar-20 Health & 
Wellbeing

Investigate introducing litter 
fines and other incentives 
/ penalties (new legislation 
and not rolled out within the 
Council yet)

Measure: Fixed Penalty Notices issued 
for low level fly-tip 
 
Target: Fixed target not appropriate. 
Measures data will be monitored with 
regard to securing overall ambitions.  
 
(Data Source: Neighbourhood Services 
officers)

Mar-20 Health & 
Wellbeing

Conduct the area specific 
satisfaction survey to take action 
to reduce incidents or concerns 
of Anti Social Behaviour in 
priority locations, the first being 
in 2017.

Measure: Satisfaction levels recorded by 
the survey. 
 
Target: 2017 Baseline year.  
 
(Data Source: Annual Survey)

Mar-20 Health & 
Wellbeing

Utilise the tools and powers 
provided within the ASB, Police 
& Crime Act 2014 to tackle and 
reduce crime in the District

Measure: Number of interventions to 
reduce incidents of ASB 
 
Target: Fixed target not appropriate. 
Measures data will be monitored with 
regard to securing overall ambitions.  
 
(Data Source: Area specific survey)

Mar-20 Health & 
Wellbeing

Page 45



14 Council Strategy 2018 – 2020

Aim How we will deliver our 
outcomes

Suggested Performance Measure / 
Target & Data Source

Delivery 
Date

Portfolio 

OUTCOME: Improving the quality of the District’s environment

Work with strategic 
partners to identify 
opportunities to 
protect, enhance and 
restore Biodiversity in 
the District.

Conduct a State of the Nation 
report to ascertain areas of core 
concern to be tackled through a 
Biodiversity Action Plan.

Produce a set of core priorities 
to be included in a refreshed 
Biodiversity Action Plan.

Measure: Revision of the action points 
put forward in the previous Biodiversity 
Action Plan, and the identification of 
current priority area of concern

Target: Identify new objectives and 
confirming priority habitats and species 
within the Winchester District

Mar-20 Environment

Improve the 
environment and 
reduce harmful 
emissions through 
holistic transport 
planning

Delivery and implementation 
of the actions included in the 
Winchester Air Quality Action 
Plan 2017-2023 

Measure: Air quality in town centre hot 
spots 
 
Target: Improved air quality in 
accordance with the Air Quality Action 
Plan 
 
(Data Source: Local Data)

Mar-20 Environment

Review the Council’s approach 
to reducing the District’s carbon 
emissions including 12 actions 
for a lower carbon Council

Measure: Total emissions from the 
Winchester District 
 
Objective: To reduce the District’s carbon 
emissions 
 
(Data Source: Carbon Emissions annual 
report)

Mar-20 Environment

We will increase use of P&R to 
support and encourage parking 
outside of the city centre

Measure: Park and Ride spaces created 
at Barton Farm 
 
Target: 200 Park and Ride spaces 
created 
 
(Data Source: Barton Farm Housing 
Completions)

Mar-19 - 
dependent 
on new 
home 
occupation 
at Barton 
Farm

Environment

OUTCOME: IMPROVING THE QUALITY OF THE 
DISTRICT’S ENVIRONMENT

Page 46



152019 Performance Measures 

Page 47



If you would like to receive this document in another format, 
please contact Winchester City Council’s customer service centre on 01962 840 222. 

Alternatively, you can request this information online.

©
W

in
ch

es
te

r 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
33

67
 f

eb
18

Page 48



CAB3103
CABINET

REPORT TITLE: MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

12 DECEMBER 2018

REPORT OF PORTFOLIO HOLDER: CLLR GUY ASHTON (PORTFOLIO HOLDER 
FOR FINANCE) 

Contact Officer:  Joseph Holmes    Tel No: 01962 848220 Email 
jholmes@winchester.gov.uk 

WARD(S):  ALL

PURPOSE

The current four year central government settlement funding ends in 2019/20 with a 
fundamental review of funding levels and distribution mechanisms currently 
underway. 

This paper provides an update on the latest medium term financial projections and 
outcome based budgeting planning process, with a variety of proposals to inform the 
final budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy ready for approval at Council in 
February.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. That Cabinet consider the current budget planning position and strategy as 
detailed in the main body of the report.

Page 49

Agenda Item 9



CAB3103

IMPLICATIONS:

1 COUNCIL STRATEGY OUTCOME

1.1 The Council Strategy is the core strategic document, helping to guide and 
inform budget planning work and the options around delivery.

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 As detailed in the main body of the report.

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS

3.1 Any implications arising from budget options contained within this report will 
be dealt with in the individual business cases and committee papers relating 
to those specific decisions and Council will approve the final budget in 
February 2019.

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 None directly relating to this paper, which sets out the strategic budget 
planning direction.

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 A key strand of the Council’s financial and treasury strategies is to maximise 
income from its assets and seek to manage risk by achieving a balanced 
portfolio of assets. Options considered during the budget planning process 
may therefore involve either the acquisition or disposal of assets, requiring a 
full business justification case. 

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION 

6.1 This paper is a key part of the budget consultation process. Views will be 
sought from local businesses, parish council’s, and local residents as part of 
this exercise.

6.2 The content of this report has also been considered by The Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 26 November 2018 (Report OS211 
refers).

6.3 At that meeting Members concluded that there were no items of significance 
that it wished to be drawn to the attention of Cabinet.

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS

7.1 Environmental considerations will be part of the business case supporting any 
budget proposals.

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT 

Page 50

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/s2810/OS%20211%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Planning.pdf


CAB3103

8.1 This document is part of the budget consultation process and equality impact 
assessments will be considered alongside any relevant budget options.

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

9.1 None required

10 RISK MANAGEMENT 

Risk Mitigation Opportunities
Significant reductions in
government funding over
the medium term

Financial projections are
shown over the medium 
term and the scenario 
planning highlights the 
potential sensitivities.

Development of locally
generated income streams
with less reliance on
government funding

Councils service priorities
are not reflected in the
budget

The use of Outcome
Based Budgeting as a
method of delivering the
budget.

Ensure the prioritisation of
resources to best meet the
outcomes of the authority

Delays to or failure to
deliver major capital
schemes leaving future
years forecast deficits

Ensure robust business
cases are taken forward
and sufficient resources
are available to deliver the
projects.

Consideration of a wide
base of potential capital /
investment schemes to
enable a balanced risk
portfolio and options for
other schemes to be
chosen should any
existing schemes not
progress

An optimism bias over the 
capacity and capabilities 
of the organisation to 
deliver major projects with 
a positive financial 
contribution to the 
authority

Ensure all major projects 
are considered in the 
wider context of the 
council’s financial position 
and MTFS.

Effective project planning 
to ensure that sufficient 
resources and expertise is 
available to support all 
major projects at the 
outset.

One-off resources such as 
earmarked reserves are 
fully utilised leaving no 
funding available for future 
plans

Effective and transparent 
prioritisation of the use of 
reserves to ensure the 
council does not 
overcommit itself.

Clear and transparent 
plans for the use of 
reserves ensures that 
effective prioritisation can 
take place

Page 51



CAB3103

A clear and robust plan for 
the delivery of savings, 
particularly if reserves are 
used to mitigate any short 
term budget shortfalls.

11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION:

Background

11.1 The Council has responded well to the financial challenge since 2010. Over 
this period, there has been a substantial reduction in overall central 
government funding to the extent that in 2019-20 the council will receive no 
core government grant (the Revenue Support Grant or RSG). There is a 
forecast stepped reduction in funding from 2020/21 due to an anticipated 
redistribution of funding to high need services such as adult social care.

11.2 The 2019/20 funding settlement is the fourth and final year of the current 
multi-year settlement. A fundamental review of local government funding is 
currently underway, with a new multi-year settlement expected to commence 
from 2020/21. The 2018 Budget highlighted a spending review that would 
consider the five year period from 2020. Though the budget included some 
one-off funding for local government’s social care functions, it is not expected 
for any additional revenue funding to come to the Winchester City Council. 

11.3 Significant changes are expected to commence from 2020/21 with a strong 
risk of material reductions to current funding (over £7m in total is due to be 
received in 2018/19).

I. Retained business rates, totalling £4.6m, is made up of:

a) The ‘baseline funding level’ of £2.1m which is calculated based on 
the needs assessment of the authority. A fair funding review is 
currently underway in order to review and update the mechanisms for 
calculating and distributing this assessment of ‘need’.

b) The ‘retained growth’ of £2.5m which is the share of business growth 
retained by the council since the current scheme was implemented in 
2013/14. Government have given strong indications that a ‘reset of 
growth’ will take place from 2020/21, which potentially places all of this 
funding at risk.

Government have also announced plans to move to a 75% retention system, 
up from the current 50% retention. There is still uncertainty around the 
mechanics of this; for example will the current tier splits change (currently 
40:9:1 between district:county:fire), will the current ‘levy’ of 50% change, and 
will the scheme be significantly simplified. The Council has led a Hampshire 
wide application to be part of the Business Rates pilot for 2018-19 and is 

Page 52



CAB3103

expecting to be notified of the outcome of this bid during November or early 
December.

II. New homes bonus, totalling c£2m, has rewarded growth in housing 
through a reward grant equivalent to the council tax of a band d 
property (split 80:20 district:county), originally over a period of six years 
and subsequently reduced to the current four year reward. Government 
have announced that the current scheme will end in 2019/20 with no 
indications whether it will be replaced with a new reward scheme. If the 
current funding is distributed on the basis of ‘need’ then it is likely that 
the majority of this grant will be lost. This has been factored into future 
financial forecasts

III. The Revenue Support Grant will cease to exist post 2019/20, 
however the negative grant of c£0.4m announced for 2019/20 is not 
now expected in the final 2019/20 settlement. Other smaller grants 
relating to Homelessness are expected to continue, and new burdens 
grants are expected to continue on a one-off basis to match the extra 
burdens placed on local authorities.

11.4 These changes in local government funding from 2020/21 are expected to 
have a significant impact on authorities that have seen strong growth in 
housing and business, such as Winchester. This will also create a significant 
shift in the balance of funding, with council tax making up a much larger share 
of overall funding. 

2010/11 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
0.000

2.000

4.000

6.000

8.000

10.000

12.000

14.000

16.000

Council Tax
Business Rates Retention
Other Government Funding
New Homes Bonus

Core Funding Assumptions (£m)

Page 53



CAB3103

18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23
0.000

1.000

2.000

3.000

4.000

5.000

6.000

7.000

8.000

Total Government Funding Projections (£m)

11.5 The graph below from the Institute for Fiscal Studies shows that for local 
government, as an unprotected department, the pressure on funding is 
expected to continue into the medium term.

11.6 Alongside funding pressures, the council has other cost pressures such as 
contractual inflation, rising costs for infrastructure schemes and other 
unavoidable financial pressures such as the national pay award. These are 
factored into the model with an assumed inflation level around 2.5% for 
2019/20 and subsequently 2% per annum.

Page 54



CAB3103

11.7 The following ‘central case’ estimates set the scene for the rolling outcome 
based budgeting process. The shaded area indicates a forecasting deviation 
of 25%. A marked increase in deficit is shown from 2020/21 and relates to 
government controlled funding reductions highlighted above.

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
0.0
1.0
2.0
3.0
4.0
5.0
6.0
7.0
8.0
9.0

10.0

Cost base reduction required for a balanced financial 
position (£m)

Cost base reduction required for a balanced financial position
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

In year (£m) 1.073 4.193 0.399 1.510
Cumulative (£m) 1.073 5.266 5.665 7.175

11.8 The outcome based budgeting proposals for 2018/19, totalling £1.1m, have 
been reviewed in the quarterly performance monitoring reports, which shows 
that overall the council is on track to deliver the 2018/19 savings target. 

Budget Pressures

11.9 A number of expenditure budget pressures have been identified from 
2019/20:

I. The current eight year Environmental Services Contract expires in 
September 2019 and the costs of waste and recycling collection are 
expected to increase. Employee and vehicle costs have been running 
at levels above CPI inflation, so it is necessary to forecast an increase 
in contract costs from October 2019. A proposal to introduce kerbside 
glass collection is also under consideration and would further increase 
the expenditure requirement from 2019/20. 

Page 55



CAB3103

II. The council has a number of land holdings. There is a cost associated 
with holding land for regeneration, this cost usually relates to interest 
and a minimum revenue provision.

III. Contractual inflation is applied to the majority of the council’s 
contracts on an annual basis. CPI inflation is currently running at 2.4% 
(September 2018) and a forecast of an additional £0.25m of 
expenditure has been applied for 2019/20, based on contractual 
expenditure of c£10m.

IV. Employee pay and pension costs are due to increase in 2019/20. 
Allowance has been made in the budget projections for an overall 
increase of £0.7m, which includes transition to the new njc pay scales.

Council Tax

11.10 The Winchester district 2018/19 council tax charge of £138.92 (per band d 
equiv.) is below the average charge levied by district council’s across 
England.

11.11 Central government have assumed in funding calculations that councils will 
increase council tax by the maximum allowed, which is currently up to 3% or 
£5. Recent reports have indicated that at least 95% of local authorities plan to 
increase council tax in 2019/20.

11.12 Using the latest council tax base estimate approximately £6.85m would be 
raised at the existing charge of £138.92. The maximum district increase 
(assuming an equivalent increase to the town precept) to £143.31 (+3.16%) 
would generate an additional £0.217m of funding.

% Increase
Precept - 

Band D (£)

Precept 
Income 

£000
Increase    

£000
0% 138.92 6,853 0
1% 140.31 6,922 69
2% 141.70 6,990 137
3% 143.09 7,059 206

  3.16% 143.31 7,070 217

11.13 The current projections in Appendix A are based on a freeze in council tax for 
2019/20. This does not include the town precept which will consider its plans 
for recommendation in January 2019.

Page 56



CAB3103

Funding Summary & Graphs

Council Tax, 22%

Business Rates, 13%

New Homes Bonus, 
6%

Other Gov't Grants, 
0%

Investments, 7%Reserves & 
Collection Fund, 7%

Service Income (incl. 
Fees & Charges), 

38%

Support Service 
charge to HRA, 6%

Income / Funding Sources 2018/19

Outcome Based Budgeting Proposals 2019/20

11.14 The council has adopted an outcomes based budgeting approach to the 
financial challenge. This approach seeks to align cost base reductions and 
service investment in line with council strategy. The proposals included below 
have been aligned to the council strategy wherever possible to try and enable 
those activities that deliver outcome measures in the strategy. These are 
summarised using the four themes of Efficiency / Asset Management / 
Transformation / Income Generation.

Page 57



CAB3103

2019/20 Full Year
Efficiency £000 £000

1 Guildhall

The Guildhall operations are currently under review in order to determine options for 
reducing the overall net cost of the building. Internal Catering (Café and Internal Event 
Catering) has been identified as the most significant loss making business unit, 
generating a total loss of around £150k per annum. Other potential options for 
delivering catering within the Guildhall will be explored over the coming months, with a 
target of ensuring that this is moved to a cost neutral position from 2019/20.

150 150

2 Internal Catering Review of all internal catering facilities for example committee meetings. 20 20

3 Employee Benefits

The council is planning to offer salary sacrifice additional voluntary pension 
contributions from 2019-20. This will provide a financial saving to the council through 
reduced national insurance payments as staff sacrifice salary for this benefit. It is 
expected with a modest uptake that this will generate around £16.5k per annum of 
saving. The council is also proposing to allow staff to buy up to five days of additional 
annual leave. A modest uptake in this benefit could save the council around £5k per 
annum.

21.5 21.5

4 Business Travel

This is expected to save the general fund up to £269k per annum. This review has 
seen the removal of lease cars from within the business, moves the council to HMRC 
approved rates for business mileage, along with some other changes in order to 
modernise the overall benefits scheme. (To note total full year savings including the 
HRA are forecast at £379k)

100 269

5 Public Conveniences
The Autumn Budget 2018 announced plans to remove the NNDR charge on the 
provision of Public Conveniences which will result in savings of £25k based on the 
existing provision of Public Conveniences.

25 25

6 Occupational Health Expected savings from a joint procurement exercise 10 10

7 Training Hub Introduction of a staff training hub which is expected to reduce the overall training 
costs 17 17

8 Other minor 
efficiencies Review of printing, staff travel, debt write off's etc 20 20

9 Restructure Efficiency review of existing staff structures 100 100

P
age 58



CAB3103

2019/20 Full Year
Asset Management £000 £000

10 Property Acquisition The Council will seek to identify suitable property acquisitions which meet its 
objectives whilst, where possible, also provide a positive net return. 

11 Rent Reviews A number of rent reviews are due in 2019 and are expected to yield an additional 
£100k per annum of rental income. 100 100

12 Energy Efficiency Projects are underway to improve the energy efficiency of council property, e.g. the 
Brooks car park, which should reduce costs by at least £20k per annum. 20 20

13 Transfer of HRA 
Garages

Transfer of HRA garages to the general fund – this will be second year of this transfer 
and it is estimated that this will yield up to £156k    within existing forecasts

Transformation

14 Transformation 
programme

The council is commencing a corporate transformation programme focussed on 
improving the customer service we provide, whilst streamlining processes to drive 
efficiency. This will have a financial impact, though quantifying this is more relevant for 
the second year and beyond of the medium term financial plan.

15 Digitalisation of 
services

The council is exploring the possibilities of enhanced digital services through its 
digital strategy. Savings of c£30k are expected through the Citziens Advice Bureau 
moving into the city offices site where the cash office previous was sited with an 
enhanced kiosk service in the new reception area. This delivers accommodation and 
staff savings and means that customers can access council services from one hub, 
as well as located the CAB close to the council.

30 30

TBC

TBC

P
age 59



CAB3103

2019/20 Full Year
Income Generation £000 £000

16 Pest Control

Significant progress has been made by the in-house team to move this service to a 
better financial position. It is expected that additional income of £25k will be 
generated from 2018/19, as well as expenditure reductions of £20k. Further work will 
be progressed to continue to move towards an overall cost neutral position, including 
overheads.

45 45

17 Concessions at car 
parks

Investigate introducing concessions across council car parks e.g. car washing, 
catering etc. It is expected this could raise a further £50k of revenue for the council. 50 50

18 Street naming and 
numbering

Reviewing the charge to developers for new homes through benchmarking and cost 
recovery has highlighted a further £12k of income. 12 12

19 Fees & Charges
A review of fees and charges is expected to yield additional income for 2019/20 
through inflationary uplifts and ensuring that costs of providing services are covered 
wherever possible. 

20 Car Parking Income Additional income forecast for 2019/20, based on current car parking usage 100 100

21 New Funding Sources

Utilising new funding sources to generate additional income. There are a number of 
government and public sector bidding grants and awards. The council will more pro-
actively target these for additional income. The council has recently been successful 
in bidding for £7k for a productivity expert from the LGA to support digital 
transformation. In the next financial year, it is expect to utilise £25k of new funds.

25 25

TOTAL 846 1,015

TBC

P
age 60



CAB3103

Proposals for the medium term financial position

The Council has grouped its medium term financial challenge options around four 
different areas; efficiency, asset management, transformation and income 
generation. 

EFFICIENCY

11.15 Efficiency review and planning plays a critical role in the continuing provision 
of high quality services by the most efficient and value for money method of 
delivery. This strand of the OBB process is aimed at looking in detail at 
internal processes and ensuring these support the Council in delivering 
excellent services in the most effective way. 

11.16 Contract review and management is a key element in this strand, with total 
third party payments budgeted at almost £7m. The Council operates a 
number of significant ongoing contracts such as: leisure centre management, 
environmental services contract, and the park and ride bus contract. Ensuring 
that both current and future contracts offer the best possible value to the 
Council is of high importance.

11.17 The council will also need to consider how much funding it provides to a range 
of discretionary services. The council has a very buoyant grants and 
commissioned service budget that has been protected from funding 
reductions. This funding programme will need to be kept under review to 
ensure that it contributes to the council strategy and that it remains affordable 
within the overall financial context.

ASSET MANAGEMENT

11.18 The Council operates an extensive portfolio of property assets which are 
either used in the delivery of services or generate an income to the Council 
which in turn provides the resources to deliver services. With the significant 
reductions in government funding it is important to ensure that existing assets 
are used in the most effective way. 

11.19 The Council operates a significant property portfolio which generates rental 
income in excess of £3m per annum. Properties are let at commercial rates 
with rent review periods built in as standard. A number of existing leases are 
due for review within the next few years and overall rental income is expected 
to increase significantly as a number of rent reviews are due in the life of the 
MTFS. There are substantial known rent reviews due that are expected to 
raise at least an additional £300k of income to the council.

11.20 The council has commenced an asset challenge programme. This process is 
reviewing all of the councils assets on a rolling basis to establish why the 
council holds assets, what options the council has e.g. to increase income, 
dispose, hold or develop, and when these can be realised. Initial progress has 

Page 61



CAB3103

been positive and has highlighted three assets that the council is considering 
disposing of. It is expected that these assets will generate capital receipts of 
over £1m.

11.21 It is recognised that making the best use of existing assets can provide 
significant savings as well as increasing collaboration with other organisations 
and complimenting existing skills within the Council with relatively little risk 
exposure. The Council has let office space in the Guildhall to South East 
Employers (SEE) which will provide an assured income and increase 
occupancy in the Guildhall.  The council is reviewing the operation of the 
Guildhall overall and is seeking to make a substantial reduction to the cost of 
the Guildhall that is currently paid for by taxpayers. This longer term review 
will consider all options available and will also look at the wider Colebrook 
street asset holdings including the existing council offices.

11.22 An extensive programme of refurbishment works have been completed at the 
Council’s City Offices recently in order to extend the life of the building in the 
short term, provide environmental enhancements in the form of lower energy 
consumption, and to ensure the offices remain fit for purpose. A further minor 
programme of works is planned for the West Wing offices to ensure the 
offices remain fit for purpose and any opportunities for efficiency and 
environmental improvements can be taken.

11.23 The capital strategy provides the opportunity for investment in new or existing 
assets should they meet the aims of the council strategy and generate a 
financial return to the Council. A review of existing assets is underway to 
determine what opportunities are available and any new opportunities will be 
considered and developed as they come forward.

11.24 In order to ensure that expenditure is accurately allocated to the creation of 
assets it is proposed that employee costs are capitalised when an employees’ 
activities have ‘contributed directly to bringing an asset to a location and into a 
condition so that it is capable of operating as intended’. This will enable those 
costs to be spread over the useful life of the asset rather than taken as an up-
front cost. A strict regime of timesheet recording and review of activity will be 
implemented in order to ensure that eligible expenditure is identified and 
evidenced.

TRANSFORMATION

11.25 The council continues to explore ways of transforming both operations and 
service delivery in order to generate efficiencies wherever possible. The core 
principle is delivering services in the most efficient way in order to achieve 
value for money. The council has a good track record of exploring 
opportunities for transforming services, with the shared IT services with Test 
Valley Borough Council a good example of this. Pooling resources has helped 
to make revenue savings to both councils, has helped to mitigate against 
increases in infrastructure costs, and helps to ensure there is sufficient 
resilience built into the service to meet the needs of both authorities. The 

Page 62



CAB3103

potential to expand this service further in order to generate additional savings 
is currently being explored.  

11.26 As highlighted above, the council is undertaking a transformation programme. 
This is expected to yield financial savings to the council through greater 
efficiencies. Though it is premature to set out the exact savings amount, 
similar council programmes have delivered substantial savings of in excess of 
£250k. Aligned closely with work to improve digitalisation of services, this 
programme will be a key part of the medium term financial strategy.

11.27 Digitalisation is one particular area for review. As technologic advances 
continue to be made and the use of technology (particularly portable 
technology) increases, it is important that the Council takes advantage of 
these digital channels. The potential benefits are a reduction in costs through 
the automation of internal processes, and increased customer satisfaction 
through simple interaction which is available whenever the customer needs it. 
This approach also has the opportunity to deliver new revenue and services, 
for example through exploring a new mobile app for Winchester.

11.28 It is also important that the Council is reviewing other options to transform 
services and offer different solutions. One area under consideration is setting 
up a housing company to provide a different housing offer to residents and 
that also provides a financial benefit to the Council (see Housing Company 
Options CAB2990 (HSG)). 

INCOME GENERATION

11.29 Opportunities to invest which also generate a financial return, either through 
reductions in cost or income generation, are assessed on a case by case 
basis. The roll out of LED lighting across car parks, the Guildhall, and offices, 
is a good example of capital investment which has generated a recurring cost 
saving.

11.30 The Council Strategy guides the budget requirements and prioritisation of 
resources across the Council. The introduction of outcome based budgeting, 
and not focusing purely on cost reductions, will play a key role in helping to 
ensure that priority investment continues to take place.

11.31 Treasury management plays a key role in the delivery of projects and 
services. The Council currently has cash resources in excess of £50m which 
are invested on the basis of minimising exposure to risk whilst also generating 
a return. The current average return in 2018/19 of >1% has exceeded targets 
and is expected to generate a revenue income of around £0.55m. As the 
council continues to invest in its capital programme, cash balances are 
expected to reduce; however, some of those new assets are expected to 
generate a revenue return instead.

11.32 The projections in 11.33 below are based on the existing capital programme 
estimates. Any changes to timescales and/or investments will have revenue 

Page 63



CAB3103

implications which will feed into the final budget recommendation in February. 
In particular, large capital projects are likely to have material revenue 
implications and a financial lead in period where significant borrowing and 
other implementation costs are incurred before any income generation 
commences. 

Medium Term Financial Projections

11.33 The table below shows the latest general fund revenue forecast until 2022/23, 
before any of the Outcome Based Budgeting proposals. ‘Government 
Damping’ funding is based on a high level assumption that individual local 
authority funding will not be reduced beyond a certain level in any one 
financial year.

General Fund Revenue (£m) Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Funding
Council Tax (excluding Parish Precepts) 7.650 7.792 8.024 8.264 8.511 
Retained Business Rates 4.601 4.831 2.859 2.905 2.942 
New Homes Bonus 2.116 1.919 0.088 0.088 0.088 
Government Damping 1.877 1.139 0.402 
Revenue Support Grant & Other Grants 0.144 0.144 0.000 0.000 0.000 

14.511 14.686 12.848 12.396 11.943 

Investment Activity
Interest (Payable) / Receivable 0.225 -0.224 -1.039 -1.257 -1.720 
Minimum Revenue Provision -0.225 -0.287 -0.359 -0.399 -0.843 
Net Investment Property Income 2.380 2.538 2.622 2.625 2.628 

Resources available 16.890 16.713 14.072 13.365 12.009 

Baseline Net Expenditure
Gross Income 13.089 13.243 13.421 14.338 14.742 
Gross Expenditure -28.645 -30.520 -32.046 -32.640 -33.166 
Baseline resource requirements -15.556 -17.278 -18.625 -18.301 -18.424 

One-off budgets & Reserve Related Movements -1.335 -0.508 -0.713 -0.729 -0.759 
Total net resource requirements -16.890 -17.786 -19.338 -19.030 -19.183 

Budget Surplus / (Shortfall) 0.000 -1.073 -5.266 -5.665 -7.175 
% of Gross Expenditure 0.0% 3.5% 16.4% 17.4% 21.6%

Page 64



CAB3103

Managed Reserves

11.34 The total of General Fund reserves 2018/19 opening balance stood at just 
over £23m (plus the non allocated general fund balance of £2.8m).

11.35 Reserves are a key factor which underpin the Council’s ability to fund Asset 
Management Plans, the IT Strategy, Car Parking Strategy, and Service Plans. 
They are also critical to our ability to fund the transformation of services and 
ability to invest in order to generate the necessary savings to balance the 
budget over future years.

11.36 In summary, reserves are used to support:

I. Funding of the Capital Programme
II. Investment in transformation

III. Providing one-off support for service budgets (such as the local plan)
IV. Community Infrastructure plans
V. Council Strategy Support

VI. Asset Management Plans, IT Strategy, Car Parking Strategy
VII. Winchester Town Account (notably major play area refurbishment and

replacements)
VIII. Short term budget deficits, if supported by a robust medium term savings plan

11.37 It is important to appreciate that reserves are finite and their use must 
therefore be managed and prioritised effectively in order to ensure that 
resources are available to support expenditure requirements including those 
which are potentially urgent and unexpected.

11.38 The Major Investment Reserve is the key revenue reserve used to support 
investment in major projects such as the new leisure centre, Central 
Winchester Regeneration, Station Approach, as well as other smaller projects. 
This is particularly crucial in the early stages of projects (such as consultation 
and feasibility studies), as these costs cannot usually be capitalised. Whilst 
the opening 2018/19 balance of £7.4m is deemed a healthy level, there are 
already significant commitments against this balance and therefore any future 
plans will require close scrutiny and prioritisation in order to ensure resources 
remain available to support new high priority projects.

11.39 Under Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 the S151 officer is 
required to state in the budget report their view of the robustness of estimates 
for the coming year, the medium term financial strategy, and the adequacy of 
proposed reserves and balances. The council is required to take this into 
account when making its budget and taxation decisions.

11.40 It is proposed that an allocation of reserves is made available to dampen the 
impact of funding reductions in the medium term financial strategy. As there 
are so many uncertainties over the medium term position, e.g. the future of 
new homes bonus, business rates retention etc, strategically it is very difficult 
for the council to execute a plan for the very worse scenario and deliver this, if 
it does not occur. That could leave the council with declining services at a 

Page 65



CAB3103

time when this would not be required. It is also important to recognise that 
some savings take a longer timeframe to deliver and so the ability to, in the 
short-term only, dampen the savings requirement can assist with long term 
financial stability. 

11.41 The review proposes to create a new reserve: “Medium Term Financial 
Planning Reserve”, with an allocation of at least £2.5m to cover the period 
from 2020/21 to 2022/23.

11.42 A review of reserves has been undertaken during the year which has 
highlighted the need to reduce the number of separately identified reserves 
and also has introduced four high level reserve ‘categories’:

a. Operational Reserves, significantly the Major Investment Reserve, are 
revenue reserves which can be used to support revenue or capital 
expenditure, for example major projects.

b. Risk Reserves, such as the General Fund Balance, are available to mitigate 
risks faced by the council. The overall levels are reviewed each year in line 
with the medium term financial strategy.

c. Asset Reserves, such as the Asset Management Reserve, are used to 
maintain existing council assets and are supported by spending plans such as 
the asset management plan.

d. Restricted Reserves, such as the Community Infrastructure Levy, can only be 
used for restricted purposes and therefore must be considered separately to 
other reserves which can be used for wider purposes.

11.43 The graph below shows that operational reserves will be almost fully 
exhausted during the four year planning period.

17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

Operational Reserves
Risk Reserves
Asset Reserves
Restricted Reserves

Reserves Forecast

'£
00

0

Page 66



CAB3103

12 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

12.1 There are a variety of options open the council over the medium term, and 
included in the above are a range of achievable options that fit within the 
council strategy.

12.2 Other council’s have focussed on different approaches. Some have purely 
focussed on what is the legal minimum services to provide. This has been 
rejected as though the council has many statutory services to provide, how 
these are delivered can take many different shapes and associated costs. The 
financial position for the forthcoming year is not in such a position that the 
council needs to remove all discretionary related services so this would be 
premature, especially with a major Government review of finance expected for 
2020.

12.3 Another option is take a much more aggressive approach to income 
generation, especially in respect of commercial property acquisition. If the 
Council spent £250m on acquiring commercial property, it could expect a net 
return (assuming gross yield of 6%) of up to £5m. This option has been 
rejected. There are a number of risks in commercial property investment, 
especially outside of the local economic areas, due a lack of a secondary plan 
for the properties. Yields are also very ‘tight’ at present meaning there is little 
room for losses due to voids. The council has a policy of achieving a double-
win at present through any commercial property investment and it is not 
proposed to move from this approach. There has been recent guidance 
issued by CIPFA also warning authorities who borrow in advance of need for 
certain acquisitions.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:-

Previous Committee Reports:-

CAB3060 Q4 Performance and Financial Outturn – July 2018

CAB3011 General Fund Budget 2018/19 – February 2018

CAB3012 Medium Term Financial Strategy – February 2018

Other Background Documents:-

None

APPENDICES:

None

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



CAB3095
CABINET

REPORT TITLE: Q2 FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE MONITORING

12 DECEMBER 2018

REPORT OF CABINET

Contact Officer:  Joseph Holmes   Tel No: 01962 848 220 Email: 
jholmes@winchester.gov.uk 

WARD(S):  ALL

PURPOSE

This report provides a summary of the Council’s performance and financial position 
during the second quarter of 2018/19.

This second report of 2018/19 includes progress updates for the Council’s major 
projects, the Council Strategy outcomes and key performance measures. 

A financial summary is also included for the General Fund revenue and capital 
budgets as well as the Housing Revenue Account (HRA).

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That Cabinet;

1. Notes the progress achieved during the second quarter of 2018/19 and 
endorses the content of the report.

2. Approves supplementary revenue budgets of £75k related to grants of £50k to 
the Science Centre and £25k to Jane Austen Tourism.

3. Approves a supplementary capital budget and authority to incur capital 
expenditure of £97k in 2018/19, in order to purchase our IDOX IT licenses.

Page 69

Agenda Item 10



CAB3095

IMPLICATIONS:

1 COUNCIL STRATEGY OUTCOME

1.1 This report forms part of the framework of performance and financial 
monitoring in place to check the progress being made against the projects 
and programmes included in the Portfolio Plans and the achievement of the 
outcomes included in the Council Strategy.

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

2.1 The financial implications of this report are detailed in Appendix 1. Almost all 
the projects included in the Council Strategy and Team Service Plans have 
financial implications, some significant and these are agreed and reported 
separately before the commencement of the project.

2.2 Supplementary revenue budgets of £75k related to a grant of £50k to the 
Science Centre and £25k to Jane Austen Tourism, funded by the Community 
Grants and Commissioning earmarked reserve (see Portfolio Holder Decision 
Notice PHD799 refers).

2.3 The Council has the opportunity to purchase the licenses to use its IDOX 
system for a one-off capital purchase rather than paying an annual license 
fee. The IDOX system is one of the Council's core systems and is used for 
Planning, Building Control, Environmental Health, Licensing, HMO, Land 
Charges and Estates Management. The current license costs, as well as 
maintenance for the system is £87k and rises with inflation each year. For a 
one-off fee of £97k, the new ongoing costs will be £44k p.a. and this will be at 
a fixed level with no inflation for the next three years. The total over four years 
at present is forecast to be £359k whereas, including the £97k one-off 
purchase which would be included and funded within the capital programme, 
the costs over four years is £273k, and overall reduction of £86k. In the 
revenue budget, this will create an on-going saving of £43k which will be 
included within the revenue budget for 2019-20.

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS

3.1 None directly in this report, though individual projects are subject to review by 
Legal Services where required.

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS

4.1 None directly, although naturally staff will be required to deliver each project.

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS

5.1 None directly in this report. 

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION 

Page 70



CAB3095

6.1 Cabinet members, Executive Leadership Board (ELB) and Heads of Team 
have been consulted on the content of the report.

6.2 The content of the report has also been considered by The Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 26 November 2018 (Report OS212 
refers).

6.3 At that meeting, Members requested that the following item be raised to the 
attention of Cabinet.

 That additional milestones be added to each of the major projects 
monitoring reports so that forward progress can be measured and 
monitored.

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS

7.1 None.

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT

8.1 None required arising from the content of the report, although some of the 
projects will require an Equality Impact Assessment to be undertaken

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT

9.1 None.

10 RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Mitigation Opportunities
Property - none
Community Support – 
Lack of consultation on for 
example major projects, 
affects residents and can 
cause objections or delay.

Regular consultation and 
engagement with 
stakeholders and 
residents regarding major 
projects or policy changes.

Positive engagement and 
consultation can bring 
forward alternative options 
that might not have 
otherwise been 
considered.

Timescales – delays to 
project delivery can lead to 
increased cost and lost 
revenue.

Regular project monitoring 
undertaken to identify and 
resolve slippage.

Project capacity – 
availability of staff to 
deliver projects.

Resources to deliver 
projects are discussed at 
the project planning stage 
and agreed by the project 
board.

Opportunities present 
themselves for staff to get 
involved in projects 
outside their normal role 
enabling them to expand 
their knowledge and skills 
base as well as working 
with others.

Financial / VfM – budget Regular monitoring of Early notification of 

Page 71

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/s2811/OS212%20Q2%20Finance%20and%20Performance%20Monitoring.pdf


CAB3095

Risk Mitigation Opportunities
deficit or unforeseen under 
or overspends.

budgets and financial 
position including 
forecasting to year end to 
avoid unplanned 
over/underspends.

unplanned 
under/overspends through 
regular monitoring allows 
time for plans to be put in 
place to bring the finances 
back into line with budget 
forecast. 

Legal – none.
Innovation – none.
Reputation – ensuring that 
the Council delivers the 
outcomes as set out in the 
Council Strategy.

Regular monitoring and 
reporting of the progress 
the Council is achieving 
against its priorities 
included in the Council 
Strategy, including this 
report.

11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION:

11.1 This report provides an update on the Council’s performance during the 
second quarter of 2018/19 and financial position as at 30 September 2018.

11.2 The quarterly Finance and Performance Management Report, attached as 
Appendix 1, is arranged into four sections with each covering the significant 
areas of performance that the Council is monitoring.  An introduction and 
summary is also included at the beginning of the report.

12 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

12.1 None.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:-

Previous Committee Reports:-

CAB3070 – Q1 Finance and Performance Monitoring Report

Other Background Documents:-

None.

APPENDICES:

Appendix 1 Q2 Finance and Performance Management Report 2018/19

Page 72



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

FINANCE & PERFORMANCE
MANAGEMENT
REPORT
SECOND QUARTER 2018/19

Page 73



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Contents

Introduction and Summary
Section 1: Financial Update – Second Quarter 2018/19

o General Fund Revenue

o General Fund Capital

o Outcome Based Budgeting – progress update

o Housing Revenue Account

Section 2: Council Strategy 2018-20 Progress Update
o Winchester District will be a premier business location

o Delivering quality housing options

o Improve the health and happiness of our community

o Improving the quality of the District’s environment
Section 3: Project Management – Projects Update

o Central Winchester Regeneration

o Chesil Lodge – Extra Care Home

o Environmental Services Contract

o New Homes Delivery Programme

o Station Approach

o Winchester Sport and Leisure Park

Section 4: Managing the business – Corporate Health Indicators

Page 74



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Introduction and Summary
The purpose of this report is to demonstrate the performance of the Council at the 
end of each quarter throughout the financial year in relation to the aims and 
objectives in the Council Strategy, progress of the Council’s major projects, the 
financial position and corporate health performance indicators.
The report does not provide detailed information relating to the numerous activities 
included in individual team service plans but includes the significant projects that the 
Council is undertaking.
Similarly there are performance measures that are not reported here but support the 
business of that team and managed by each Corporate Head of Service.
The following diagrams provide a summary of the position of the Council as at the 30 
September 2018 (Quarter 2) across the key areas of performance.  Further 
information is provided in the following appendices.

Council Strategy Project Monitoring
Q2 2018/19 Q2 2018/19
 

Red
1%

Amber
10%

Green
83%

Complete
 5%

 

On 
Schedule,
 5 Projects

Completed 
1 Project

Status of Projects

Summary General Fund Revenue Financial Service Forecast

Q1 Q2 Q3 Outturn
0

50
100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450

Full Year Forecast - Surplus/(Deficit)

Su
rp

lu
s /

 (D
ef

ic
it)

 £
'0

00

Page 75



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Section 1 – Financial Update as at 30 September 2018

This section presents a summary of the Council’s financial position as at 30 June 
2018 with regard to the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account budgets.  

General Fund Revenue

1. The in-year reporting process for Q2 2018/19 has highlighted additional full 
year forecast income / underspends totaling £0.78m which is expected to fund 
additional in-year pressures of £0.39m, with a net underspend of £0.39m.

2. Also included in this appendix is a report that shows the progress and status 
of the 2018/19 Outcome Based Budgeting proposals. The overall target status 
is green, meaning we are on target to achieve the net savings target of 
£0.67m.

3. Quarter 2 full year forecast variances (>£50k):

i) Net Interest receivable – (+£325k) higher than budgeted cash 
balances during Q1 have resulted in a revised forecast net receivable 
interest of £325k.

ii) Development Management Income – (+£80k) higher planning fees 
and a number of larger applications have led to an increased total 
planning fee forecast of £960k.

iii) Non-investment Property Income – (+£80k) higher than planned 
income of £80k relates mainly to the Vaultex site (Coventry House).

iv) Environmental Services Contract – (+£50k) a revised (lower) 
inflation estimate for 2018/19 will reduce the total contract expenditure.

v) Museums – a grant towards re-organisation costs was approved in Q1.

vi) Car Parking Income – (+£50k) additional full year income relating of 
off street car parking. 

vii) Vacancy Management - (-£175k) additional employee spend reflecting 
lower than expected vacancies, and backfilling for major procurement 
projects such as environment services.

Page 76



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Table 1 – General Fund Forecast Variances 2018/19

325

100

80

80

50

50

-52

-65

-175

Net Interest Receivable

Benefits

General Fund Property

Development Management Income

Car Parking Income

Environmental Services Contract

Hampshire Cultural Trust

Other

Vacancy Mgt./project backfilling

GF Revenue Forecast Variances (£000)

General Fund Capital

1. General Fund capital expenditure to the end of September was £3.6m of 
which the single largest item was £1.6m on the acquisition and associated 
stamp duty in respect of Coventry House (Vaultex) followed by the new Sports 
& Leisure centre (£0.6m), and Disabled Facilities Grants (£0.3m). 

2. Capital budgets for 2018/19 were revised for brought forward balances, and 
three additional budgets, as part of the 2017/18 outturn reporting process and 
were approved at July Cabinet. In the Q1 report, a further three budgets were 
approved: Replacement Large Format Printer (£50k); High Street Security 
Bollards reflecting the contribution from the County Council (additional £75k); 
and Brooks Car Park Lighting Refurbishment (additional £50k).

3. The full year forecast has been revised down by £17.0m with the largest 
single item (£5.0m) being the new Sports & Leisure Centre as main 
construction works will not begin until the new financial year. The second 
largest item (£3.8m) is the new doctors’ surgery; this is currently delayed due 
to ongoing negotiations with the prospective tenants but progress is being 
made and it is now expected to commence in 2019/20. The objectives of 
some other projects are currently under review. The car park at the Dean, 
Alresford is also subject to delay (£1m) as negotiations continue with the 
developers.

Page 77



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

4. Key items of capital expenditure as at end September 2018 include:

 Coventry House (Vaultex) Total Budget: £2,091k

Expenditure: Prior years £57k Q1-2 £1,620k Total £1,677k

The purchase of Coventry House was completed in May 2018. The Council is 
leasing the property for 12 months generating an income of £95,000. During 
this period, the Council will be able to undertake preliminary work (e.g. 
surveys) in preparation for future development of the site. 

 New Sports & Leisure Centre Total Budget: £38,000k

Expenditure: Prior years £888k Q1-2 £623k Total £1,511k

To date £2,215k of capital expenditure has been approved to take the project 
to RIBA stage 4 (technical design) and to transition to RIBA stage 5 design 
stage. The contractor has been procured and the operator procurement is 
underway. The build is subject to approval of the Full Business Case which is 
to be considered by February Cabinet.

 Disabled Facilities Grants Total Budget: £1,207k

Expenditure: recurring Q1-2 £349k

The amount of funding from central government has increased significantly in 
recent years. Spend to date is on target and two significant grants totalling in 
excess of £300,000 are expected to be made in 2018/19 to enable individuals 
with long term immobility to return to their own homes.

5. Other General Fund capital budget changes

IDOX licence purchase

The Council has the opportunity to purchase the licenses to use its IDOX 
system for a one-off capital purchase rather than paying an annual license 

Page 78



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

fee. The IDOX system is one of the Council's core systems and is used for 
Planning, Building Control, Environmental Health, Licensing, HMO, Land 
Charges and Estates Management. 

By purchasing the licence for a one-off fee of £97k, the annual maintenance 
cost of £87k will reduce to a fixed fee of £44k which represents an overall 
saving of £86k over 4 years.  

Approval is therefore sought for a supplementary estimate and expenditure of 
£97,000 in 2018/19 to be funded by the IMT reserve.

ORB-it Maintenance Total
Year 1 £62,546 £24,611 £87,157
Year 2 £63,797 £25,103 £88,900
Year 3 £65,074 £25,605 £90,679
Year 4 £66,375 £26,117 £92,492
Total: £257,792 £101,436 £359,228

Capital Purchase New Maintenance Existing Maintenance Total
Year 1 £97,000 £19,400 £24,611 £141,011
Year 2 £19,400 £24,611 £44,011
Year 3 £19,400 £24,611 £44,011
Year 4 £19,400 £24,611 £44,011
Total: £97,000 £77,600 £98,444 £273,044

£86,184

Capital Purchase of Orbit Licenses Proposal

Current Situation (@2% inflation)

Forecast Net saving:

Page 79



                               CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

General Fund 2018/19 General Fund Revenue General Fund Capital
Budget Forecast Budget Forecast  

In
co

m
e

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re Net 
contribution 

/ (spend)

Full Year 
Forecast

Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Total Housing 210 (1,791) (1,581) (1,581) 1,532 1,282
Total Environment 10,081 (13,585) (3,503) (3,858) (355) 2,352 836
Total Health & Happiness 372 (2,384) (2,012) (2,064) (52) 14,924 5,714
Total Business 215 (1,613) (1,399) (1,389) 10 21,113 15,963
Total Operational Delivery 3,206 (7,201) (3,995) (3,873) 122 1,926 930
Total Investment Activity 3,014 (409) 2,605 3,010 405 3,009 3,009
Total Organisational Management 427 (7,182) (6,755) (7,012) (257) 236 236
Corporate 25 (1,846) (1,821) (2,106) (285)
Council Tax Support Grant to Parishes (77) (77) (77)
Cost recharge to HRA 1,852 1,852 1,852

17,550 (34,236) (16,687) (16,538) (412) 45,092 27,970

Total Tax and Grant Income 14,192 14,371 179

Total Financing & Treasury Activity (225) (225)  

Total Reserve Related Movements 2,721 3,347 626

Total Funding 16,687 17,492 805

Transfer to General Fund Balance 393

P
age 80



                               CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Housing Revenue Account 2018/19 Housing Revenue Account
Budget Forecast

In
co

m
e

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re

Net 
contribution / 

(spend)

Full Year 
Forecast

Full Year 
Forecast 
Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Rent Service Charges & Other Income 27,551 - 27,551 27,351 (200) 
Housing Management General 131 (4,866) (4,735) (4,735)
Housing Management Special 1,165 (2,668) (1,503) (1,503)
Repairs (including Administration) 100 (5,214) (5,114) (5,114)
Interest (5,168) (5,168) (5,168)
Depreciation - (6,044) (6,044) (6,660) (616)
Capital Expenditure Funded by HRA - (5,550) (5,550) (2,343) 3,207
Other Income & Expenditure 21 (85) (64) (64)

     
28,968 (29,595) (627) 1,764 2,391

Working Balance at 1 April 2018 9,116 9,116  

Add Surplus / (Deficit) (627) 1,764 2,391

Projected Working Balance at 31 March 2019 8,489 10,880 2,391

P
age 81



                               CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Housing Revenue Account
HRA Capital 
Programme

Capital 2018/19 Budget  Forecast

£'000 £'000

Housing Major Works 6,952 6,952
Improvements and Conversions 1,251 1,251
Other Capital Spend 243 243
New Build Programme 9,300 9,930

  
17,746 18,376

Notes:
1. The rental income forecast for the year has been reduced by £200k to reflect delays in the handover over of new build 

properties.
2. The depreciation charge for the year has been increased by £616k to reflect a change in the calculation method approved by 

external audit following the 2017/18 audit.
3. The forecast for the capital programme includes the revised forecasts approved by Cabinet (Housing) in report CAB3036 

(HSG) July 2018. This has reduced the projected capital expenditure funded by the HRA by £3.2m.
4. The final completion costs at Victoria House are projected to increase by £630k as the rectification costs were higher than 

anticipated following the previous contractor going into administration

P
age 82



                               CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Outcome Based Budgeting – 2018/19 Progress Monitoring

The General Fund Budget 2018/19 report (CAB3011, 14 February 2018 refers) included a number of budget proposals for 2018/19 
that would achieve savings of £1.1m which would enable a balanced budget for 2018/19 and contribute towards savings for future 
years.
The table below provides an update on the progress achieved against the proposals for savings. 

Budget Achieved On-target TotalItem £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 Status Comments

Savings Proposals
Removal of ISDN line 45 19 19 Amber Project delayed until a target 

November implementation, full year 
forecast unchanged

External Audit fee reduction 25 25 25 Green
Internal Audit fee reduction 20 20 20 Green
Changes to MRP to the annuity 
basis

43 43 43 Green

Benefits restructure 25 25 25 Green
Un-utilised transport budget 
removed

217 217 217 Green

Internal Managed Vacancy 
Factor moved to 2% (£350k 
18/19)

105 26 79 105 Green

Print Room Structure changes 20 0 Amber Project currently under review
IT – GIS Support Technician 18 18 18 Green
HRA/ GF Asset transfer 100 88 88 Green
Customer Services/ Digitalisation 
Review

50 30 30 Amber

P
age 83

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/meetings/documents/41633/CAB3011%20General%20Fund%20Budget%202018-19.pdf


                               CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Item Budget Achieved On-target Total Status Comments£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Re-investment of car parking 
charges

100 100 100 Green

Review of grants and 
commissioning

140 140 140 Green

New trading opportunities 25 0 Amber Project currently under review
Increased planning fees 160 160 160 Green

TOTAL 1,093 514 476 990

P
age 84



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Section 2: Council Strategy 2018-20 Progress Update
The following chart and tables provide a summary of the progress against the 
actions included in the refreshed Council Strategy 2018-20, that was adopted at 
Council on 22 February 2018 (Report CL139 refers) as at the end of the second 
quarter of 2018/19 (30 September 2018).

The Council Strategy 2018-20 includes sixty performance measures supporting the 
delivery of the Council’s four strategic outcomes.  

Each action, which includes a performance measure, is assigned to a responsible 
manager, with previously agreed timescales and targets that are set out in the 
Council Strategy.

Progress against the agreed timescales and targets is presented using a 
Red/Amber/Green status. These categories are defined as follows:

 Red – Unlikely to deliver against agreed timescales and/or budget. Corrective 
Action Plan required.

 Amber – Some slippage or overspend, corrective action required to bring to 
meet schedule.

 Green – On schedule to be delivered on time.

Measures where actions have been completed are shown as complete.

As of 30 September 2018 there were four measures that had been completed and 
forty nine measures on schedule and to be delivered on time (Green).

A further six actions are showing as Amber, with some slippage. 

There is one measure showing as Red where the agreed timescale or target has not 
been met or is unlikely to be met.  

Further detailed information against each of the outcomes and performance 
measures is given in the following pages.

Page 85

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/meetings/documents/41663/CL139%20Council%20Strategy%20Refresh.pdf


CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Council Strategy – Progress Report (Quarter 2 – 2018/19)

Winchester will be a premier business location

Aim How we will deliver our outcomes Delivery 
Date

Current 
Status

Key Issues / comments

Support the regeneration of the 
Central Winchester area.
Measure: Adoption of Central 
Winchester SPD by summer 2018.

Sept 
2018

SPD 
Complete

Central Winchester Regeneration SPD 
adopted at Cabinet on 20 June 2018 
Report CAB3034 refers). Discussions for 
next steps underway. 

1. Promote a sustainable economy 
by enabling major regeneration 
schemes 

Manage the project and support the 
regeneration of the Station Approach 
area of Winchester, both Carfax 
scheme and adjacent Public Realm 
works.
Measure: Increased office floor space 
on the Carfax/ Station Approach site 
of 140,000ft2

Original 
Date Mar 

2019
Revised-

Public 
Realm 

Mar 
2021

Carfax 
2022

Green A report presenting the Concept scheme 
will be reported to Station Approach 
Cabinet in December 2018, requesting 
for approval to progress to detailed 
design and a planning application 
submission in March 2019, along with the 
Outline Business Case. A Business Case 
was submitted to the LEP in November 
2018 for a £5m grant being sought for 
public realm and other works to support 
the Carfax development scheme.

Development of an Economic 
Strategy
Measure: adoption of updated 
Economic Strategy, including Action 
Plan and performance measures 
included in the Strategy

Mar 
2019

Green Work has commenced on the drafting of 
a new strategy.  Meeting with key people 
are being arranged to gather insight as to 
the direction and focus of the new 
strategy.  The programme is on track.

2. Prioritise support for the 
knowledge-based, creative and 
tourism sectors

Sustain our rural economy by 
supporting existing businesses to 
grow and new enterprises to start 
including Fieldfare LEADER 
Programme
Measure: LEADER support for 70 
businesses  (WCC only)

Mar 
2020

Amber Staffing shortages had put this project at 
risk of underspend.  Officers continue to 
work to deliver a compliant and 
successful programme.  The recent 
deadline for applications has seen an 
increase in those submitted and the team 
are working to ensure as many of these 

P
age 86

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/s1166/CAB3034%20Central%20Winchester%20-%20Adoption%20of%20SPD.pdf


CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Aim How we will deliver our outcomes Delivery 
Date

Current 
Status

Key Issues / comments

progress to approval.
Facilitate and support the 
development and delivery of 
strategically important sites across the 
District and working with partners to 
deliver employment opportunities.
Measure: additional floor space 
identified/ provided

Mar 
2020

Green An update on the progress of the Station 
Approach and Central Winchester 
Regeneration projects is given in the 
Major Projects update on pages 37 to 44 
of this report.

Seek to secure partners for a public 
service hub to be based around the 
City Offices/West Wing/Guildhall 
buildings
Measure: Number of partners 
secured/ amount of floor space 
utilised

Mar 
2020

Green Winchester CAB to relocate to the 
Council offices early in 2019 following 
refurbishment of the main reception area 
in Colebrook Street.

Use a Strategic Asset Purchase 
Scheme to generate financial and 
community returns
Measure: Additional £500k generated 
from Strategic Asset Purchase 
Scheme.

Mar 
2019

Red Budgeted returns for 2018/19 are £225k 
based on existing purchases.

Develop an up to date car parking 
strategy which manages demand with 
sufficient spaces in appropriate 
locations including Park and Ride 
expansion where there is a 
demonstrable need
Measure: Adoption of new 
Winchester Car Parking Strategy by 
Dec 2018 

Dec 
2018

Revised 
April 19

Amber Work on a new parking strategy has 
already begun with a parking survey 
carried out in May this year.  However it 
is sensible to wait for the City of 
Winchester Movement Strategy as this 
will inform the City Council’s future 
approach to developing a parking 
strategy for the city.

3. Utilise our environment to drive 
business growth

Undertake a strategic review of traffic 
and transport issues affecting 
Winchester and produce high level 

Dec 
2018

Green City Of Winchester Movement Strategy is 
progressing well with first round of public 
consultation, member briefings and 

P
age 87



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Aim How we will deliver our outcomes Delivery 
Date

Current 
Status

Key Issues / comments

options to improve movement
Measure: Adoption of the Movement 
Strategy by December 2018

stakeholder workshops completed along 
with the development of a database.   
Next step is to use this information to 
carryout computer modelling of a number 
of options to assess their effects on 
movement in and around the city before 
preparing a draft strategy for consultation 
in the autumn. The exact timescales for 
carrying out this consultation and 
ultimately adopting the strategy may 
need to be reviewed depending upon 
how long it takes to complete the 
modelling work which will commence 
shortly. 

Support new businesses set up in the 
District with advice to thrive and 
prosper
Measure: Number of new businesses 
supported, including with grants and 
advice

Mar 
2020

Green 456 business hours training have been 
spent at cultural network events; 160 
officer and volunteer hours assisting 
LEADER applicants; Enterprise First 
contract proving successful with both 
monthly workshops and informal 
networking sessions very well attended.

4. Develop new employment 
opportunities across the District

Directly develop space to support 
Small, Medium Enterprises to grow
Measure: New net floor space 
provided for SME’s

Mar 
2020

Green The Council continues to review 
opportunities as they become available. 

5. Work with strategic partners to 
deliver critical digital 
infrastructure projects across 
the District

Support the roll-out of Super Fast 
Broadband in line with the aims of the 
Council Digital Strategy
Measure: to achieve 95% access 
across Hampshire to SuperFast 
Broadband

Mar 
2019

Green Hampshire led project has achieved 95% 
access to SuperFast Broadband across 
Hampshire.

P
age 88



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Aim How we will deliver our outcomes Delivery 
Date

Current 
Status

Key Issues / comments

Work with partners to implement and 
promote the provision of online 
services as set out in the Digital 
Strategy
Measure: Achieve 100% of all 
services available online

Mar 
2020

Green A pilot project is in development to install 
additional digital access points for visitor 
information and to generate advertising 
income linked to the new Tourist 
Information Centre and Guildhall.   (This 
will provide a link to the city Wi-Fi and 
proposed visitor app, and compliment 
and enhance the opportunities for 
promotion).

Explore the opportunities to establish 
joint-ventures to enable more efficient 
services
Measure: Number of joint venture 
opportunities explored and potential 
efficiency savings

Mar 
2019

Green Ongoing. Opportunities reviewed as they 
present themselves.

6. Be innovative by exploring 
opportunities to generate 
additional revenue and 
maximise key revenue streams

Carry out improvements to the current 
City Offices while reviewing the long 
term options for staff office 
accommodation
Measure: Refurbishment completed 
March 2018, Works and longer term 
study complete March 2019

Mar 
2019

Green Refurbishment to City Offices reception 
underway that will improve the 
customers’ experience.
Further refurbishment of staff office 
accommodation being discussed. 

P
age 89



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Delivering quality housing options

Aim How we will deliver our outcomes Delivery 
Date

Current 
Status

Key Issues / comments

1 Deliver good housing stock 
condition and energy 
performance for Council owned 
dwellings that meet the Decent 
homes standard

Carry out repairs and maintenance 
improvements as per the capital 
repairs programme
Measure: 100% of housing stock 
meets the Decent Homes Standard 
with and energy performance ratings

Mar 
2020

Green Programme on track.  Roofing 
programme on city estates under review 
to determine best approach to deliver 
value for money whilst minimising impact 
on residents

Significantly increase the number of 
council houses built in the period 2017 
– 2020
Measure: An additional 600 new 
homes delivered by 2020

Mar 
2020

Green Over 200 units now delivered or with 
planning approved.  Chesil Lodge now 
open. Victoria Court due for completion 
in December 18. 

Bid for grant to support additional 
development
Measure: 50% of New Homes 
Programme supported by grant

Mar 
2020

Green £3.2m grant secured for the Valley 
development in Stanmore

2. Respond to the need to provide 
more affordable housing in the 
District

Establish a housing company or other 
specialist vehicle to support the 
delivery of sub-market rented housing
Measure: Housing company 
established 

May 
2018

Amber Work ongoing to identify appropriate 
vehicle to support Council programme.  

Avoiding reliance on B&B as a 
housing option by focussing on 
preventing homelessness and 
effective use of temporary 
accommodation
Measure: No use of B&B 
accommodation (other than in 
exceptional circumstances)

Mar 
2020

Green Minimal use of B&B this quarter (3 
placements) due to emergency 
situations.  

3. Drive down homelessness 
across the District and support 
partner agencies in the drive for 
an improved life for those in 
need

Support an increase in the provision 
of supported housing units/move on 
accommodation by establishing and 

Mar 
2019

Green Social Inclusion Forum now well 
established with all relevant agencies 
represented.

P
age 90



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Aim How we will deliver our outcomes Delivery 
Date

Current 
Status

Key Issues / comments

leading multi agency Homelessness/ 
Social Inclusion forum
Measure: Provision of 10 supported/ 
move-on units
Work with private landlords through 
“City Lets” initiative offering effective 
management and lettings service
Measure: Increase of 30 to 50 homes 
by March 2019

Mar 
2019

Complete 50 private rent units now managed 
through City Lets scheme

Support and enable development 
partners/ Registered Social Landlords 
(RSLs) to develop more affordable 
housing
Measure: Number of affordable 
homes developed by other 
organisations in the District

Mar 
2020

Green Positive discussions with providers re 
106 sites, rural exception sites. 

4. Provide good access to 
affordable housing options 
across a range of tenures, 
including affordable and sub 
market rent (within Local 
Housing Allowance rates), 
market rent, shared ownership, 
student housing etc.

Develop an effective “shared 
ownership” programme
Measure: At least 30 affordable 
shared ownership homes developed 
by March 2020

Mar 
2020

Green Shared Ownership units at Chesil Lodge 
and Mitford Rd, Alresford, all sold and 
Victoria Court progressing well.

5. Be proactive in our Tenant 
engagement, achieving 
effective representation and 
insight across all tenant and 
customer groups

Making a more effective use of the 
Survey of Tenants and Residents 
through better use of data and wider 
engagement 
Measure: Increase the number of 
‘involved’ tenants to 200

Mar 
2019

Green Survey of Tenants and Residents 
(STAR) planned for 4th quarter 2018/19.

6. Restrict permitted development 
rights in Winchester so that new 
Houses of Multiple Occupation 
(HMOs) require planning 
permission

Make an Article 4 Direction(s) where 
evidence shows the proliferation of 
HMOs is unbalancing housing stock in 
Winchester, or parts of the city.
Measure: Number of Article 4 
Directions approved.

Mar 
2020

Green Article 4 Direction now active in 
Stanmore and Winnall.  
Survey of HMOs in Winnall to be 
undertaken shortly to provide more 
accurate baseline data. 
Data regarding other areas (Fulflood and 

P
age 91



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Aim How we will deliver our outcomes Delivery 
Date

Current 
Status

Key Issues / comments

Badger Farm) being analysed. 
New HMO Licensing scheme being 
implemented in October which will 
provide improved data for all areas as 
well as additional controls re conditions.  

Develop an effective “shared 
ownership” programme (shared target 
with aim to “Provide good access to 
affordable housing options”)
Measure: At least 30 affordable 
shared ownership homes developed 
by 2020.

Mar 
2020

Green As 4 above

Provide access to custom build 
initiatives
Measure: Two custom build plots 
identified

Mar 
2020

Green The Council is currently considering 
potential sites to be used for self-build 
properties

7. Support residents to buy their 
own home.

Create a Partner Home Purchase 
Scheme to enable residents to buy 
their own home in a shared equity 
scheme with the Council
Measure: Ten households (by March 
2018) and a total of 50 by March 2019

Mar 
2019

Green The first couple who have bought a new 
home using the PHP scheme moved in 
during October 2018. 
A total of 12 applications have been 
received with a number of these well 
advanced.

P
age 92



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Improve the health and happiness of our community

Aim How we will deliver our outcomes Delivery 
Date

Current 
Status

Key Issues / comments

Council grants programme to prioritise 
sport and physical activity 
programmes
Measure: Number of grants and the 
total financial amount approved for 
sports groups

Mar 
2019

Green Sport and physical activity grants being 
considered as part of the wider review of 
the Council’s grants programme.

Develop the Exercise Referral 
programme to include classes for 
adults with long term health conditions
Measure: Achieve 265 referrals and 
class attendance during 2018/19. 

Achieve 2,300 throughput of 
attendees at community classes

Mar 
2019

Green Q1 - 71 Referrals
Q2 – 56 Referrals

Most commons referrals are for obesity, 
mental health and diabetes
 
Q1 690 throughput
Q2 655 throughput

Most popular classes are for falls 
prevention and for patients with 
neurological conditions.

Escape pain and an additional neuro fit 
class will commence in 2019

Promote and encourage health walks 
across the District, helping everyone 
live longer, healthier and happier lives
Measure: Achieve 5,900 participants 
taking part in health walks during 
2018/19

Mar 
2019

Green Q1 – 1,259 throughput
Q2 – 1,593 throughput

Most popular walks are Bishops 
Waltham, Weeke and Winchester
 

1. Work with partners to reduce 
health inequalities in the District 
and to promote good mental 
and physical health

Target discretionary business rates 
relief towards sports clubs
Measure: Number of sports clubs 

Mar 
2019

Complete Sports clubs/ associations, and 
organisations associated with sport and 
physical activity are well supported by 

P
age 93



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Aim How we will deliver our outcomes Delivery 
Date

Current 
Status

Key Issues / comments

receiving rate relief the Council’s policy with all eligible sports 
clubs currently claiming discretionary 
business rates relief. 
In 2017/18, of the £272k discretionary 
relief awarded, less than £51k was for 
organisations not associated with sport

Increase the number of adults 
participating in sport or physical 
activity
Measure: Number of adults 
participating in sport and physical 
activity per week.
Inactive – target 21.2%
Fairly active – target 14.5%
Active – target 66.5%

Mar 
2019

Green Sport England – Active Lives Data 17/18 
– figures published Oct 2018. 
Inactive – 19.8%
Fairly Active 11%
Active 69.2%

The above figures are for March 2018
2018/19 figures will be available in Oct 
2019.

Support and promote the successful 
delivery of the Winchester junior 
parkrun open to children aged 4 to 14
Measure: 5,000 junior participants in 
2018/19

Mar 
2020

Amber Q1 – 1,017 junior participants
Q2 –  779 junior participants
This is the first year of this event 
therefore the throughput figure was 
difficult to estimate accurately. 
Marketing campaign for winter months to 
include Facebook advertising and 
primary school promotion work.

Support and promote the Winchester 
adult parkrun
Measure: 13,500 adult participants in 
2018

Mar 
2019

Green Q1 - 3,860 adult participants
Q2 - 4,853 adult participants

Support and promote the Whiteley 
adult parkrun
Measure: 10,000 participants in 
2018/19

Mar 
2019

Green Q1 – 2,925 adult participants
Q2 – 2,480 adult participants

A Junior parkrun has been launched in 

P
age 94



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Aim How we will deliver our outcomes Delivery 
Date

Current 
Status

Key Issues / comments

Whiteley in Oct 2018 with signs of good 
attendance in the first few weeks. Data 
will be available for Quarters 3 and 4.

Support the delivery of the Golden 
Mile event involving primary schools 
across the Winchester District
Measure: Participation of 20 schools 
and 4,000 pupils who have collectively 
walked 50,000 miles. 

Mar 
2020

Green  2,545 pupils at 19 schools in the District 
– May 2018 data 

The Golden Mile is launching a new 
software platform which has resulted in 
no data being recorded in recent months.

This whole school programme aims to 
tackle childhood obesity in Primary 
Schools across the District.

Newsletters will be published and sent to 
schools every term to highlight school 
successes

Challenges and fun competitions will be 
set for schools to keep them engaged.

Invest annually in disabled facilities 
grants in line with Government 
funding to help people in their own 
home
Measure: 100 residents given 
assistant to remain in their own home

Mar 
2020

Green QTR 1 – 19 grants issued. Completion of 
DFG’s delayed this quarter due to 
necessary policy and financial approval 
amendments. Approved in July via the 
Housing (Cabinet) Committee. Now on 
schedule to be delivered on time

Support the delivery of the Winchester 
Health and Wellbeing Action Plan 
which includes the following high 
priorities; improving workplace health, 
reducing the number of 'increasing 
risk' alcohol drinkers and supporting 
people with dementia and their carers 

Mar 
2020

Amber The current action plan expired on 31 
March 2018 and was due to be reviewed 
and updated for the current financial 
year.  As reported previously, this did not 
happen due to the absence of a key 
officer for several months.

P
age 95



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Aim How we will deliver our outcomes Delivery 
Date

Current 
Status

Key Issues / comments

to lead active and fulfilling lives in their 
communities for as long as possible.
Measure: To achieve the targets as 
set out in the current action plan

The overarching Hampshire Joint Health 
& Wellbeing Strategy also ended in 2018 
and is currently being revised for 
publication in April 2019.  In order to 
inform the revised strategy, the District 
Health & Wellbeing Forum is holding a 
workshop at the Eastleigh Borough 
Council offices on 13 November for 
district council Portfolio Holders and 
Health Leads.  
The aim of the workshop is to feed into 
the strategy development process and 
identify potential district council 
contributions which can be addressed 
locally.

2. Provide new leisure facilities in 
Winchester that meet the needs 
of a broad cross section of our 
communities for now and the 
future

Build a new Sport and Leisure Centre 
at Bar End 
Measure: Start of construction in 
Spring 2019

Spring 
2019 

start on 
site

Green Planning application for the new Sport 
and Leisure Centre recommended for 
approval at Planning Committee held on 
31 October. 

3. Encourage volunteering to 
support and extend local 
services

Promote and encourage adults to 
volunteer in community events and 
sporting activities
Measure: Increase to 22% the 
number of adults volunteering in sport

Mar 
2020

Green Sport England – Active Lives Data 17/18 
– latest figures published Oct 2018.
Adult volunteers – 21.7% 
The above figure is for March 2018
(2018/19 figures will be available in Oct 
2019)
Local data :
- Parkrun – 83 volunteers.
- Health Walks – 32 volunteers
- Para Personal Bests – 41 volunteers
- Tri Golf Festival – 57 volunteers

4. Support the delivery of a Support the Winchester Festivals Mar Green Winchester Festivals Group currently 

P
age 96



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Aim How we will deliver our outcomes Delivery 
Date

Current 
Status

Key Issues / comments

Group to deliver a range of high 
quality sustainable events and 
festivals that are safe, well organised 
and well attended
Measure: Number of events 
supported, held and number of 
attendees

2020 reviewing opportunities for sponsorship.  
Two recent meetings held ensuring that 
events through the summer are well 
organised and safe.

programme of festivals and 
events across the District

Develop the Winchester Criterium and 
Cyclefest to increase participation and 
spectators
Measure: 8,500 spectators at the 
2018 event

Jun 2019 Complete 13,000 spectators attended the Criterium 
and Cyclefest held in June 2018

Winchester Bid has installed new footfall 
software to enable an accurate measure 
of the number of spectators at this event

5. Provide support to residents 
who are affected by the Welfare 
Reform and Universal Credit 
changes

Support residents affected by the 
impact of Welfare Reform, the benefit 
cap and Universal Credit into work
Measure: Ten people supported per 
quarter

Mar 
2019

Green There have been no specific cases 
recorded where residents were affected 
by the welfare reforms or Universal 
Credit (UC) changes and required 
support in the second quarter of this 
year. 
The DWP announced recently that they 
would be withdrawing funding from local 
government for this support and the 
service would be provided by the CAB 
from 2019. 
Despite this change in government policy 
the Benefits & Welfare team will continue 
to consider communications from 
claimants and will assist anyone who 
contacts them in respect of UC or welfare 
reform related matters, where possible.

6. Work with partners to achieve 
significant and sustained 
change for vulnerable families 

Lead the implementation of the 
Government’s Supporting (Troubled) 
Families Programme in the 

Mar 
2020

Green The target number of families to be 
identified & engaged with Winchester 
Supporting Families (WSF) for 2018/19 

P
age 97



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Aim How we will deliver our outcomes Delivery 
Date

Current 
Status

Key Issues / comments

with multiple, complex and 
persistent problems

Winchester District
Measure: To support 61 families 
during 2018/19

(Cohort 7) is 61 (which includes 12 
Intensive Family Support places). 
At the end of Q2 31 families had signed 
up to the programme – on target.  
Looking ahead, the main focus of effort 
will be on embedding the ‘whole family’ 
approach within our normal working 
practices and processes to ensure that 
the transformational legacy of the 
programme post 2020 is not lost.  
Planning for a local stakeholder event in 
February 2019 is underway.
Performance reports for the end of 
Cohort 6 (2017/18) and the latest 
monthly dashboard report for Cohort 7 
(2018/19) can be found on the following 
link:-
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/community
-recreation/health-wellbeing/supporting-
families-in-the-winchester-district

P
age 98

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/community-recreation/health-wellbeing/supporting-families-in-the-winchester-district
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/community-recreation/health-wellbeing/supporting-families-in-the-winchester-district
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/community-recreation/health-wellbeing/supporting-families-in-the-winchester-district


CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Improving the quality of the District’s environment

Aim How we will deliver our outcomes Delivery 
Date

Current 
Status

Key Issues / comments

1. Protect , enhance and respect 
the District’s rich heritage and 
landscape whilst allowing 
appropriate development to 
take place enabling our historic 
to evolve over time having due 
regard for the landscape 
character

Having an adopted up-to-date Local 
Plan with positive policies which allow 
development to take place which 
protects and enhances the heritage 
associated with the built and natural 
environment
Measure: Commence local plan 
review in 2018

Mar 
2020

Green Formal launch of the preparation of Local 
Plan 2036 to commence in accordance 
with approved timescales in Local 
Development Scheme. 

2. By working with our partners 
and by using powers available 
to us, make Winchester a safer 
and more pleasant place to live, 
work and visit

Be proactive in tackling incidents 
reported of fly-tipping within the 
District
Measure: To reduce the overall 
incidents of fly-tipping across the 
District

Mar 
2020

Green The hot spot locations we are currently 
working against are (they are changed by 
the team if there is significant reduction 
in reports):
Port Lane (Hursley)
Beeches Hill (Bishops Waltham)
Basingstoke Road (A33)
Whiteley Lane

The figures below show a comparison 
between the figures from Quarter 4 of 
2017/18 against Quarter 2 2018 as it 
relates to the period of location change:

                                 Q4        Q2 
Port Lane          5 2
Beeches Hill,              4 1
Basingstoke Rd          17 5
Whiteley Lane 7 1
       
Action taken:
7 investigation’s were undertaken within 
the current reporting period, of those 5 

P
age 99



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Aim How we will deliver our outcomes Delivery 
Date

Current 
Status

Key Issues / comments

were closed and 2 are still ongoing.                                   
1 FPN given for low level fly tip (£400)  
1 £400 FPN awaiting WCC Legal sign 
off.
1 prosecution case due to be heard - in 
court October.                        

Always evaluate prosecution as a 
deterrent to those who fly-tip within 
the District 
Measure: 100% success rate for all 
fly-tips that have been moved forward 
as application to the court for 
prosecution

Mar 
2020

Green The Enforcement Officer maintains her 
100% success rate for prosecution. This 
is largely due to the robust early stage 
investigation and decision making 
process. 
A £400 FPN issued on 17 July to an 
individual for dumping a small amount of 
fly tip in a bin belonging to a business, it 
was paid in full by return. This is very 
encouraging in the future use of FPN’s 
for low level cases.

Investigate introducing litter fines and 
other incentives/ penalties (new 
legislation and not rolled out within the 
Council yet).
Measure: Fixed Penalty notices 
issued for low-level fly-tips

Mar 
2020

Green Awaiting further guidance on the use of 
extended/new powers to tackle littering.
The Council already has the power to 
issue FPNs for littering. There were no 
FPN’s issued for litter within this 
reporting period and this is largely due to 
the fact that when asked to, the 
perpetrator will pick the litter back up and 
dispose of it correctly, in view of the 
officer.  

Conduct the area specific satisfaction 
survey to take action to reduce 
incidents or concerns of Anti Social 
Behaviour in priority locations, the first 
being in 2017

Mar 
2020

Green ASB Survey:
The survey aims to provide the public 
with an opportunity to say how ‘we’ dealt 
with their ASB related concerns. It will go 
live at the start of quarter 3. Those 

P
age 100



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Aim How we will deliver our outcomes Delivery 
Date

Current 
Status

Key Issues / comments

Measure: Satisfaction levels recorded 
via the survey

outcomes will be reported via an O&S 
Committee report when it meets in 
February 2019.

Housing Survey:
The ASB lead within Neighbourhood 
Services has the opportunity to 
contribute to the questions within a 
housing survey. This is likely to be 
undertaken during the next quarter and 
will hopefully provide us with a wider 
understanding of the experiences and 
perceptions of ASB across the district.

Utilise the tools and powers provided 
within the ASB, Police and Crime Act 
2014 to tackle and reduce crime in the 
District
Measure: Number of interventions to 
reduce incidents of ASB

Mar 
2020

Green Begging:
CCTV stat’s from within this reporting 
period show that there were 38 begging 
+ 1 rough sleeping incident as opposed 
to 90 for the same period last year.

ASB Intervention:
This reporting period shows a 
considerable reduction in ASB type 
incidents in public places. This is 
reflected nationally whereby it is 
recognised that the changing behaviour 
of young people in relation to their use of 
social media as entertainment/interaction 
has influenced the drop in recorded ASB 
e.g. alcohol related ASB, nuisance 
gatherings.

A breakdown of interventions used 

P
age 101



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Aim How we will deliver our outcomes Delivery 
Date

Current 
Status

Key Issues / comments

during this period is as follows:
Acceptable Behaviour Contract = 0
Community Protection Warning  = 1
Community Protection Notice = 0
Section 35 dispersal notices have also 
been used by the PCSOs, however the 
data was not available at the time of 
writing this report, an update will be 
provided in Quarter 3.

Welcome to the Neighbourhood Booklet 
for students living in HMO’s: the final 
development of this work took place 
within this reporting period e.g. 
attendance at Fresher’s Fayre and the 
delivery of approximately 700 booklets, 
distributed as individual door knocks to 
each HMO. Confirmation of the actual 
number of households reached will be 
provided for Quarter 3.

Deliver a rolling programme for estate 
improvements, including 
environmental and parking schemes
Measure: Deliver £250k annually with 
a range of benefits for the local 
communities

Mar 
2020

Green Two Stanmore parking schemes 
completed. 
Proposals for Colden Common, 
Curdridge, Highcliffe and Weeke 
(Trussell Crescent) currently out to 
consultation. 

3. Protect, enhance and increase 
the use of open spaces in both 
the towns and more rural areas 
of the District

To undertake and act upon a visitors 
user survey on key open spaces to 
ascertain current use and future 
demand for such space
Measure: Visitor usage and 
satisfaction rates

Mar 
2020

Green Survey that seeks the views of visitors to 
the parks and open space across the 
District currently available from the 
Council’s website, running to 30 
November 2018.

P
age 102

https://winchester.citizenspace.com/landscape-open-spaces/parks-and-green-spaces-visitor-survey/


CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Aim How we will deliver our outcomes Delivery 
Date

Current 
Status

Key Issues / comments

Support and encourage residents 
living in the District to recycle through 
public awareness campaigns 
including a focus on reducing the 
rates of contaminations of materials 
collected for recycling
Measure: Increase recycling from the 
2016/17 baseline position

Mar 
2020

Green Ongoing promotion and increasing of 
awareness among residents to recycle. 
The percentage of household waste sent 
for reuse, recycling and composting in 
2018 shows a 1% increase in 
April/May/June period when compared to 
the same period in 2017.

4. Work to change attitudes to 
waste, fly-tipping and littering 
and significantly improve 
recycling levels

We will investigate options for 
additional income through increased 
recycling
Measure: Income collected through 
additional channels

Mar 
2020

Green The Council continues to investigate 
opportunities to raise additional income 
through recycling. 

5. Work with strategic partners to 
continue to develop flood 
resilience measures to protect 
our communities

Support schemes that will protect 
residents’ homes and property from 
the threat of flooding
Measure: Flood scheme assessments 
on all completed schemes

Mar 
2020

Green Flood alleviation works ongoing. 
Previous report approved £75,000 for 
drainage works at West of Waterlooville 
to alleviate flooding. 
Additional alleviation measures are 
planned in Winchester (Durngate phase 
2) but further investigative/technical work 
has identified some issues which will 
impact on design/cost and the 
Environment Agency is completing 
additional modelling work which will also 
feed into the project.   Assessment will 
be necessary once this work has been 
finished when a further up-date can be 
provided.

6. Improve the environment and 
reduce harmful emissions 
through holistic transport 
planning

Delivery and implementation of the 
actions included in the Winchester Air 
Quality Action Plan 2017 – 2023
Measure: Improved air quality in 

Mar 
2020

Green Work is continuing regarding the 
implementation of the nine core and nine 
complimentary measures in the Action 
Plan with an update report considered by 

P
age 103



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Aim How we will deliver our outcomes Delivery 
Date

Current 
Status

Key Issues / comments

accordance with the Air Quality Action 
Plan

Cabinet in September 2018 (Report 
CAB3074 refers)

Delivery of the 12 Actions for a Lower 
Carbon Council
Measure: Reduce by 40% or 25,000 
tonnes of CO2 per annum by 2020

Mar 
2020

Amber To be reviewed by the Low Carbon 
Board and City Council to consider 
progress made and whether these 
actions need to be refreshed or the issue 
of emissions/climate change addressed 
in a different way. It is acknowledged that 
meeting this local reduction in emissions 
as a contribution to the national target 
will continue to be a challenge, as was 
the case from the outset, bearing in mind 
the Council  has only limited control over 
carbon emissions generated across the 
District.  The Council continues to make 
good progress in reducing its own carbon 
footprint and figures for 2016/17 show a 
reduction of 9.1% on the previous year 
and 22.5% on the baseline year 
(2009/10). 

We will increase the use of P&R to 
support and encourage parking 
outside of the city centre
Measure: An additional 200 Park & 
Ride spaces created

Mar 
2019

Green Additional P&R bus added to service 
(peak bus number increased from 8-9) to 
cope with increasing passenger demand. 
Further will follow on from the City of 
Winchester Movement Strategy. 

P
age 104



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Section 3: Programme Management – Projects Update
This report provides an update on the progress made against the Council’s significant programmes and projects which are being or 
will be undertaken during the next five years. These programmes and projects have been selected for inclusion in this report 
following an exercise to evaluate against a number of criteria the significance, complexity and cost of each of the projects and the 
need for regular monitoring.

The Council’s Major Projects include:
 Central Winchester Regeneration
 Chesil Lodge – Extra Care Scheme
 Environmental Services contract
 New Homes Programme
 Station Approach
 Winchester Sport and Leisure Park

Summary Report
The charts below summarise the status of the Council’s significant projects as set out in the report.

On Schedule,
 5 Projects

Completed, 
1 Project

Status of Projects

P
age 105



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Management Report – Major Projects

Summary Status & Progress Project Milestones
Winchester Sport & Leisure Park Current

Quarter
Previous
Quarter

Project Phase: Procurement and Design
Project Start Date:
01 May 2013

Projected  End Date:
Spring 2021

Project Sponsor: 
Chas Bradfield

Project Executive: 
Andy Hickman

Project Budget:
Capital: 
£38,000,000
Revenue: £759,402

Total Actual Spend:
Total: £1,977,684

 Options appraisal – 2013 to 2015 - Completed
 Feasibility assessment of preferred option – 2016 - Completed
 Prepare Outline Business Case for preferred option - 2016/17 - 

Completed
 Outline Business Case  – 16 January 2018 - Completed
 Planning permission recommended for approval at Planning 

Committee  – 31 October 2018
 Start on site –  2018 (now likely to be early 2019)
 Completion – 2020 (now likely to be 2021)

Project Update & Next Steps
Project Update 
 RIBA Stage 4 completed 
 Announcement of construction contractor 
 Continued consultation with planning consultees
 Progress of procurement process for operator 
 Planning further engagement with users of the centre
 Preparation of the full business case 
 Offsite works for temporary and permanent access around the park 
Next Steps
 Progress RIBA stage 5 pre-construction design and costing, including ongoing engagement with utilities and HCC 
 Continue procurement for an operator for the Centre
 Continued planning and delivery for  offsite access works 
 Engagement with users of the centre
 Planning determination October 2018

P
age 106

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/projects/project/6


CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Summary Status & Progress Project Milestones
Station Approach Current

Quarter
Previous
Quarter

Project Phase: Procurement and Design 
Project Start:
February 2015

Project End Date:
Qtr 4  2022

Project Sponsor:    
Chas Bradfield

Project Executive: 
Ian Charie

Carfax Project 
Budget:
Capital: £1,800,000 of 
which £400,000 
approved for 
expenditure
Revenue: £1,500,000

Public Realm Budget:
Capital (Projected): 
£5m (LEP)
Revenue: £225,000.00

Carfax 
Expenditure:
Revenue: 
£986,112 (current 
project)
Committed: 
Revenue: 
£256,814
Capital:
£330,481
Public Realm 
Expenditure:
£0.00
Committed:
£15,000

 15/12/16 - Procurement of RIBA Competitions Office - Completed
 20/03/17 - Cabinet to agree start of procurement – Completed
 14/08/17 - Cabinet (SA) to approve appointment of architects - 

Completed
 27/02/18 – Cabinet (SA) approve content of the Public Realm Strategy 

and Masterplan Framework - Completed
 12/07/18 – Cabinet (SA)  approved Procurement route for Public Realm 

Strategy design work 
 Oct 18 – Cabinet (SA) to approve Brief for Public Realm works and 

note update on RIBA stage 2 Carfax scheme re-design 
 Dec 2018 – Cabinet (SA) to be requested to approve RIBA Stage 2 

(Concept Design) for the Carfax site, consider the outline business 
case, to be requested to agree Gateway approval to RIBA Stage 3 
(developed design), and consider options for delivery.

 Jan 2019 - Public consultation 
 March 2019 - Cabinet (SA) to review RIBA Stage 3 design works prior 

to planning application submission.
 July 2019 - Cabinet (SA) to be requested to approve RIBA 3 and 

delivery route
 Sept 2019 – Planning Committee decision expected
 Jan 2020 - Cabinet (SA) to be requested to approve RIBA 4
 Mar 2020 – start on site construction(dependent on construction 

contract arrangements)
Project Update & Next Steps
 Cabinet (SA) Committee considered and agreed the next steps set out in CAB3083(SA) and the drawdown of capital funds for planning prep 

work.
 Completion of RIBA Stage 2 Design and preparation of a planning application with consultation with officers, including discussions regarding 

landscape assessments and archaeological requirements.
 Planning application for marketing boards for the Carfax site prepared for submission.
 Outline business case for Carfax and for LEP funding being drafted.
 Design Team developing the Concept Design Drawings for Public Realm in preparation for public consultation in January 2019 and in 

P
age 107

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/projects/project/7


CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

consultation with HCC as Highway Authority
 Meetings scheduled with South Western Railway to review Design requirements
 Mapping Network Rail Governance Process against PR Project Roadmap

Next Steps
 Finalisation of RIBA Stage 2 and outline business case for December Cabinet (SA) Committee Decision
 Mobilisation of technical support to meet programme.
 Public Realm -Submission of LEP Business Case targeted for end of October
 Public Realm – Preparation of Stakeholder engagement in November
 Prepare for public consultation in January 2019.

P
age 108



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Summary Status & Progress Project Milestones
Central Winchester Regeneration Current 

Quarter
Previous 
Quarter

Project Phase: Initiation & Planning 
Project Start:
March 2016

Project End:
Ongoing

Project Sponsor:    
Chas Bradfield

Project Executive: 
Veryan Lyons

Project Budget:
Revenue: £335,000 

Spend to date:
£268,084 (includes 
committed spend)

 27/11/17 - Draft SPD reviewed and signed off
 06/12/17 – Cabinet approval to commence consultation
 11/12/17 – Start of Formal Consultation
 05/02/18 – End of Formal Consultation
 20/06/18 – Cabinet resolution to adopt SPD
 10/07/18 – Cabinet (CWR) Committee approval to proceed with next 

steps in relation to meanwhile uses and improvements to the existing 
estate

 25/09/18 – Present estimates for costs and timescales for meanwhile 
uses and improvements to the existing estate agreed on 10 /07/18 to 
Cabinet (CWR) Committee for approval to proceed
 

Project Update & Next Steps

 Cabinet resolution to adopt draft SPD – 20 June 2018
 Cabinet (CWR) Committee approval to proceed with next steps in relation to meanwhile uses and improvements to the existing estate – 

10 July 2018
 Present estimates for costs and timescales for meanwhile uses and improvements to the existing estate agreed on 10 July to Cabinet 

(CWR) Committee for approval to proceed on 25 September 2018
Next Steps

 Set up Advisory Panels for Coitbury House, meanwhile uses and public realm
 Meanwhile uses and improvements to the existing estate and public realm – produce estimates for costs and timescales for Coitbury 

House, and Lower High Street and Broadway paving. Begin looking into options for longer term improvements to the Broadway, 
meanwhile uses for vacant buildings and pop up uses for the vacant area in the bus station 

 Archaeology dialogue – agree dates, set up events and publicise 
 Movement Strategy – continue to liaise with HCC on how best to incorporate emerging themes into the development proposals for the 

CWR area
 Further, more detailed work to inform decisions on delivery options and designs 
 Continue developing relationships with stakeholders and landowners 
 Seek to find consultants where specialist expertise is required

P
age 109

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/projects/project/10


CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

 Investigate options to facilitate a process for finding a name for the CWR area
 Cabinet (CWR) Committee visits to Bath and Chester 

P
age 110



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Summary Status & Progress Project Milestones
Chesil Lodge – Extra Care Scheme Current

Quarter
Previous
Quarter

Project Phase: Post Project Review
Project Start:
January 2013

Project End:
2018

Project Sponsor:    
Richard Botham

Project Executive: 
Andrew Palmer

Project Budget:
£15,431,560

Spend to date:
£15,650,598 (pre 
liquidated 
damages) to 30 
June 2018

Completed Completed

 05/02/15 – Planning permission granted at Planning Committee
 11/04/16 – Construction started on site
 10/03/17 – ‘Topping Out’ ceremony held
 22/03/17 – Award of contract for catering service at Chesil Lodge 

(report CAB2912(HSG) refers)
 Completion / handover by contractor
 Phased moving in of residents

Project Update & Next Steps

 Scheme handed over to the Council by contractor 21st June 2018
 First resident moved in June 28th, phased move in for remaining residents during July 
Next Steps
 Phased moving in of residents
 Practical completion of whole scheme including S278 Highway works. 
 Formal opening event in early 2019
 Post project review scheduled for November 2018

P
age 111

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/projects/project/15
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/meetings/documents/40731/CAB2912-HSG-LessEx.pdf


CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Summary Status & Progress Project Milestones
Environmental Services Contract Current

Quarter
Previous
Quarter

Project Phase: Initiation & Planning
Project Start:
January 2018

Project End:
December 2019

Project Sponsor:    
Laura Taylor

Project Executive: 
Steve Tilbury

Project Budget:
£225,000

Spend to date:
£10,000

 Sept 2018 - Member decision on procurement
 Oct 2019 - Joint contract terminated

Project Update & Next Steps

 Procurement Strategy agreed by Cabinet – September 2018

Next Steps
 Project timetable currently being formulated
 External consultancy support Plan to be formulated to deliver approved process
 Revised contractual arrangements must be in place to allow for mobilisation

P
age 112



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Summary Status & Progress Project Milestones
New Homes Programme Current

Quarter
Previous
Quarter

Project Phase: Delivery
Project Start:
December 2012

Project End:
December 2022

Project Sponsor:    
Richard Botham

Project Executive: 
Andrew Palmer

Project Budget:
Capital: £43,942,000

Spend to date:
Capital: £8,832,790 
to 30 Sept 2018

 The Valley – tender process underway (stage 2 mini tender)
 Mitford Rd – flat completion August 2018
 Bailey Close – completion November 2018
 Hillier Way – completed in November 2017
 Victoria House – completion delayed until Dec 18 due to insolvency 
 Knowle  - Started on site
 Rowlings Rd – Planning consent secured, preparing to Tender 

Project Update & Next Steps
 Mitford Rd – Flats handed over on 28th August 2018.  
 Bailey Close – work re-started on site following administration of original contractor. Anticipated completion November 2018
 Hillier Way – completed (November 2017)
 Victoria House – Contractor entered administration in April 2018; the Council has appointed construction consultants to re-engage sub 

contractors, completion delayed until December 2018.    
 Knowle - Ground works have commenced on sites. 
 The Valley – Homes England grant awarded of £3.2m, 2nd stage of tender process underway with design drawings and discharging pre-

commencement planning conditions being immediate tasks requiring action. Full cost certainty expected December 2018. 

P
age 113

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/projects/project/16


CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Section 4 – Managing the business (performance indicators)
The table below provides an update on the performance the Council is making against a set of ‘corporate health’ indicators.

2017/18 2018/19Performance Indicator Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2
Current 
Status

Annual 
Target

Expected 
Outturn

Average Sickness per member 
of staff (days) – rolling year 6.4 6.5 6.9 6.4 6.8 7.7 7.5

Staff Turnover - quarterly 5.48% 5.69% 4.22% 3.25% 4.44% 5.26% No target 
set

No target 
set No target set

Speed of processing new 
Housing Benefit/ Council Tax 
Support Claims (days)

10.38 9.75 10.41 11.13 14.36 14.76 14.00

Speed of processing changes in 
circumstances Housing Benefit/ 
Council Tax Support Claims 
(days)

3.37 3.22 3.37 3.21 4.22 4.87 7.00

Number of overdue/ outstanding 
internal audit actions (end of 
quarter)

32 23 25 15 14 15 10

Number of High Priority 
Overdue Internal Audit 
Management Actions

9 0 3 0 0 0 0

Number Internal Audit Reports 
issued with ‘No Assurance’ 
opinion

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Accounts Payable – invoices 
paid within 30 days 96% 90% 95% 94% 96% 96% 100%

Invoices processed with a 
Purchase Order 98% 100% 99% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Number of complaints recorded 
on corporate complaints system 86 67 76 129 136 167 Not 

Applicable
No Target 

Set Not Applicable

P
age 114



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Performance Indicator 2017/18 2018/19 Current 
Status

Annual 
Target

Expected 
OutturnQ1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

Percentage of FOI requests 
responded to within 20 working 
days

73.91% 78.70% 79.88% 78.53% 72.19% 76.00% 90.00%

Number of Fly-Tipping Incidents 
reported 142 200 193 249 183 194 No Target 

Set
No Target 

Set
Not Applicable

Percentage of household waste 
sent for reuse, recycling and 
composting - quarterly

37.94% 38.31% 35.30% 32.31% 38.98% 37.33% 35.87%

Percentage of Major 
applications determined within 
13 weeks or Agreed Extension 
of Time

66.67% 71.43% 83.33% 100.00% 87.50% 100.00% 60.00%

Percentage of Non Major 
applications determined with 8 
weeks or Agreed Extension of 
Time

83.13% 81.03% 88.74% 90.96% 96.91% 93.94% 65.00%

Number of Enforcement Cases 
Opened 89 91 83 90 76 81 No Target 

Set
No Target 

Set Not Applicable

Number of Enforcement Cases 
Closed 128 108 103 108 73 80 No Target 

Set
No Target 

Set Not Applicable

Voids – Average re-let time 
(general needs and Sheltered) 12.51 12.27 12.32 12.63 13.80 14.99 13

Arrears - Number of tenants 
owing more than 4 weeks rent 222 327 206 205 206 222 Not 

Applicable
No Target 

Set Not Applicable

Repairs – Average number of 
days to complete responsive 
repairs

5.4 5.3 5.0 5.16 5.96 6.88 8

Homelessness – Numbers 
presenting to Council as being 
at risk of homelessness

324 404 334 460 360 385 No Target 
Set

No Target 
Set Not Applicable

P
age 115



CAB3095
APPENDIX 1

Key to symbols:
This performance indicator is on target
This performance indicator is below target but within 5% of the target
This performance indicator is more than 5% of the target

Key Actions:

Freedom of Information (FOI) processes continue to be reviewed by a cross Council Information Governance group 
focussing on where responses are being completed outside the 20 working day target.  

Performance has improved slightly during the current quarter with 76.00% of FOI requests responded to within 20 
working days. Performance figures for the current period (October to November) show that 88.24% of FOI’s have been 
responded to within 20 working days.

Responsibility for the monitoring and following up on FOI requests has now been assigned to a new member of staff and 
a number of incomplete requests are being cleared which is having an impact on the overall percentage responded to 
within 20 working days. 

P
age 116



CAB3072
CABINET

REPORT TITLE: WINCHESTER FLOOD RELIEF SCHEME (DURNGATE) PHASE II 
– ALLOCATION OF ADDITIONAL FUNDS/APPLICATION FOR PLANNING 
PERMISSION

12 DECEMBER 2018

REPORT OF PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Brook – Portfolio Holder for Built 
Environment 

Contact Officer:  Darren Lewis Tel No: 01962 848571 

Email dlewis@winchester.gov.uk 

WARD(S):  ST BARTHOLOMEW

PURPOSE

The Durngate flood relief scheme is proposing new sluices across three of the four 
uncontrolled River Itchen tributaries that flow through and under Winchester; this will 
link together and complete the existing flood defences across the top of the city 
which were finished last year. Detailed planning is underway with construction due to 
start in the third quarter of 2019.

These works were subject to a previous Cabinet report (CAB2940 July 2017) where 
it was agreed to use a £300k of Community Infrastructure Levy receipts as 
contribution to the overall  cost of the project which was £720k at that point.  The rest 
of the funding was provided by the Environment Agency and City Council funds 
which were not used when the first phase of flood alleviation works were completed. 

However,  further investigative and technical work which needed to be carried out 
before the project could commence on site have resulted in significant changes to 
the design of the scheme which are required to address prevailing ground conditions 
and other matters with the result that costs have increased  to £1.25 million. It has 
also been established that planning permission for the works will be required. 

A decision on additional funding is being brought forward now as a matter of urgency 
as there is some risk in dealing with this request next year in line with the CIL 
spending protocol agreed by Cabinet in September (CAB3071) as this could result in 
existing external funding being withdrawn, and delaying the implementation of the 
project could expose the city to further flooding. 

Potential partnership funding routes are being explored and discussions are taking 
place with the Environment Agency (EA), M3 Local Enterprise Partnership  (LEP), 
Hampshire County Council (HCC) and Highways England.  However, additional 
funding from other bodies cannot be guaranteed at this stage.

Page 117

Agenda Item 11



Given the importance of the scheme in reducing the threat of future flooding in the 
central area of Winchester, and the serious negative impact this would have on the 
city, it is recommended that the Council allocates a further sum of £500k of its CIL 
receipts to ensure the project is fully funded can be implemented without undue 
delay whilst continuing to pursue other sources of funding which, if successful, would 
reduce the Council’s overall contribution to the project.  

The increased cost of the project as a result of the increased complexity, including 
contingency, is £500,000 bringing the total budget to £1.25m. 

RECOMMENDATIONS:

To Cabinet

1. That approval is given to progress the Environmental Impact Assessment and 
for Head of Drainage and Special Maintenance to apply for planning 
permission for the flood alleviation works.

2. That an additional £500,000 of the City Council’s General Fund Share of 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) funding is allocated to phase II.

3. That additional expenditure of £500,000 is approved to complete the Phase II 
works subject to Council approval of the budget.

4. Authority be given under 3.1 of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules  to 
depart from the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules  9 10 11 and 12 and  to  
delegate the procurement of the works and the appointment of a contractor  to 
Hampshire County Council  in accordance with the County Council’s  own 
procedure rules. 

To Council

5. That a supplementary capital estimate of £500,000 bringing the total budget to 
£1.25m is approved.

Page 118



CAB3072
IMPLICATIONS:

1 COUNCIL STRATEGY OUTCOME 

1.1 Improving Winchester’s flood defences accords with Improving the Quality of 
the District’s Environment outcome and in particular; work with strategic 
partners to continue to develop flood resilience measures to protect our 
communities.  

1.2 Putting controls in these channels helps support the Central Winchester 
Regeneration scheme because it could help to lower development costs. It is 
understood that post implementation of the phase 2 works the EA will be able 
to review the flood zone category, which is based on risk, for this part of the 
city and it may be possible for it to be lowered.  

1.3 Putting controls in these channels will better enable control of water levels on 
Winnall Moors again in accordance with the Environment outcome. 

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 The flood alleviation phase II works at Durngate were originally estimated to 
cost up to £720,000 for which a budget is already approved. The revised 
estimate is up to £1,250,000 including contingency.

2.2 With £30,000 remaining from phase I of the flood alleviation scheme, approval 
is therefore sought for a supplementary estimate and expenditure of 
£1,250,000 to be funded as follows: 

       

 
Source:

Environment 
Agency 

Grant in Aid 
(GIA)

Community 
Infrastructure 

Levy (CIL)

General Fund 
capital 

receipts 
Total

 
  £000 £000 £000 £000  
 Original budget 300 300 120 720  
 Phase I unspent 30 30  

 
Supplementary 
estimate 500 500  

   
 Total 300 800 150 1,250  
       

2.3 £100k has been spent to date on design work, modelling, investigations, and 
ecological surveys which will be claimed back from the EA GIA funding. The 
profile of the expenditure is estimated to be:

      
 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total  
 £000 £000 £000 £000  

 46 254 950 1250  
      

Page 119



CAB3072

2.4 The scheme has a lifetime of 100 years and will require very little 
maintenance in that time other than the operational inspections that the 
Special Maintenance team already carry out.  

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 No legal implications specifically.  Procurement of the scheme will be 
undertaken by Hampshire County Council. 

3.2 Due to the impact on the Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), an 
Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) and therefore full planning 
permission is also required. 

3.3 Operations that are carried out on land partly in and partly out of a National 
Park are “county matters” (Schedule 1 , Part 1(i) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act  1990). When read together with section 4 A (2) of the 1990 Act, 
this means  that  separate planning applications must be made to Hampshire 
County Council for  the works  outside of the National Park  and to the  South 
Downs National Park Authority  for the works within the National Park (where 
the SSSI lies).Winchester City Council (WCC) will not be the relevant planning 
authority.  

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 None.

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There will be some maintenance requirements depending upon the nature of 
the proposed scheme which has yet to be fully designed. It is anticipated that 
these will be met from the Drainage & Special Maintenance team budgets.

5.2 The scheme will have a 100 year design life, is robust in design, but may 
require some replacement work to be undertaken in the future. 

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION 

6.1 Public consultation will take place as part of the EIA. January/February is now 
the programmed consultation period using HCC Engineering Consultancy, 
HCC / WCC ecologists and WCC Communications team. Once detailed flood 
modelling using the latest EA surveys is available ,  the EIA is underway,   and 
the planning applications are submitted ,this can start to be planned in detail.    

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS

7.1 Extremely high levels of soil pollution and poor ground stability have been 
found on site during the initial site investigations which has led to a 
fundamental change of sluice gate design from penstock culverts to deeply 
piled sluice gates to overcome these significant issues. This in turn will 

Page 120



CAB3072
necessitate the use of a specialised piling machine which adds considerably 
to the costs.

7.2 The provision of the second phase of the North Winchester Flood Alleviation 
scheme will help to further reduce the risk of flooding in this part of the city 
which will be of benefit to people who live in or visit the area, businesses 
based in the locality, and the wider economy of the Winchester. 

7.3 The additional sluice gates will hold more water back above the Durngate 
Sluice in extreme spate conditions; this will have a small impact on the 
Winnall Moors SSSI and target species such as otters, water voles, and 
salmon. The construction phase will also affect bats due to the removal of 
some trees. For these reasons, an EIA is required. 

7.4 Mitigation measures will be provided as part of the scheme to offset any 
environmental impacts such as new transport holts for otters to facilitate 
passage up and down stream, fish passes, or the provision of new bat boxes. 

7.5 As well as controlling the flow of water downstream, the new sluices will 
enable a more balanced control over the water channels upstream in Winnall 
Moors keeping them at optimum levels for wildlife, and, in extreme conditions, 
helping to stop channels from drying out during periods of drought.   

7.6 Stakeholders being consulted on the design include HCC (ecology), WCC 
(Landscape and Open Spaces team) ecology, Natural England, Environment 
Agency (Fisheries, Biodiversity and Asset Management teams), Hampshire 
and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust, adjacent landowners, the Trinity Centre and 
Highways England (A34/M3 junction improvements). 

7.7 Since the project has begun, the National Trust have been repairing City Mill 
from the flood damage suffered in 2014, and have been carrying out 
modelling work on the stability of the structure. This has shown that the 
building is extremely vulnerable to damage from flooding, at water heights 
which are within the anticipated flood levels in the future according to the 
latest flood modelling. In addition, the analysis has shown that the damage 
would likely manifest as a total collapse of this Grade II* listed building, 
severely restricting river conveyance and immediately threatening the City 
Centre/Water Lane areas with substantial flooding; there is also a risk to the 
downstream City Bridge, a grade 1 listed structure. Providing the second 
phase of the Durngate scheme would help protect the building and would 
thereby reduce the flood risk.   

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT 

8.1 None

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

9.1 None 

Page 121



CAB3072
10 RISK MANAGEMENT 

10.1

Risk Mitigation Opportunities
Property

Community Support
There is risk that the 
public, businesses and 
other interested parties 
may not understand the 
works being planned and 
will be affected by 
disruption caused at the 
constriction phase

Consultation will be 
undertaken in connection 
with the scheme (see 
above) and all affected 
stakeholders will be fully 
consulted. 

Public consultation will 
enable WCC to explain 
how the system works, 
and better publicise the 
work WCC put in to 
manage it. 

Timescales
Delay in securing funding 
for the scheme could 
result in further flood 
events in this part of the 
city. It will also risk the 
current ecological 
monitoring being invalid 
and may have to be 
repeated wasting funding. 

Authorise sufficient 
additional CIL funding to 
support the scheme 
progression to completion. 

Project capacity

Financial / VfM
The project may stall 
leading to the current 
ecological monitoring 
being cancelled, so any 
future project will have to 
start from scratch. 

EA GIA funding is time 
limited, so if the project 
weren’t to progress and 
spend the allocated GIA 
funding by the end of 
2018/19, then the unspent  
funding will be withdrawn. 

Costings are not detailed 
at this stage, a willingness 

The Council helps to fund 
the project shortfall. 

The Council helps to fund 
the project shortfall.

Once the project is fully 
funded detailed design 

Potential partnership 
funding routes are being 
explored which, if 
successful, will reduce the 
overall contribution the 
City Council will need to 
make.

Page 122



CAB3072
to proceed needs to be 
established to save 
allocating any more funds 
to a non fluid scheme.  

and modelling can begin 
to finalise the project’s 
costs, these will be 
established early on in the 
project so the risk of 
carrying out significant 
works on a scheme that 
doesn’t progress to 
completion are minimal, 
and well within the 
expected risk range for a 
project of this type. 

Legal
Innovation
Reputation
There may be reputational 
damage to the Council if 
the second phase of the 
flood alleviation scheme is 
not completed in a timely 
manner and flood events 
occur in future.

The Council helps to fund 
the project shortfall.

Other

11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION:

11.1 Winchester Flood Alleviation Scheme Phase 1 has been fully completed and 
signed off in 2017.

11.2 Phase II was fully funded at £720k based on initial cost estimates last year.

11.3 £100k (of EA funding) has already been committed to Phase II.

Both HCC and the EA are currently working on detailed flood models that 
show the benefits of the scheme.

11.4 The secondary advantage of the scheme is putting controls on the currently 
unrestricted channels, this means that if anything were to interfere with the 
flow of water such as a blockage the channel can be worked on safely and full 
flow restored to further reduce flood risks.  

11.5 The scheme has upstream ecological benefits as well as downstream flood 
benefits.

11.6 The Central Winchester Regeneration scheme is proposing to open up some 
of the buried river channels as features; these channels are currently 
unrestricted so if exposed could pose a serious flood risk and this scheme is 
putting controls on those channels.   

Page 123



CAB3072
11.7 If the scheme does not progress in a timely manner, a proportion of the £300k 

GIA funding will be lost, and the money spent on ecological monitoring will be 
of no benefit. 

11.8 A new CIL spending protocol was agreed by Cabinet in September.  The 
Durngate flood alleviation scheme  is considered to be a very strong 
candidate for additional funding as it aligns well with the criteria defined in the 
protocol to prioritise the use of CIL as it would help to support the strategic 
objectives of  the Local Plan,  is referred to in the up-dated Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan ,which cites the need to provide a Flood Alleviation Scheme for 
North Walls Park/ Park Avenue, and Winchester Town.  The scheme has also 
secured external funding from the EA and, as explained above,  there is 
potential for further funding from other outside sources which are being 
explored. It is also understood that post implementation of the phase 2 works 
the EA will be able to review the flood zone category, which is based on risk, 
for this part of the city and it may be possible for it to be lowered. If this did 
occur it would support the Centre of Winchester Regeneration process (LPP2 
Policy Win4) by potentially reducing building costs on site as flood mitigation 
measure could be revised which would be likely to have a positive effect on 
the viability any redevelopment schemes.

12 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

12.1 The EA have been approached with regards to additional funding via the GIA 
scheme. The original grant was based on a formula according to how many 
properties, and the type of properties, that will benefit.  However, the threat 
now posed by City Mill means that this scheme will potentially protect far more 
properties than were initially considered, so may well  qualify for additional 
funding. If successful this funding will depend on the number of successful 
submissions from the rest of the country, so it is not possible to say at the 
current time whether the scheme qualifies for additional funding and, if it does, 
for how much. What is known is, if the project is not fully funded prior to the 
application being made (latest February 2019), then it will not qualify for 
further funding.  

12.2 The EA have also been approached with regards to the Southern Regions 
Local levy fund, but officers  understand that this is likely to be  unsuccessful 
as it is a very small fund, and  has already been drawn on to fund Phase 1 of 
the works.

12.3 HCC Programme Board have been approached for partnership funding of 
£100k; they have considered this at a board meeting, but not in detail as they 
would prefer to see the result of the CIL funding request before they decide 
what action to take. 

12.4 The latest flood modelling has also shown that the previous modelling from 
2014 made incorrect assumptions on channel conveyance, so now sluice 
gates across all four channels are required (although this has been value 
engineered back to three with two channels sharing one sluice gate).  

  

Page 124



CAB3072
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:-

Previous Committee Reports:-

CAB2940 - 5 July 2017 - Community Infrastructure Levy – Allocation Of Funds To 
Durngate Flood Defence Scheme Winchester

CAB3071 19 September 2018 - Community Infrastructure Levy – Operational 
Review

Other Background Documents:-

None

 APPENDICES:

Appendix A - Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling

Modelling Report REP/002 Issue | 13 December 2017

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2017

Legend
Newly / currently constructed defences

Flood Depth (m)
<0.1
0.1 - 0.3
0.3 - 0.6
>0.6

 

© Arup

!°
A3

\\Global\Europe\Bristol\Jobs\257xxx\257576-00\4.30_Drgs\2_GIS\04_Map Documents\WAT_Water\Durngate_FloodDepthPlans_20171212.mxd

12
/12

/20
17

 17
:41

:21

Job No
257576-00
Drawing No Issue
A01 F1

Drawing Status
For Issue

Scale at A3
1:4,000

Updated Baseline Model
100yr Return Period +CC based
on 20% increase in flows

63 St Thomas Street
Bristol BS1 6JZ
+44 117 976 5432
www.arup.com 

Issue Date By Chkd Appd

F1 2017-12-12 TB DvdL RB
Job Title

Client
Hampshire County Council

Durngate Flood Defence Modelling

0 90 18045

Metres

This figure shows the increase in
flood depth in the proposed sluices
option with sluices 50% open 
compared to the baseline option.

Page 127



!(
!( !(

Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2017

Legend
Newly / currently constructed defences
Sluice option - proposed defences

!( Sluice option - proposed sluice locations
Flood Depth (m)

<0.1
0.1 - 0.3
0.3 - 0.6
>0.6  

© Arup

!°
A3

\\Global\Europe\Bristol\Jobs\257xxx\257576-00\4.30_Drgs\2_GIS\04_Map Documents\WAT_Water\Durngate_FloodDepthPlans_20171212.mxd

12
/12

/20
17

 17
:41

:31

Job No
257576-00
Drawing No Issue
A02 F1

Drawing Status
For Issue

Scale at A3
1:4,000

Sluices option - 50% open
100yr Return Period +CC based
on 20% increase in flows

63 St Thomas Street
Bristol BS1 6JZ
+44 117 976 5432
www.arup.com 

Issue Date By Chkd Appd

F1 2017-12-12 TB DvdL RB
Job Title

Client
Hampshire County Council

Durngate Flood Defence Modelling

0 90 18045

Metres

This figure shows the increase in
flood depth in the proposed sluices
option with sluices 50% open 
compared to the baseline option.

Page 128



!(
!( !(

Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2017

Legend
Increase in flood depth (m)

< -0.5
-0.5 to -0.1
-0.1 to -0.01
-0.01 to -0.004
-0.004 to -0.0001
-0.0001 to 0.0001
0.0001 to 0.004
0.004 to 0.01
0.01 to 0.015

0.015 to 0.02
0.02 to 0.04
0.04 to 0.06
0.06 to 0.08
0.08 to 0.1
0.1 to 0.2
0.2 to 0.3
0.3 to 0.5
0.5 to 1.2

Newly / currently constructed defences
Sluice option - proposed defences

!( Sluice option - proposed sluice locations

 

© Arup

!°
A3

\\Global\Europe\Bristol\Jobs\257xxx\257576-00\4.30_Drgs\2_GIS\04_Map Documents\WAT_Water\Durngate_FloodDepthPlans_20171212.mxd

12
/12

/20
17

 17
:41

:38

Job No
257576-00
Drawing No Issue
A03a F1

Drawing Status
For Issue

Scale at A3
1:4,000

Sluices option - 50% open
100yr Return Period +CC based
on 20% increase in flows.
Increase in flood depth (1 of 2)

63 St Thomas Street
Bristol BS1 6JZ
+44 117 976 5432
www.arup.com 

Issue Date By Chkd Appd

F1 2017-12-12 TB DvdL RB
Job Title

Client
Hampshire County Council

Durngate Flood Defence Modelling

0 90 18045

Metres

This figure shows the increase in
flood depth in the proposed sluices
option with sluices 50% open 
compared to the baseline option.

Page 129



Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2017

Legend
Increase in flood depth (m)

< -0.5
-0.5 to -0.1
-0.1 to -0.01
-0.01 to -0.004
-0.004 to -0.0001
-0.0001 to 0.0001
0.0001 to 0.004
0.004 to 0.01
0.01 to 0.015

0.015 to 0.02
0.02 to 0.04
0.04 to 0.06
0.06 to 0.08
0.08 to 0.1
0.1 to 0.2
0.2 to 0.3
0.3 to 0.5
0.5 to 1.2

 

© Arup

!°
A3

\\Global\Europe\Bristol\Jobs\257xxx\257576-00\4.30_Drgs\2_GIS\04_Map Documents\WAT_Water\Durngate_FloodDepthPlans_20171212.mxd

12
/12

/20
17

 17
:41

:45

Job No
257576-00
Drawing No Issue
A03b F1

Drawing Status
For Issue

Scale at A3
1:4,000

Sluices option - 50% open
100yr Return Period +CC based
on 20% increase in flows.
Increase in flood depth (2 of 2)

63 St Thomas Street
Bristol BS1 6JZ
+44 117 976 5432
www.arup.com 

Issue Date By Chkd Appd

F1 2017-12-12 TB DvdL RB
Job Title

Client
Hampshire County Council

Durngate Flood Defence Modelling

0 90 18045

Metres

This figure shows the increase in
flood depth in the proposed sluices
option with sluices 50% open 
compared to the baseline option.

Page 130



 

 

Hampshire County Council 

Durngate Flood Defence Modelling

Modelling Report

REP/002 

Issue  |  13 December 2017 

 

This report takes into account the particular  
instructions and requirements of our client.   

It is not intended for and should not be relied  
upon by any third party and no responsibility  
is undertaken to any third party. 
 
Job number    257576-00 

 

 

Ove Arup & Partners Ltd 
63 St Thomas Street 
Bristol BS1 6JZ 
United Kingdom 
www.arup.com Page 131



 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 
 

Document Verification 

Job title Durngate Flood Defence Modelling Job number 

257576-00 

Document title Modelling Report File reference 

 

Document ref REP/002 

Revision Date Filename DurngateFloodDefences_ModellingReport_ISSUE_Draft_Rev1
.docx 

Draft 1 31 
August 
2017 

Description Draft issue 

 Prepared by Checked by Approved by 

Name Tess Brooks 
Dan van der 
Leer 

Richard Brown 

Signature   
 

Issue 13 Sep 
2017 

Filename  
Description Final Issue – Revision updated to final; no other changes 

required based on this stage of modelling work. 

 Prepared by  Checked by Approved by 

Name Tess Brooks 
Dan van der 
Leer 

Richard Brown 

Signature   
 

Issue 6 Dec 
2017 

Filename 
DurngateFloodDefences_ModellingReport_ISSUE_Final_Rev1.
docx 

Description Incorporated updated modelling 

 Prepared by Checked by Approved by 

Name Tess Brooks 
Dan van der 
Leer 

Richard Brown 

Signature   
 

Issue 13 Dec 
2017 

Filename 
DurngateFloodDefences_ModellingReport_ISSUE_Final_Rev3.
docx 

Description Minor updates to address client comments. 

 Prepared by Checked by Approved by 

Name Tess Brooks 
Dan van der 
Leer 

Richard Brown 

Signature   
 

 Issue Document Verification with Document  
 

Page 132



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 
 

Contents 
 
 Page 

1 Introduction 1 

2 Baseline model updates 2 

2.1 Incorporating topographic survey 2 

2.2 Model stability enhancements 7 

2.3 Simulations 8 

3 Proposed sluice gates 9 

3.1 Introduction 9 

3.2 Sluice gate dimensions 10 

3.3 Model representation of sluice gates 11 

4 Flood mapping deliverables 12 

4.1 Flood depths 12 

4.2 Impact on flood depths upstream of Durngate 12 

4.3 Animations 12 

5 Review of results 13 

5.1 Updated baseline model 13 

5.2 Sluice model results 20 

6 Conclusions and recommendations 23 

 
 
Appendices 

Appendix A 

Flood depth plans 

 
 
 

Page 133



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 1
 

1 Introduction 

Arup were commissioned by Hampshire County Council (HCC) to undertake 
hydraulic modelling to assess the flood risk and potential flood mitigation 
associated with the proposed Durngate Flood Defence Scheme in Winchester, 
Hampshire.  

This report summarises the fluvial flood modelling undertaken, including data 
sources utilised, updates to the baseline model through the incorporation of new 
survey data, modifications to the model to represent the proposed sluices, the 
scenarios modelled, and a discussion of the model results. The scope of the 
modelling work described herein does not extend to recommending exact sluice 
gate openings or control philosophy for flood flow conditions. 

The sluice gate modelling was based on the updated baseline model with 
dimensions and levels taken from design drawings. The following scenarios have 
been modelled using the most up to date version of the model: 

 Baseline (the ‘existing situation’). 

 Proposed Durngate Sluices set to 50% open. 

A superseded iteration of the modelling included the testing of a ‘sluices 0% 
open’ scenario. Results from this test are shown and discussed within this report 
as they are still relevant but flood maps for this are not presented as final 
deliverables. 

The baseline and sluice scenario were run for the 100yr return period plus 20% 
increase in flows to allow for climate change. Flood depth plans and animations 
are provided for both scenarios. 

The model results described herein show the newly / currently constructed flood 
defences upstream of North Walls are effective in preventing overtopping of these 
defences but there remains flooding onto Water Lane due to outflanking of the 
new flood wall and flooding down Eastgate Street due to overtopping at Durngate 
Place. The results from the sluice modelling show the proposed sluices could 
further reduce flood risk downstream if operated appropriately. However, fully 
closing the sluices would cause overtopping of the upstream flood defences, 
which would result in significant flooding. A careful balance would therefore 
need to be struck between reducing pass-forward flows and preventing the 
upstream defences from overtopping. Results suggest a primary flooding 
mechanism remains from overland flow southwards down Eastgate Street; it may 
be possible to prevent this flooding mechanism with a flood defence wall along a 
short stretch of Durngate Place here. Additional recommendations are provided at 
the end of this report. 

 

  

Page 134



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 2
 

2 Baseline model updates 

A previous HCC study looked at the North Walls Flood Defence Scheme to the 
north of Winchester in 2015. It was agreed with HCC that the baseline model 
from this previous study1  should be used in the current study to assess the flood 
risk impacts of installing three sets of sluice gates at the locations identified in 
Section 3.  

2.1 Incorporating topographic survey 

The baseline model was updated to incorporate new topographic survey data for 
Durngate2 and information on any proposed and as-built flood defences from 
design crest level data and topographic survey drawing3. Elevation data was 
extracted from the survey drawings and used to create the following model layers 
within the TUFLOW component of the model: 

 A Triangular Irregular Network (TIN) layer representing surveyed ground 
levels around Durngate (Figure 1). The TIN includes ‘surface’ and ‘kerb’ 
breaklines, where appropriate, to ensure these features are represented 
appropriately in the triangulation. The TUFLOW model uses linear 
interpolation to determine elevations between elevation points. 

 Several Zlines layers representing breakline features. These include: 

o Kerbs (Figure 1, part of TIN layer). 

o Building threshold levels (Figure 2). 

o Walls (Figure 3). 

o Water Lane bank top levels upstream of new flood defence wall 
(Figure 4) 

o Newly / currently constructed flood defences upstream of Durngate 
Place (Figure 5). These flood defences are set to a minimum level 
of 37.5m AOD; higher levels are used where these are identified in 
the survey drawing. 

o Ground / building threshold levels at River Park Leisure Centre 
and Skate Park adjoining the newly / currently constructed flood 
defences upstream of North Walls (Figure 6). 

o Newly constructed flood defence wall at Water Lane with levels 
that vary from 36.9m AOD in the north to 36.8m AOD in the south 
(Figure 7).  

                                                 
1 ISIS model file: 1d_iSIS_WBWINW_300.DAT and TUFLOW control file: 
WBWINW_300_hazard_012Arup_100yrCC.tcf. 
2 5S5A-Durngate, Winchester-Revision June 2017. 
3 WINCHESTER FLOOD DEFENCE – SURVEY (revision and date unknown, contains data 
regarding new and constructed flood defences between 2015-2017, provided by HCC on 
25/07/2017). 

Page 135



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 3
 

 

  

Figure 1: Resultant triangulation representing ground levels including kerb levels and 
riverside slopes.  

   

Figure 2: Building threshold levels from survey drawing 5S5A-Durngate, Winchester-
Revision June 2017. 

 

Page 136



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 4
 

   

Figure 3: Updated wall levels from survey drawing 5S5A-Durngate, Winchester-Revision 
June 2017. 

 

 

Figure 4: Water Lane bank levels from survey drawing 5S5A-Durngate, Winchester-
Revision June 2017. 

 

Page 137



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 5
 

 

Figure 5: Newly / currently constructed flood defences upstream of Durngate Place from 
WINCHESTER FLOOD DEFENCE - SURVEY.DWG provided by HCC on 25/07/2017. 

 

 

Figure 6: Updated ground and building threshold levels at River Park Leisure Centre and 
Skate Park from WINCHESTER FLOOD DEFENCE - SURVEY.DWG provided by 
HCC on 25/07/2017. 

 

 

 

Page 138



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 6
 

 

Figure 7: Water Lane flood defence wall and demountable flood gates from drawing 
RPF/160/001 Rev F Sept ’14. 

It was also confirmed by HCC that a sluice gate has recently been installed across 
the Upper Brook near Park Avenue to prevent flow down Upper Brook during 
flood conditions. The updated baseline model was therefore amended by 
removing the Upper Brook cross sections and downstream culvert (Figure 8).  
  

 

Figure 8: Location of Upper Brook model amendments (highlighted in yellow). 

 

Page 139



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 7
 

It is assumed that the sluice is lowered to prevent flows through the channel for 
the duration of a flood event and that the water levels in the River Itchen would 
need to exceed 37.5mAOD prior to any flooding occurring due to the river 
overtopping at this location.  

2.2 Model stability enhancements 

In testing the updated baseline model, oscillations in peak flow indicating 
instability were observed at several cross sections upstream of the Durngate area 
in the vicinity of Nun’s Walk. These oscillations occurred in the original baseline 
model. A form loss coefficient was specified in the 1d-2d link layer of the updated 
baseline model at this location (Figure 9) to reduce the oscillations; this had no 
significant impact on water levels in the study area.  

 

Figure 9: Location of upstream model amendments (red line indicates part of boundary 
condition model layer to which alterations were made). 

Oscillations in water levels due to model instability were also observed along the 
open channels for a length of approximately 100m in the vicinity of the proposed 
sluice gates upstream of Durngate Place and adjacent to the Colledge. Instability 
occurred at this area in the previous version of the model. Incorporating the 
updated topographic survey data and the new flood defence wall initially resulted 
in greater oscillations along some of the channels here. Following a period of 
testing, the instability was eventually fully resolved by realignment of the 1d-2d 
connections in this area to reduce recirculation between 1d and 2d components of 
the model. The changes to the alignment are shown in Figure 11 and comprise: 

 Most westerly channel: Moving of the 1d-2d connections further landward 
on both sides of the channel. The associated cross-sections in the 1d ISIS 
model were extended accordingly using the topographic survey data. 

Page 140



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 8
 

 Third channel from the west: Moving of the 1d-2d connection further 
landward on the right hand side (western side) of the channel. 

 Small area between 3rd channel and 4th channel from the west: This small 
area was originally represented in the TUFLOW model and was connected 
to the adjacent reaches. There was significant recirculation between the 1d 
and 2d models here. To resolve this, this small area between the channels 
has been incorporated into the 1d ISIS model by extending the associated 
cross-sections using the topographic survey data. 

 

 

Figure 10: Original (left) and updated (right) 1d-2d connections (red) showing area 
excluded from 2d TUFLOW model as modelled in 1d (hatched). Note all channels shown 
are modelled in 1d model. 

2.3 Simulations 

The updated baseline model was run for the 100yr return period plus 20% 
increase in flows to allow for climate change. Model results are discussed in 
Sections 4 and 5.   

Page 141



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 9
 

3 Proposed sluice gates 

3.1 Introduction 

HCC propose to construct sluice gates on three of the four channels where the 
River Itchen diverges upstream of Durngate Place to reduce the flood risk to the 
Durngate area of Winchester (Figure 11).  

  

Figure 11: Location of Sluice gates upstream of Durngate Place as referenced in EC-
RJXXXXXX-1400 PROPOSED FLOOD DEFENCE-1401 REV P1 03/02/2017 and EC-
RJXXXXXX-1400 PROPOSED FLOOD DEFENCE-1402 REV P1 03/02/2017 (red line 
highlights location of proposed new defence bunds / walls). 

The updated baseline model, as discussed in Section 2, was used as a basis to 
create a ‘Sluices’ model. This was modelled for a ‘sluices 50% open’ scenario; 
this partially closed state being considered representative of the approximate gate 
opening that might be appropriate during flood events. Note that the scope of the 
modelling work described herein does not extend to recommending exact sluice 
gate openings or control philosophy for flood flow conditions. 

The sluice model was run for the 100yr return period plus 20% increase in flows 
to allow for climate change.  

 

Page 142



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 10
 

3.2 Sluice gate dimensions 

The sluice gate geometry, including culvert and penstock dimensions, was 
obtained from the following drawings:   

 EC-RJXXXXXX-1400 PROPOSED FLOOD DEFENCE-1401 REV P1 
03/02/2017 

 EC-RJXXXXXX-1400 PROPOSED FLOOD DEFENCE-1402 REV P1 
03/02/2017 

 EC-RJXXXXXX-1450 PROPOSED FLOOD DEFENCE DETAILS-1452 
REV P2 27/01/2017 

 

Table 1 details the dimensions incorporated into the sluice model. Each sluice 
gate has three penstocks. Dimensions in Table 1 are ‘per opening’ and were 
assumed to be identical for each penstock per gate. River bed levels were derived 
from the topographic survey drawing4 at the point the line of proposed new 
defence crosses each watercourse. The gate height (required model parameter) 
was derived from the invert level of each opening, not including silt, and the top 
level of the penstocks when closed which was agreed by HCC to be the level of 
the proposed new flood defence bunds between each gate (37.60mAOD). 
Therefore, when the penstock gates are closed, the watercourses will effectively 
be blocked off with no overtopping until the water level exceeds 37.6m AOD. 

Dimension / Level 

Flood Gate A 
3 penstocks and 1500mm 

diameter pipes 

Flood Gate B 
3 penstocks and 1500mm 

diameter pipes 

Flood Gate C 
3 penstocks and sheet piled 

supporting walls 
Culvert height (m) 1.5 1.5 0.9 
Culvert width (m) 1.5 1.5 1.5 
Culvert allowed to silt up to 
depth (m) 0.25 0.25 0.25 

Culvert invert level notes 
200mm below lowest point 

of existing watercourse 
200mm below lowest point 

of existing watercourse 
35.33m AOD (bed level) 

Lowest bed level of existing 
watercourse (mAOD) 35.02 35.55 

35.33 

Invert level of opening (not 
including silt) (mAOD) 34.82 35.35 

35.33 

Invert level of opening 
including silt (mAOD) 35.07 35.6 35.58 
Soffit level of opening 
(mAOD) 36.32 36.85 36.23 
Culvert length (m) 2 3 N/A (Sluice only) 
Gate height (m) 2.78 2.25 2.27 

Table 1: Durngate Sluice Dimensions for Model Input 

 

                                                 
4 5S5A-Durngate, Winchester-Revision June 2017 

Page 143



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 11
 

3.3 Model representation of sluice gates 

A ‘Sluices’ model was created based on the updated baseline model and the 
information provided in the drawings as discussed in Section 3.2. The proposed 
sluice gates were represented in the 1d ISIS component of the model using three 
sluice units at each of the three locations shown in Figure 11. For flood gates A 
and B, culvert units and associated culvert inlet and outlet units were also added 
to represent the culverts under the penstocks as shown in the design drawing (see 
example below). Dimensions input to the model are as described in Section 3.2. 
 

 

Figure 12: Example of Flood Gate schematic extracted from drawing EC-RJXXXXXX-
1450 PROPOSED FLOOD DEFENCE DETAILS-1452 REV P2 03/02/2017. 

The sluice model was then set up and run with each of the above sluice gates set 
to 50% open; this partially closed state being considered representative of the 
approximate gate opening that might be appropriate during flood events. 
Instability around flood gate B required that two of the three penstocks at that gate 
were set to be initially closed, opening to 50% over the first hour of the 
simulation. This is well before the flood peak and will not affect maximum water 
level results. The sluice model was run for the 100yr return period plus 20% 
increase in flows to allow for climate change. Model results are discussed in 
Sections 4 and 5.  

A superseded iteration of the modelling included the testing of a ‘sluices 0% 
open’ scenario. The 0% open model was found to be too unstable to complete, 
therefore a further model was created in which the portion of the channel 
downstream of the sluices and the Brook Street and Union Street culverts beyond 
were removed in order to represent the effects of the sluices being fully closed.  
  

Page 144



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 12
 

4 Flood mapping deliverables 

The flood mapping deliverables produced from the model results are listed below. 
A summary of the model results, with reference to the flood mapping deliverables, 
is given in Section 5. 

4.1 Flood depths 

Maximum flood depths were extracted from the model results and are presented 
as flood depth plans in Appendix A: 

 A01 Updated Baseline Model for a 100yr Return Period + CC based on 
20% increase in flows. 

 A02 Proposed Durngate Sluices set to 50% open for a 100yr Return Period 
+ CC based on 20% increase in flows. 

4.2 Impact on flood depths upstream of Durngate 

The increase in maximum flood depths due to the sluices scenario for the 
floodplain area between Durngate Place and the A34 is presented in drawings 
A03a (the south part) and A03b (the north part) in Appendix A. 

4.3 Animations 

Animations showing the flood progression during the modelled flood event were 
produced from the raw model results. These show flood depths and flow 
directions allowing flooding mechanisms to be observed. Animations are provided 
for: 

 Updated Baseline Model for a 100yr Return Period + CC based on 20% 
increase in flows. 

 Proposed Durngate Sluices set to 50% open for a 100yr Return Period + 
CC based on 20% increase in flows. 

 

  

Page 145



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 13
 

5 Review of results 

5.1 Updated baseline model 

As discussed in Section 2, the model from the 2015 HCC North Walls Flood 
Defence study was updated to include new topographic survey and levels of flood 
defences newly built or currently under construction. The updated baseline and 
previous model results are compared in Section 5.1.1 while the flooding 
mechanism at Water Lane is assessed in Section 5.1.2.  

5.1.1 Previous vs updated model  

Figure 13 compares flood extents from the previous and updated baseline model 
for the 100yr Return Period event + CC (20% increase in flows). 

It can be observed from Figure 13 that the baseline model updates, which include 
amendments to the flood defences upstream of Durngate Place, has decreased the 
flood extent at: 

 The River Park Leisure Centre 

 Park Avenue and the adjacent University Campus, Winchester Gallery and 
St Bede Primary School. 

 Upper Brook Street and Middle Brook Street 

 Part of the shopping precinct between Friarsgate and Silver Hill 

 The vicinity of the southern end of Colebrook Street.  

However, flood extents have increased in some areas, most notably: 

 Adjacent to College Street and College Walk. 

 Adjacent to Kingsgate Road downstream of College Walk. 

A primary flooding mechanism to the city centre in both the previous and updated 
baseline models is from overland flow southwards down Lower Brook Street that 
originates from overtopping of the channels immediately upstream and 
downstream of Durngate Place. 

Page 146



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 14
 

  

  

  

Figure 13: Previous vs. updated baseline 100yr Return Period + CC flood extents.  

 

Page 147



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 15
 

5.1.2 Water Lane flood mechanisms 

The baseline model for Durngate has been updated in the vicinity of the southern 
end of Water Lane with ground levels from the June 2017 survey drawing2 
(Figure 3). Levels for the newly constructed Water Lane dwarf flood defence wall 
and demountable flood gates were extracted from drawing RPF_160_001 Rev F 
Sept ’14 (Figure 14). 

 

Figure 14: Water Lane Flood Defences levels from drawing RPF_160_001 Rev F Sept 
'14. 

Along the northern end of Water Lane, the highest bank levels between the river 
bank and the lane were extracted from the survey drawing3 and added to the 
model using Zlines (Figure 15).  

Page 148



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 16
 

 

Figure 15: Bank top levels along Water Lane north of the new flood defence wall from 
drawing WINCHESTER FLOOD DEFENCE - SURVEY.DWG provided by HCC on 
25/07/2017. 

The bank levels and wall levels in the model have been compared against the 
maximum water levels in the adjacent channel to determine where overtopping 
occurs. Maximum water levels for the channel are presented in Table 2 for the 1d 
model node points shown in green in Figure 16. Plot Output lines have been 
digitised in the model to enable overtopping flows to be extracted; these are 
labelled as WaterLn[X] in Figure 16.  

Page 149



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 17
 

 
Figure 16: Location of 1d ISIS model nodes and PO lines along Water Lane. 

 

During the updated baseline 1 in 100yr + CC event, overtopping occurs along 
Water Lane immediately downstream of the junction of Water Lane and Durngate 
Bridge, upstream of the newly constructed flood defence wall (Figure 17). This 
commences 4.75hrs from the start of the modelled flood event. The maximum 
water level at the nearest 1d model node that occurs during the flood event is 
37.001m AOD.  

Page 150



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 18
 

 

Figure 17: Location of initial overtoping (indicated by blue arrows) along Water Lane 
north of flood defence wall.   

Overtopping also occurs to the south of the Water Lane flood defence wall at 
4.5hrs (Figure 18) and in the area between the flood wall and the River Itchen at 
4.0hrs from the start of the modelled flood event. The wall does not overtop 
during the 100yr Return Period + CC (20% increase in flows) event.  

Maximum water levels and flows in the channel adjacent to Water Lane are 
shown in Table 2.  

Page 151



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 19
 

 

Figure 18: Location of initial overtopping (indicated by blue arrow) south of the Water 
Lane flood defence wall. 

 

Table 2: Maximum water levels and flows in channel adjacent to Water Lane for 100yr + 
CC event. 

 

PO Line 
label 

 

1d ISIS 
node 

Max flow in 
channel (m3/s) 

Max 
overtopping 
flow (m3/s) 

Max water level 
in channel (m) 

Time of max 
water level (hr) 

WaterLn1 54.043J 4.54 1.6273 37.001 14.955 

WaterLn7 54.046i1 14.407 0.6639 36.891 15.019 

WaterLn8 54.047 14.105 0.3789 36.868 14.789 

WaterLn9 54.047i1 14.055 0.7651 36.853 14.959 

WaterLn10 54.048 13.455 0.8775 36.847 15.057 

WaterLn11 54.048i1 13.167 0.4099 36.835 15.015 

WaterLn12 54.049 13.869 0.0000 36.811 14.788 

WaterLn13 54.049J 14.421 1.1402 36.793 14.969 

WaterLn14 54A.0511 

54B.050U2 

10.469 

4.398 0.0000 

36.773 

36.841 

14.954 

15.056 

Notes: 1) 54A.051 is on western channel and 2) is on eastern channel. 

Southern end of Water Lane 
flood defence wall 

Page 152



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 20
 

5.2 Sluice model results 

As discussed in Section 3.3, a ‘Sluices’ model was created to represent the 
proposal to install sets of three penstocks on three of the four channels of the 
River Itchen upstream of Durngate Place. This was run with the sluice gates set to 
50% open.  

The following sections summarise the effect on flood risk due to the sluice gates 
for the 100yr return period plus 20% increase in flows to allow for climate 
change. The flood depth plans enable a comparison of baseline with sluice option.  

5.2.1 Impact of sluices 50% open 

The model results show that the proposed sluices in the half open (50%) scenario 
would result in: 

 Reduction in flood extent and flood depths downstream of the sluices 
compared to the baseline model. Note overtopping still occurs at Durngate 
resulting in flows down Lower Brook Street but the flood flows and 
volumes here are reduced compared to the baseline. 

 Increases in water level in the river and floodplain upstream of Durngate at 
Winnall Moor of up to approximately 0.06m compared to the baseline. 
This increase in water level is due to the sluices acting as a restriction to 
flows, which increases upstream flood storage. The increase in water level 
reduces in an upstream direction and at the A34 main road there is zero 
increase in water level (see drawings A03a and A03b in Appendix A). 

The increase in peak upstream flood volume has been assessed using the 
maximum flood depth results from the 2d component of the model representing 
the floodplain. Results are presented in Table 3 for each area shown in Figure 19. 
The total increase in peak floodplain volume upstream of Durngate is 
approximately 14,000m3. 

Table 3: Peak flood volume on floodplain between Durngate Place the A34 for the 
100yr+20% event. 

 Peak Volume (m3) *  

Area Baseline Sluices 50% open Increase in peak 
volume (m3) 

A  11,765   12,291   526  

B  89,395   94,575   5,181  

C  47,016   48,803   1,787  

D  49,006   51,416   2,410  

E  31,425   34,813   3,387  

F  5,558   6,588   1,030  

TOTAL  234,164   248,486   14,321  

 
 

Page 153



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 21
 

 

Figure 19: Floodplain areas assessed for increase in peak flood volume. 

5.2.2 Impact of sluices 0% open 

A superseded iteration of the modelling included the testing of a ‘sluices 0% 
open’ scenario. Results from this test are shown in Figure 20. The model results 
show that the proposed sluices in the fully closed (0% open) scenario would result 
in: 

 Increase in upstream water level in the river of approximately 0.28m 
adjacent to the Leisure Centre. This significant increase in upstream water 
level is caused by the increased restriction on pass-forward imposed flows 
by the sluices. 

 The increase in upstream water level results in overtopping of the newly 
constructed flood defences causing significant flooding at the Leisure 
Centre and to the south of the newly constructed flood defence wall. Flood 

Page 154



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 22
 

extents and flood depths are significantly greater than for the baseline 
model.  

 

 

Figure 20: Flood depth results for Sluices 0% open scenario. 

 

 
  

Page 155



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 23
 

6 Conclusions and recommendations 

Hydraulic modelling has been undertaken to assess the flood risk and potential 
flood mitigation associated with the proposed Durngate Flood Defence Scheme in 
Winchester. This work has involved updated the baseline model, developing a 
new ‘sluice’ model and assessing the impact of the sluices for pre-defined sluice 
gate openings, these being 50% open and 0% open (fully closed). The scope of the 
modelling work described herein does not extend to recommending exact sluice 
gate openings or control philosophy for flood flow conditions. The models have 
been run for the 100yr return period plus 20% increase in flows to allow for 
climate change.  

The baseline hydraulic model from the previous study was updated to incorporate 
the newly / currently constructed flood defences upstream of North Walls and 
adjacent to Water Lane and the topographic survey around Durngate collected in 
June 2017. The results from the updated baseline model show that the newly / 
currently constructed walls would be effective at preventing overtopping for the 
100yr plus climate change event tested based on the provided defence levels. The 
results show there would still be overland flow originating from overtopping of 
the channels immediately upstream of Durngate Place. The model results also 
show overtopping would occur upstream and downstream of the new flood wall 
on Water Lane. 

The model results have identified that the proposed sluices and associated bund 
could reduce flood risk downstream if operated appropriately, though there 
remains an overland flow path south along Lower Brook Street. The results show 
that fully closing the sluices would cause overtopping of the newly / currently 
constructed flood defences upstream, which would result in significant flooding. 
The results suggest a careful balance would need to be struck between reducing 
pass-forward flows and preventing the upstream defences from overtopping.  

Results suggest a primary flooding mechanism is from overland flow southwards 
down Lower Brook Street that originates from overtopping of the channels around 
Durngate Place. It may be possible to prevent this flooding mechanism with a 
flood defence wall along a short stretch of Durngate Place here. 

It is recommended that: 

1. The outflanking of the new Water Lane defence is considered and 
addressed. 

2. Should the sluice option be taken further, it is recommended that further 
modelling is undertaken to determine appropriate sluice gate openings or 
control philosophy for flood conditions. This should consider a range of 
different sluice gate openings and/or control rules and could also consider 
whether the existing sluice structures at Durngate can be used to alleviate 
downstream flood risk. Trigger levels for the operation of the sluices could 
also be derived using modelling. 

3. Should the sluice option be taken further, consideration should be given to 
the inclusion of a flow control structure, such as a sluice gate, on the 4th 

Page 156



Hampshire County Council Durngate Flood Defence Modelling
Modelling Report

 

REP/002 | Issue | 13 December 2017  

J:\257XXX\257576-00\4.50_REPORTS\FINAL\REV3\DURNGATEFLOODDEFENCES_MODELLINGREPORT_ISSUE_FINAL_REV3.DOCX 

Page 24
 

channel from the west on the upstream side of Durngate Place. This 
channel does not currently have a flow control structure and the impact of 
sluice gates on other channels may cause the flows in this channel and 
associated flood risk to increase. A flow control structure here could help 
balance flows across all the channels at Durngate to maximise and 
optimise the control of pass forward flows. 

4. The flooding mechanism southwards down Lower Brook Street is 
considered and addressed, e.g. through a new flood defence wall along 
Durngate Place. 

5. Improved conveyance through Winchester is considered for reducing flood 
risk in Winchester. This should also include consideration of impacts on 
downstream flood risk of conveyance works. 

6. Any new flood defence designs should be incorporated where appropriate 
into the hydraulic model. 

7. Any new designs should consider the current climate change guidance and 
should incorporate a freeboard to account for uncertainty in the modelling 
and in physical processes. 

8. The proposed sluices should be considered in the wider context of flood 
risk management in Winchester including the impact on the surface water 
drainage system due to river locking of outfalls. 

 

Page 157



 

 

Appendix A

Flood depth plans 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 158



CAB3105
CABINET

REPORT TITLE: APPROVAL OF BRIEF FOR STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT 
ADVISOR

12 DECEMBER 2018

REPORT OF LEADER AND PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Cllr Caroline Horrill 

Contact Officer:  Veryan Lyons    Tel No: 01962 8484596 Email 
vlyons@winchester.gov.uk 

WARD(S):  TOWN WARDS

PURPOSE

A strategic development advisor (SDA) is required to assist the council in the 
delivery of major development projects, especially Central Winchester regeneration. 
This advisor will be a multi-disciplinary consultancy, and they will be contracted to 
the council on a call-off contract arrangement. The purpose of this report is to seek 
approval of the Strategic Development Advisor brief, recommend a budget for the 
advisor to council, and to authorise further work towards the procurement of the 
advisor. 

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That Cabinet;

1. Approves the brief for the strategic development advisor as attached at 
appendix A.

2. Recommends that budget of £600,000 be requested from Council to fund the 
role of the strategic advisor over a five year period.

3. Approves the procurement evaluation model to be based on 60% quality, 40% 
price.

4. Authorises the Strategic Director: Place to finalise the brief, including minor 
amendments, and proceed with the strategic advisor procurement as outlined 
in this report, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder.

Page 159

Agenda Item 12



CAB3105

IMPLICATIONS:

1 COUNCIL STRATEGY OUTCOME 

1.1 Appointment of a SDA will contribute to the Council Strategy objectives by 
enhancing the environment of the area, improving the local economy, 
developing the sense of place and providing important community benefits.

1.2 The procurement of a long term strategic advisor will assist council officers 
and members in identifying and evaluating development options, decision 
making, and implementation of major council projects.

1.3 Developing a long term commercial relationship will give better procurement 
value for these services, and also enable the advisor to develop a deeper 
understanding of Winchester and District, our strategic aims and aspirations 
as a place. This will mean that their advice will be more precisely targeted and 
appropriate to the Winchester circumstances and environment. 

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 Research shows that costs associated with the services outlined in the brief 
are likely to be in the region of £8,000 to £10,000 per month. However the 
spend profile is unlikely to be smooth, but more likely to be irregular 
depending on timing and needs of specific projects.

2.2 The initial period, up to a break option, is likely to be 18 months to 2 years 
with an anticipated associated spend of up to £240,000.

2.3 The anticipated length of the relationship with the strategic advisor will initially 
be 5 years. The overall estimated funding required for this is £600,000 
Depending on the progress of the work and projects, this contract period may 
be extended.

2.4 The approach to this contract will be to enable specific parcels of work to be 
specified and called off from the contract. The council will have control 
throughout in terms of expenditure and quality of work delivered. This will be 
regularly monitored to ensure close control of spend and quality of work.

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 Procurement would be carried out in accordance with the Council’s Contract 
Procedure Rules 9.2.

3.2 Due to the nature of the contract and the anticipated potential spend, this 
process will require a full open EU tender process and officers are currently 
working on a detailed timeline for this. It is anticipated the process could take 
approximately 5 months. 

Page 160



CAB3105

3.3 Procurement advice and assistance will be sought from Hampshire County 
Council and the new WCC interim Head of Procurement. Due to the 
importance of the quality of the strategic advisor it is recommended that 
cabinet approve the procurement assessment model based on a 60% quality, 
40% price.

3.4 Key elements of the procurement process will include:

a) development and cabinet approval of the brief and 60% quality, 40% 
price evaluation model (this report)

b) Approval of budget by council February 2019

c) production of full procurement documentation, including scoring and 
process late 2018/early 2019

d) advertising the opportunity early 2019

e) selection and appointment process in early spring 2019. 

f) The selection process will involve formal evaluation by officers of the 
tenders received and face to face interviews with the top bidders. 
Members will be invited to be part of the interview process where an 
emphasis will be on relevant experience. 

g) The bidding consultancies will be expected to;

(i)  showcase work they have carried out previously in similar 
locations and on similar projects

(ii) demonstrate added value that they brought to the project

(iii) identify the approach they will take to embed themselves in to 
WCC, the city and the wider district.

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 The strategic advisor will advise and support council officers across 
programmes of work.

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The strategic advisor will compliment the skills and experience of the council’s 
in-house team, and add capacity, knowledge and skills at appropriate points 
during key projects.

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION 

6.1 The Cabinet (Central Winchester Regeneration (CWR)) Committee has 
discussed and approved progressing with appointment of a strategic advisor 

Page 161



CAB3105

and the brief has been shared with the committee members for information 
and comment.

6.2 Informal contact with experts in the field indicates that the SDA approach and 
type of specification is appropriate for the needs of the council.

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS

7.1 None

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT 

8.1 None

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

9.1 None

10 RISK MANAGEMENT 

10.1 The relevant elements of the project risk register are attached at appendix B

11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION:

11.1 Background

11.2 The CWR Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) was adopted on 20 June 
2018 and successfully completed the statutory three month challenge period.

11.3 At the meeting of Cabinet (CWR) Committee on the 25 September, Members 
approved the outline delivery strategy, and as part of that the procurement of 
a strategic advisor to assist the development of the delivery strategy. 

11.4 The Council has an ambitious programme of major projects in place, including 
Central Winchester Regeneration, which is delivering on council plan key 
priorities throughout the Winchester District. The brief for the advisor has 
been drafted to focus initially on the CWR project but provides for advice and 
support to be given to all current and potential projects and development 
opportunities that the Council is undertaking currently, or may undertake in 
the future. 

11.5 The overarching vision of Winchester City Council is to combine a blend of 
innovation, aspiration and pragmatism and to look beyond the traditional ways 
of doing things and aims to adopt an entrepreneurial approach to deliver the 
outcomes outlined in the Council Strategy 2018 – 2020.

Page 162



CAB3105

11.6 A strategic advisor will call on external experience and knowledge to advise 
the Council across the programme of projects to ensure that this approach is 
adopted.

11.7 Due to the scope of the draft brief being wider that just the CWR project 
Cabinet approval to proceed is sought.

11.8 Role of the strategic advisor

11.9 Whilst there is considerable skill and experience within the council, the  
ambition shown in the council plan will require new, innovative ideas and 
methods to bring the projects forward. It is in this area particularly that we 
expect the SDA to add value to the projects in assisting the council in 
marrying local knowledge of Winchester and the district with the emerging and 
successful ideas and models in the marketplace in the UK. The changing 
retail environment and the future role of the High Street, as well as innovative 
models of funding regeneration are fast moving areas of knowledge, and an 
excellent SDA will be able to bring cutting edge UK-wide experience to 
Winchester.

11.10 There are multi disciplinary consultancies in the market that offer expertise 
across all aspects of regeneration and development and the council will be 
looking to procure services of one such consultancy.

11.11 Services the council will be looking to seek external expert advice on include, 
but will not be exclusive to, master planning, viability modelling, site assembly, 
business planning and partnership structuring. The full brief is attached at 
appendix A

11.12 Consultancies bidding for the contract will be expected to demonstrate that 
they have carried out work in similar locations and on similar projects and give 
details on how they plan to approach the role in Winchester.

11.13 Due to the number and the complex nature of the council’s projects, a long 
term relationship is required with the appointed strategic advisor.

11.14 It is anticipated that the relationship with the SDA will be for five years with an 
option for either party to terminate the contract after 18 months to 2 years.

11.15 The SDA will be expected to familiarise themselves with Winchester and the 
council, review the current work programme and make recommendations as 
to how to proceed. The SDA will concentrate initially on CWR but may also be 
requested to look at other ongoing or emerging projects. This will be done in 
the first year to 18 months and a break option allows for flexibility on both 
sides at this stage. 

11.16 It may be advantageous to retain the relationship beyond the initial five year 
period so there will be provision in the contract to extend the arrangement for 
a further five years.

Page 163



CAB3105

11.17 The services of the SDA will be “called off” as required and in order to do so, 
a case will be put by the requesting project team justifying the need for the 
external services. The Strategic Director: Place will be the senior client officer 
to ensure the services of the SDA are used appropriately. 

11.18 Estimates as to the level of funding required are, on average, in the region of 
£8,000 to £10,000 per month. This is dependant on the nature and the level of 
work the strategic advisor is asked to carry out.

11.19 The current CWR revenue budget is not sufficient to fund this role and the role 
extends to other council projects. Budget of £600,000 is therefore required to 
support this appointment.

11.20 Cabinet is therefore asked to recommend the budget request to Council for 
approval. 

12 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

12.1 Developing a cohesive, comprehensive development plan across the district 
without the advice and support from external specialist help has been 
considered and discounted due to the complexities associated with 
Winchester and also the current uncertainty around Brexit and market 
conditions. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:-

Previous Committee Reports:-

CAB3077 (CWR) – 25 September 2018 Central Winchester Regeneration Update
and Establishment of Advisory Panels

CAB3106 (CWR) – 27 November 2018 Central Winchester Regeneration Progress

Other Background Documents:-

CWR SPD: http://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/supplementary-
planningdocuments-spds/central-winchester-regeneration-spd 

APPENDICES:

Appendix A: Strategic Advisor brief

Appendix B – Risk Register

Page 164

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/supplementary-planningdocuments-spds/central-winchester-regeneration-spd
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/supplementary-planningdocuments-spds/central-winchester-regeneration-spd


CAB3105 – APPENDIX A

Strategic Development Advisor – draft scope of services

Winchester City Council (“the Council”) is looking to procure the services of a strategic 
development advisor (SDA) to provide a multi disciplinary set of services to support with the 
implementation of its major projects and place strategy.

Significant challenges face the public sector and the Council needs to adopt an 
entrepreneurial approach to deliver the outcomes outlined in its adopted strategy:-

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/about/strategies 

The overarching vision of Winchester City Council is to combine a blend of innovation, 
aspiration and pragmatism and to look beyond the traditional ways of doing things.

The Council is committed to;

 Making the District a premier business location
 Developing  quality housing with a balanced range of tenures
 Protecting and enhancing our unique environment
 Delivering services that encourage residents to lead healthy and fulfilling lives

The outcome will be a district where everyone enjoys the opportunities and quality of life 
that come from living in the Winchester district. 

Guided by the Council Strategy, the Council has an ambitious programme of major projects 
in place which deliver the key priorities throughout the Winchester District.

These include;

 Sports and leisure park (and the site of the existing River Park Leisure Centre when 
closed)
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/projects/5740/replacement-leisure-centre-project 

 Station Approach
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/projects/5741/station-approach 

 Central Winchester Regeneration 
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/projects/5744/central-winchester-regeneration 

The Council has an active programme of homebuilding, as well as having the potential of 
some further development sites not directly in our ownership, such as Bushfield Camp and 
Sir John Moore Barracks. There is also the strong desire to think strategically about the 
future of the city and district and the Council’s assets, and to act in partnership or otherwise 
to shape the area for the benefit of future generations. The Council is also working with 
Hampshire County Council on a jointly funded movement strategy for the city.

Page 165

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/about/strategies
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/projects/5740/replacement-leisure-centre-project
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/projects/5741/station-approach
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/projects/5744/central-winchester-regeneration


CAB3105 – APPENDIX A

The SDA will be expected to work across Council projects, strategy and development 
opportunities as needed but with the initial focus on Central Winchester Regeneration. 

Winchester is a special city and as such, the Council will expect the SDA to provide examples 
of work they have successfully carried out in other locations and to demonstrate that their 
approach will take in to account the Winchester sense of place.

Services sought are:

Client Advisor

The SDA will provide the Council with advice in respect of emerging market trends, funder 
requirements and best practice in respect of delivery of complex, city centre regeneration 
projects.  Services will include, but not be exclusive to, master planning, viability modelling, 
site assembly, compulsory purchase, business planning and partnership structuring.

The SDA will also be expected to support the Council’s officers in reporting to various 
Council committees. This role is anticipated to include contributing to committee reports 
and attending / presenting at committee meetings as necessary.

Commercial Structures – to review the optimal commercial structures for project delivery, 
beginning with the Central Winchester regeneration scheme. This will require the SDA to 
have regard to the following:

- The Council’s phasing requirements; 

- The Council’s aspirations for the CWR project to be delivered as a series of parcels, 
on an incremental basis and incorporating multiple architectural practices and 
potentially multiple developers;

- The Council’s requirements to comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015; 
and

- The Council’s obligations to demonstrate that it is achieving Best Consideration for 
any land it disposes of. 

- Advise on the Council’s options for retaining appropriate control, legacy planning 
and participation in the development 

In addition, the SDA will be required to support the Council’s in house legal team and 
external legal advisors in formulating appropriate legal agreements for the projects. This 
could take a number of forms, including but not limited to a:

- Conditional Land Sale Agreement
- Development Agreement
- Corporate Joint Venture 

Page 166



CAB3105 – APPENDIX A

- Land Owner Collaboration Agreement

The SDA may be required to provide the following services to support the formulation of the 
commercial structures:

- VAT and SDLT advice
- Business Case Advice (in accordance with HM Treasury ‘Green Book’ requirements)
- Funding advice

Land Use Planning and Site Masterplans – to provide reasoned, research-backed advice on 
land uses for individual sites to ensure best value and complement the Council’s ambitions 
for Winchester. This will be backed up by block massing and indicative designs, uses, area 
schedules, costs, sales values and viability appraisals. 

Development Viability and Phasing – to undertake periodic reviews of the viability of the 
projects. The SDA will have regard to the outputs sought within the Central Winchester 
regeneration SPD; the proposed commercial arrangements; and market informed sales 
value and cost assumptions. 

In reviewing development viability, the SDA will be required to advise on the optimal 
approach to phasing the development, having regard to the Business Case and overall 
project cash flow.  

Developer Procurement – the SDA will be expected to take the lead role, under the 
direction of the Council, for procuring one or potentially multiple development partners. 
This role will include:

- Soft market testing
- Advising on the most appropriate marketing route (for example land sale, framework 

panel or full OJEU process);
- Undertaking structure market engagement with prospective developers;
- Preparing relevant marketing collateral and procurement documentation;
- Project managing the procurement process, including managing enquiries, chairing 

meetings with prospective developers and ensuring that the process runs to 
programme;

- Supporting with the evaluation of bids;
- Preparing a report with recommendations as to which developer to select. 

Land Assembly Advice – the SDA will be required to provide strategic advice in respect of 
acquiring third party land interests. The working, and preferred, assumption should be that 
third party interests will be acquired by agreement. The Council may however opt to use its 
powers of Appropriation and Compulsory Purchase if negotiations are unsuccessful. 

This role will include the following:

Page 167



CAB3105 – APPENDIX A

 Supporting the Council’s estates team in formulating a strategy for acquiring third 
party interests in the site. 

 Preparing a Property Cost Estimate, to inform the potential costs of acquiring third 
party interests. 

Should a CPO be pursued, the role would also include:

 Managing land referencing agents on behalf of the Council
 Supporting the Council’s in house legal team and external legal advisors in preparing 

documents required for a CPO, including the Statement of Case and Statement of 
Reasons

 Supporting the Council at the CPO Public Inquiry, including provision of evidence as 
may be required

 Acting as the Council’s lead agent in respect of negotiating third party land 
acquisitions, whether by agreement or pursuant to a CPO

Best Consideration Advice – the SDA will be required to prepare Best Consideration advice 
in respect of any Council disposal of land. 

The SDA will be expected to advise the Council as to whether Best Consideration is to be 
determined under Section 123 of the Local Government Act or Section 233 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act. 

Development Monitoring – following the appointment of a development partner, the SDA 
will be required to:

- Support the Council in monitoring the development partner’s satisfaction of any pre-
conditions

- Supporting the Council in any disputes which arise – for example in respect of 
viability
 

- Monitoring and reviewing the project development account, to establish the extent 
the developer’s obligations to pay overage and any other consideration due have 
been properly satisfied. 

Consultant Team

The SDA is expected to be a lead consultant with access to a trusted and expert team of 
suitable sub-contractors to deliver the services outlined.

Page 168



Appendix B: Risk Register

Risk Number:  1 Risk Owner:  Project Executive 

Risk Title:  Failure to implement an appropriate delivery strategy for the CWR area as set out in the SPD 

Current Risk Score
Causes Consequences Current Controls

Likelihood Impact

Risk
Proximity

Financial 
impact

Failure to develop appropriate delivery 
strategy
Political instability 

Failure to deliver 
comprehensive 
redevelopment of CWR
Loss of trust in the 
Council abilities to 
deliver 
Reputational/political 
damage to the 
administration 
Damage to the local 
economy

Mitigate:
1) Procure services of experienced 

external strategic advisor
2) Maintain cross party political and 

community support to move the 
project forward 

3) Continue to engage with key 
landowners, partners and 
stakeholders

4) Ensure aspirations of the SPD are 
met when developing designs and 
considering planning applications

5) Continue to monitor and adapt the 
project plan

Highly 
Unlikely

Significant 3 ££££

Residual Risk ScoreImmediate actions? Target Date
Likelihood Impact

Develop and agree brief for a strategic advisor Nov 2018 Highly Unlikely Significant

Risk Number:  1.2 Risk Owner:  Project Executive 

Risk Title: Failure to secure external funding 

P
age 169



Current Risk Score
Causes Consequences Current Controls

Likelihood Impact

Risk
Proximity

Financial 
impact

Lack of confidence in Winchester City 
Council in the market / with developers
National economic conditions 
Proposals not considered viable

As above 1) Procure services of experienced 
external strategic advisor

2) Continue to engage with key 
partners and stakeholders

3) Develop Winchester marketing 
approach targeted at inward 
investment

4) Ensure development proposals 
realistically assessed for viability

Unlikely Significant 3 ££££

Residual Risk ScoreImmediate actions? Target Date
Likelihood Impact

Develop and agree brief for a strategic advisor Nov 2018 Unlikely Significant

P
age 170



CAB3086(LP)
CABINET (LOCAL PLAN) COMMITTEE

CABINET

REPORT TITLE: ADOPTION OF REVISED STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY 
INVOLVEMENT IN PLANNING 

CABINET (LOCAL PLAN) COMMITTEE 3 DECEMBER 2018

CABINET 12 DECEMBER 2018 

REPORT OF PORTFOLIO HOLDER: BUILT ENVIRONMENT 

Contact Officer:  Joan Ashton  Tel No: 01962 848442  Email 
Jashton@winchester.gov.uk 

WARD(S):  ALL (OUTSIDE SOUTH DOWNS NATIONAL PARK)

PURPOSE

To consider and adopt a revised Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) for the 
purposes of planning policy and development management within that part of the 
Winchester District outside of the South Downs National Park. The SCI sets out how 
the Council will consult and engage with both communities and stakeholders during 
the preparation of local plans and through the planning application process. 

RECOMMENDATIONS:

1.        That the document  attached at Appendix 2, be approved  as the Statement of 
          Community Involvement in Planning (SCI) for the Winchester District (with
          the exception of that part of the District within the South Downs National Park);
 
2.       That it be recommended to Cabinet that the SCI be adopted by Winchester
          City Council ; 

3.       That authority be granted to the Head of Strategic Planning and the Head of 
          Development Management, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for the
          Built Environment, to make any necessary edits and minor alterations prior to
          the publication of the SCI;

4.       That the adopted SCI be published by Winchester City Council.

Page 171

Agenda Item 13



CAB3086(LP)

IMPLICATIONS:

1 COUNCIL STRATEGY OUTCOME

1.1 The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) supports the development of 
the Local Plan and other planning policy documents and the processing of 
planning applications.  The successful application of planning policies cuts 
across all outcomes of the Council Strategy.

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

2.1 None direct in terms of preparation and publication of the SCI.  The different 
types and scope of community involvement discussed within the SCI will have 
various financial implications, particularly in relation to local plan preparation.  
These would generally be financed from the Local Plan budget as and when 
required. 

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS

3.1 It is a legal requirement under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 (as revised) for local planning authorities to have a SCI, setting out their 
approach for community engagement in regard to planning matters.  Further 
legislation now requires these to be updated every five years.  The presence 
of an up-to-date SCI forms part of the consideration of soundness as required 
for the adoption of the Local Plan and other Development Plan Documents.

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 The various types and scope of community involvement discussed within the 
SCI will require resources to be implemented, which will include staff 
resources.  Delivery of planning engagement is generally undertaken from 
within the existing workforce.  The delivery of significant community 
engagement exercises may involve additional resources which will need to be 
highlighted at project commencement and any necessary budget provision 
identified.

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 None 

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION 

6.1 To inform matters for inclusion in the refreshed SCI, the Council’s online 
consultation portal Citizenspace was used to seek views on how residents, 
businesses and any interested parties wished to be informed on planning 
matters.   Notification of the consultation was issued via e- newsletters 
including parish connect to those on both local plan and development 
management databases.  The survey ran between 9th March and 24th April 
2017 and 159 responses were received.  The results of the initial survey fed 

Page 172



CAB3086(LP)

into the development of the refreshed SCI and a summary of the main points 
arising was included in the Introduction to the draft SCI.

6.2 Following the initial survey, a draft SCI was prepared for consultation as 
agreed by Portfolio Holder Decision Notice (PHD776).  The draft SCI was 
subject to public consultation for 8 weeks from 24th July – 21st September, via 
the Citizenspace consultation portal.  The same methods of publicity were 
carried out as for the initial survey.  12 responses were received.

6.3 An analysis of the consultation responses received is appended to this report 
(Appendix 1).  The main issues arising and any resulting changes to the SCI 
are considered further below at 11.7-11.13

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS

7.1 The subject matters of the SCI (planning policies and planning applications) 
are vital considerations in the delivery of sustainable development, however 
there are no environmental implications arising directly from the SCI in itself.

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

8.1 The document does not introduce a new policy.  The SCI sets out generally 
how we will consult widely on planning issues and engage with hard to reach 
groups. Development Plan Documents will be subject to equality impact 
assessments to ensure that the policies and proposals are consistent with the 
Council’s Equality Policy.

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT

9.1 None required.  The SCI refers to the need for consultations to comply with 
data protection legislation in respect of matters such as the use of databases 
and the retention of information.  It also explains the role of anonymity in 
representations on planning documents and planning applications.

10 RISK MANAGEMENT 

Risk Mitigation Opportunities
Property
No risk identified

N/A N/A

Community Support
Risk of community 
engagement being 
considered un-
comprehensive or 
ineffective

Ensure proportionate 
levels of community 
engagement.
Ensure responses are 
adequately considered 
and feedback provided.

SCI provides scope for a 
variety of approaches to 
community engagement.

Timescales
Engagement needs to 
carried out in a timely 
manner.  There are 

Engagement and 
consultations need to 
provide clear timelines for 
responses.

Update the LDS if 
timescales need to be 
adjusted.

Page 173



CAB3086(LP)

statutory periods for 
consultations that need to 
be complied with.  Local 
Plan documents need to 
be renewed every five 
years

Project planning for the 
production of 
Development Plan 
Documents to be set out 
within the Council’s Local 
Development Scheme 
(LDS).  

Project capacity
Insufficient staff resources 
would impact on the 
degree of engagement 
that can be undertaken

Ensure that necessary 
resources are in place to 
progress the required 
engagement.

Undertake joint community 
consultations on a variety 
of projects.

Adjust extent of 
engagement if necessary.

Financial / VfM
See project capacity 
above
Legal
DPDs not found sound at 
examination.

Ensure SCI is adopted 
and kept up-to-date at 
least every five years.

Linking the up-dating of 
the SCI with reviews of 
Local Plan documents

Innovation
A variety of new 
engagement techniques 
are now available

Explore use of new 
technology as means of 
engagement

Use of non-traditional 
methods of engagement 
can engage with a wider 
audience, including groups 
that have been 
traditionally hard to reach.

Reputation
Risk to reputation if the 
Council is perceived to be 
not engaging sufficiently 
with the community

Ensure engagement is 
carried out in a 
proportionate fashion that 
can be justified

Ensure SCI sets out 
realistic expectations for 
customer engagement in a 
variety of planning 
situations.

Other

11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION:

Background

11.1 The Council is required to have a Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) 
that sets out its approach for involving the community in planning matters – 
both in relation to planning policy and development management.  Planning 
Inspectors will consider whether the authority has followed the principles set 
out in the SCI, when assessing whether planning policy documents have been 
properly prepared.

11.2 A revised SCI is required as the Council’s existing SCI dates from 2007 and 
changes to legislation in early 2018 now require that the SCI be reviewed at 
least every 5 years.  With the recent commencement of a review of the Local 

Page 174



CAB3086(LP)

Plan, it is an appropriate time to review the form and content of the SCI.  This 
also enables it to be updated to include references to Neighbourhood Plans 
and the Community Infrastructure Levy, and to reflect changes in the 
capabilities and use of electronic communications which have affected the 
way the Council now operates in policy and development management.

11.3 A renewed SCI will provide guidance for the preparation of the revised Local 
Plan which has recently commenced and other local development documents 
that are intended to be prepared in the next few years, such as those referred 
to in the LDS elsewhere on this agenda.

11.4 As outlined in Section 6 above, views were sought regarding the scope and 
content of a refreshed SCI in early 2017 and a draft SCI was subsequently 
prepared during 2018.  A consultation was conducted on the draft and this 
report now appends a finalised SCI for consideration and adoption.

Content of the SCI

11.5 The proposed SCI contains the following sections:

1. Introduction.  Explains the legislative background to the SCI.  
Summarises the process of preparing the new SCI, including the 
consultation.

2. Council Planning Engagement.  Sets out general principles for 
engagement.  Outlines the differences between planning policy 
engagement and involvement in development management.  Describes 
the roles of officers, councillors, parish councils and local MPs.  Sets 
out how the council will communicate with the community, including 
commitment to equalities and suitable data protection requirements.  

3. Planning Policy.  Describes the local plan documents that may be 
produced and how they inter-relate.  Details the stages in preparation 
of a Local Plan, Supplementary Planning Documents and Community 
Infrastructure Levy.  Describes the Neighbourhood Plan process and 
sets out the council’s policy for assisting with preparation of a 
Neighbourhood Plan. 

4. Development Management.   Sets out a general approach to 
applications and outlines performance standards.  Explains the pre-
application service.  Describes how planning applications are notified, 
assessed and reported on.  Details how to access the council’s 
planning portal and how to comment on applications, including relevant 
factors for comment.   Describes the planning committee process.  
Sets out the post-decision and appeals procedure.  Provides 
information on the planning enforcement service.

Page 175



CAB3086(LP)

11.6 The SCI does not cover community involvement outside of the planning 
process.   The SCI does therefore not apply to council-led projects apart from 
in relation to their Local Plan policy, SPD or planning application elements. 

Key matters raised through the consultation 

11.7 Responses to the initial consultation held in 2017 were received from a 
number of groups and organisations - particularly parish councils - as well as 
from individuals.  The main issue raised was the desire to have a variety of 
means of engagement in planning policy including public meetings, 
stakeholder discussions and workshops and also to involve specific groups.  
These methods have been included within the SCI as part of a range of 
techniques that can be useful for policy formation.  Engagement needs to be 
meaningful and proportionate; therefore these techniques will tend to be most 
useful for larger-scale exercises.  The SCI also encourages groups and 
individuals to register on the planning policy database to enable them to be 
contacted directly on planning policy matters.

11.8 The majority of comments on the draft SCI published in July 2018 concerned 
matters relating to development management – notifications on planning 
applications, the content of planning officers’ reports, how applications are 
referred to committee and site visit protocols.  The SCI discusses how the 
case officer has discretion to undertake further consultations and site visits as 
required.  Case officers can be contacted to discuss applications and may be 
able to carry out additional site visits.  An addition is made to the SCI at 4.26 
to make this clear.  Many of the other comments relating to planning 
application procedures raise matters too detailed to be covered in the SCI, 
however the points raised are addressed in the schedule attached as 
appropriate.

11.9 A specific response was received from a local residents group based in 
Winchester concerned about lack of involvement, and a number of 
recommendations are included in the schedule attached to overcome this, 
including a suggestion to register on the local plan database.  This group has 
also raised the issue of the lack of a parish voice for Winchester.  This is a 
matter beyond the scope of the SCI, but the absence of a parish council 
should not preclude this group or any others from effectively engaging with 
the council on planning matters as discussed in the schedule.  However, it is 
considered helpful to make an addition to the SCI at 4.23 to highlight to use of 
local councillors in these situations.

11.10 A smaller number of comments on the draft SCI were made in relation to 
planning policy matters.  Some comments referred to the interrelationships of 
various planning policy documents, including SPDs and Neighbourhood 
Plans.  The role and status of the various documents is explained in the SCI, 
but a revised illustration of local plan documents is proposed to make the 
relationships clearer, replacing the current LDF diagram.

Page 176



CAB3086(LP)

11.11 One response highlighted errors in the DPD process diagram and it is 
considered helpful to correct this and add an additional diagram outlining the 
process for the preparation and adoption of SPDs.  This will assist in 
explaining both the process of preparation and the opportunities for 
involvement at the various stages, for the two main types of statutory planning 
policy documents.

11.12 Several comments were received emphasising the role of parish councils.  
Parish councils are referred to throughout the SCI and no change is 
necessary.

11.13 A number of responses referenced how the SCI consultation was conducted 
and how future engagement should be carried out.  These are discussed in 
the schedule of responses at Appendix 1 and no change is needed to the SCI. 

Other Changes following the draft

11.14 Minor additions have been made throughout the SCI in relation to public 
involvement in the early stages of plan preparation to reflect the 
Neighbourhood Planning Regulations 2018 and further detail has been added 
to section 3 on Neighbourhood Plans and Neighbourhood Development 
Orders.

11.15 The ‘Development of the SCI’ section has been replaced with an updated 
section describing the process that has been undertaken, from preparation 
and consultation, to the adoption of the refreshed SCI.  Associated removal of 
Appendix 1 of the draft that referred to the 2017 survey.  There has also been 
some minor updating of the text and editing corrections.

Conclusion and Next Steps

11.16 Following the amendments described above, it is recommended that the 
Statement of Community Involvement in Planning (SCI) as attached at 
Appendix 2 be adopted as the SCI for the Winchester District outside of the 
National Park.

11.17 Following adoption, the SCI will be publicised and will be made available on 
the planning policy section of the Council’s website.  The Council is aiming to 
become a paper-free organisation and it is not planned to produce paper 
copies as standard.  However, the document can be made available in other 
formats on request, including paper.  

11.18 There may be some minor editing required in association with the publication 
of the SCI and authority is sought to enable the Head of Strategic Planning 
and the Head of Development Management, in consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder for the Built Environment, to make any necessary edits and minor 
alterations prior to the publication of the SCI.

Page 177



CAB3086(LP)

12 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

12.1 Local planning authorities are required to have an adopted SCI, therefore no 
other options are applicable.  Details of representations received on the draft 
SCI are given at Appendix 1 and discussed at 11.7 – 11.13 of this report.  
This discussion shows where any changes have been made to the draft SCI 
as a result of the representations, and 11.14 -11.15 indicates where changes 
are proposed arising for any other reasons.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:-

Previous Committee Reports:-

PHD776:   Statement of Community Involvement in Planning (SCI) Draft for 
Consultation – 6th August 2018

Other Background Documents:-

Winchester District Statement of Community Involvement - January 2007

APPENDICES:

Appendix 1: Schedule of responses to consultation

Appendix 2: Statement of Community Involvement in Planning 2018 

Page 178



CAB3086(LP) - APPENDIX 1:  Schedule of responses to consultation

Statement of Community Involvement Consultation Responses (September 2018)

Question & Summary of key points 
raised

Officer response and 
Recommended action

Question: If you have any comments or consider any changes are necessary, 
in relation to the introduction of the document then please use the box below.
Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others
The lack of a parish council in Winchester 
Town disadvantages residents compared 
to other towns and villages that are 
parished. There is no structure for 
feedback or input.

Members of the public are not 
precluded from consultations in the 
absence of a Parish Council; however, 
the role of local ward members could 
be promoted more. 

It is recommended that additional 
wording be added to the section on 
Parish Councils in the Introduction and 
the section on Commenting on 
Applications within the Development 
Management section to clarify the 
arrangements within Winchester Town.

Recommended Action:
Add additional wording at paragraph 
2.8 – ‘Within Winchester Town, the 
Winchester Town Forum discusses 
issues that may affect the Winchester 
Town area, but they do not have the 
same formal role in relation to planning 
applications that Parish Councils do.  
Local residents should therefore 
contact their local Ward Member within 
Winchester Town in relation to 
planning applications.’

Replace paragraph 4.24 as below:
4.24  - ‘Local Ward Councillors can make 
representations on your behalf, as can the 
local Parish Council or Winchester Town 
Forum.’

‘The local Parish Council and Ward 
Councillors can make representations 
on your behalf.  Within Winchester 
Town, where there is no Parish 
Council, the Winchester Town Forum 
discusses local issues and can also 
make representations on your behalf, 
but it does not have the same formal 

Page 179



role that parish councils do in relation 
to planning applications.  The role of 
Ward Members in Winchester Town is 
therefore particularly important in 
relation to planning applications.’

Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others 
The remit of the revised SCI is less than 
existing one. The neighbourhood plans and 
CIL have been taken off.

The Denmead Neighbourhood Plan is 
currently the only adopted 
Neighbourhood Plan in the District and 
is shown on the general diagram of 
Local Plan Documents on page 10, as 
is the Community Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL).  They are also both included in 
Table 1, which sets out the 
consultation requirements for various 
types of documents.

Neighbourhood Plans are covered in 
more detail in paragraphs 3.45 – 3.52 
and 
CIL is covered in more detail in 
paragraphs 3.53 – 3.57.

Recommended Action:
None

Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others 
SCI & the website should clearly signpost 
how to find local plan & all LDF documents 
and how they fit together.  It should be 
shown whether documents are the most 
recent or whether they are superseded 
versions

The Local Plan Documents diagram on 
page 10 illustrates how the various 
planning policy documents inter-relate, 
including which form part of the 
development plan itself and which are 
supporting documents.  It is proposed 
to produce a similar diagram for 
display on the planning policy section 
of the WCC website.

Only the most up-to-date documents 
are normally shown on the website, 
occasionally earlier versions can also 
be viewed, which for clarity should be 
clearly dated.

Recommended Action: none for SCI, 
but future addition of planning policy 
diagram to WCC website.

Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others 
Doing the questionnaire and consultation 
via electronic communication only reaches 
a very specific audience and cannot be 
considered representative of local 
residents' views.  Using twitter and a 
banner on a website is not enough. All 

The SCI consultation was open to all 
any persons or groups with an interest 
in this matter could respond.

The consultation was forwarded to 
those on the planning policy database 
which consists of groups and 

Page 180



types of social media should be used 
(Facebook, Instagram etc). Local groups 
should be informed (direct mail, community 
noticeboards, Email groups, local 
newspaper notices etc). 

individuals who have expressed an 
interest in being kept informed on 
planning policy matters, plus statutory 
and general consultees as set out in 
local plan guidance.  This includes 
community groups and representations 
from minorities and hard-to-reach 
groups.  There was an open invitation 
to the general public via notification on 
the council’s website and a series of 
tweets throughout the consultation 
period.

Although the consultation was hosted 
via an online questionnaire, there was 
the option to complete this in a paper 
format.  This also did not preclude 
people contacting the council by other 
means such as email, telephone or 
letter and contact details were 
provided.

Regarding future consultations, as the 
SCI discusses in 3.14-3.17 a range of 
methods are used and – particularly on 
major projects such as a new local 
plan – meetings and other forms of 
communication are often part of this. 

Recommended Action:
None

Overall the introduction does supply a full 
picture to the reader of the complexities of 
community involvement in the Winchester 
area.

Noted

HCC Minerals & Waste
No comments on the SCI

Noted

The language is too bureaucratic The SCI acknowledges that there are a 
lot of technical terms and jargon used 
in planning.  Sometimes this is 
unavoidable due to legislation and 
statutory requirements.  The SCI 
attempts to explain the process in as 
clear a way as possible within these 
constraints and includes a glossary of 
terms for guidance.

Recommended Action:
None

Cllr Jackie Porter (WCC) It is considered that the current system 

Page 181



The current method of notification of near 
neighbours and use of a single notice is 
inadequate. Public notices in newspapers 
are rarely read.  WCC should consider the 
principle of contacting a resident if there is 
an application within a radius or within a 
specified area-if the resident has signed up 
to the service.  IT should be able to deliver 
this automatically as an email.
Alternatively, these could be delivered by 
ward, leading to greater transparency.

of notification is targeted, fair and 
proportionate. Officers carry out a 
bespoke assessment of neighbours 
they consider to be affected by 
proposed development and notify 
according to the individual 
circumstances. They also display a site 
notice in a conveniently located 
position for members of the public to 
view.  There is a statutory requirement 
to advertise certain types of application 
within a local newspaper. However the 
point is noted for future discussion on 
use of new technology. 

See also comments in relation to 
Question: Development Management 
below.

Recommended Action:
None

Cllr Jackie Porter (WCC)
SDNPA show neighbouring applications 
where they are statutory consultees- this is 
also an excellent idea.

The determining body will conduct 
appropriate publicity, however this 
could be considered for future 
inclusion.

Recommended Action:
To discuss internally for possible future 
action if practical.

South Wonston Parish Council 
A very adequate and clear introduction to 
this most important document which will be 
essential reading for ordinary people 
concerned about getting involved with 
planning policy and development 
management.

Support welcomed.

Question:  If you have any comments or consider any changes are necessary 
in relation to the 'Council Planning Engagement' section of the document, 
please tell us in the box below.
Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others 
Process -
The current system for notifying neighbours 
is inadequate because it doesn't take into 
account a 360 degree notification. 

Neighbours on another street at the end of 
a garden up for development should be 
notified by the Council as for adjacent 
neighbours. The properties who receive a 
letter should be (at least) those behind, 

See above. Adjoining neighbours that 
the case officer considers are directly 
affected by the proposals in any 
direction are usually notified This could 
include those in neighbouring streets.  
A site notice will also be displayed.

Recommended Action:
None

Page 182



adjacent and in-front.
Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others 
Local residents should be made aware of 
the date and time of a site visit and given 
the opportunity to interact with the Case 
Officer on an equal footing as developers. 

Case officers will use their judgement 
and may visit neighbouring properties 
when undertaking site visits and can 
undertake visits to specific properties if 
requested/necessary.

It is recommended that 4.26 be 
amended to clarify the situation.

Recommended Action:
Amend paragraphs 4.26 & 4.27 to 
read;
4.26 – ‘The case officer will undertake 
a site visit, asking if the agent or 
applicant would like to attend.  They 
will consider all representations that 
have been received and any 
consultation responses.  Neighbouring 
properties are also often visited. They 
Case officers will engage with 
applicants and other interested parties 
on the details of applications to 
achieve a positive outcome, 
negotiating and carrying out meetings, 
conducting telephone calls or using 
emails as appropriate. The case officer 
can be contacted to discuss 
applications and may undertake further 
site visits if required.  Sometimes there 
are amended plans as a result of 
negotiations.
4.27 – ‘Sometimes there are amended 
plans as a result of negotiations.  
Further consultations may be 
undertaken…’

Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others 
If local people request a site visit from 
Councillors, one must be undertaken (or be 
supplied with photographic evidence) 
including a representative of the 
neighbourhood.
If there are a certain number of objections, 
there must be a site visit.  A threshold of 5 
was also suggested.
The visit should be before the committee 
and no decision regarding the planning 
application in question should be made, nor 
should the application be heard at 
committee, until such a time as adequate 

This is a matter of procedure too 
detailed to be specified in the SCI.  
However, to address the points, 
members of the public can approach 
their ward member/planning committee 
member for a site visit.  Photographs 
are available for the committee (and 
others) to inspect. 

The planning service has recently been 
subject to a peer review which included 
consideration of the way the planning 
committee operates.  A number of 
recommendations were made and 

Page 183



cross party representation from the 
planning committee members has attended 
a site visit.

acted on in the light of this review.

Recommended Action:
None

Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others 
Following the localism agenda, the level of 
objection of local residents must be taken 
into account in the decision process. 

There should be more overt obligation to 
declare specific conflicts of interest / vested 
interests on the part of objectors / 
supporters and applicants alike.

Planning applications must be 
considered on their planning merits, in 
the light of planning policy and material 
considerations, and vested interests 
should not form part of this 
consideration.  This is explained in the 
SCI, although a minor change is 
proposed to 4.28

Recommended Action:
Amend 4.28 to read –
‘…All representations and consultation 
responses …’

Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others 
Planning Committee -
Councillors should be trained in the Local 
Plan policies and the application and limit 
of them and of the due process.
There should be a more thorough 
reference to all relevant planning policies in 
the Case Officers' report. 

Periodic training is provided for 
members on aspects of planning, 
including the local plan.  All relevant 
planning policies that form part of the 
Development Plan are referenced in 
the officer’s/committee report and the 
recommendations for decision.

The recent review of the planning 
service included the role of councillors 
and the content of case officers’ 
reports amongst other matters.

Recommended Action:
None

Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others 
Portal -
It should be possible to upload images on 
the portal onto objections.  Case officer 
reports and details of planning committee 
decisions should be on the same portal/link 

It is not technically possible to attach 
images to the public access system as 
part of representations, but they can be 
emailed to the case officer.

Case officer reports and decisions 
should already be on the same link as 
the appropriate planning application.  
Exceptionally, officers can arrange for 
this, where this has not occurred.

Recommended Action:
None

Keep Dean Lane Rural 
Local Plan and residents -
The Local Plan needs to be supported and 
explained. It should be made available, or 
signposted, in non-electronic forms. For 

Considerable publicity and 
engagement occurs during the 
preparation of the local plan of the 
nature described in the comment.  The 
Local Plan is often referenced in 

Page 184



example, occasional briefings in the local 
newspaper and information leaflets, 
workshops and community meetings. 

Council press releases and comments 
on major development projects.

Recommended Action:
None

Keep Dean Lane Rural 
Winchester Town doesn’t have any 
structures (Parish) to connect to policies or 
decisions. Representation and voice for 
residents in Winchester Town is severely 
lacking.

See previous response and 
recommended changes to paragraphs 
2.8 & 4.24

Recommended Action:
None

The system favours the applicant and local 
residents should have greater opportunity 
to voice their opinions at pre-application 
stage.

Paragraphs 4.9 – 4.12 explain the 
purpose of the pre-application service 
offered by the council and encourage 
applicants to engage with the public 
prior to submission of an application.  
Legally there is no provision to consult 
formally prior to applications being 
submitted.  Therefore, although 
encouraged by the council, any 
involvement of local residents is at the 
discretion of the applicant.  

Recommended Response:
To clarify this matter the final part of 
the sentence at 2.3 should be removed 
‘, although these are normally 
organised by the applicant, not the 
Council’ 

Neighbourhood Design Statements should 
have a legal bearing or Neighbourhood 
Plans should be simpler to implement.

Neighbourhood Design Statements 
and Village Design Statements are 
adopted supplementary planning 
documents and are therefore legally a 
material consideration which should 
form part of the assessment of 
planning applications, where relevant.  
The process regarding the preparation 
of Neighbourhood Plans is set by 
national legislation.

Recommended Action:
None

This is better Noted.
Cllr Jackie Porter (WCC)
See above

See response above

Recommended Action:
None

Ref 2.9; Parish Councils need to be notified 
of the planning officers’ recommendation 
before the decision to permit an application 

Parish Councils are notified of planning 
applications and are able to request 
that applications be referred to 

Page 185



if they are to be able to request that an 
application is determined at the WCC 
Planning Committee
Planning application notification covering 
letters are not always issued promptly and 
sometimes have missing information, eg 
details of case officer.
Parish Councils generally only meet once 
every month so need the earliest possible 
notification to allow proper consideration

committee, in their formal response.

Recommended Action:
None

South Wonston Parish Council
Good to see details about data protection. 
Some of our parishioners are very 
concerned by this.

Noted.

Cllr Anne Weir (WCC)
In general the use of terms such as 
"involvement", "engagement", and 
"consultation" has become very fluid and 
as a consequence fails to give assurance 
as to what the public can reasonably 
expect at any stage of the process. There 
is a real risk that this will further undermine 
public confidence in the planning 
processes and that the public will feel less 
respected as participants in such 
processes

The section on General Principles 
covers the different types of community 
involvement and makes distinctions 
between participation, engagement 
and consultation and their respective 
roles in the preparation of planning 
policies and development management 
decisions.

The SCI explains why a variety of 
engagement approaches are 
appropriate for planning policy 
formulation.  There are also statutory 
requirements which the SCI refers to 
where appropriate. The stages are 
outlined in the diagrams which indicate 
where the public can get involved and 
what this might entail.

The consultation processes for 
development management are more 
prescribed and the SCI refers to these 
in table 2.  The section on planning 
applications explains how there are 
options for officers to go beyond these 
minimum requirements.  The 
processes for commenting on 
applications and of the planning 
committee are also explained in the 
SCI.

It is therefore considered that the SCI 
details what the public can reasonably 
expect at any stage of the process, 
whilst not being too prescriptive.

Page 186



Recommended Action:
None

Question:  If you have any comments or consider any changes are necessary 
in relation to the 'Planning Policy' section of the document please explain 
below.
Historic England
It would be helpful to explain that the 
Council may propose modifications to the 
Plan after it has been submitted for 
examination for consideration by the 
Inspector and the purpose and status of 
Statements of Common Ground and of 
further statements for the EiP matters.

Agreed this element of the SCI could 
be clarified regarding post -submission 
modifications.  Additional wording will 
be added to this effect.

The SCI is not intended to be a guide 
to the planning system and needs to 
focus on the community involvement 
element; therefore it is not proposed to 
include references to other documents 
that might be prepared as part of the 
local plan process.

Recommended Change:
Add the following sentence to 3.40 – 
‘This will include any modifications that 
were proposed by the Council 
accompanying or following the 
submission of the plan as well as any 
further modifications proposed 
following the examination.’

Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others
Applications are looked at in isolation – 
there is no context or long-term vision. The 
Local Plan should have an over-arching 
long-term strategy for Winchester that 
drives all decisions.  

If one plot is divided, and planning 
permissions for the parts are staggered, 
then history (and proposed future of the 
whole) must be taken into account. 

The Local Plan provides both strategic 
overarching policies for Winchester in 
Local Plan Part 1 and more detailed 
aspirations in Local Plan Part 2 (LPP2) 
– these will be updated as part of Local 
Plan 2036.  There are also detailed 
development criteria (such as in 
relation to local distinctiveness, design 
and layout) that all proposals need to 
have regard to as relevant and set out 
in the Development Management 
Section of LPP2.

Assessments of planning applications 
should have regard to the planning 
history of the site and adjacent sites (if 
relevant). The overall context, including 
surrounding development, is also a 
material planning matter for 
consideration.

Recommended Action:
None

Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others It is possible to search the Council’s 

Page 187



Policies are complex, not transparent, and 
hard to find
Winchester's website is very difficult to 
navigate and find specific policies.. There 
should be a searchable database of them, 
where you enter a term or a phrase, and it 
shows what is and isn't supported. 

website for keywords, which could 
include policies.  The Local Plan and 
supporting documents are all viewable 
in full from the website, via the 
planning policy page and individual 
documents can be searched for policy 
guidance

Recommended Action:
As referred to above, it is proposed to 
add a diagram to the WCC website to 
assist with the interpretation of 
planning policy documents. 

Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others
How are the public consulted in making the 
policies? A separate specific consultation 
needs to happen on the previous policies

The SCI sets out the procedures of 
developing planning policies and 
consultation in Section 3.

A comprehensive consultation on the 
policies of the adopted local plans was 
undertaken over several years and 
details can be found in the statements 
of consultation from the time.

Preparation of a new local plan 
provides an opportunity to build on 
past engagement successes and to 
utilise new technologies as expressed 
in the revised SCI. 

Recommended Action:
None

Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others
 Neighbourhood Plans – how much legal 
weight do they have? This needs to be 
explicit. Are they encouraged? 
Neighbourhood Design Statements don’t 
have policies that have the same legal 
weight as the Local Plan. How is localism 
encouraged when Neighbourhood Plans 
are not encouraged?
Regarding Neighbourhood Plans - it is 
unclear how much legal weight these have 
when referred to in support of / objection to 
planning applications. This needs to be 
made clear. The current impression is that 
Neighbourhood Design Statements are 
largely ignored in favour of development. 

Neighbourhood Plans have the same 
weight as adopted Local Plans and 
they form part of the development plan 
for an area. Their role, legal status and 
preparation process  is explained in 
various parts of the SCI as described 
above, in the Local Plan Documents 
diagram, Table 1 and in more detail in 
paragraphs 3.45 – 3.52.

Neighbourhood Design Statements 
and Village Design Statements are 
supplementary planning documents.  
These are also referred to in the LDF 
diagram and Table 1 describes their 
role in relation to the development 
plan.  Further detail on the preparation 
and role of SPDs is included in 3.18-
3.32 of the SCI.

Page 188



Recommended Action:
None

This is good but complicated and 
longwinded

Noted

Cllr Jackie Porter (WCC)
Delivery of infrastructure should be 
considerably earlier than at present.    
County Council needs to sign off any 
highway/drainage work- this takes too long.
Planning policy needs to be clear -without 
the clouding of too many emerging policies 
which gain weight as the process 
continues. Perhaps this should not be the 
case? 

These comments relate to the 
implementation of policies regarding 
infrastructure rather than the SCI 
process.

The relative weight of emerging 
policies needs to be taken account of 
in decision making where applicable.

Recommended Action:
None

Other Policy Documents - Local Parish 
Plans could well be considered as part of 
evidence base, for example, Oliver's 
Battery Parish Plan 2018 gives robust, 
current evidence of residents' views and 
opinions. (www/oliversbattery.info/parish-
plan).

This information is noted.

There are various documents that 
contribute to the evidence base, 
including Parish Plans where they 
contain information in relation to the 
use of land.  The SCI only refers to 
some examples that generally have 
been specifically prepared for planning 
policy purposes.  A change to the SCI 
is not considered necessary in relation 
to this.

Recommended Action:
None

South Wonston Parish Council 
It is important to underline the role of 
Parish Councils in preparing SPDs, such 
as VDS, where very few residents were 
interested.
The table concerning the preparation of 
SPDs on p. 13 and the DPD preparation 
process are not correct?
It's good that paper representations can 
still be sent as some of our older residents 
don't or are unable to send them 
electronically.

Noted and support welcomed.  The 
reference to ‘local communities’ at 3.18 
would include Parish Councils, but is 
phrased so as not to exclude other 
groups or associations of individuals.

There are errors in Figure 3, which 
should refer exclusively to SPD and 
changes should be made to correct 
this and an additional diagram referring 
only to DPD to be added for clarity.

Recommended Action: 
Insert new Figure 3 to refer to DPD.
Re-number existing Figure 3 as Figure 
4 and correct to refer to SPD only as 
shown in the attached SCI at Appendix 
2 of this report.

Cllr Anne Weir (WCC) See response to the ‘any further 

Page 189



These processes are set out reasonably 
clearly however my sense is that there is 
much more discretion for the Council to 
decide what level of "engagement" to apply 
in key areas which could give rise to public 
dissatisfaction

comments’ below.

Recommended Action:
None

Question:  If you have any comments or consider any changes are necessary 
in relation to the 'Development Management' section of the document, please 
explain in the space provided
Historic England
Paragraph 4.28 should include the historic 
environment (which is not synonymous with 
the built environment) as a potentially 
relevant issue or consideration.

Recommended Action:
Add ‘including impact on the historic 
environment’ to the list of bullets under 
4.29

Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others
On the portal, the headings of ‘type of 
objector’ need to be changed. There should 
be a distinction between immediate 
neighbour and others for example.  They 
should have different weight
The grounds-for-objection options on the 
portal - traffic/highways, amenity, and noise 
- are not the only grounds for objection. 
They should be expanded, and 
notes should make it clear which policies 
you can actually base an objection upon. 

Officers should consider the planning 
merits of the points made in objections, 
regardless of other factors such as the 
number of objections, made or the 
geographic origin of the objection.

It is agreed that these are not the only 
grounds for objection as paragraphs 
4.29 & 4.30 of the SCI acknowledge.

Recommended Action:
The grounds for objection section of 
the public access system to be 
discussed with development 
management and the website technical 
team.

Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others
To complete a support/object comment to 
an application on the planning portal, you 
need to have a good level of knowledge 
and awareness of policy - this isn't offered, 
linked-to, or supported by the website. The 
options on the planning portal don’t seem 
linked to specific policy areas.

Although the public access comment 
area does not include links to planning 
policies, the whole of the adopted 
Local Plan and Supplementary 
Planning Documents are available on 
the WCC website to be used. 
Knowledge of the Local Plan is not 
necessary to make planning 
representations and the SCI provides 
examples (4.29-4.30) on what can and 
cannot be considered as planning 
matters.  The case officer will interpret 
any comments in relation to planning 
policy and any other material 
considerations.

Recommended Action:
None

Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others
Orange site notices need to be bigger, 

This comment relates to the 
appearance of the site notices and is 

Page 190



more prominent, larger font text, visible 
from more than one direction, QR codes (or 
shortened link) to link to the application on 
the portal.

too detailed for this SCI.

However, it is noted that site notices do 
contain a link to the website and the 
case reference number and the case 
officer’s name and a contact number.  
It would not be practical to include QR 
codes on site notices and the link to 
the website should suffice.

Recommended Action:
None

Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others
At present the relationship appears to be 
weighted towards the applicant.  The 
‘Customer’ is the developer. The Case 
Officer should be neutral and address all 
policy that all objectors/supporters mention 
rather than selectively referring to policies.

These comments relate to the form 
and content of case officer reports in 
relation to planning applications and 
the review of planning services has 
covered this issue.

Recommended Action:
None

Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others
Residents are not allowed to appeal unless 
there’s a point of law/procedure broken.  
This does not seem democratic.

The rights of appeal are specified in 
national legislation.

Recommended Action:
None

Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others
Regarding 4.6 - A 'non-determination' 
outcome should not be granted at the 
expense of a site visit from Councillors / 
Planning Committee members.

These comments relate to the details 
of committee procedures, which are 
too detailed to be covered generally in 
the SCI.  It is up to the committee to 
determine whether a site visit is 
required.

Recommended Action:
None

Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others
Planning Committee & policies–
All policies mentioned in objections should 
be circulated and communicated to the 
planning committee, for them to have time 
to question the Case Officer before the 
meeting. 

There could be a standard proforma to 
show whether the application was deemed 
to meet policy or why not, which should be 
public on the portal.  

There does not have to be a link between 
what is said in the committee meeting and 
the grounds for denying an application 

The SCI sets out in broad terms the 
procedures for assessing planning 
applications, including committees, but 
does not deal with the level of detail of 
the form of reports as referred to by 
this comment.

Committee reports are made available 
on the website prior to the planning 
committee meeting.  This enables 
scrutiny by the public and members of 
the committee.  Members can 
communicate with the case officer if 
required and the public can register to 
speak at the committee to raise any 
concerns they may have.

Page 191



actually given on paper after the event.

Applications that are contravening local 
policies are still going to planning 
committee to be discussed.

Debates at committee can be wide-
ranging, but any reasons for 
approval/refusal need to be written in a 
particular form and will reference 
relevant policies of the Development 
Plan.

Recommended Action:
None

Pre application process involving local 
residents, that also includes a site visit by 
the planning committee

See response to earlier comments on 
site visits.

Recommended Action:
None

Cllr Jackie Porter (WCC) & 1 other
Community involvement is sometimes 
scuppered because of multiple changes to 
applications. If a developer cannot satisfy 
the planning requirement after one 
amendment, the paperwork should be 
withdrawn and resubmitted.   All those who 
commented should be contacted with a 
new link once this is done.
Parish Councils should always be informed 
of the extent and nature of the changes so 
they have the opportunity to provide further 
comments.

It is up to the case officer to make a 
judgement regarding how many 
amendments should be allowable, 
taking into consideration the desire to 
make proposals acceptable far as 
possible.  Re-consultations are usually 
undertaken unless alterations are very 
minor and all previous respondents will 
be notified directly, which would 
include parish councils where relevant.

Recommended Action:
None

Re 4.2 -  I have not seen any improvement 
in working practices.

The process of dealing with planning 
applications has become more flexible, 
with more scope for the case officer to 
decide on appropriate approach for 
induvial applications.

Recommended Action:
None

Keep Dean Lane Rural & 3 others
 Each planning application should be 
assessed in the context of the surrounding 
neighbourhood with supporting evidence 
taken from the NDS/VDS.   Too little weight 
is attached to them in making decisions. 
Perhaps the answer is to have more 
Neighbourhood Plans.

See responses above on the role and 
status of NDS/VDS and 
Neighbourhood Plans. 

Recommended Action:
None

Enforcement appears particularly 
ineffective and working practices are not 
entirely consistent with the Councils Local 
Enforcement Plan.

The enforcement service has recently 
been subject to a peer review.  A 
number of recommendations were 
made including the production of a new 
Local Enforcement Plan which is 

Page 192



underway.

Recommended Action:
None

South Wonston Parish Council
A very good guide to the planning process 
especially with regard to what is and isn't 
relevant when responding to planning 
applications. We find this the weakest area 
for our residents.

Support welcomed.

Cllr Anne Weir (WCC)
It sets out the DM process clearly. A 
stronger commitment to give full attention 
to public comments and to respect public 
participation in Planning Committee 
meetings would be valuable.

Support welcomed.  Comments should 
be given full consideration as part of 
the assessment of applications.  Public 
participation is provided for in Planning 
Committee meetings following the 
guidelines outlined in the SCI. 

Recommended Action:
None

Document needs to reflect the principles 
expressed in the new NPPF and policies 
need to accord with these principles, so 
that they may be given appropriate weight. 
Existing documents need to be reviewed or 
refreshed accordingly. 
Greater emphasis needs to be given to 
landscape.

These comments seem to relate to the 
content of the development plan rather 
than the SCI.

Recommended Action:
None

Maybe excessive detail (it will lose you 
participation)?

Noted.

Question:  If you have any comments to make on the appendices of the SCI 
please use the box below.
Historic England
No comments.

Noted.

Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others
The SCI is not a true representation of local 
peoples views, the sample taken is too 
small to be relevant.  A consultation 
process reaching a wider community was 
needed.
Method was using a database, non 
electronic communication is also vital. 
Future communication should also include 
newspapers and leaflets and local 
noticeboards.

The SCI was publicised widely as 
outlined above and is considered 
appropriate given the nature of the 
document.

The SCI makes it clear that a variety of 
methods will be used for community 
engagement and that the possibility of 
written communication and meetings is 
not precluded.  But a proportional 
approach needs to be taken

The opportunity always exits for 
individuals or groups to contact the 
planning department with specific 
concerns regarding consultation.

Page 193



Recommended Action:
None

Keep Dean Lane Rural & 2 others
 Winchester needs a parish council 
structure to ensure local voices are heard.

See earlier response to similar 
comments.

Recommended Action:
None

Cllr Jackie Porter (WCC)
Glossary: It is important to explain the 
acronyms clearly.
Consultees- see my comments above
Level of consultation- as agreed
Value of consultees- if the consultees is 
responding, it should be clear where it is on 
behalf of an individual or organisation and if 
the organisation’s members have been 
consulted on the official response.

It would be good practice for 
organisations to advise with their 
response if their members have been 
consulted and the response reflects 
the views of the whole organisation or 
just the individual responding.   This is 
usually clear where, for example, 
Parish Councils have had a committee 
meeting prior to responding.

Recommended Action:
None

South Wonston Parish Council 
Most valuable to be reminded of the survey 
findings

Noted

Good Support welcomed.
Question:  If you have any other comments on the document please set out 
below
Historic England
No comments.

Noted

Keep Dean Lane Rural
Interested to know the numbers and profile 
of people that responded to this 
consultation.  Request to be emailed this 
information when the questionnaire closes 
(personal email provided)

We would be keen to be involved further in 
the development or feedback on future 
drafts of the Community Involvement 
Statement. 
keepdeanlanerural@gmail.com

The numbers of replies and types of 
respondent (eg parish council, 
organisation, individual) are discussed 
in the accompanying report.

Completion of equalities information 
was voluntary and not completed in all 
cases.  The composition of the 
respondents who gave this information 
was in line with previous consultations 
of the council.

The group has been contacted by 
email regarding the SCI and it 
suggested that they register on the 
planning policy database so they can 
be directly informed of new initiatives.

Recommended Action:
None

Please extend the consultation to reach a 
wider demographic. Newspapers, leaflets, 
posters as well as social media should all 

See earlier response to similar 
comments.

Page 194



be used to fully represent the varied 
population of the area.

Recommended Action:
None

Cllr Jackie Porter (WCC)
In the age of the internet, just putting 
something on a website isn’t enough! We 
need to inform people proactively, and 
continue to publish items for reading in 
libraries. Please make sure all publications 
are ‘Mobile friendly’.
Please use the local organisations that you 
grant fund to link with hard to reach groups.

Consultations on planning policy are 
targeted towards interest groups on the 
database and local community groups 
such as parish councils, as well as 
being available on the website. When 
planning policy documents are 
published for consultation paper copies 
are placed in local libraries and can be 
inspected at the Council offices. 

Recommended Action:
None

Cllr Anne Weir (WCC)
The draft SCI lacks a strong commitment to 
real public involvement. The loss of tools 
such as the ladder of engagement 
suggests that such involvement risks 
becoming more of a tick box exercise in the 
planning process - at a time when the 
public expects and deserves more.

The SCI needs to be flexible to take 
account of the wide range of 
consultations for planning, both 
planning policy and development 
management.  Part One of the SCI 
discusses the range of techniques and 
the scale of engagement that can be 
used as appropriate and acknowledges 
that the degree of engagement needs 
to be appropriate in scale and scope to 
the outcome 

Recommended Action:
None

The statement of paragraph 3.15 is 
strongly supported.

It is difficult to engage with the hidden 
households.  A register of home-seeker 
families that is widely publicised is 
suggested. 

Support is welcomed (now paragraph 
3.17)

There would be considerable resource 
implications in setting up of such a 
register.  As individuals can comment 
on planning matters, forming part of a 
hidden household should not be a 
barrier to their views being expressed.  
The use of websites and social media 
for engagement also assists in 
reaching out to individuals not 
specifically linked to property 
addresses.

Recommended Action:
None

The SCI and planning generally will 
continue to be undermined by lack of 
investment and resources in Development 
Management and enforcement.

Noted.  Part one of the SCI covers 
matters such as resources it should be 
noted that extensive engagement 
exercises can be both time intensive 
and expensive it is therefore necessary 

Page 195



to ensure that the techniques used are 
proportionate to the nature of the 
consultation. 

Recommended Action:
None

South Wonston Parish Council 
It was good to read that non material minor 
amendments require no re-consultation. 
This is something both councillors and 
residents find difficult to understand.

Support welcomed.

People are stressed; please keep it simple 
(as an experiment get 10-year-old child to 
do it)

Noted.  A balance needs to be sought 
between simplicity and providing 
sufficient detail for meaningful 
consultations.

Recommended Action:
None

Page 196



Page 197



This page is intentionally left blank



  

STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY 
INVOLVEMENT IN PLANNING 

December 2018

Page 199



CONTENTS 

1. INTRODUCTION 1

What is the SCI? 1
Development of the SCI
Final SCI

1
2

2. COUNCIL PLANNING ENGAGEMENT 3

General Principles for Community Involvement 3
Roles of Councillors, Officers, Parishes and the MP 3
Communicating With You
Communicating With the Council

5
6

3. PLANNING POLICY 8

Planning Policy Documents 8
Planning Policy Documents – Stages in Preparation and 
Opportunities for Involvement 13

Neighbourhood Plans and Neighbourhood Development Orders 22
Community Infrastructure Levy 24
Other Documents 25

4. DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 26

General Approach 26
Planning Performance 26
Pre-Application 27
Planning Applications 28
Making the Planning Decision 32
Post-Decision & Appeals 33
Enforcement 34

APPENDICES 36

1 Consultees 37
2 Glossary 39

Page 200



1

1 INTRODUCTION

What is the SCI?

1.1 The Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires local planning 
authorities to have a Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) for planning, 
setting out their approach to engagement on planning issues. Since January 
2018, Regulations now require SCI’s to be updated on a regular basis, at least 
every 5 years.  Planning inspectors will consider whether the authority has 
followed the principles set out in the SCI, when assessing whether planning 
policy documents have been properly prepared.

1.2 Winchester  City Council’s ‘Statement of Community Involvement in Planning’ 
sets out the Council’s approach to involving people in planning matters, 
whether residents, businesses, visitors or wider stakeholders such as statutory 
consultees.  It covers both planning policy (eg the Local Plan and 
Supplementary Planning Documents) and development management (ie 
planning applications and other development applications).  It provides 
guidance on how people can get involved in the development of planning 
policies and how they can comment on planning applications.

1.3 This document does not cover community involvement other than in regard to 
planning matters, - mainly statutory planning policy documents such as the 
local plan and planning applications.  There are a number of abbreviations and 
planning terminology in this document, these are set out in full in the glossary 
at Appendix 3. The Council is developing more innovative and customer-
focussed engagement methods generally and participation in planning matters 
will follow these principles within any statutory and resource limits.

1.4 There are legislative procedures that must be followed in the preparation of 
planning policy documents and the processing of planning applications, some 
of which relate to methods of consultation.  There are also statutory timescales 
that must be followed and these factors are included as part of the SCI.

Development of the SCI

1.5 The Council’s previous SCI dated from 2007.  There was a need to change the 
SCI to reflect changes to the planning system and to update the SCI to reflect 
new methods of communication, such as the increased role of electronic 
communication.  The SCI also now needs to be updated at least every 5 years.

1.6 Preparation of the new SCI began in spring of 2017, with the launch of a survey 
seeking views on methods for participation and consultation for planning policy 
and planning applications.  Notification of the consultation was issued via e- 

Page 201



2

newsletters including parish connect to those on both local plan and 
development management databases.  The survey ran between 9th March and 
24th April 2017 and 159 responses were received.  The results of the initial 
survey fed into the development of the refreshed SCI and a draft SCI was 
prepared for public consultation.  The draft SCI was subject to consultation for 
8 weeks from 24th July – 21st September 2018, via the Citizenspace 
consultation portal.  The same methods of publicity were carried out as for the 
initial survey.  12 responses were received.

1.7 A final version of the SCI was prepared taking into account feedback from the 
original survey and the representation made during the consultation on the draft 
SCI.  The final SCI and the preparation and consultation process were 
considered by the Local Plan Committee and Cabinet in December 2018 and 
the final document was approved for adoption. 

Final SCI 

1.8 This SCI has been adopted by the Council as the Statement of Community 
Involvement in Planning (SCI) on 12th December 2018.  This SCI only applies 
within that part of the District that is outside the South Downs National Park.  
The SCI is available to view n the Council’s website at: 
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/statement-of-community-
involvement

Page 202

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/statement-of-community-involvement
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/statement-of-community-involvement


3

2 COUNCIL PLANNING ENGAGEMENT

General Principles for Community Involvement in Planning

2.1 The Council will use a wide variety of methods to encourage participation in 
planning, these will vary and a proportionate approach will need to be applied, 
taking into consideration resources and time available.  However, the nature of 
community involvement is different in policy planning and development 
management.

2.2 In policy planning, involvement occurs through the participation in the 
development of policy.  Different approaches will be appropriate depending on 
the nature of the document and its stage of preparation.  Engagement will 
primarily occur during the initial preparation phase to gather views and opinions 
and to enable people to gain understanding of the issues.  This will typically be 
followed by consultation on options or proposed policies, which is a more 
structured process.  There is consultation on draft plans and policies and the 
council is obliged to consider the representations made.

2.3 Development management considers proposals for development, such as 
planning applications and other related procedures such as conservation area 
and listed building applications, tree preservation orders and works to trees.  
The Council’s role is to publicise these applications and the community 
involvement is focussed on commenting on the proposals.  There is the 
opportunity to influence developments, as the Council must take account of any 
representations that are made.  However, the scope for involving the public is 
limited by statutory procedures that need to be followed for consultation.  
Occasionally there is an opportunity to become involved in the development of 
proposals at an early stage when potential applicants carry out pre-application 
consultations.

Roles of Officers, Councillors, Parishes and the MP

Council Officers

2.4 Council officers will undertake research, draft planning policies and assess 
planning applications.  In some cases officers will produce public reports or 
make decisions under delegated powers.  Major decisions are made at 
committee and cabinet meetings, or occasionally at a full Council meeting.  At 
these meetings the officers make recommendations, but it is the members of 
the committee/Council who make the decision.

2.5 Officers are able to provide advice on technical aspects of planning and 
opinions based on their professional experience.  Officers are the first people to 
contact for queries on planning matters.  Officers can assist both members of 
the public and the elected members with all aspects of the planning process, 
including planning applications and aspects of planning policy. 

Page 203



4

Councillors

2.6 Councillors (also sometimes called members) are the local elected 
representatives for the area.  The District is comprised of Wards and each 
Ward has a number of Councillors who represent it.  Councillors attend Council 
meetings and a number of them will comprise the members of various 
committees such as the Planning Committee and the Cabinet (Local Plan) 
Committee.  The members of committees will listen to any statements made by 
the public, discuss and debate the reports of officers, question the officers and 
ultimately vote on any recommendations.  The Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee plays a vital role in maintaining an overview of the City Council's 
work and looking in depth at areas of particular significance or concern, 
including examining decisions made by other committees and the executive.

2.7 Councillors are a bridge between the community and the Council, being able to 
liaise with constituents and raise any issues with council officers.    Your local 
Councillor is able to act as an advocate on planning applications for 
constituents or applicants if they are not a member of planning committee and 
can also give advice on the planning process and talk about local planning 
issues in the area.    Councillors can call for applications to be discussed at 
committee and there are specific provisions for them to address committees.  If 
you would like to contact your local Councillor the list of names and contact 
details can be found on the Council's website at: Winchester Councillor List

Parish Councils

2.8 There are Parish Councils covering all of the District except the Winchester 
Town area.  Within Winchester Town, the Winchester Town Forum discusses 
issues that may affect the Winchester Town area, but they do not have the 
same formal role in relation to planning applications, that Parish Councils do.  
Local residents should therefore contact their local Ward Member within 
Winchester Town in relation to planning applications.

2.9 Parish Councils are formally notified of planning applications and are also 
consulted on planning policy issues.  Most Parish Councils have their own 
planning committees where they discuss applications and agree on a response.

2.10 Parish Councils can request that an application is determined at the Winchester 
City Council (WCC) Planning Committee if their response raises relevant 
planning matters contrary to the planning officers’ recommendation.  Your local 
Parish Councillors can help ensure that your concerns are addressed by 
liaising directly with Council Officers on your behalf.  Parish Councillors cannot 
sit on Winchester City Council Committee in that role, or vote at City Council 
meetings, however they are encouraged to attend and participate at the 
planning committee during public participation.

Page 204

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/meetings/councillors/


5

Your Local MP

2.11 The role of your local Member of Parliament is to represent the people of their 
constituency in Parliament.  MPs can act as an advocate on behalf of 
individuals or groups in a wide range of situations, however, MPs are entirely 
separate from local government and do not have a role within it or any special 
rights or privileges.  Therefore, when planning concerns are raised with MPs, 
these are often passed directly to the Council for consideration.

Communicating with You

2.12 The Council promotes the use of plain English.  Planning has a large amount of 
jargon, technical terms and acronyms.  Many of these are necessary as they 
refer to legislation or are abbreviations for otherwise long titles and 
descriptions.  Documents therefore often contain a glossary that will explain the 
terms used.

2.13 Documents and planning application details are now publicised online and in 
electronic formats, which ensures a wide reach of circulation.  It is recognised 
that not all people may be able to view information in this way and people 
should contact the relevant council officer for assistance with this.   Copies of 
important documents such as the Local Plan will be available for inspection at 
the Council offices in a paper format.  Other documents can usually be made 
available in a paper form, although there may be a fee associated with this.  
Officers or the Customer Services team should be contacted if documents are 
required in an alterative format, such as large print or another language.

Equalities

2.14 The Council is mindful of its duties under the Equalities Act 2010 to eliminate 
unlawful discrimination and advance equality of opportunity for all.   It is 
particularly important to encourage people with certain protected characteristics 
in relation to race, religion, age, disability, gender, sexual orientation, 
pregnancy or maternity to participate in public life where their participation is 
disproportionately low.

2.15 Efforts will therefore be made to include those who don’t normally get involved 
in planning, for example by using existing community groups and forums.  
Where appropriate, we will identify issues that may be of interest to specific 
groups in the community.  The use of social media is a useful tool for reaching 
groups and individuals who have not traditionally been involved in planning.  
Workshops and focus groups have been used to successfully engage with 
particular groups.

Page 205



6

2.16 The Council will carry out Equalities Impact Assessments (EqIA) on appropriate 
policies and documents to ensure that there are no adverse effects on the 
people with protected characteristics.

Data Protection

2.17 We maintain a database of contacts to keep people informed of new policy 
initiatives. There is a similar database of planning agent contacts for 
development management. In order to register comments on applications and 
documents, we require contact details which will help us to contact you in 
regard to the comments made.

2.18 The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012, 
requires copies of all representations to be made publically available. The 
Council will also publish names and associated representations on its website 
but will not publish personal information such as telephone numbers, or email 
addresses.

2.19 In accordance with the General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) the 
information on the databases and provided in association with planning 
applications will only be used for appropriate purposes, as agreed when 
originally provided.  The information will only be kept for the necessary period 
of time required.  The Council has an updated privacy policy which can be 
viewed on the website.

Communicating with the Council

2.20 The best way to contact the Council regarding planning matters is to contact 
the relevant officer directly where one is named.  The details of case officers 
are shown on the planning application public access system and contact details 
will be given on all planning policy documents, or the covering letters or 
notifications.

2.21 Telephone calls can often resolve issues speedily.  Planning policy can be 
contacted via customer services 01962 840222 and development management 
via 01962 848177.  There are also general contact emails for planning policy 
(planningpolicy@winchester.gov.uk) and development management 
(planning@winchester.gov.uk)

2.22 While we try to provide a good service, we know that sometimes things go 
wrong.  The best way to resolve issues is to contact the relevant officer directly.  
Following that, the Team Leaders are best placed to discuss planning issues 
and procedures. There is also senior management to overview situations.  
Where issues are not resolved at this level, there is information on complaints 
procedures on the website, including a complaints form that can be completed.

Page 206

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/about/privacy-policy
mailto:planningpolicy@winchester.gov.uk
mailto:planning@winchester.gov.uk
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/about/contact-us/complaints
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/about/contact-us/complaints


7

2.23 The Planning Portal provides helpful information on the planning system and 
processes.  National guidance can be found in the National Planning Policy 
Framework and National Planning Policy Guidance. Further information can be 
found via the planning professional body the Royal Town Planning Institute 
(RTPI).  Planning Aid offers free, independent planning advice and assistance 
to individuals and communities.

Page 207

https://www.planningportal.co.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
http://www.rtpi.org.uk/
http://www.rtpi.org.uk/
http://www.rtpi.org.uk/planning-aid/


8

3 PLANNING POLICY

3.1 The Council has developed various policies that help shape the form of 
development throughout the part of the District that is outside the South Downs 
National Park (SDNP).  Within the National Park, the SDNP Authority is 
responsible for planning policy and has adopted its own SCI with the most 
recent version published in August 2017

3.2 Planning policies set out a strategic vision for the pattern of future development 
within the area.  Policies aim to provide guidance as to where development 
should take place, and the scale of that development, whilst protecting both the 
built and natural environment and maintaining and enhancing the local 
economy, and community facilities.  There may be specific policies that allocate 
land for particular types of development, such as areas for new housing.  There 
will also be planning policies that set out guidelines for assessing planning 
applications for development.

3.3 The Council maintains a database of persons and organisations that are 
interested in planning policy matters and wish to be kept updated.  Contacts on 
the database will be notified of new planning policy initiatives and consultations 
and will be kept informed on the progress of planning documents through the 
statutory plan process. It is recommended that persons or groups with an 
interest in planning policy matters contact the Council to be included on the 
database.  The planning policy database will be maintained and used only in 
accordance with GDPR procedures.

Planning Policy Documents

3.4 Planning policy documents comprise a mix of statutory documents such as the 
Local Plan and any Neighbourhood Plans, together with any Supplementary 
Planning Documents and other local development documents.  These are 
supported by various reports, technical studies and research, which form the 
‘evidence base’ for policies.

3.5 The Council’s Local Development Scheme (LDS) provides a programme for the 
production of Development Plan Documents and associated documents.  The 
LDS is the starting point for finding out what the timetable is for the local plan 
and other documents and to see key dates for decisions and public 
involvement.   The LDS is updated on a regular basis as required.  Changes to 
the LDS will be considered by the Council’s Cabinet/Local Plan Committee and 
the final version published on the Council’s website.  The existence of a revised 
LDS will be further publicised through the local plan newsletter circulation. 

Page 208

https://www.southdowns.gov.uk/planning/national-park-local-plan/evidence-and-supporting-documents/statement-of-community-involvement/


9

3.6 Statutory planning policy documents have formal procedures for their 
preparation and adoption, which the local authority must comply with, including 
procedures for public consultation.  Much of the evidence base (supporting 
information) comprises technical data and reports that are generally not subject 
to consultation.  However, they may be some consultation or public 
involvement, where evidence involves surveys or relies on inputs from 
particular groups.  Community-led documents such as Parish Plans may also 
form part of the background information to plan preparation.  All evidence base 
documents should be made available to view on the Council’s website.

3.7 The diagram below (Figure 1) illustrates the planning policy documents for the 
Winchester District, and the table that follows describes the planning policy 
documents in more detail.

Page 209



10

Figure 1: Local Plan Documents

Page 210



11

Table 1: Planning Policy Documents and Consultation Requirements

Document Consultation?
Development Plan Documents

Local Plan
This may be formed of several parts such as the Core 
Strategy together with any allocations plans, development 
management policies and other plans such as Action Area 
Plans.

Statutory requirements at various 
stages.

Set out in the Planning Acts & Local 
Plan Regulations

Neighbourhood Plan
Once formally ‘made’, Neighbourhood Plans form part of 
the Development Plan for an area.  To date, only the 
Denmead Neighbourhood Plan has been made in the 
Winchester area outside the SDNP.

Statutory requirements at various 
stages.

Set out in the Planning Acts, the 
Localism Act, the Neighbourhood 
Planning Act, the Local Plan 
Regulations & Neighbourhood Plan 
Regulations

The Minerals & Waste Plan
Also forms part of the Development Plan for the District, but 
it is prepared by Hampshire County Council as they are the 
Minerals and Waste Planning Authority.  Therefore they will 
also undertake any consultation on its preparation.

Statutory requirements at various 
stages, as for other DPDs.

Set out in the Planning Acts & Local 
Plan Regulations

Local Development Documents
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD)
Not part of the Development Plan itself, but supplement 
policies within it.  Formally adopted by the Council and 
provide guidance on particular topics and/or in particular 
locations. Examples in Winchester currently include High 
Quality Places, Affordable Housing, Residential Car 
Parking Standards and a number of Village/Neighbourhood 
and Local Area Design Statements 

Statutory requirements at various 
stages, but different to DPD 
requirements.

Set out in the Planning Acts & Local 
Plan Regulations

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging 
Schedule.  
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a charge that allows 
local authorities to raise funds from new development to 
fund essential infrastructure.  The Charging Schedule sets 
out the levy rates that will be charged and how and where 
they will be applied.

Statutory requirements at various 
stages.

Set out in the CIL Regulations

Authority’s Monitoring Report (AMR)
Reports on the progress on policy development and the 
performance of policies, on an annual basis.  It includes 
information on housing completions and a housing 
trajectory plotting future housing delivery.

No consultation, as a technical 
document.

Planning Acts and local plan 
regulations set out the requirements for 
producing monitoring reports and their 
required content 

Local Development Scheme (LDS)
A programme for the production of Development Plan 
Documents and associated documents.  Contains a 
detailed timetable for a 3yr period.  Updated on a regular 
basis as required.  

No consultation, as a technical 
document, but is agreed by the Council.

Required by Planning Acts.  Needs to 
be kept up-to-date.

Statement of Community Involvement (SCI)
Sets out the Council policy for involving stakeholders and 
the wider community in planning issues.  Covers planning 
policy and development management.  

Consultation and adoption is required, 
but the mechanisms are not specified.

Required by Planning Acts.  Needs to 
be kept up-to-date and now needs to 
be reviewed at least every 5yrs in 
parallel with the Local Plan.

Page 211



12

Supporting Assessments
Prepared alongside and submitted in support of DPDs and Neighbourhood Plans
Sustainability Appraisal (SA)
Considers the environmental, social and economic impact 
of the policies and proposals contained therein.  Assesses 
policies at various stages of preparation, including the 
consideration of reasonable alternatives.  The SA of a DPD 
includes the required Strategic Environmental Appraisal.

Consulted as part of the consultation on 
the DPD or Neighbourhood Plan 

Set out in Planning Legislation & Local 
Plan Regulations

Strategic Environmental Appraisal (SEA)
This assesses plans and policies where there may be 
significant environmental effects.  These may occasionally 
be required where a SA has not already been undertaken, 
for Neighbourhood Plans or SPD

Early consultation with the SEA 
consultation bodies and general 
consultation as part of the 
DPD/Neighbourhood Plan public 
consultation

Set out in the SEA Directive and 
Environmental Assessment of Plans 
and Programmes Regulations, 

Habitats Regulations Assessments
The HRA screening considers if the potential impacts 
arising as from a plan are likely to have significant effect on 
any sites designated for their nature conservation 
importance, either alone or in combination with other plans 
and projects. If potential impacts are identified then this will 
trigger the need for a more detailed Appropriate 
Assessment. 

Consultation with specified bodies as 
set out under the Conservation of 
Habitats and Species Regulations 2017

Consulted as part of the consultation on 
the DPD or Neighbourhood Plan 

Other documents
Other documents and studies are necessary for the 
formulation of planning policies.    Examples include 
Strategic Housing & Economic Land Availability 
Assessment (SHELAA) [Formerly SHLAA], Brownfield 
Land Register, Housing Needs Assessments Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan, Green Infrastructure Studies, Transport 
Assessments, and Local Flood Risk Assessments. 

Not generally consulted on, but are 
parts of the evidence base and can be 
challenged through the examination 
process. 

Page 212



13

Planning Policy Documents – Stages in Preparation & 
Opportunities for Involvement

3.8 The diagram below (Figure 2) illustrates the preparation process for the main 
types of policy documents and the opportunities for engagement and 
consultation at each stage.  References to preparation also refer to the 
preparation of any LPDs that are jointly prepared with other authorities and also 
to any revisions of any LDDs.

Figure 2: Planning Policy Documents Preparation Process

Page 213



14

DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENTS (DPD) [Local Plan & others] & 
SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENTS (SPD) PREPARATION

3.9 DPDs such as the Local Plan will require a wide range of engagement across 
the District over a considerable period of time in order to properly consider all 
the issues involved and develop a sound strategy.  The following sections 
describe the main stages for its preparation and the opportunities for 
involvement at each stage and the diagram below (Figure 3) summarises the 
key stages for a DPD.

Figure 3: DPD Preparation Process

Preparation of DPD – early stages of evidence gathering and engagement, this 
stage is the main time to become involved in the identification of issues for the DPD 
and the development of emerging strategies, policies and proposals.

Consultees

3.10 Formal commencement of work on the preparation of a DPD such as the Local 
Plan requires notification under Regulation 18 of the Town & Country Planning 
(Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.  The local planning authority 
must notify the specific and general consultees, local residents and business as 

Page 214



15

appropriate, inviting representations on the content of the document.  Councils 
are required to take into account any representations that are made in 
response.

3.11 The current list of specific and general consultees that would be relevant for 
Winchester City Council are listed in Appendix 1

Duty to Cooperate

3.12 The Duty to Cooperate obligation requires that formal cooperation is sought 
from particular bodies required over planning for development needs.  This is 
particularly important when it is difficult to accommodate identified needs, such 
as for housing within the authority and assistance is sought from neighbouring 
authorities.  The Duty to Cooperate is not a duty to agree.  The Council has to 
demonstrate that it has cooperated with the required consultees when 
submitting documents for examination.  The current list of the Duty to 
Cooperate consultees is attached as Appendix 1.  Some of these are also 
specific or general consultees.

Publicity

3.13 The Council will always give notification of the start of the front loading of a new 
planning policy (DPD or SPD).  New initiatives will be publicised by a notice on 
the website.   Tweets and other social media platforms may be used to 
increase awareness and invite involvement from a wider audience, particularly 
from those not traditionally engaged with planning.   A press release is usually 
prepared for the commencement of work on a new document.  Persons and 
groups registered on the policy database will be notified via the planning policy 
e- newsletter.  It is likely that there will also be a mention in the Parish Connect 
newsletter, that goes to local Parish Councils (and the Winchester Town 
Forum) and Council Members will also be notified.

Community Involvement

3.14 The Council will undertake initial engagement with communities and 
stakeholders in early stages of preparing the Local Plan.  This ‘front-loading’ 
gives people the chance to get involved in plan-making from the beginning of 
the process.  The involvement should assist in the identification of important 
issues and the development of appropriate options.

3.15 The type of methods used and the scope and degree of 
engagement/consultation will vary depending on the nature and scope of the 
document being developed.  Examples include:

 Emails and letters targeting established contacts and Parish Councils

Page 215



16

 Newsletters or leaflets enable more detail to be given on proposals. 
They can also be used to publicise events or meetings and be widely 
available

 Exhibitions and public meetings

 Meetings with stakeholders and local communities such as Parish 
Councils, or workshops on particular issues, or with specific groups

 Surveys and questionnaires

 Social media for publicity and as a forum for debate.

3.16 A combination of methods can often obtain the most comprehensive results, 
however consideration needs to be given to the availability of resources and 
the benefits that will be achieved.  Statutory time constraints need to be taken 
into account. Methods should be chosen in proportion to the scale of the 
issue(s) and the resources (including time and money) available.  In some 
instances there are statutory timescales for consultations or notifications and 
prescribed procedures that need to be followed, which may not allow for 
comprehensive engagement.

3.17 In all cases the following principles should be followed:

 Engagement should reach out to groups, be creative, active and provide 
feedback.

 Consultation should be clear & concise, informative and have a purpose, 
 Arrangements should take into account the groups being consulted and be 

targeted where possible
 Consultations should last for a proportionate amount of time (usually 6 weeks)
 Consultations should not run over the main holiday periods, such as school 

holidays.  If this is unavoidable, additional time periods should be factored in.
 Depending on the content, consultations should be avoided during national or 

local elections.
 Feedback should be provided and representations should be taken account of 

in a way that enables persons to see the council’s response.

Page 216



17

Preparation of SPD

Figure 4: SPD Preparation Process

3.18 SPD supplement policies in the adopted development plan.  They take a variety 
of forms and can be topic-specific or location-specific.  SPDs can be prepared 
by the Council, but in Winchester, local communities have often taken the lead 
in preparing local design SPDs.  Examples of these are Village Design 
Statements, Neighbourhood Design Statements and Local Area Design 
Statements.

3.19 There is a statutory procedure for adopting SPDs, which once adopted can be 
a material consideration in planning applications, but there is considerable 
flexibility in the preparation of SPDs.  However, whoever prepares the SPD, 
there should be community input into the development of the documents.  The 
Council will use similar engagement techniques as in the preparation of DPD, 
targeted as appropriate to nature of the SPD.

Draft DPD/SPD – this stage is the opportunity to make representations on draft 
plans and proposals

Committee

3.20 Before publishing draft DPD or SPD for consultation, they will be considered by 
an executive committee of the Council (such as the Local Plan Committee, or 
the Cabinet) who will approve the draft for consultation.  In some instances the 

Page 217



18

Council’s Portfolio Holder Decision Notice procedure may be a more 
appropriate route to agree for example - draft SPD for consultation.   This is 
opportunity for councillors to discuss the policies.  The meetings are public, so 
there is the opportunity to speak to the committee, notice must be given to the 
Democratic Services Officer if a full reply is sought.  More detail on how to 
speak at committees is provided on the Council’s website.  

Consultation

3.21 There will then be public consultation on the draft.  Regulations set out specific 
requirements, such as a minimum 6 week period for consultation on DPDs and 
a minimum of 4 weeks for SPD.  Regulations also require that certain bodies 
that should be notified and that documents must be available on the website, 
displayed at Council offices and other appropriate places.

3.22 The Council will aim to go beyond these minimum requirements.  The draft 
document (and the evolving sustainability appraisal for DPDs) together with any 
other supporting documents, will be made available on the website, the Council 
offices and key libraries for inspection.  Further publicity will be achieved by 
press release and notices in the local paper.

3.23 Contacts on the data base will be notified of this stage and again, further 
publicity will be garnered via social media, articles on the website etc.  There 
may be public meetings/exhibitions associated with this.  The consultation will 
usually run for at least 6 weeks and will try to avoid major holidays, or extend 
the consultation period accordingly  The preferred method of making 
representations is via the Council’s on-line consultation hub using Citizen 
Space.  However, it is recognised that not everybody is able to make use of this 
format and all email or paper representations will be considered as long as they 
are received by the deadline.

3.24 Draft DPD may have a preferred option or series of options for consideration.  
For all types of policy documents there may be more than one stage of 
consultation depending on the document and the nature and scale of issues 
involved.   This may include targeted consultation on certain issues, or for 
particular locations.

Final DPD/SPD

3.25 Following the consultation on the draft, representations received will be 
considered and changes made where appropriate and justified. A final version 
of the DPD/SPD will be prepared. SPDs can be adopted by the Council by a 
resolution of committee.  However DPDs - such as the Local Plan – are subject 
to a statutory public consultation prior to the formal submission to the Secretary 
of State for examination.

Committee & Council

Page 218

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/councillors-committees/public-participation-at-meetings


19

3.26 Before the DPD/SPD are finalised, they will again be considered at committee, 
which will be a public meeting as before. This enables local councillors to 
debate and agree the final document and ensures that matters raised through 
the consultation are taken into consideration.

DPD

3.27 A meeting of the Full Council is required to approve the final version of the 
DPD.  This final version is the document that the Council intends to submit and 
it may be termed the Pre-Submission, Proposed Submission or Publication 
version of the plan (or other DPD).

3.28 Following approval by the Council for publication and submission there will be a 
further statutory consultation for a period of at least 6 weeks.  Similar publicity 
will be carried out as for the draft DPD.   At this stage of the process legislation 
prescribes that representations must only be made on matters of soundness ie 
whether the document has been properly prepared, and is legally compliant. 
The Council will normally supply further guidance on what this means alongside 
the published DPD.

3.29 The Council cannot respond to representations made at this stage, but will 
send the representations together with a summary of the issues raised, to the 
Planning Inspectorate for consideration when the DPD is submitted.

3.30 Again, representations should ideally be made via Citizen Space, or by email or 
letter. To be taken into account, all representations must be made in writing 
and received by the deadline.

SPD

3.31 SPDs can be adopted when the Council has considered the representations 
made, taken account of any issues raised and made any necessary 
amendments to the SPD.  A meeting of the Council’s Cabinet /Local Plan 
Committee will formally adopt the SPD and it will then be a material planning 
consideration for planning decisions.  

3.32 When planning authorities adopt a SPD, they must write to those who wished 
to be kept informed of its progress and prepare a consultation statement, that 
sets out who was consulted, summarises the main issues raised and shows 
how they have been addressed in the SPD.  SPD are subject to a three month 
challenge period.  

EXAMINATION DPD – This is when the DPD is examined by an independent  
Planning Inspector

Submission

Page 219



20

3.33 Following the period of formal consultation on the pre-submission plan, the final 
DPD and supporting documentation is prepared for submission to the Secretary 
of State (the Planning Inspectorate) for examination.  A programme officer will 
be appointed to administer the examination process.

3.34 Regulations prescribe what supporting documents must be submitted with the 
DPD, which are currently a final Sustainability Appraisal/Strategic 
Environmental Assessment, together with Habitats Regulations/Appropriate 
Assessment; Local Development Scheme; Authorities Monitoring Report and 
Equalities Impact Assessment, a Duty to Cooperate Statement and a 
Statement of Consultation.   For a Local Plan, the Council is also likely to 
prepare self-assessments of the soundness and legality of the Local Plan, 
which will also be made publicly available.

3.35 The Statement of Consultation sets out what bodies and persons were invited 
to make representations, such as the statutory and general consultees, how 
they were invited, a summary of the main issues raised and how the 
representations were taken into account.  It also includes a summary of any 
representations made at the publication of the DPD and copies of the 
representations.  The Duty to Co-operate Statement shows what actions the 
Council has carried out under the Duty to Co-operate requirements, such as 
liaising with neighbouring authorities and statutory consultees.

3.36 When the DPD is submitted a formal notice is published and we will notify all 
those who requested to be notified of the submission together with the specific 
and general consultation bodies.  Regulations also require that a copy of the 
DPD and the documents submitted with it must be made available for 
inspection as soon as reasonably practicable following the submission.  
‘Availability’ is defined in the Regulations as at the principal office and other 
places we consider appropriate, during offices hours & published on the 
website with copies being made available on request.

3.37 No further consultation is undertaken at this stage, but the programme officer 
appointed will write to all those who have made a representation, asking if they 
want to attend any hearing/examination or make further written representations 
when the Inspector publishes the issues to be discussed.  

3.38 The Programme Officer will organise the Examination process and like the 
Inspector is independent from the Council.   All contact and further discussion 
on the submitted plan should be via the Programme Officer who will organise 
any hearing sessions and ensure documents are available for inspection both 
on the internet and at the examination.  The Inspector decides whether a 
hearing should be held and the issues that will be discussed.

3.39 At least 6 weeks before any hearing the Council will publicise the hearing and 
specifically notify those who made representations at the publication stage.

Page 220



21

3.40 Following the examination there will be an Inspector’s Report, which may make 
recommendations and the DPD can be adopted by the Council if it complies 
with these.  If modifications to the DPD are necessary, the council will run a 
further 6 week consultation on these changes before it can adopt the DPD.  
This will include any modifications that were proposed by the Council 
accompanying or following the submission of the plan as well as any further 
modifications proposed following the examination.

3.41 The Inspector’s Report will be published on the council’s website and displayed 
at the council offices and other locations as considered to be appropriate. 
Notice will also be given to persons who requested to be made aware of the 
Report.   The council is likely to further publicise the availability of the Report on 
the website and via social media.

3.42 The council can formally Adopt the plan on receipt of the Inspector’s Report, at 
a formal meeting of the Full Council.  The plan will then be made available in 
accordance with the statutory requirements.  This entails publishing the DPD, 
adoption statement and other relevant evidence base documents on the 
Council’s website and making them available for viewing. The council will also 
use local press and social media to publicise adoption of the local plan.

3.43 The Council will also send a copy of the Adoption Statement to all those who 
have asked to be notified of the Adoption.

3.44 There is a final 6 week period during which challenges can be made on strict 
legal grounds only.  Apart from this, there are no provisions to challenge or 
appeal against the Adopted DPD or any policies within it.

Page 221



22

Neighbourhood Plans and Neighbourhood Development Orders

3.45 Neighbourhood planning was introduced by the Localism Act (2011). The Act 
enables local community groups, subject to specified procedures, to apply to 
the Council for designation as Neighbourhood Forums and for the designation 
of Neighbourhood Areas.  The Forums are generally the local Parish Council.  
In non-parished areas a designated Neighbourhood Forum consisting of 
residents, businesses and other community interests can take the lead.

3.46 Forums are responsible for preparing Neighbourhood Development Plans, 
Community Right to Build Orders or Neighbourhood Development Orders.

3.47 Neighbourhood Plans allow communities to establish general planning policies 
for the development of land in the area. They can set out where new homes, 
businesses, shops and community facilities should be placed in their local area, 
and can allocate small sites for development

3.48 Neighbourhood Development Orders (including community right to build orders) 
grant planning permission for a specific type of development in a particular 
area. This could be either a particular development or a particular class of 
development such as housing or retail.

3.49 Neighbourhood Plans/Orders must be produced in line with national planning 
policy guidance and locally produced planning policies as once hey are made 
they form part of the overall development plan for the area.

3.50 Like local plans, Acts and Regulations cover neighbourhood plan/orders 
preparation, including consultation requirements.  These are currently set out in 
the Neighbourhood Planning Acts 2017 and 2018 and the Neighbourhood 
Planning Regulations 2012 – 2018 (as amended). 

3.51 The Neighbourhood Forum should decide how to engage with their local 
community in preparing the plan/order, up until the final draft (‘proposed 
submission’) plan stage.  The planning authority’s role is to carry out certain 
statutory functions and provide technical advice and support to groups 
developing a plan.   Forums or other groups interested in preparing a 
Neighbourhood Plan or NDO should contact the Council’s planning policy team 
to arrange an initial meeting at which the parameters for assistance with the 
plan/NDO preparation process can be established.

3.52 The diagram below (Figure 4) illustrates the various stages in preparing 
Neighbourhood Plans/Orders, the opportunities for engagement and whether 
consultation is being carried out by the forum or the local planning authority.

Page 222



23

Figure 4: Neighbourhood Plan Preparation Process

Page 223



24

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

3.53 There are CIL Regulations that prescribe the steps that need to be undertaken 
in the preparation of CIL Charging Schedules, as described in Figure 5 below.  
The procedures for preparation, consultation, submission and examination are 
very similar to those for DPD preparation.

3.54 Initial preparation of a draft CIL involves engagement with key stakeholders to 
establish the scope and content of the CIL.  The Council will prepare a 
preliminary draft and this will then be consulted on for a period of 6 weeks.  
Following this, the Council will consider the representations received and 
prepare a Draft Charging Schedule.  This is then consulted upon for a further 
statutory 6 week period.

Figure 5: CIL Preparation Process

3.55 If there are any modifications following consultation on the Draft, there will be 
another consultation for at least 4 weeks.

3.56 Following the consultation periods, the Draft Charging Schedule will be 
submitted to the Secretary of State, The supporting documents submitted with 
the CIL Draft will include a statement of the representations made and how 

Page 224



25

they have been taken into account by the council.  There will be an 
independent examination of the CIL by an Inspector, which is likely to involve a 
public hearing.

3.57 The Inspector will prepare a report on the CIL and make recommendations.  
The council will adopt the CIL by a Council resolution

Other Documents

3.58 Other documents are also produced that form part of the evidence base 
underpinning the statutory documents.  These mainly take the form of technical 
reports, studies and research.  They are not generally consulted on, unless it 
was as part of the research.  Inspectors can consider the evidence base as part 
of the examination of the DPD and the assessment of adequacy of the DPD’s 
preparation.  There are also other general supporting documents that are 
produced such as the LDS, AMR and the Brownfield Land Register, which tend 
to provide information and are available to view on the website, but are not 
subject to public consultation.

Page 225



26

4 DEVELOPMENT  MANAGEMENT

4.1 The Development Management team consider matters related to development 
proposals in the District, which take the form of planning and other applications.  
This also includes the SDNP area, where WCC officers deal with most 
applications on behalf of the National Park.  The service deals with a large 
number of planning applications, but also provides pre-application and informal 
advice for applicants and residents in relation to development matters prior to 
formal applications being made.

General Approach

4.2 Development Management working practices have changed recently, putting 
the customer at the heart of the process in line with the council’s increasing 
customer-focus.  Officers can adapt their working methods to suit the specific 
case.  This enables a tailored solution (within planning legislation) to be 
adopted to suit the specific needs in each case.

4.3 If you are unclear as to whether you need planning permission for a 
development, information can be found on the national Planning Portal website.  
Initial contact for advice from Winchester Council can be made via a dedicated 
development management telephone number (01962 848177) where trained 
officers are able to help with planning enquiries.  They can also take advice 
from Planning Officers and if a response from a Planning Officer is required 
they will arrange this.

4.4 If you would prefer to submit an enquiry via email, we have a dedicated email 
address planning@winchester,gov.uk.This mailbox is constantly monitored to 
provide a timely and appropriate response.  Planning histories and current 
applications can be viewed at the council offices.  If you wish to discuss a 
specific application, it would assist if you let us know you were coming, so we 
can arrange to have any documentation available.  Please contact our planning 
enquiry line on 01962 848177.  

Planning Performance

4.5 In the interests of achieving timely resolution of planning applications, central 
government sets targets for planning authorities to deal with most planning 
applications.  These targets currently are:

 
 Determine 60% of major applications in 13 weeks (or agreed extension 

of time)

 Determine 80% of other applications within 8  weeks (or agreed 
extension of time)

Page 226

https://www.planningportal.co.uk/
mailto:planning@winchester,gov.uk


27

  Determine 75% of minor applications within 8  weeks (or agreed 
extension of time) There are other performance measures for non 
material minor amendments, prior notification applications and 
discharge of planning conditions.

4.6 Applicants can appeal against ‘non-determination’ if an application is not 
determined within the above timescales, although in the interest of achieving 
the best outcomes we will sometimes seek to agree a longer period with 
applicants.  If the Council and applicant agree to an extension of time, it must 
be agreed in writing.

4.7 A Planning Performance Agreement is a project management tool which can 
be used for the Council and applicants to agree timescales, actions and 
resources for handling particular planning applications.  They can be 
particularly useful for setting out an efficient and transparent process for large 
or complex applications, for all stakeholders involved.

4.8 Anyone in the development industry is encouraged to register on the planning 
database.  This enables the Council to keep potential developers up to date 
with changes to Winchester’s planning system.  An Agents’ Forum is based 
around this and the Council holds regular meetings where developers and 
others involved in the planning process can discuss current planning issues.

Pre-Application

4.9 Applicants are encouraged to approach the council for pre-application advice, 
particularly in more complex cases, which will provide an opinion on the likely 
acceptability of proposal.  This allows schemes to be amended and relevant 
matters addressed before a planning application is made.  Details of the current 
Pre-Application advice service can be found on the council’s website at Pre-
application Advice

4.10 The Council’s pre-application advice is provided directly to the inquirer and the 
proposals are not subject to public consultation.  Developers are therefore 
encouraged to carry out their own consultation in the area where they are 
planning new development prior to the submission of a planning application   
Local knowledge can often assist in identifying planning issues which can be 
incorporated into early design stage prior to the submission of an application. It 
is particularly useful to engage with local parish councils and ward members 
and the immediate neighbours of a site at an early stage of proposals.

4.11 Pre-submission consultation by applicants is particularly important for major 
applications, such a large residential developments or large mixed use sites, 
developments by major institutions etc, but should also be undertaken for 
smaller scale schemes.  The extent of engagement and consultation should be 
proportionate to the scale and nature of the proposal.  Examples of 

Page 227

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-applications/application-for-pre-application-advice
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-applications/application-for-pre-application-advice


28

engagement include; public meetings and workshops with stakeholders such 
as parish councils and community groups, targeted consultations with particular 
interest groups, manned exhibitions and letter and flyer distributions.  For 
smaller applications it may be appropriate to engage with neighbours and 
parish councils.

4.12 Early engagement with the local community enables the developers to explain 
their proposals and the community to be better informed and raise any issues 
that they may be concerned about.  It is often possible to then amend 
proposals to address some of these issues, before formal applications are 
submitted.  Examples of issues include the layout of the site, the design of 
buildings, important trees or local environmental features, access and car 
parking issues.  

Planning Applications

4.13 Figure 7 that follows this chapter illustrates how planning applications are 
processed and this is described in more detail in the paragraphs below.

Using the planning search

4.14 Once an application is valid (i.e. submitted with the required documents and 
fee) the application form and any supporting documents submitted will be made 
available on the Council website.  The planning application search section of 
the website, allows for details of proposals to be accessed. Searches can be 
made using the reference number, or a keyword, postcode, or address. For 
reasons of transparency and in order to keep people as informed as possible, 
all correspondence – including internal consultations and public representations 
– will be made available here.  This will be kept as up to date as possible.  The 
details on the planning search will also provide other useful information such as 
contacts and key dates.

4.15 The details of developments in the South Downs area should be viewed on the 
SDNP website.  Applications in SDNP cannot be viewed on the WCC website.

Notifications

4.16 The Council will publicise applications.  Applications are available for viewing 
via the public access system from an early stage.  Specific notifications will also 
be undertaken by the Council where appropriate.  There are statutory 
requirements which set out what the Council must do and this varies according 
to the type, scale and location of the proposal and also the type of application 
applied for.  These requirements generally set out the minimum necessary.  In 
some cases the local planning authority has discretion to decide how it fulfils 

Page 228

https://www.southdowns.gov.uk/planning/


29

the consultation requirements.  The different requirements for different 
categories of developments are set out in general terms the table below. There 
are various forms of Prior Approval procedures which have specific 
requirements, which are not all listed in the table below.  Other particular 
requirements may also apply in the case of Listed Buildings, Ancient 
Monuments and within Conservation Areas.

Table 2: Statutory Consultation Requirements

* The 

statutory requirement is either/or, although both are often used

4.17 The majority of planning applications are consulted on via the display of a site 
notice on, or nearby the site, together with letters sent to neighbours.  In some 
cases there may also be statutory consultees whom the Council are required to 
seek views from.  The case officer will decide what consultation methods are 
the most appropriate for particular applications, arrange for the display of a site 
notice and will visit the site and will also decide what neighbouring properties to 
notify by a letter.  Site visits to neighbours may also be undertaken.

4.18 The consultation period lasts for 21 days, and representations can be made via 
the public access system within this time.  Representations can still be made 

Type of Development Press Website Site Notice Neighbour
Major development
Over 10 dwellings
Over 1,000 sqm 
floorspace or
Site larger than 0.5ha

  * *

Minor development
Below the above 
thresholds

* *

Householder 
development * *
Application 
accompanied by an 
Environmental Impact 
Assessment (EIA)

  

Proposal affecting a 
public Right of Way 
(ROW)

  

Listed Building 
Consent  

Conservation Area 
Consent  

Some Prior Approval 
procedures: e.g. 
demolition, 



Telecommunications 
Prior Approval * *

Page 229



30

after that time if a decision has not yet been taken and the comments reach the 
case officer in time.

4.19 The case officer will also decide what other statutory and non-statutory 
consultations to make, such as to relevant environmental bodies (eg 
Environment Agency, water companies), amenity groups and internal council 
consultees (eg strategic planning, environmental protection, historic 
environment, drainage and landscape).

4.20 A weekly list of planning applications (and other development applications) is 
published on the Council’s website, made available at the Council offices and 
emailed to Parish Councils and the Winchester Town Forum.  In certain cases 
(see table above) applications are also publicised by a notice in the local paper.

4.21 The Council seeks to ensure that a wide range of people are aware of local 
development proposals.  Therefore, some significant applications for major 
development are highlighted on the Council’s website and tweets and press 
releases are also made in relation to these.

Commenting on Applications

4.22 The most effective way to make comments on planning applications is by using 
the planning access system and the simple pro forma linked to the online 
application. The representation will be available for the case officer to see 
straightaway and published on line within the following few days.

4.23 Exceptionally, alternative arrangements for making representations can be 
made via the case officer; however, in order to be taken into account, all 
representations must be made in writing.  It is not possible to treat these in 
confidence and they will therefore be published on the Council website, but 
signatures and personal email addresses and telephone numbers will not be 
made publicly available, in accordance with data protection requirements under 
the GDPR.

4.24 The local Parish Council and Ward Councillors can make representations on 
your behalf.  Within Winchester Town, where there is no Parish Council, the 
Winchester Town Forum discusses local issues and can also make 
representations on your behalf, but it does not have the same formal role that 
parish councils do in relation to planning applications.  The role of Ward 
Members in Winchester Town is therefore particularly important in relation to 
planning applications.

4.25 Comments that use inappropriate language, or are offensive, including on the 
grounds of race, religion, disability or sexuality, will not be acceptable and may 
lead to the whole representation being rejected.

Page 230

https://planningapps.winchester.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=weeklyList


31

How applications are assessed.

4.26 The case officer will undertake a site visit, asking if the agent or applicant would 
like to attend.  Neighbouring properties are also often visited. Case officers will 
engage with applicants and other interested parties on the details of 
applications to achieve a positive outcome, negotiating and carrying out 
meetings, conducting telephone calls or using emails as appropriate. The case 
officer can be contacted to discuss applications and may undertake further site 
visits if required.  

4.27 Sometimes there are amended plans as a result of negotiations.  Further 
consultations may be undertaken where there are changes from the original 
application, depending on the extent and nature of the changes.  The case 
officer’s judgement will be used in these situations, and consultations may only 
last for 14 days.

4.28 Legislation requires that planning applications are determined in accordance 
with the development plan unless material considerations suggest otherwise 
(although there are exceptions to this, such as Prior Notification Procedures 
where the planning authority can only consider particular aspects of the 
proposal as set out in legislation).  All representations and consultation 
responses will be taken into account when reaching a decision and it is 
important to understand the nature of any community concerns.  However, 
weight can only be given to comments concerning planning issues.

4.29 Examples of issues that may be relevant include:

 Development Plan policies

 Government legislation and advice

 Case law

 Adopted supplementary planning document (eg Village Design Statements)

 Design, appearance and layout

 Conservation of the built and natural environments, including impact on the 
historic environment

 Impact on the amenity of neighbours (eg privacy and daylight)

 Trees

 Highways safety, traffic and parking

 Pollution, including noise and light pollution

 Flooding

Page 231



32

 Planning history

4.30 The following are examples of matters which are NOT generally relevant 
planning considerations:

 Effect on property values

 Loss of views over other people's land

 Possible future development

 Competition between businesses

 An applicant's motives for making the application

 Matters covered under other legislation (eg building regulations, 
restrictive covenants, alcohol licenses, environmental health)

 Private property rights

 Private disputes concerning property ownership or boundaries

Making the Planning Decision

4.31 The case officer will make a recommendation based on consideration of all the 
above, recommending approval or refusal of the application.  The Head of 
Development Management and Team Leaders have delegated powers to deal 
with most applications and the majority of applications are dealt with by the 
team under powers of delegation.  However, some applications are referred to 
the Planning Committee for one or more of the following reasons:

1. At the request of a City Councillor (based on material planning reasons)

2. At the request of a Parish or Town Council (based on material planning 
reasons) when their views are contrary to the intended decision of the 
officer

3. The Head of Development Management considers the application to be for 
significant development and intends to grant planning permission

4. Six or more representations (raising material planning considerations) are 
received from separate addresses contrary to the officer’s 
recommendation.  Petitions count as one representation for this purpose.

5. The application is submitted by, or on behalf of the Council or includes 
Council-owned land, approval is recommended and at least one objection 
has been received

Page 232



33

6. The application relates to a Member or Officer of the Council

4.32 WCC deals with most planning applications within the South Downs area of the 
District on behalf of the SDNP under an agency agreement.  WCC will carry out 
the necessary registration, notification and consultation and officers of WCC 
will assess the application.  We will adopt Winchester City Council’s scheme of 
delegation when we handle an application on behalf of the SDNP, and 
therefore the triggers referenced in 4.28 above would apply.  Major or 
significant applications are dealt with by the SDNP team direct. 

Planning Committee

4.33 Public speaking on planning applications which come to the Planning 
Committee is encouraged, although the Public Speaking Co-ordinator must be 
contacted at least one working day before the committee.  Further information 
on the arrangements for speaking are available on the council’s website,   
Committee Agendas are available one week before the Committee, which will 
include the officer’s report and recommendation.  Those who have commented 
on an application are individually notified.

4.34 Currently Planning Committee is generally held every four weeks on Thursdays 
in the Winchester Guildhall.  For applications in the Waterlooville Major 
Development Area, there is a special Waterlooville Committee held jointly with 
Havant Borough Council.  The location and frequency for this will vary 
depending on the applications submitted. The website will provide up-to-date 
information on the latest meetings schedule and location.

Post-Decision & Appeals

4.35 Applicants will receive a decision notice.  Those who have either objected to, or 
supported, a planning application are not given written notification of the 
decision, however all decisions can be viewed on the website via the public 
assess system.  The relevant application page will show the decision. For 
applications considered by planning committee the officer’s report will be on the 
relevant committee agenda and the committee minutes will also be available on 
the website soon after the meeting.

4.36 Only applicants have the right of appeal, either against the refusal of 
permission, or any conditions imposed on the grant of planning permission.   
An appeal must be made within six months of the Council’s decision, in most 
cases, however where the appeal relates to householder development or 
where an enforcement notice has been served the time is reduced to 12 weeks.  
Applicants can also submit an appeal on the grounds of non-determination, if 
the Council has not determined the application within specified time periods 
(para 4.6 above provides details of these).

Page 233

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/meetings/committees/15
https://planningapps.winchester.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/Meetings


34

4.37 There are no rights of appeal within planning law for other parties such as local 
residents who objected to an application which the Council has permitted. 
There are provisions for Judicial Review in limited cases related to procedural 
matters and points of law. If an appeal is lodged, the Council will notify all those 
who made representations on the original application and advise them how to 
make their views known to the independent Planning Inspector, who will be 
appointed by the government to deal with the appeal.  The Council will also 
forward details of all representations previously submitted, to the Planning 
Inspectorate.

4.38 Following the grant of planning permission, there are often various conditions to 
be complied with, commonly in relation to materials and landscape matters.  
These matters are not generally subject to consultation as they are technical 
matters of detail.  This may involve consultation with consultees.

4.39 Where amendments are proposed to approvals, the case officer will assess 
whether the amendments are sufficiently minor and can be treated as a non 
material minor amendment.  In these cases there is no legislative requirement 
to re-consult, although informal consultation may sometimes occur at the 
discretion of the case officer.  If a change is not considered minor a full re-
submission of the planning application is required to enable appropriate 
engagement and consultation.

Enforcement

4.40 The Council employs enforcement officers who investigate alleged breaches of 
planning control.  Sometimes interested parties may be contacted for their 
input, such as any information they have regarding existing uses.  Generally, 
however, enforcement investigations are not carried out in the public domain.  
For more details on the Councils approach to enforcement you can review the 
Councils Local Enforcement Plan.  
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement

4.41 Investigations can result in planning applications being made to remedy a 
breach of planning legislation.   All planning applications will be consulted on in 
the normal way, as set out in the above paragraphs.

Page 234

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning/planning-enforcement


35

Figure 6: Planning Application Process

Page 235



36

APPENDICES 

1 Consultees
2 Glossary

Page 236



37

Appendix 1: Local Plan Consultees

Specific Consultees:

The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 specify 
various bodies that must be consulted if the Council considers that they will be affected by 
what is proposed in a Development Plan Document.  These are often also referred to as 
statutory consultees.  Some of these bodies are also prescribed for the purposes of Duty to 
Cooperate requirements and this is indicated below.  Where bodies listed cease to exist or 
are renamed, the successor bodies will be consulted:

Local Planning Authorities:

 Hampshire County Council
 South Downs National Park Authority
 Basingstoke and Deane Borough Council
 Eastleigh Borough Council
 East Hampshire District Council
 Havant Borough Council
 Fareham Borough Council
 Portsmouth City Council
 Test Valley Borough Council

Local Enterprise Partnerships:

 The Solent LEP
 Enterprise M3 LEP

Town / Parish Councils:

 All Town and Parish Councils within and adjoining Winchester City Council

Other organisations:

 The Coal Authority
 The Environment Agency
 Historic England
 Network Rail Infrastructure Limited
 Highways England
 Homes and Communities Agency
 Marine Management Organisation
 Natural England
 The Secretary of State for Transport in relation to the Secretary of State’s functions 

concerning railways
 Partnership for Urban South Hampshire (PUSH)
 Local Nature Partnerships
 Utility companies (Gas, Electricity, Sewage, Telecommunications and Water)
 NHS Trust
 Clinical Commissioning Groups
 Police and Crime Commissioner for Hampshire
 HM Prison Service / National Offender Management Service
 Royal Mail Properties

Page 237



38

General Consultees

The Regulations also require local planning authorities to consult with bodies from the 
following categories where they have and interest in the planning authorities’ area and where 
the subject matter of the Local Development Document of Supplementary Planning 
Document is likely to affect them:

 voluntary bodies;
 bodies which represent the interests of different racial, ethnic or national groups;
 bodies which represent the interests of different religious groups;
 bodies which represent the interests of disabled persons.
 bodies which represent the interests of persons carrying on business in the area;

Examples of general consultation bodies are given below.  This list is provide for example 
purposes only and is not comprehensive.

Examples of General Consultation Bodies

Environment and conservation groups (e.g. 
the Royal Society for the Protection of Birds, 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust, 
Campaign for Protection of Rural England, 
Friends of the Earth, WinAcc)

Sport England and Sport Hampshire

Local resident associations Disability Groups (Disability Rights 
Commission, Disabled Persons Transport 
Advisory Committee)

Minority ethnic groups Health care groups (eg GP Practices and 
Health Centres)

Gypsy and Traveller groups (eg Gypsy 
Council, Traveller Education Office)

Transport providers/operators

Religious groups Housing interest groups (eg Housing 
Associations, Home Builders Federation)

Older persons groups (eg Help the Aged, 
Age Concern)

Landowners and developers (eg Ministry of 
Defence, Church Commissioners, Crown 
Estate, local developers & agents)

Youth groups, schools colleges Local businesses/ bodies which represent 
local businesses (eg Chamber of Commerce, 
BiD)

Neighbourhood Development Orders and Community Right to Build Orders require 
qualifying bodies to notify specific bodies depending on the specific location of the proposed 
Order. They are also encouraged to involve the above types of bodies as appropriate.  The 
full list of requirements is set out in the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 
(Schedule 1).

Page 238



39

Appendix 2: Glossary

Abbreviation Term Explanation

AMR
Authority 
Monitoring 
Report

Assesses the implementation of the Local 
Development Scheme and the extent to which 
policies in Local Development Documents are being 
successfully implemented.

BLR Brownfield Land 
Register

Details of all brownfield sites that are suitable for 
housing development irrespective of their planning 
status.  It includes allocations, sites with extant 
planning permission and future development sites

CIL
Community 
Infrastructure 
Levy

A levy that local authorities can choose to charge on 
new developments in their area. The charges are 
based on formula relating to the size and type of new 
development and money can be used to fund 
infrastructure that the Council or community want.

Development 
Plan

Documents which set out the policies and proposals 
for the development and use of land. In the district of 
Winchester the development plan comprises the 
Local Plan, polices maps, Hampshire County Council 
Minerals and Waste Plan and Neighbourhood Plans.

DPD Development 
Plan Document

Development Plan Documents are the parts of the 
LDF which are adopted following independent 
examination and which provide the statutory planning 
guidance for the District.

Duty to Co-
operate

The Localism Act 2011 places a legal duty on Local 
Planning Authorities, County Councils, and public 
bodies to actively engage on an on-going basis to in 
Local Plan preparation in the context of strategic 
cross boundary matters.

A Duty to Co-operate Statement is submitted with 
DPDs to show how the planning authority has 
complied with the duty.

EIA
Environmental 
Impact 
Assessment

A procedure to be followed for certain types of project 
to ensure that decisions are made in full knowledge 
of any likely significant effects on the environment.

EqIA
Equalities 
Impact 
Assessment

A procedure adopted the City Council to examine the 
impact of draft policies on gender, age, race, 
disability and health, sexuality, religion and belief 
together with other, more specific categories such as 
those on low incomes, with caring responsibilities or 
living in rural areas.

Evidence Base Information gathered by the Local Planning Authority 
to support the Local Plan and other Development 

Page 239



40

Plan Documents.

GDPR 
General Data 
Protection 
Regulations

The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) 
Provides greater data protection and privacy for 
individuals and limits the purposes for which 
organisations can hold and use data for 

HRA
Habitat 
Regulations 
Assessment

Used to assess the impacts of proposals and land-
use plans against the conservation objectives of 
European Protected sites to ascertain if the 
plan/proposal would adversely affect the integrity of 
the site.

LDS
Local 
Development 
Scheme

Provides a project plan identifying which 
development plan documents will be produced and 
when.

NPPF
National 
Planning Policy 
Framework

Introduced in 2012, this framework sets out the 
governments planning policies and how these are 
expected to be applied.

NDO
Neighbourhood 
Development 
Order

An order made by a local planning authority through 
which parish councils and neighbourhood forums can 
grant permission for specific development proposals 
or classes of development.

NP
Neighbourhood 
Plans 

Neighbourhood Plans are a way for communities to 
allocate land for new homes, shops or offices to be 
built, and to have a say on what those new buildings 
should look like and the type of infrastructure which 
would be provided.

NA Neighbourhood 
Area The area to be covered by a Neighbourhood Plan 

NF Neighbourhood 
Forum 

The body created to take forward the neighbourhood 
plan 

Planning policy 
consultation 
database

Consultation database maintained by the planning 
policy team which includes anyone who has 
requested to be consulted on the preparation of 
planning policy documents.

Proposals Map
Illustrates on a base map (reproduced from, or based 
upon a scaled map base) all the policies contained in 
Development Plan Documents

SDNP South Downs 
National Park

Part of Winchester District lies within the South 
Downs National Park, an area designated under the 
National Parks and Access to the countryside Act 
1949 (as amended).

Page 240



41

Statement of 
Consultation

Prepared for DPDs.  Sets out what bodies and 
persons were invited to make representations, how 
they were invited, and a summary of the main issues 
raised and how the representations were taken into 
account.  

SEA

Strategic 
Environmental 
Assessment 

A generic term used to describe environmental 
assessment as applied to policies, plans and 
programmes. The European ‘SEA Directive’ 
(2001/42/EC) requires a formal ‘environmental 
assessment of certain plans and programmes, 
including those in the field of planning and land use’

SHLAA

Strategic 
Housing Land 
Availability 
Assessment

A key component of the evidence base needed to 
support the delivery of the Local Plan The study 
provides detailed information on potential housing 
sites and land supply and aims to identify sufficient 
land to accommodate the District’s housing need.

SHELAA

Strategic 
Housing and 
Economic Land 
Availability 
Assessment

A technical assessment which considers the 
availability, suitability and achievability of land in the 
District for possible development. This includes 
housing as well as all other forms of development.

SPD
Supplementary 
Planning 
Document

Provide supplementary information in respect of the 
policies in Development Plan Documents. They do 
not form part of the Development Plan and are not 
subject to independent examination.

SA Sustainability 
Appraisal

tool for appraising policies to ensure they reflect 
sustainable
development objectives (i.e. social, environmental 
and economic factors) and are required to
Be undertaken for all local development documents.

Page 241



This page is intentionally left blank



CAB3079
CABINET

WINCHESTER TOWN FORUM

REPORT TITLE: COMMUNITY AND VOLUNTARY SECTOR GRANTS REVIEW

WINCHESTER TOWN FORUM – 14 NOVEMBER 2018
CABINET – 12 DECEMBER 2018

REPORT OF PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Porfolio Holder for Business Partnerships, 
Councillor Rob Humby 

Contact Officer:  Susan Robbins  Tel No: 01962 8498 641 Email: 
Srobbins@winchester.gov.uk 

WARD(S):  ALL

PURPOSE

This report provides the findings of the Grants Review that commenced in June 
2018.  It gives details of the engagement exercises that were undertaken with funded 
organisations, observer Members, Council officers from a range of services and the 
survey of ward Councillors and Parish Councils.  It presents the data and financial 
information that was researched to give insight to the extent of the Council’s current 
funding practices and the evidence to support change.  Finally the report proposes 
changes to the current funding programme and which if agreed will be introduced in 
the 2019/20 financial year.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. That the new funding programme be approved and be introduced in 2019/20 
financial year including:

a. The range of funds. 

Page 243

Agenda Item 14



CAB3079

b. The size of funding pot.

c. The target outcomes.

d. The revised decision making arrangements and delegated authority 
levels.

2. That the creation of the funding criteria, detailed outcomes, application 
processes and assessments, supported by a communications plans, be 
delegated to the Corporate Head of Engagement in consultation with 
appropriate Heads of Service, to be signed-off by the relevant Portfolio 
Holder. 

3. That the issue of a consistent approach to how the charity, community and 
voluntary sector organisations are charged for rent in Council owned property 
be agreed with the Corporate Head of Estates and approved by the relevant 
Portfolio Holder.

4. That all organisations that participated in the review exercise be informed of 
the proposed changes and be thanked for their contributions and helpful 
approach in volunteering time, insight and ideas.

Page 244



CAB3079

IMPLICATIONS:

1 COUNCIL STRATEGY OUTCOME

1.1 The Grants Review supports the Council in being entrepreneurial in its 
approach to delivering services, using insight and evidence to support 
decisions and innovative in the way resources are used.  The grants 
programme contributes to all four strategic priorities.

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 In February 2018 the Council agreed a community and voluntary sector grant 
programme budget of £762,500 for 2018-19.   This is made up of mix of 
grants and commissions, funded from the general fund and Winchester Town 
account:

Type of Award General Fund Town Account Total
Grants
Core funding grants £466,500 £73,000 £539,500
Project grants £106,000 £7,000 £113,000
Sub total £572,500 £80,000 £652,500
Commissions
Voluntary sector support £50,000 0 £50,000
Housing service 15,000 0 £15,000
Transport services 45,000 0 £45,000
Total £682,500 £80,000 £762,500

2.2 Whilst all types of funding have been looked at by the review, a distinction has 
been drawn between grant funding and commissioning. This will help provide 
greater clarity for applicants, officers, members and assist in accounting for 
outcomes.  However to create a comprehensive picture of what monies are 
paid to organisations to ensure transparency all the different forms of funding 
to organisations will be collated.

2.3 Therefore the grant review has concentrated on the grant element of the 
budget which totals £652,500.  This is currently divided into different funds as 
following:

Core funds – Partner organisations £482,200
Core funds – other organisations £57,300
Project Grants £113,000
Total £652,500

 

Page 245



CAB3079

2.4 The proposed new grants programme will total £626,000.  This is broken 
down as:

Strategic Fund £356,000
Priority Outcomes Fund £150,000
Small local grants £40,000
Crowd fund £80,000
Total £626,000
Funded by:

General Fund
Winchester Town Account

£546,000
£80,000

Flexible pot (General Fund)
Funded from current grant reserve and 
any unused grant from each financial 
year

£40,000

2.5 This results in a small reduction of £26,500 in 2019/20.

2.6 The flexible pot is created by using current grant reserves of £47,000

2.7 It is has been estimated that it will cost £25,000 to set up the crowd funding 
platform which will cover user license, set up and launch fee.  This will be 
funded from an allocation of £30,000 already agreed for this purpose.

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 The current grants programme does have agreed award decision processes 
and legal grant agreements to formally offer and accept any grant. The new 
programme will have clearly stated assessment criteria and process; decision 
making authorities and delegations and grant agreements.  With the proposed 
simplified range of grants and application process it is also proposed to 
simplify the authorities and delegations. Details are give at paragraph 11.51.

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 None

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are a number of organisations that occupy Council owned buildings, or 
buildings that are on Council owned land.  There are lease agreements in 
place with all but these vary between each case. Whilst the Council will wish 
to retain commercial confidentiality around these charges and rents, it is 

Page 246



CAB3079

important to see the full picture and to consider the implications of paying core 
funding that will be used to pay the Council its rent. 

5.2 Whilst the review highlighted this as an issue, a recommended approach has 
not been explored.  Therefore authority is sought for the Corporate Head of 
Engagement to liaise with the Corporate Head of Estates to agree an 
approach, to be approved by the relevant Portfolio Holder.

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION 

6.1 A full engagement programme was undertaken to capture the views of a 
varied range of people and organisations that helped shape the proposals.  
Feedback on the final outcomes will be built into this final stage of the review.  
Communication, information and promotion about the Council’s grant 
programme is crucial and a communications plan is proposed; to be 
developed with the Head of Communications.  

6.2 This item was discussed at The Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting on 
the 15 October 2018 and the Corporate Head of Engagement is able to 
provide a verbal update on comments made at this meeting.   

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS

7.1 The priorities that are proposed for the target outcomes of the grant 
programme include sustainability, green technologies and environmental 
enhancements.

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT 

8.1 The equality impact assessment for the current programme has been revised 
to reflect the new approach.  This assessment is provided as Appendix 1

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

9.1 With the introduction of the online crowd funding platform a data impact 
assessment will be carried out with the chosen supplier.  The current data 
protection process for the grant application form will continue to apply to the 
new programme in line with the GDPR regulations.

10 RISK MANAGEMENT 

Risk Mitigation Opportunities
Property
Inconsistent approach to 
rents / leases causes 

Agree approach for 
charities and community 

Will create  clear and 
transparent approach

Page 247



CAB3079

Risk Mitigation Opportunities
organisations to criticise 
the Council and demand 
changes to agreements, 
causing costs, loss of 
income etc.

groups etc.
Opportunity to link to 
mandatory and 
discretionary Business 
Rates Relief.

Community Support
The new programme 
causes some 
organisations to receive 
less funding 

Transition arrangements 
need to be agreed so that 
any changes are reduced 
in impact and duration.

Greater support is offered 
to organisations to seek 
other sources of funding 
and so in the long term 
become more resilient and 
self sufficient.

Timescales
The new grant 
arrangements aren’t 
available for the start of 
the financial year.

Current grant arrangement 
will not be replaced until 
new programmes are 
ready for launch so that no 
organisation is left 
financially vulnerable.

Some elements will be 
quicker to launch than 
other and these will 
proceed to create access 
to funding opportunities

 

Project capacity
Insufficient staff available 
to implement the changes 
to the grant systems and 
process etc.

Create a project 
implementation plan with 
resource requirements 
identified.
Introduce a phased launch 
to match available 
resources

Financial / VfM
Long term efficiencies and 
savings are not generated 
by the new programme

Close management and 
monitoring requirements 
will be part of the reporting 
process.

Publish an annual 
statement / report to 
highlight what has been 
achieved in terms of 
impacts, value and social 
benefit.

Innovation
New online platforms fail 
or are abused

Supplier will provide the 
necessary assurance and 
liability insurances.
Process will be added to 
vet and check content

Reputation
Changes mean that some 
organisations do not like 
the new programme and 

Engagement, 
communication, transition 
and support arrangement 
will be put in place

Seek positive feedback to 
counter any negative 
comments

Page 248



CAB3079

Risk Mitigation Opportunities
openly criticise the Council
Other

11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION:

11.1 Background: Current Funding programme 

11.2 The Council currently offers a range of grants for different purposes: core 
funding and grants for projects; small medium, business, cultural etc.  This 
financial year the budget allocation for these grants is £652,500.  The 
following gives a summary of the organisations funded, the geographical 
spread of where they deliver services and the range of beneficiaries 
supported.

11.3 To date the core funding awards to individual organisation this financial year 
are:

11.4 Geographical Spread 

The following chart shows how many of the fourteen funded organisations 
above work in each ward in comparison the overall share of District’s 
population in that ward.

Page 249



CAB3079

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

7.0%

8.0%

9.0%

9

14 13 13 13 12
9

7
9 8 8

13 12

8 8 9

Al
re

sf
or

d 
&

 It
ch

en
 V

al
le

y

Ba
dg

er
 F

ar
m

 &
 O

liv
er

s 
Ba

tt
er

y

St
 B

ar
na

ba
s

St
 B

ar
th

ol
om

ew

St
 L

uk
e

W
on

st
on

 &
 M

ic
he

ld
ev

er

Bi
sh

op
s W

al
th

am

Ce
nt

ra
l M

eo
n 

Va
lle

y

Co
ld

en
 C

om
m

on
 &

 T
w

yf
or

d

De
nm

ea
d

So
ut

hw
ic

k 
&

 W
ic

kh
am

St
 M

ic
ha

el

St
 P

au
l

U
pp

er
 M

eo
n 

Va
lle

y

W
hi

te
le

y 
&

 S
he

df
ie

ld

Th
e 

W
or

th
y'

s

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

Population % share No. of Organistions

11.5 User profile

For the same currently funded organisations this chart shows the number of 
each working with specific client groups.  It clearly shows that most 
organisations support young people and families and vulnerable people.

Page 250



CAB3079

11.6 For the project grants the breakdown of the awards in last the financial year 
2017/18 (latest full data available) was:

Fund Value awarded No. of projects
Small Grants £7,500 19

Project Grants £51,000 17

Town Forum Grants £4,100 9

Business grants / access to 
work grants

£28,411 30

Cultural grants £9,078 8
Total £100,089 83

11.7 Grants – Value (£) by Ward

This chart shows the total value of grants awarded in each ward for the 
nineteen small grants and seventeen project grants.

Page 251



CAB3079

Al
l W

ar
ds

Al
re

sf
or

d 
&

 It
ch

en
 V

al
le

y

Ba
dg

er
 F

ar
m

 &
 O

liv
er

s 
Ba

tt
er

y

Co
ld

en
 C

om
m

on
 &

 T
w

yf
or

d

St
 B

ar
na

ba
s

St
 B

ar
th

ol
om

ew

St
 L

uk
e

St
 M

ic
ha

el

St
 P

au
l

U
pp

er
 M

eo
n 

Va
lle

y

So
ut

hw
ic

k 
&

 W
ic

kh
am

W
on

st
on

 &
 M

ic
he

ld
ev

er

Th
e 

W
or

th
ys

W
hi

te
le

y 
&

 S
he

df
ie

ld

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

Small Projects Projects

11.8 Review purpose and scope

11.9 Winchester City Council values the role of the voluntary sector in delivering 
the outcomes of the Council’s Strategy.  It seeks to build the capacity, 
resilience, reach and ambition of the sector, in order to make the most 

effective contribution to improving the quality of life for 
everyone in our District.   The Directory for Social Change 
states “by investing locally, grants can be targeted at local 
organisations, investment can be kept within the local 
economy. Grants can also help bring in other resources to 
support services and add value, for example volunteer time, 
or donations from companies or the public.”    
Source: https://www.dsc.org.uk/

11.10 The review was instigated due to three key issues. Firstly, in response to the 
need to meet the financial challenges facing the Council, and in particular to 
seek new ways to deliver value. Secondly, the review also sought to work with 
partners on service provision that meets the needs of residents, businesses 
and visitors.  Finally, the review looked to simplify the various funding streams 
for different organisations.   

Page 252



CAB3079

11.11 The grants review entailed two pieces of activity; 1) engagement - to meet 
and talk to funded organisations, member observers, Councillors and officers; 
2) research – to create a comprehensive picture for grant funding across the 
council and organisations, to profile local community needs and look at other 
local authority grant  programmes to benchmark best practice.

11.12 The principles used to guide the review are to : 

a) Approve funding on an outcome basis.

b) Prioritise and rationalise the funding to outside bodies.

c) Increase efficiencies by avoiding duplication of delivery through 
multiple awards across services (and other public bodies). 

d) Seek innovation and new approaches to increase income to enable 
grants to be funded from other sources or generate a return on 
investment. 

11.13 The scope of the review has been Community & Voluntary sector grants, and 
to ensure a corporate and strategic approach is considered in the review, the 
funding given to a number of the organisations from other budgets across the 
Council.  This is especially due to the fact that they demonstrate the varied 
and multiple ways in which the Council funds organisations through individual 
service commissions.  The only areas excluded are the externally funded 
programmes such as LEADER and Supporting Families.

11.14 The benefits being sought as a results of the review are: 

a) Clarity on Council objectives and outcomes. 

b) Simplicity, transparency, fairness and equality.

c) Proactive (rather than reactive) direction of where investment should 
be focused.

d) Enhanced reputation and increased recognition for the Council’s 
investment. 

e) Capture of social value and impact at a strategic level. 

f) Continuation of high quality services that meet local needs and which, 
if not provided, would be a significant cost to the Council, society, 
communities and individuals.

g) Administration is efficient and resources deployed effectively.

Page 253



CAB3079

11.15 Review Process

11.16 Engagement

Between July and September a series of meetings and conversations were 
held with a range of people, including chief officers and trustees of funded 
organisations, members and officers.   A full list of all those engaged with, and 
the comments they made, is given in the Appendices.

11.17 Without exception the level and quality of participation was high, with the 
openness and positive ideas providing valuable insight to consider.  

11.18 The key points from the discussions with organisations were:

a) The core grants are greatly valued by partners.

b) The relationship with the Council is also valued – in fact some feel it 
could be strengthened to mutual benefit.

c) Would welcome longer term funding agreement to give security and 
allow longer term service / business planning.

11.19 Comments from Members include:

a) Requirement for process to be clear; simple; transparent and fair.

b) Want reports on what is being achieved and to celebrate success.

c) Remove dual application processes.

d) Need a mechanism to respond to support unplanned / unforeseen 
service needs or projects.

11.20 Comments from officers

a) Welcome clarity and information on grants and commissioning; e.g. 
definitions, policies on reserves, risk, outcomes etc.

b) Relationships with organisations should remain with service leads.

c) Centrally held source of information on funded organisations, providing 
oversight and to share data and intelligence.

11.21 Research

11.22 Financial Support

11.23 Grants

The current approach to offering grants is predominately challenge  or 
competitive funding with only two given as criteria awards.  In summary: 

Page 254



CAB3079

Award type Fund Range Pot size
Core funding: partner 
organisations

£6,000 to £200,000 £482,000
(inc. £59,000 Town 
Account

Core funding: Other 
organisations

£10,000 max £57,000
(inc. £14,000 Town 
Account

Project grants 
Community – Winnovation

£3,000 max
£4,000 max

Small grants £500 

£71,000

Town Forum £500 max £7,000
Cultural Innovation Grants £2,000 max £10,000

Challenge

Business Innovation Grant £2,500 max £15,000
Apprentice Support £1,000 maxCriteria
Access to work support £1,000 max

£10,000

11.24 Commission 

As mentioned the Council does also fund organisations to deliver services in 
addition to the grant programme.  These are managed through service level 
agreements, contracts or commissions.   This type of service delivery has in 
the greater part been procured through a full competitive process where 
organisations have competed for a single contract and have tendered to 
deliver specified services and outcomes.  This process is managed by the 
appropriate lead officers with the technical and professional knowledge to 
scope the work, assess tenders, award and manage contracts and report 
performance outcomes.  Examples include:

a) Citizens Advice Bureau - £30,000 - 3 year commission based on tender 
via South East Business Portal 

11.25 Another competitive route used is to “buy into” a commission tendered by 
Hampshire County Council.  This usually buys specific services for 
Winchester District, enhanced provision or outcomes, and proves value for 
money through economies of scale as a result of the tendering and 
contracting being run by HCC.  Examples include:

a) Night Shelter - £17,000 p.a. procured via a Hampshire County Council 
commission with Service Level Agreement which secures additional 
direct work with Winchester people.

b) Community transport schemes such as dial-a-ride. 

11.26 Direct awards

On a small number of occasions a direct award is offered.  These relate to 
small sums and are for specific purposes.  An example is:

Page 255



CAB3079

a) Parish Councils - Contribution towards the specific outcome of creating 
a Village Plan.  Small award of £500 per applicant that meet the 
criteria. 

11.27 Business rates

In addition to the rates relief offered via national schemes (Mandatory - charity 
or a registered community amateur sports club, small business; rural rate 
relief) the Council has a policy for discretionary relief of up to 100% to certain 
non-profit making bodies.  Last year the Council supported 100 different 
organisations, groups and clubs through the discretionary rate relief.  An 
example:

a) 20% top up for sports clubs in receipt of 80% relief via mandatory 
scheme.      

11.28 Accommodation / Property 

There are a number of organisations that occupy Council owned buildings, or 
buildings that are on Council owned land.  There are lease agreements in 
place with all but these vary between each case. Whilst the Council will wish 
to retain commercial confidentiality around these charges and rents, it is 
important to see the full picture and to consider the implications of paying core 
funding that will be used to pay the Council its rent. 

11.29 Collaboration 

The Council also works collaboratively with many organisations and groups as 
part of partnerships to develop long term relationships. This includes offering 
the use of facilities at reduced or zero cost. For example:

a) Discounted rates for charities booking the Guildhall.

b) Officer time to help organise, promote and run events.

c) Advice, support and mentoring. 

11.30 Whilst the value of this has not been quantified as part of the research, it is 
important to acknowledge further financial support the Council offers to 
support charity organisations and community groups.

11.31 Community Infrastructure Levy

The Community Infrastructure Levy is currently under review and is not part of 
this review but consideration needs to be given to its role in funding local 
organisations and Parish Councils.  Applicants are asked if the project is 
funded by others as part of the agreement.  There is an opportunity to have 
greater alignment on priorities and nature of projects supported across both 
schemes.

Page 256



CAB3079

11.32 Detailed Proposals – A new approach

At the outset of the review certain aspects were identified as needing 
improvement.  These where: 

a) Clarity of purpose.

b) Legacy funding.

c) Dependence and sustainability.

d) Ad-hoc requests.

e) Multiple grant processes. 

11.33 The following goals were established and through responses developed.

Goals Response
1. Increase flexibility and 

responsiveness
a. Create a pot to respond to ad hoc requests and retain 

unallocated fund to deploy on extending services or 
responding to new issues / unforeseen circumstances 
/ changed needs.

2. Reduce dependence b. Work with organisations and provide support to 
develop resilience and develop long term 
sustainability. 

3. Introduce new recipients c. Hold grant panels across the district.
4. Increase innovation in delivery 

and outcomes
d. Identify priorities that proactively seek new solutions 

and target enhancements and improvements.
5. Innovate in funding mechanisms e. Introduce Crowd Funding.

11.34 The following is the proposed new funding approach based on the findings 
from the engagement conversations and background research.

11.35 Strategic Fund

Through the review different types of organisation applying for grants have 
been identified.  The first are those that hold a unique position the market and 
deliver support to the community that the Council values as sole providers of 
these services.

11.36 It is proposed that the grants for these services are considered as Direct 
Awards, due to the sole provider position they hold.  That an agreement is 
drafted for a longer period, of up to three years, reviewed annually and 
renewed subject to performance against outputs and should be subject to 
stepped reductions.

Page 257



CAB3079

11.37 Priority Outcomes Fund 

On reviewing the range of core grants offered to the thirteen other 
organisations funded this year, it can be seen that this second group offer a 
range of services to a diverse groups within communities across the District, 
but are not sole providers. 

11.38 It is proposed that a new programme of funding be offered as a competitive 
award focused on contributing to the priority outcomes of the Council’s 
Strategy.  Incentives will be offered for those organisations that develop 
collaborative or partnership applications which seek to minimise duplications 
and increase value for money and outcome delivery.  The agreement will be 
for a period of three years, reviewed annually and renewed only subject to 
satisfactory performance.  Grants will be to a maximum of £15,000 max, 
giving the potential to support up to 15 organisations based on an average 
award of £10,000.  Importantly, as the agreement period is longer, a new 
requirement of stepped funding over the period is introduced.  This approach 
moves organisations away from grant reliance and a service will be 
commissioned to support this and to assist organisations to look at new 
delivery models, to seek other forms of funding and increase potential income; 
to offer development training, and to encouraging organisations with similar 
objectives to work together more.

11.39 Additionally the stepped funding approach: 

a) generates a reserve for next year, 

b) allows for the expansion of service delivery, 

c) enables the Council to respond to new demands, 

d) allows and encourages new entrants to the fund.

11.40 Small grants - Local grant giving

The small grants offered currently are greatly valued by small local community 
groups, village halls, sport clubs etc. across the District.  It not proposed to 
remove this fund, but to further extend its reach and to make the process of 
application easier and quicker, for both the applicant and the Council.  These 
grants are highly valued by local groups, as evidenced by a survey one year 
ago, and they extend the reach of Council support, not only in terms of 
geography but also the diversity of communities benefiting.

11.41 It is proposed that a panel visit seven locations across the District to give a 
£500 grant there and then, with a decision and offer made on the day (subject 
to pre-vetting and appropriate due diligence).  This has the added advantage 
of engaging more directly with recipients and beneficiaries, creating a greater 
profile of the Council, allows additional information and support to be shared 
and enables local groups to come together for the day to showcase their 
organisation and what it does, creating a greater community awareness.  The 

Page 258



CAB3079

engagement benefits of this approach are significant.  As this new approach 
will require greater organisation and input from local communities, it is 
suggested that it is tested first, reviewed after a couple of events, and if not 
successful the scheme could revert back to the current on line process.

11.42 The following are suggested locations for the panels and which could happen 
twice a year.  Areas from which applications can be submitted for each panel 
will have to be defined.   

a) Bishops Waltham, 

b) Colden Common, 

c) Denmead,

d) New Alresford,

e) Swanmore, 

f) Wickham,

g) Town wards.

11.43 It is proposed that a further £5,000 be set aside to allow for projects falling out 
side the areas and panels, to enable some flexibility for ad hoc requests. 

11.44 The current approval panel arrangements for the Town Forum small grant will 
be replaced by this scheme.

11.45 Project Funding 

There are several funds currently offered at different times, some through 
different processes.  This includes Winnovation grants for community groups, 
business innovation, cultural grants and general project grants.  They are 
essentially attempting to incentivise new approaches and encourage 
innovation but across the different groups.  It is proposed to bring these 
together into a single fund and application process.  

11.46 The new approach will be to use a crowd funding platform.  The platform will 
be licensed from an external provider and will allow projects to seek funding.  
The Council will match fund projects that fall within the target groups, location 
and priorities it determines, so will still be able to target support at the 
outcomes the Council wishes to support.  A proposed set of priorities is given 
in the next section.

11.47 Crowd funding projects 

The crowd funding platform would enable businesses, community groups, 
clubs, charities etc. to post their project and promote to the local community 

Page 259



CAB3079

networks, friends and patrons for them to donate money in support of the 
project.  This demonstrates that the project is valued by the community or 
users, and once a certain threshold of funding is secured the Council will 
match fund up to 50% or to value of £3,000 (whichever is less).  This levers 
additional funds against the Councils, at the very least doubles the value, 
demonstrates the project is wanted, allows repeat local / annual projects and 
events that do not wish to introduce new aspects or innovations as is required 
by other funds.

11.48 Information about other grants offered in the location, by topic or by other 
local organisations can be included to further lever additional funds for the 
applicant.  Assistance and support will be offered to help organisations use 
the platform and to successfully crowd fund.

11.49 Flexible Grant

To respond to ad hoc requests and allow expansion of service delivery in 
response to specific unforeseen needs or circumstances it is proposed that a 
fund be created using the current reserves and that requests for project up to 
£10,000 are manged through this process.  To start the fund the current grant 
reserves of £47,000 will be used and the fund will be replenished each year 
by any unallocated funding.

11.50 Commissioning

For clarity all services should be commissioned by service leads and funded 
from their budget allocations.  They should be awarded through competitive 
tendering apart from those circumstances when only one provider is possible, 
then through a direct award.  This is not to be considered a grant and for 
clarity they should not from part of the grants / investment scheme.  

11.51 Funding Proposal Summary 

Page 260



CAB3079

• Purpose: Community projects
• Decision: Portfolio Holder/Funding Officer/Del authority – 

Corp Head of Engagement
• 
• Overall pot:  £40,000
• Maximum award: £10,000 (award based on individual assessment)

Priority 
Outcomes Fund

• Purpose: One off projects/activities
• Decision: Local Panel for each area  / Del authority – 

Funding Officer
• 
• Overall pot:  £40,000
• Maximum award: £500

Small grants

• Purpose: Community / social enterprise / business projects
• Decision: Portfolio Holder/Funding Officer/Del authority – 

Corp Head of Engagement
• 
• Overall pot:  £80,000
• Maximum award: £3000 or 50% whichever is lesser

Crowd funding

• Purpose: Overheads / running costs
• Decision: Portfolio Holder/Funding Officer/Del authority – 

Corp Head of Engagement
• 
• Overall pot:  £150,000
• Maximum award: £15,000 

Flexible grant

11.52 Work is being completed on benchmarking with other local authorities and this 
will help shape the revised funding application, assessment and monitoring 
requirements that will be detailed during the implementation preparations, 
following approval of this proposal.

11.53 Priority Outcomes

11.54 As well as considering the range of funding mechanisms, the priorities and 
focus for the desired outcomes need to be agreed.   There is a need for a 
range of outcomes that stimulate positive investment to enhance lives and 
places; increase participation for strong, more resilient and integrated 
communities and foster a culture of innovation and growth.   Additional 
incentives could be given to actions aimed at early intervention and 
prevention. 

Page 261



CAB3079

11.55 From the Councillor survey feedback certain aspects were highlighted.  A full 
summary is provided in the Appendices.  Comments included:

a) Decline in local services from lack of funds to pay for activities and lack 
of volunteers.   

b) Lack of community spirit due to changing profiles of residents; new 
families not integrating; and older populations less able to participate. 

c) Isolation due to lack of public transport.

11.56 The Governments standards guidance for general grants references the UN 
Sustainable Development Goals; of interest are: No poverty; No hunger; Good 
health and wellbeing; Affordable and clean energy; Decent jobs and economic 
growth; Industry, innovation and infrastructure; Sustainable cities and 
communities.

11.57 At a local level the strategic priorities, combined with the community groups 
and needs identified the following targets outcomes can be derived, which it 
can be seen closely align with the sustainable development goals and provide 
greater focus against which to assess applications.

Hampshire County Council

Serving Hampshire - Strategic 
Plan for 2017 - 2021

Winchester City Council 
Strategy 2018-2020 
Strategic Priority  

Winchester Target 
Outcomes (proposed)

Dealing with peoples and communities needs

 People in Hampshire live 
safe, healthy and 
independent lives

 People in Hampshire enjoy 
being part of strong, 
inclusive communities

 Health & happiness of 
communities 

 Quality housing 

 Isolation
 Low income
 Homelessness 
 Mental health 
 Physical inactivity

Striving for positive change

 Hampshire maintains strong 
and sustainable economic 
growth and prosperity

 People in Hampshire enjoy 
a rich and diverse 
environment

 Premier business location
 Quality of the District’s 

environment 

 Digital application, 
services and products

 Sustainability, 
environmental quality, 
green technologies

 Creative and innovation
 Business growth

11.58 Further work currently being carried out into the needs of the communities will 
provided detailed information to qualify and quantify the target outcomes.  
Areas that have already been identified for consideration include:  

Page 262



CAB3079

11.59 Sports & health

A Winchester Physical Activity Insight report from July 2018 found the 
following with regards to physical activity within the Winchester District:

a) Winchester has high numbers of inactivity in the over 75 age group, 
and that this age group is projected to grow.

b) Inactivity levels for people with long-term disability are high but slowly 
improving.

c) There has been a decline in the number of people cycling which is 
more than the national decline figures.

d) There is a much higher percentage of inactive women than men in the 
District, and this gender inequality gap is getting worse.

e) Within Winchester, those with a limiting illness are 4 times more likely 
to be inactive compared to those without a limiting illness.

f) There is a much lower proportion of inactive people in higher social 
grades.

g) It is estimated that the areas with the highest percentage of inactivity 
within the district will be Bishops Waltham ward, Whiteley and some of 
Upper Meon Valley.

11.60 The Local Authority Profile 2018 & headline facts and figures from 2011 
census found in summary, the health of people in Winchester is generally 
better than the England average. But also that:

a) Winchester is one of the 20% least deprived districts/unitary authorities 
in England, however 8% of children live in low income families.

b) Life expectancy is 5 years lower for men and 6.2 years lower for 
women in the most deprived areas of Winchester compared to the least 
deprived areas.

c) Figures for dementia diagnosis aged 65+ are significantly worse than 
the England average.

d) Figures for diabetes diagnosis aged 17+ are also very high for the 
Winchester District.

11.61 Implementation

11.62 Developing the new funds

11.63 As mentioned, if approved, the new grants programme will require the 
adjustment of some processes and the creation of new ones before they can 
be offered.  This includes: 

a) a clear description of the scheme/ aims and objectives of the grant;

b) a clear description of how money should be spent;

c) eligible expenditure terms, 

Page 263



CAB3079

d) payment schedules,

e) audit/assurance;

f) agreed outputs/ KPIs/milestones;

g) financial and activity based reporting and evidence;

11.64 Much of the specific details will be evidenced by the community profile of 
need and the grants benchmarking exercise.

11.65 In addition the support products need to be developed, e.g. advice, guidance 
and information; commissioning a service that acts as a gateway for 
applicants to receive help and mentoring etc.  The current grant programme 
applies a lot of this good practice already and this will be transferred where 
appropriate into the new programme.

11.66 Operational Resources

11.67 To deliver the grants programme, existing staff resources from within the 
Engagement Service will be used. 

Roles Responsibilities
Strategic overview and direction 

Corporate Head of Engagement

Lead partner on direct award orgs:  TRW/CAB

Delegated authority:
Core funding
Crowd funding
Flexible grant

Create annual impact statement in conjunction with 
Investment officer

Operational / Strategic

Investment & Development Officer

Delegated authority:  Small grant scheme 

Oversee grant processes and awards
Relationship & partnership management
Performance agreements /monitoring
Engagement - community/business
Budget management

Administration 

Support Officer 
(required for segregation of duties)

Grant processing
Payments
Funding awards
End of grant monitoring
Transparency reporting

Communications

Proactive engagement officer
(added to role of Market Towns 
Officer)

Compile communications (including supporting social 
media)
Organisation of events
Promotion of activities
Promotion of grant applicant activities invested in 
within the district

Page 264



CAB3079

Roles Responsibilities
Create engagement opportunities with groups in 
conjunction with Community First

11.68 Communications

11.69 Throughout the process communication has been identified as vital and key to 
this process.  This includes relationship management, promotion of 
opportunity, access to information and sharing of data and celebrating 
success.  A marketing and communications plan will be drafted to support the 
launch of the new programme.  This will be developed by working with the 
Communications Team and aspects to cover in the plan include:

a) Increased communication and information sharing between Council 
services.

b) Continue to develop the strategy for relationship management with 
Senior Officers, Portfolio Holders, Member Representatives and the 
Funding Officer for those organisations who are significantly funded by 
the Council 

c) Enhanced website to promote the Council’s work, what is being 
achieved and how organisations can access support and apply for 
funding.

d) Publish an annual statement / report to highlight what has been 
achieved in terms of impacts, value and social benefit.

e) An annual celebration event to show case the funding programme, 
reward and acknowledge great outcomes and performance, share best 
practice and create a community of support organisations.

f) Video clips of applicants and outcomes of their projects/activities.

g) Highlighting the use of our logo / a building plaque.

h) Continue to provide an update of grants available and grants allocated 
to Councillors through the Democratic Services weekly update as and 
when appropriate.

i) Information will be sent directly to Ward Councillors via direct emails.

j) Regular updates regarding available grants will continue to be provided 
to Parish Clerks and Parish Councils via the Council’s Parish Connect 
newsletter.

k) Continue the use of the WCCGrant twitter account to promote grant 
related activities.

Page 265



CAB3079

l) Continue to work with communications to provide content for Council’s 
Facebook page and social media platforms.

m) Commission a service to promote all grant related activities to the 
community and voluntary sector for example through via e-news 
bulletins, social media and funding events.

12 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

12.1 No alternative options have been assessed at this stage.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:-

Previous Committee Reports:-

None

Other Background Documents:-

None

 APPENDICES:

1 Equality Impact Assessment

2 Background evidence and information appendices:

 Engagements and lessons learned
 Current community grant funding profile
 Funding Types Definitions

Page 266



WCC Equality Assessment process Template 1 v7.1 Appendix 1. Page 1 of 9

Scoping & Analysis
Name of the Service, Policy, or Strategy: Corporate grant programme

Element(s) of the above being assessed. Proposal for a new corporate grant programme

Date Screening undertaken: September 2018

Screeners: Corporate Head of Engagement
Funding  and Development Officer

Portfolio Holder for Business Partnerships

File name and location: 2018 2019 Grants Grant Review

Question (See Advice Notes) Answer

1. What is the main purpose of the Service, 
Strategy, Policy, Practice or Procedure?

The Council has stated the need to review the current grant 
funding programme for the community and voluntary sector.   
This provides the opportunity to set a new framework for funding 
awards across the Council so that services are clear when and 
why monies are awarded to external bodies, the organisations 
have clarity and the processes are simplified to provide a unified 
approach.  This will enable efficiencies, increased monitoring and 
reporting and the opportunity to ensure the Council is given the 
appropriate recognition and credit for the support it provides to 
its communities.  

The benefits being sought as a results of the review are: 

a) Clarity on Council objectives and outcomes. 

b) Simplicity, transparency, fairness and equality.

P
age 267



WCC Equality Assessment process Template 1 v7.1 Appendix 1. Page 2 of 9

c) Proactive (rather than reactive) direction of where 
investment should be focused.

d) Enhanced reputation and increased recognition for 
the Council’s investment. 

e) Capture of social value and impact at a strategic 
level. 

f) Continuation of high quality services that meet local 
needs and which, if not provided, would be a 
significant cost to the Council, society, communities 
and individuals.

g) Administration is efficient and resources deployed 
effectively

2. List the main activities of the Service, Strategy, 
Policy, Practice or Procedure.

1.1 Reviewing the effectiveness of where the funding is 
allocated

1.2 Reviewing application processes and internal sign off 
procedures

1.3 Evaluating the needs of the district in order to make the 
grant programme more responsive and support those 
most in need

1.4 Increasing clarity, transparency and communication 
relating to the grant process

Using the table below identify who is affected by the Service, Strategy, Policy, Project, Practice or Procedure and decide 
if 

P
age 268



WCC Equality Assessment process Template 1 v7.1 Appendix 1. Page 3 of 9

(1) they benefit from it or are disadvantaged or discriminated against by it,
(2) it is promoting equality of opportunity or participation in public life, and
(3) if it is promoting good relations with other groups. 
Give brief reasons and the evidence for your decision.

N.B. You MUST have evidence or good reasons to justify your decision. Usually this will take the form of equality 
monitoring information on who uses a service or is affected by a policy. If you do not have monitoring information – or do, 
but don’t analyse it – then it is unlikely that you can complete this stage now unless you can find other evidence or good 
reasons to support your judgement e.g. research or Equality Assessments undertaken by other agencies. Discuss this 
with the Equality Adviser and agree a way forward.

‘+VE’ = Positive impact ‘–VE’ = negative impact     ‘N/A’ = Not Applicable

P
age 269



WCC Equality Assessment process Template 1 v7.1 Appendix 1. Page 4 of 9

Covering note:
The corporate grant process provides financial support for voluntary and community organisations who provide a wide range of 
services for their users.  Organisations which apply for funding include – for example - arts, heritage and leisure providers which 
are open to everyone.  They also include organisations which provide practical help for the most vulnerable residents of the 
Winchester District, such as those living with dementia or families living in chaotic circumstances.  Because they are all very 
different in nature it is not possible to make direct comparisons about the relative value of the services that are best able to help 
deliver the outcomes of the Council Strategy for the District and the potential target outcomes we have identified through our 
community profiling exercise.

Considerations

Q. How reliable is the monitoring data for equalities reporting produced by the applicant organisations? 
The grant application form asks for information about any groups named under Equalities Law that the applicant organisation 
particularly seeks to work with.  This is often not relevant because applicant organisations are ‘open to all’ and hesitate to ask 
people for equalities profiling information, or do not have the means/opportunity to do this.  

Q  What guidance and support would we provide to organisations applying for funding?
Clear guidance will be provided throughout the process, both for existing applicants and for new applicant organisations.

Community First have actively targeted groups representing minorities in the District, and it has been particularly active in the 
rural parts of the District where reach has traditionally been more difficult.  Community First also provide online ‘chat’ support 
and webinars for those who are less able to travel and wish to access their services out of hours.

P
age 270



WCC Equality Assessment process Template 1 v7.1 Appendix 1. Page 5 of 9

DISCRIMINATION 
& DISADVANTAGE

PROMOTING 
EQUALITY & 
PARTICIPATION

PROMOTING 
GOOD 
RELATIONS

PROTECTED 
CHARACTERISTIC

SUB-GROUP

+VE -VE N/A YES NO N/A YES NO N/A

REASONING & EVIDENCE

Women   SEX (GENDER)

Men   

Some organisations do deliver 
targeted services for women  and 
men  but any impact is generally 
incidental to the wider, funded 
service.

Over 80   

Over 60   

22-59   

16 to 21   

AGE
YOU MAY ALTER AGE 
RANGES IF 
APPROPRIATE

Under 16   

Taken together, the voluntary 
organisations serve all ages - either 
as service beneficiaries, or by 
providing jobs/volunteering 
opportunities. 

White British 
People

   As a result of its demographic 
profile, Winchester’s population 
tends to be white British and 
therefore the largest number of 
beneficiaries from the grants will 
tend to be white British.  

White European 
or Other White 
People

  

Irish People   

Black or Black 
British People

  

RACE
YOU MAY NEED 
MORE DETAIL HERE 
E.G. A SPECIFIC 
ETHNIC GROUP

Asian or Asian   

The Council does not support any 
voluntary organisation that is not 
open to people from other racial 
backgrounds.  All must have an 
equality policy in place in order to 
apply for funding.  The existence of 
these organisations therefore 
promotes equality, inclusion and 
participation but not in a targeted 
way and the greatest impacts will 

P
age 271



WCC Equality Assessment process Template 1 v7.1 Appendix 1. Page 6 of 9

PROTECTED 
CHARACTERISTIC

SUB-GROUP DISCRIMINATION 
& DISADVANTAGE

PROMOTING 
EQUALITY & 
PARTICIPATION

PROMOTING 
GOOD 
RELATIONS

REASONING & EVIDENCE

+VE -VE N/A YES NO N/A YES NO N/A
British People
Chinese or 
Chinese British 
People

  

therefore be among white British 
residents as above.

Mixed Race 
People

  

Gypsies/Travellers   

People from other 
minority ethnic 
groups 

  

As above

Physical 
Impairment

  

Sensory 
Impairment

  

 
The same as below

Long-Term Health 
Problem

  

Mental Illness   

DISABILITY & 
HEALTH
YOU MAY NEED 
MORE DETAIL HERE 
E.G. TYPE OF 
SENSORY 
IMPAIRMENT

Learning Disability   

The Council’s  grants programme 
supports voluntary organisations 
which provide services for people 
from these groups 

Lesbians   

Gay Men   

SEXUAL 
ORIENTATION

Bisexuals   

The Council’s  grant programme 
has not in recent years supported 
voluntary organistaions providing 
services for people from these 
groups because there have been no 
applications for funding

Faith Groups   RELIGION & 
BELIEF
YOU MAY NEED 

Atheist, Agnostic   

The Council’s  grants programme 
has not in recent years supported 
voluntary organistaions providing 
services for people from these 

P
age 272



WCC Equality Assessment process Template 1 v7.1 Appendix 1. Page 7 of 9

PROTECTED 
CHARACTERISTIC

SUB-GROUP DISCRIMINATION 
& DISADVANTAGE

PROMOTING 
EQUALITY & 
PARTICIPATION

PROMOTING 
GOOD 
RELATIONS

REASONING & EVIDENCE

+VE -VE N/A YES NO N/A YES NO N/A
MORE DETAIL HERE 
E.G. A SPECIFIC 
FAITH/BELIEF

or Other belief groups because grants are not 
available to deliver mission-based 
services

TRANSGENDER    The Council’s  grants programme 
has in recent years supported 
voluntary organistaions providing 
services for people from these 
groups

Married   MARRIAGE & 
CIVIL 
PARTNERSHIP Civil Partners   

No direct impact on these groups 

Pregnant    Pre- and post-natal support services 
provided through outreach services.

PREGNANCY & 
MATERNITY

On Maternity 
Leave

   See above

Poor Literacy &/or 
Numeracy

  

Unemployed   

Living in rural 
area

  

Low Income   

On Benefits   

Caring 
Responsibilities 

  

The Council’s  grants programme 
supports voluntary organisations 
which provide services for people 
from these groups  

OTHER
YOU MAY ADD 
ADDITIONAL 
GROUPS HERE.

P
age 273



WCC Equality Assessment process Template 1 v7.1 Appendix 1. Page 8 of 9

Now answer the following questions. The key findings should be included in any report to decision-makers and used to produce 
a short report on the Equality Assessment for publication.  This should include any new equality information you have gathered 
and details of any consultations or other forms of engagement with individuals or groups of people with protected 
characteristics. N.B. It is a legal requirement to publish this information.

4. Have you identified any impact(s) on any group(s)? YES []   NO [ ]  Summarise nature of any impact(s) – positive or negative 
- and what can be done to avoid or mitigate negative impacts.

The new review has been designed to eliminate inconsistencies in the  
funding programme, to reduce bureaucracy, increase transparency and to 
bring clarity and equity to the process.  

However, officers believe from recent experience that a change to funding 
can trigger significant improvements to an organisation’s business 
operation which will have a more positive long term impact for its service 
users than simply maintaining the status quo in the short term. 

5. Is the Service, Strategy, Policy, Project, Practice or 
Procedure promoting equality of opportunity and/or 
participation in public life for any group(s)?

Not Applicable [  ]  YES [  ]   NO [  ]  

The grants process is designed and implemented in a way that seeks to 
promote equality of opportunity.

There is potentially more that could be done to target specifically groups 
that are currently under-represented 

6. Can it be improved to do so? YES [  ]   NO [  ]  Explain

Yes.  Working with our commissioned voluntary sector support agency, 
Community First, we can target new groups, offer dedicated training to 
support  grant applications, 
 

P
age 274



WCC Equality Assessment process Template 1 v7.1 Appendix 1. Page 9 of 9

7. Is the Service, Strategy, Policy, Project, Practice or 
Procedure promoting good relations for any group(s)?

Not Applicable [  ]  YES [  ]   NO [  ]  

Yes, the programme supports organisations that work with a number of the 
groups – e.g. vulnerable young people; people with learning difficulties; 
older people; those in financial distress etc.  

8.  Have you gathered any new equality information 
during this assessment?

YES [  ]   NO [  ] 

Simple statistics have been collated with regards to the profiling of our 
communities and their needs.

9. Have you undertaken any consultation/engagement 
work during this assessment?

 YES [ ]   NO []  

Consultation has not taken place with regard to this assessment, however 
the review process did engage with the following:

Member observers
Senior Officers
Grant recipients
Core funded organisations
Parish Councils
City Councillors

Reviewed and validated by Jamie Cann, Head of Human Resources (Interim) 28 September 2018

P
age 275



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 Engagements and lessons learned

Core funded partners – face to face meetings on site.

Completed:  
• Trinity Winchester
• Winchester Live Theatre Trust
• Unit 12
• Winchester Churches Nightshelter
• The Carroll Centre
• Citizens Advice

Core funded non -partner workshop - attended by:
• Home Start Hampshire
• Winchester & District Young Carers
• Live at Home
• Street Reach
• Home Start Winchester
• Winchester Youth Counselling
• Blue Apple
• Winnall Rock Scholl

Corporate meetings held with officers
• Business rates
Economic development 
• Environment services
• Housing 
• Community Development 
• Finance & Town Forum Members 

• Hampshire Council County - community grants lead

• Crowdfund platform provider

• Online survey to all Ward Councillors and Parish Councils

Page 277



Summary of lessons learned

Funding Process Communication
Core funded - Partner Organisations
 Value the core funds as no 

other grants support this 
element.

 Levers additional funds by 
having the Council “backing”.

 Enables the organisations to 
concentrate on the people 
and not spend time fund 
raising.

 About being able to become 
sustainable – given the time 
to do so

 Want longer agreement for 
stability and planning.

 Sometimes it may not be 
possible to deliver on the exact 
way set out in the grant – due to 
changes / unplanned events 
etc.  

 Need to be able to flexi and 
make changes during the grant 
period.

 Do not report on the whole 
business – only what is in the 
agreement so missing the 
leverage effect of the full 
delivery.

 Consistency and support 
creates partnership.

 Partnership with aligned 
objectives.

 Proud to be a partner.
 Members need to celebrate the 

outcomes.
 Hold a workshop on what could be 

done / not just what has happened.
 WCC should better celebrate the 

outcomes as our successes.
 Communication is key.  Cllr support 

has been very much appreciated 
and welcomed – also in role of 
approaching to offer help.

 Advocacy to others is important.

Core funded – Other Organisations (smaller)
As above  Level of monitoring is quite high 

for value of grant – annual 
report would be good approach.  
Lottery is a good practice 
example.

 Delivery is constrained by tying 
to meet Council objectives 
rather than what the service 
needs are.  Would be better to 
co-design the outcomes and 
would give better understanding 
of the business.

 Organisations are not able to 
tell the Council about emerging 
issues or feedback on other 
activities / issues – this should 
be built into the monitoring 
process.

 Meeting face to face is a benefit and 
enable the organisation to highlight 
what else has been achieved and 
what else could be done.  An 
exchange of ideas.

 Organisations are not aware of the 
range of services or organisations 
the Council supports / delivers to 
see where activities would 
complement

 No networks anymore and a much 
reduced number of agencies to 
make referrals.  Interested in a 
network being established. 

Members
 Consider local grant events 

one in each Parish – as a 
promotion and for 
organisations to bid for the 
money on the day – “the 
great grant give-away”. 

 Single application for City 
Council – remove duplication of 
Town Forum applications.

 Finance – confirm the 
appropriate risk / due diligence 
threshold.

 Need a mechanism to respond 
to local / unplanned requests for 
project support – that is simple, 
fair, transparent etc.

 Produce an Annual Report – to 
demonstrate the range of clients 
helped, their spread across the 
district and the impacts and 
outcomes achieved in comparison 
across organisations.

 have an annual celebration event 
that showcases what the Council 
has supported and what 
organisations have achieved – 
awards

Page 278



Funding Process Communication

Officers
Link grants to new Council 
housing schemes – supporting 
local projects in the community.

Business rates relief is an 
effective way to offer grant as 
Council contribution is 40% - 
Could also look to be more 
targeted in the range of reliefs 
offered to support policy priorities.

 There is not stated a policy on 
the level of reserves required or 
which is appropriate (or too 
much).

 Although current grant 
programme has a cap of no 
more than twelve months.

 Process and policies – more 
guidance to staff.

 Commonly understood 
definition of grant and 
commissioning 

 Business rates relief application 
should be on online.

 Relationship to remain with lead 
officer / team.

 Mechanism for centrally collecting 
information, reporting and providing 
oversight.

 Business rates scheme is not 
proactively promoted.

Summary of Councillor and Parish Council survey

1. All responses stated that they have an active voluntary and community sector in their 
community.

2. In response to the issues they address and who they support, the general response 
was that a variety of groups within each community were supported, particularly the 
elderly and the young, but generally meeting the needs of the particular area.

3. 13 out of 18 responses said that an activity or service had been stopped that was 
beneficial to the local community. Lack of volunteers/support and funding appear to 
be the main factors causing activities to cease. A few responses mentioned the cost 
of insurances and safety requirements being too much for certain activities.

4. In terms of issues that need resolving in each community, there were several themes 
such as:

a. A lack of community spirit – it was suggested that this seems to be more 
evident in areas with new housing and younger families who are mostly not 
interested in volunteering or being as involved in the local community as the 
older generation who are becoming increasingly limited in their ability and 
mobility.

b. Community activities that are able to cover the wide range of age groups and 
needs within a community.

c. Some specific issues regarding speed limits and traffic calming measures.
d. Lack of sufficient regular public transport also seemed to be a recurring 

theme.
e. A few responses requested a look at funding for the repair or expansion of 

village halls/community centres, and help with making them viable (e.g. 
Winnall community centre).

Page 279



5. There is general consensus that Parish Council meetings are good for providing 
evidence of the above issues.

6. Responses related to signposting the Council to statistics on issues in specific areas 
were mixed and quite vague. Using police speed checks and SLR readings was 
suggested. Parish plan updates were mentioned as possibly containing more detail 
on a specific area and its issues. There were many suggestions to access 
deprivation data (especially in areas such as Winnall), NHS statistics, or any specific 
statistics that demonstrate the changing sociodemographic of the Winchester district. 
Mental and general wellbeing for health statistics would be useful for supporting 
activities.

7. In terms of being aware of the support available for communities to empower 
themselves, 8 out of 18 said they didn’t know where to go for support. A few knew 
where to go but didn’t feel that was helpful. One Parish Council was very pleased 
with the support received from their WCC councillor.

8. 7 out of 18 responses said they did know that there is a funding search tool 
(www.idoxopen4community.co.uk/winchester) on the Council's website.

9. 10 out of 18 responses said they were aware that there is a dedicated support 
service contracted by WCC and provided by Community First, but only 6 of them 
have used the service. 3 of those gave positive feedback and the other 3 didn’t know 
or state if the help had been useful.    (reason to use Community First as gateway )

10.17 of the 18 responses were aware of the funding streams made available by the 
Council for communities to access.

11.When asked how best the grant scheme can help address community issues, many 
of the responses said that grants were helpful but publicity and advertising them was 
difficult, as well as a perceived lengthy process. A suggestion for more simplicity with 
regards to grants was made.

12. In terms of how to make the grant scheme more effective, simplicity, publicity, 
advertising and information from the Council were suggested. Site visits were also 
suggested as a good idea. 

13.5 out of 18 use the WCC website to find out about grants available from the Council. 
Many said they found out by asking or only when told. One response described the 
grant system as open and informative and headed up by a good team. A few are 
informed via the Parish Clerk.

14.12 out of 18 actively promote the grants in their ward. Of those that said no, many 
said they would like more information with suggestions of information that could go 
into parish magazines or on social media. Regular updates to Parish Clerks were 
also suggested and one response asked for more direct contact from officer.

15. In response to what communication they would like to receive about the different 
grants the Council awards, there were the following suggestions:

a) A grant section update at the end of the weekly DSU.
b) Direct emails to Ward Councillors.
c) Regular updates to Parish Clerks and direct information to Parish Council.
d) For Councillors to be more informed.

Page 280



Current community grant funding profile

Core Partners

Live Theatre Winchester Trust £188,000
Citizens Advice Bureau £168,000
Winchester Churches Nightshelter £14,200
Trinity £85,000
Unit 12 £16,000
Carroll Centre £11,000
Home Start MV £9,000
Home Start WD £8,300
Age UK mid hants £6,500
Live at home £6,500
Youth Counselling £6,000
Winnall Rock School £6,000
Street Reach £5,500
Blue apple £5,500
WD Young Carers £4,000
Total - Core £539,500

Page 281



Funding Types Definitions
Source: Guidance: Government Functional Standers for General Grants, July 2018, Cabinet 
Office.

As referenced in the Civil Society paper, the recently published Government guidance for 
departments for creating and issuing grants, helpfully defines the different forms of award:

Competitive: all general grants should undergo a competition process by default, except 
where a Direct Award can be justified.   Examples of Competed Awards:
 full competition: where organisations compete against each other for a single grant, in 

response to a published advert and pre-published award criteria; or
 challenge fund: where applicants compete against pre-published criteria for portions of 

a pot of funding, which has been earmarked for a particular purpose and where repeat 
bids are permitted.

Direct Award: in some circumstances, a grant may be awarded without competition. 
Examples include:
 awarding a grant to an organisation that is the only provider of the service that the grant 

is being set up to fund;
 awarding a grant to an organisation which inhabits a unique position or offers a 

particularly specialist function;
 awarding a grant to an organisation which has a track record of excellence in a 

particular area;
 if the value of the grant is low and the cost of approaching the market through a 

competition would exceed the benefit to be gained from competition between suppliers;
 there is extreme urgency, where such urgency was not foreseeable and was not as a 

result of any action or inaction on the part of the grant award department; or
 in the event of market failure.

Criteria Grants: these grants are usually not competed, as they are created with set 
qualifying criteria. As long as the applicant meets the required criteria, the recipient receives 
the funding, e.g. grants to assist those affected by flooding. 

Page 282



CAB3079 - ADDENDUM

Community and Voluntary Sector Grants Review

Cabinet report CAB3079, 12 December 2018.  

Addendum

PURPOSE
This addendum provides the proposed responses to the questions raised at 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 15 October 2018 and Town Forum on 14 
November 2018 with regard to the Community and Voluntary Sector Grants Review.
These proposals relate to Recommendation 2 of the main Cabinet report.   

PROPOSED RESPONSES:
That: 
1. Priority Outcome Fund -:

1.1.To inform the priority outcomes Town Forum members are asked to identify 
any specific requirements in relation to town ward residents for inclusion in 
the grant criteria to be set before launch in April 2019.     

1.2.The Town Account funds applications that are predominately for town 
residents i.e. applications that have in excess of 72% town ward residents as 
beneficiaries.

2. Small Grant Award Allocation 
2.1.The Small Grant Panels are set up based on the proposed grouping of wards 

based on size of population and geographical / area relationship that includes 
one for town wards.       

3. The responses to requests for information in Table 1. be noted. 

Page 283



QUESTIONS AND INFORMATION REQUESTED:
The Cabinet report (CAB3079) Community and Voluntary Sector Grants review was 
considered at both Overview and Scrutiny Committee (15 October 2018) and Town Forum 
(14 November 2018)  
The following is a summary of the responses to the questions raised and requests for more 
information.
Table1.
Point Response
(a) That clarity be sought about how 

Town Forum funding would be 
kept accountable and separate 
from District funding without 
disadvantaging town area 
organisations.

A method for allocating town account funds 
based on service being predominately for town 
ward residents is proposed for the Priority 
Outcomes Fund.
Town Forum members will be asked to identify 
any specific needs of town ward residents for 
inclusion in the priority outcomes being 
established for the grant criteria.
See details in Supporting Information 
section 1

(b) That the approach to 
organisations leasing property or 
land from the Council be brought 
back to Committee.

Discussion has been held with Head of Estates:
The preferred approach, for transparency, is to 
require tenants to pay market rent and have 
support for property as an aspect of the grant 
process / award.
However an approach will need to be 
developed for consideration.

(c) That consideration be given to 
more frequent than annual 
reporting for larger organisation.

Grant recipients will be required to report on the 
delivery of the funded service / activity and this 
will be a minimum of six monthly.  Frequency of 
reporting will be dependant on and appropriate 
to the size of grant awarded  
An annual report will be presented to provide an 
overview of the grant programme as a whole 
covering Priority Outcomes, Crowd Funding, 
Small Grants etc. to demonstrate the total 
impact and outcomes achieved as a result of 
the Council’s funding. 

(d) That detail about how changes to 
priorities and unforeseen 
requirement are dealt with be 
provided.

A comprehensive evidence base is being 
complied on which the outcomes will be based.  
This data will be monitored and checked 
annually to ensure it is still relevant and that 
other needs have not presented that should be 
addressed.

Page 284



Point Response
If there is a need to change the outcomes this 
will be built in to the performance reviews with 
the service providers.  Their input on this from a 
user and customer perspective will also help 
shape any necessary changes.     
The grant agreements will include a clause that 
allows for such changes to be incorporated.
The proposed Flexible Grant pot will allow for 
support for services in rapid response to crisis, 
policy changes, legislation changes and 
unforeseen need etc.

(e) That consideration to be given as 
to how the Council consults with 
residents whose needs are not 
met at the current time.

The priorities for the new grant programme will 
be based on a comprehensive evidence base 
from a variety of sources so as to identify a 
range of community and residents’ needs.   The 
objective of this it to encourage different / new 
service providers to apply for grants based on 
their ability to support the priority outcomes.    

(f) That in respect of small grants, a 
map be provided showing areas 
covered by each centre and that 
consideration be given to the 
provision to consider awards in 
private alongside networking.

A method for grouping wards around centres is 
proposed based on a proportional share of the 
District’s population and sensible geographical 
closeness /relationship.   
A process for the award of grants is also 
proposed which includes a private discussion 
for Grant Panel members on applications.
See details in Supporting Information 
section 2.

(g) That support and advice be 
provided to assist smaller 
organisations and marginalised 
communities in particular in 
accessing grants.

A new service specification for community, 
voluntary sector development and support is to 
be issued which will include the need to support 
the organisations and groups identified.   

Page 285



SUPPORTING INFORMATION:

Section 1.  Priority Outcome Fund 
Proposed Response: 
That: 
1. To inform the priority outcomes Town Forum members are asked to identify any specific 

requirements in relation to town ward residents for inclusion in the grant criteria to be set 
before launch in April 2019.  

2. The Town Account funds applications that are predominately for town residents i.e. 
applications that have in excess of 72% town ward residents as beneficiaries.

Principles
One of the objectives of the grant review is to create a new grants programme that is 
simple, transparent, fair and equal for all eligible applicants.
To achieve this: 

 New, simple to understand eligibility criteria will be issued with the funding calls.   

 A clear set of priorities and outcomes will be published for services providers to align 
their activities to.

 Assessment criteria will be published so applicants can see how their bids will be 
scored.

 All applications will be objectively assessed against the same criteria.

 Applicants will receive feedback on the assessment.

 Funding awards will be based on the assessment scores.  All applications must reach a 
minimum score to ensure quality.  If the fund is oversubscribed priority will be given to 
the highest scoring applications.    

Priority Outcomes
A set of detailed priority outcomes based on available social and economic data, including 
Indices of Multiple Deprivation, Winchester Physical Activity Insight report 2018 is being 
developed to support the Council’s Strategic Priorities and proposed target outcomes.

Proposed response:   
To inform the priority outcomes Town Forum members are asked to identify any specific 
requirements in relation to town ward residents for inclusion in the grant criteria to be set 
before launch in April 2019.  

Page 286



Town Account allocation
It should be noted that expenditure will only be considered as ‘special expenses’ (Town 
funded expenditure) where it meets the requirements of Section 35 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992. In summary, in order for a special expense to be levied it 
must meet the definition of being a concurrent function. Therefore, a special expense is one 
incurred, if the function carried out by the Council is in only part of its area, but the same 
function is also carried out in another part of the district by one or more parish councils 
(Local Government Finance Act 1992, S35(2)(d)). The list of items within special expenses 
is published in the Council Tax Resolution which is approved by Council each February.

In order to simplify the initial identification of grants to be considered as special expenses, 
the following is recommended (to note that the above criteria will also be applied before any 
final recommendations are made):
Town Account Special Expenses requires that funds are for services that are predominately 
for town residents.  As the town wards have 36% of the District’s total population, to qualify 
as predominantly benefiting town ward residents, it is proposed that the percentage of 
service beneficiaries should be double the share of resident population.      
Source: Mid-2017 Population Estimates for 2017 Wards
Winchester District total resident population 123,879
Town Wards total resident population 44,495 = 35.9% of total 

resident population 
Proposed response: 
The Town Account funds applications that are predominately for town residents i.e. 
applications that have in excess of 72% town ward residents as beneficiaries.
The table below gives some (theoretical) worked examples of how this would apply:

Grant 
Request  

Percentage of 
District 
residents as 
service  
beneficiaries 

Percentage of 
Town residents 
as service  
beneficiaries 

Town 
Account 
Allocation 

General 
Fund 
Allocation

Org. 1 £12,500 55% 45% 0 £12,500
Org. 2 £8,000 22% 78% £8,000 0
Org. 3 £10,000 67% 33% 0 £10,000
Org. 4 £13,000 20% 80% £13,000 0
Org. 5 £15,000 50% 50% 0 £15,000
Org. 6 £14,300 78% 22% 0 £14,300
Org. 7 £12,700 100% 0% 0 £12,700
Org. 8 £9,000 90% 10% 0 £9,000
Org. 9 £7,000 46% 54% 0 £7,000
Org. 10 £15,000 10% 90% £15,000 0
Org. 11 £13,400 15% 85% £13,000 0
Org. 12 £14,500 75% 25% 0 £14,500
Totals £144,400   £49,000 £95,000

Page 287



Decision Process Proposal
The following chart is a flow diagram of the proposed process by which all applications will 
be objectively assessed and grant awards offered.

Call issued for Priority Outcome Grant  

Applications submitted

Checked and assessment scoring 
Eligibility - Criteria – Outcomes - Due diligence - References

Application passed

Minimum pass score reached
Grant award proposed based on assessment score

If over subscribed priority will be given to the highest scoring 
applications

Application and grant award proposed for endorsement by Grant Panel

Grant Panel

2 X Portfolio Holder (Business Partnership and Finance) 
Nominated Ward Member Representatives

Head of Engagement and Funding Manager

Share of General Fund and Town Account allocated based on assessment 
of whether service delivery is for town ward residents or District residents   

Grant award allocation 

Application Rejected

Assessment feedback 
provided

Page 288



Section 2: Small Grants Allocation 

Grouping of ward allocations based on size and location

 Ward locations

Individual 
ward 
population

Combined 
ward 
population

% 
population 
of the 
District 
excluding 
Town

Grant 
allocation 
based on 
population

Grant pot 
based on 
% 
population

No of 
grants 
available

  
1 Bishop's Waltham 7,886
 Whiteley and Shedfield 6,503

14,389 18.10% £6,335 £6,500 13

 

2
Colden Common and 
Twyford 5,719

 
Badger Farm and Oliver's 
Battery 8,277

13,996 17.60% £6,160 £6,000 12

 
3 Wonston and Micheldever 7,573
 The Worthys 6,024

13,597 17.10% £5,985 £6,000 12

 
4 Upper Meon Valley 5,429
 Central Meon Valley 8,834

14,263 18.00% £6,300 £6,500 13

 
5 Southwick & Wickham 6,930
 Denmead 7,446

14,376 18.10% £6,335 £6,500 13

 
6 Alresford and Itchen Valley 8,763 8,763 11.10% £3,885 £3,500 7
 
 District total excluding Town: 79,384 100% £35,000 £35,000 70
 
7 Town Ward grants  44,495  £5,000  10

Source: ONS 2017 mid year population estimates

Page 289

javascript:sym('E05010997')
javascript:sym('E05011009')
javascript:sym('E05010999')
javascript:sym('E05010999')
javascript:sym('E05010996')
javascript:sym('E05010996')
javascript:sym('E05011010')
javascript:sym('E05011007')
javascript:sym('E05011008')
javascript:sym('E05010998')
javascript:sym('E05011006')
javascript:sym('E05011000')
javascript:sym('E05010995')


Small Grants – Panel Allocation Locations

P
age 290



LIST OF WARD MEMBERS, GROUPINGS AND SUGGESTED VENUES

1 Bishops Waltham Suggested venue
Cllr Humby
Cllr McLean
Cllr Miller
Whiteley and Shedfield
Cllr Achwal
Cllr Bentote
Cllr Huxstep

Jubilee Hall, Bishops Waltham
Whiteley and Shedfield - Reading rooms, Shedfield

2 Colden Common
Cllr Cook
Cllr Izzard
Badger Farm and Oliver's Battery
Cllr Bell
Cllr Laming
Cllr Warwick

Colden Common Community Centre
Badger Farm Community Centre

3 Wonston and Micheldever
Cllr Cunningham
Cllr Godfrey
Cllr Horrill
The Worthys
Cllr Porter
Cllr Prince
Cllr Rutter

South Wonston Hall
Tubbs Hall, Kingsworthy

4 Upper Meon Valley
Cllr Ruffell
Cllr Lumby
Central Meon Valley
Cllr Gemmell
Cllr Pearson
Cllr Weston

Upham Village hall
Swanmore village hall

5 Southwick & Wickham
Cllr Clear
Cllr Cutler
Cllr Evans
Denmead
Cllr Brook
Cllr Read
Cllr Stallard

Wickham Community Centre
Denmead Community Centre

6 Alresford and Itchen Valley
Cllr Gottlieb
Cllr Griffiths
Cllr Power

Alresford Town Council offices

7 Town Area
Cllr Scott
Cllr Learney
Cllr Berry
Cllr Becker

Guildhall

Joint wards will have one grant meeting in each location

Page 291



SMALL GRANT AWARD PROCESS

Call issued for Small grants detailed by ward

Basic outline applications submitted online
Checked and assessed 

Eligibility - Criteria – Outcomes - Due diligence

 Panel to meet the organisation
 Score the application 
 Private panel discussion
 Instant decision for the organisation on the funding day

Grant Decision Panel

 Members in each ward location to be invited to join the panel 
in their ward grouping

 Quorate: Funding Officer, Admin Officer, plus at least one 
ward member

1  Bishops Waltham/Whiteley & Shedfield
2  Colden Common & Twyford / Badger Farm & Oliver’s Battery
3  Wonston & Micheldever / The Worthys
4  Upper Meon Valley / Central Meon Valley
5  Southwick & Wickham / Denmead
6  Alresford & Itchen Valley
7  Town wards

Application Rejected

7 locations, 2 rounds: February/September

Organisation invited to meet the panel

Panel ward allocation groupings:

Small grant funding event: coffee and cash

Page 292



CAB3119
CABINET

REPORT TITLE: MINUTE EXTRACTS FROM WINCHESTER TOWN FORUM HELD 
14 NOVEMBER AND PERSONNEL COMMITTEE HELD 22 NOVEMBER 2018

12 DECEMBER 2018

REPORT OF PORTFOLIO HOLDERS: BUSINESS PARTNERSHIPS AND 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Contact Officer:  Nancy Graham    Tel No: 01962 848 235 Email 
ngraham@winchester.gov.uk 

WARD(S):  GENERAL

PURPOSE

To note the contents of the minute extract from Winchester Town Forum held 14 
November and Personnel Committee held 22 November 2018. 

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the contents of the minute extract from Winchester Town Forum held 14 
November and Personnel Committee held 22 November 2018 be noted and the 
recommendations for Cabinet therein be considered.

Appendices:

Appendix 1 – Minute extract from Winchester Town Forum, 14 November 2018

Appendix 2 – Minute extract from Personnel Committee, 22 November 2018

Page 293

Agenda Item 15



CAB3119 – APPENDIX 1

Minute Extract from Winchester Town Forum held 14 November 2018

7.   COMMUNITY AND VOLUNTARY SECTOR GRANTS REVIEW 
(Report CAB3079 refers)

The following personal (but not prejudicial) interests were declared by members 
before consideration of this item:

 Councillor Berry as a member of the Town Forum (Town Account Grants) 
Informal Group.  

 Councillor Mather as a member of the Trinity Advisory Committee
 Councillor Tod as a volunteer at the Night Shelter and due to his role as 

Hampshire County Councillor and his provision of community grants
 Councillor Murphy as a volunteer for Home-Start
 Councillor Green due to his  involvement with the Rainbow Club
 Councillor Weir as a Trustee with WinACC
 Councillor Hiscock as a member of Hyde 900 and as a fundraiser for Trinity

The Committee considered the report of the Corporate Head of Engagement which 
proposed changes to the current funding programme, which, if agreed will be 
introduced in 2019/20. The Grant Review, which started in June 2018, was instigated 
due to three key issues: the need to meet the financial challenges facing the Council; 
to work with partners on service provision that meet the needs of residents, 
businesses and visitors; and  to simplify the various funding streams for different 
organisations.

The recommendations had been arrived at following extensive analysis, internal 
review and external benchmarking. A full programme of consultation and 
engagement with members, currently funded organisations and other interested 
parties was undertaken and the report was considered by The Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 15 October 2018. Details and results of the full 
engagement programme were included in the report, as set out from paragraph 
11.16 and in Appendices 1 and 2. 

The key findings from the engagement showed that organisations value the 
partnership of the Council, that processes need to be simpler and that organisations 
valued having a relationship with a lead officer within the Council. In addition, it was 
noted that there was a range of financial support that the Council made available to 
organisations. The revised new programme would comprise five elements; a 
strategic fund, a priority outcomes fund, small local grants, crowdfunding and a 
flexible grant pot. The Corporate Head of Engagement outlined each element of the 
framework and advised that further work was being undertaken on the processes 
that support these proposals.

Members of the Forum raised questions on a range of issues which were responded 
to as summarised below: 

It was clarified that an online survey had been issued previously to all Ward 

Page 294



CAB3119 – APPENDIX 1

Councillors and Parish Councils and that following the discussion at The Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee on the 15 October 2018, several issues were being worked on.

Following concerns that organisations may see large, sudden reductions in funding, 
it was clarified that, where possible, step reductions in funding would be made. 
Where this happens, this would run in parallel to the Council supporting and advising 
organisations on how to seek funding from other sources.

Several questions were asked regarding the crowdfunding element of the scheme. 
The Forum was advised that organisations would place the project on the online 
platform to attract funding and that the City Council could match fund it within certain 
limits. If the purpose of the crowdfunding grant was not connected with any existing 
grant, then it should not affect an organisation's current grant.    

In response to a question concerning funding to support organisations or projects 
involved with supporting mental health, the Corporate Head of Engagement 
confirmed that this would be a priority area.

The Forum debated at some length the issues connected to how funds from the 
Town Forum can be accountable and separate from District funding and also how 
the priorities of the Town Forum could best be reflected in the process. These issues 
had previously been raised by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Forum 
was advised that the matter had been highlighted formally with the Monitoring Officer 
and a response was awaited. Two potential proposals discussed could be to capture 
information from the grant application that would show the numbers and locations of 
residents to benefit from the grant. In addition, it could be possible for Town Forum 
members to be part of the decision-making process. The Corporate Head of 
Engagement advised that officers were working on the issues raised and that this 
issue would form part of the final report taken to Cabinet.

Councillor Humby provided an update regarding several points that had been raised 
and assured members that officers were working through the comments from the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the feedback from the Forum. He stated that 
he understood the points raised and advised that the intention of the review was to 
provide a transparent, fair and equitable process that helped partners deliver on their 
objectives. He stated that all comments would be fed back into the preparation of the 
final report to be considered by Cabinet.  

In conclusion, the Forum welcomed the clarity and consistency set out in the report. 

RESOLVED:

That the views of the Town Forum set out above be taken to 
Cabinet for consideration.

Page 295



CAB3119 – APPENDIX 2

Minute extract from Personnel Committee held 22 November 2018

1. REVIEW OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT
(Report PER318 refers)

The Strategic Director: Resources introduced the Report.  Councillor Godfrey 
added that the proposals were intended to have a positive effect on staff 
retention and the attractiveness of Winchester as a place to work.  The 
addition to annual leave was a significant benefit and the changes to pay an 
acknowledgement that staff were valued.

Members asked questions of the information presented and the responses 
given are summarised below:
(i) Christmas leave and office closure would be introduced this year.

(ii) Additional leave could be bought after six months service when the 
probationary period had expired.  The purchase of annual leave would 
usually be discussed with managers at appraisal time so that office 
cover could be arranged, but the scheme could be flexible to respond 
to unforeseen circumstances.

(iii) There were currently no core working hours, but Heads of Teams 
ensure that teams are adequately staffed in normal opening hours 
(8:30am to 5:00pm Monday to Thursday and 8:30am to 4:30pm on 
Fridays).

(iv) There was a clear gap for employees on Scale 4 from the lower pay 
scales (1 – 3), which would be positive in that it retained clear breaks 
between grades and all scales would see an uplift of 2% at least.

RESOLVED:

1. That the Head of Human Resources (Interim) be given 
delegated authority to:

a. implement the revisions to annual leave set out in this 
Report with effect from 01 April 2019;

b. implement the revisions to the Council’s Flexible 
Working (“Flexi-Time”) arrangements as set out in this Report;

c. amend the Council’s Policies accordingly.

2. That the commitment to ensure the Council sets its 
salaries at market median is supported.

3. That the salary scales set out in Appendix C which 
meet the requirements of the ‘national assimilation requirement 
be approved and recommended to Cabinet for the financial 
implications.

Page 296



CAB3119 – APPENDIX 2

To Cabinet:

4. To approve the financial implications of the Personnel 
Committee’s proposals for the Council’s pay scales of an 
estimated £227k, as set out in Appendix C, and recommend the 
increased budget provision to Council.

Page 297



This page is intentionally left blank



PER318
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

REPORT TITLE: REVIEW OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT 

22 NOVEMBER 2018

REPORT OF PORTFOLIO HOLDER: CLLR STEPHEN GODFREY – PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Contact Officer:  Jamie Cann    Tel No: 01962 848 437 Email 
jcann@winchester.gov.uk 

WARD(S):  ALL

PURPOSE

The Council’s Employee Strategy was approved by Personnel Committee on 23 
November 2017; it set out a number of key HR priorities to enable the Council to 
continue to position itself as an employer of choice and to attract and retain the right 
staff with the right skills, attitude, motivation and flexibility to deliver modern local 
government services and support the type of organisation the Council wants to 
become as it moves forward. 

This paper sets out proposals to improve the overall employment offer of the Council 
through an increase in annual leave allowances and a review of salary scales, linked 
to the national pay assimilation requirement. 

RECOMMENDATIONS:

To Personnel Committee:

1. That the Head of Human Resources (Interim) be given delegated authority to:
a.  implement the revisions to annual leave set out in this report with effect 

from 01 April 2019;
b. implement the revisions to the Council’s Flexible Working (“Flexi-Time”) 

arrangements as set out in this report;
c. amend the Council’s Policies accordingly

2. That the commitment to ensure the Council sets its salaries at market median 
is supported

Page 299

Agenda Item 16



3. That the salary scales set out in Appendix B which meet the requirements of 
the ‘national assimilation requirement are approved and recommended to 
Cabinet for the financial implications.

To Cabinet:

4. To approve the financial implications of the Personnel Committee’s proposals 
for the Council’s pay scales of an estimated £227k, as set out in Appendix B, 
and recommend the increased budget provision to Council

IMPLICATIONS:

1 COUNCIL STRATEGY OUTCOME 

1.1 The success of delivering the Council Strategy is dependent on being able to 
recruit and retain the right calibre of staff. We require a staff team  with the 
skills, attitude and behaviours required to deliver high quality, effective 
services and move forward with the Council as it adapts, and innovates to 
meet the challenges of the future.

1.2 In order to recruit and retain the required calibre of staff, pay and conditions 
need to be market aligned to effectively compete within a highly competitive 
market.

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 The financial cost of moving to a six spinal point pay scale structure alongside 
an increased pay grade for scales 6 to 9 (with two increases for grade 8) is 
estimated at £227k (this will vary depending on postholders in place at a given 
time) . This is the estimated cost of the Council positioning salaries at the 
average rate to near neighbours.

2.2 If the proposal for the highest level of comparative salaries to be adopted the 
estimated cost to the annual staffing budget is at least circa £900k.

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 There are no specific procurement or legal implications arising from this 
report.

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 In the 2016 staff survey, pay and conditions was one of the top issues raised 
by staff.  Another paper on this agenda sets out the work undertaken over the 
past year to improve the benefits on offer to staff.

Page 300



4.2 In exit interviews undertaken, pay has been frequently mentioned as a reason 
for an employee moving to another council, even as a sideways move.

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 None

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION 

6.1 The Leader of the Council and the Leader of the Liberal Democrats have 
been briefed on the proposals to improve terms and conditions to become a 
market median level.  The paper has been discussed with the portfolio holder 
with responsibility for human resources.

6.2 The paper has also been reviewed by the recognised trade union at the 
Council, Unison’ with the following comments:

UNISON are pleased to note the proposed positive changes to the terms and 
conditions.  The additional leave and flexibility of working fits well with 
UNISON’s campaigns for better work life balance and improved conditions for 
all staff.

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS

7.1 None directly identified.

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT 

8.1 The Council has utilises a Job Evaluation scheme which identifies the scale 
for individual job roles.  This assessment is gender blind.

8.2 In addition, the Council declared a Gender Pay Gap of 12.41% which is below 
the national average of 17.4% (i.e. the Council is performing better than the 
national average).

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

9.1 All staff details are stored on a confidential and secure HR system 

10 RISK MANAGEMENT 

10.1 See table below

Risk Mitigation Opportunities
Property – n/a
Community Support – n/a
Timescales – 
implementation of the 
amdended  NJC pay 
scales late

Early engagement with 
staff, the union and 
members on the proposals

Proposals are well 
received and raise levels 
of staff morale

Page 301



- Failure to improve 
payscales

The Council is at risk of 
losing staff to 
neighbouring councils as 
current salary levels are 
below market median

Project capacity – suitably 
qualified and skilled 
personnel are not 
available to deliver 
complex projects

Maintain a competitive 
position in the relevant job 
markets

An innovative and pro-
active council, undertaking 
a number of interesting 
projects, is an attractive 
place to work for skilled 
employees

Financial / VfM – impact 
on the MTFS

Contained within budget 
growth forecasts in the 
MTFS

Other

11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION:

11.1 The Personnel Committee approved an employee strategy at the end of 2017.  
One of the purposes of the strategy is to ensure that the employment offer is 
improved to enable improvements to recruitment and retention at the Council.

11.2 There are a number of drivers for the review of the employment offer:

(i) for recruitment and retention the Council’s pay needs to be at the local 
median

(ii) The most recent staff survey highlighted pay and conditions as an issue

(iii) The Council needs to implement the national pay scales from 1st April 
2019

(iv) The current pay scales are too long and need to be reduced as 
progression takes too long for individuals to progress through the grade 
and to comply with equal pay requirements

(v) There needs to be a clear break between different pay grades 

11.3 This paper contains some proposed enhancements to the overall package for 
employees.  Wherever possible, these have been contained within existing 
resources, though there are certain levels of pay that the Council is a 
significant outlier (at grades 6-9) compared to neighbouring authorities, and 
financial investment is required.  In order to continue to attract the best staff 
and to continue to provide high quality services, the Council does need to 
become more competitive in the market.  In certain areas, most notably within 
the Development Management team in recent months, the Council has seen a 
significant loss of staff to other near neighbour councils.

Proposed changes to annual leave

Page 302



11.4 It is proposed to increase annual leave levels.

11.5 The Council’s current leave arrangements are set out in the table below. 
These meet the minimum requirements of the Green Book but are 
substantially below the annual leave allowances awarded by near neighbours.

11.6 Table 1.1: Current Annual Leave entitlements

Grade 1 – 10

Less than 2 years’ service1 23 days

After 2 years’ service 24 days

After 3 years’ service 25 days

After 4 years’ service 26 days

After 5 years’ service 27 days

After 20 years’ service 30 days

Chief Officers and Chief executive 30 days

11.7 Having reviewed the annual leave allowances from neighbouring authorities 
as shown in Appendix A  the annual leave rates are the second lowest of 
twelve comparator organisations. The proposal is for a substantial increase 
over current allowances, and would place the Council positively compared to 
near neighbours comparative amounts.  As a recruitment and retention tool, 
especially in those professional service areas where recruitment and retention 
are difficult, this could be a powerful incentive to work for the Council.  Though 
there could be a productivity loss, this is difficult to quantify as this proposal 
would also likely lead to increased employee engagement and promotes 
employee wellbeing which are beneficial for productivity.

11.8 The proposed rates compare well across all grades, though at the most senior 
level the proposals are lower than other senior management teams from the 
higher comparator councils.

11.9 It is also proposed that the Council close for the period between the 
Christmas/New Year holiday which is 3 working days on an ongoing basis 
with emergency cover put in place.  Again a comparison with near neighbours 
indicates that other local authorities do close over that period and award extra 
days to staff for that period or award 1.5 days leave and require staff to make 
a contribution from leave allowances.

1 Annual leave entitlements are based on continuous local government service

Page 303



11.10 This has been carefully considered and it is proposed to award one and a half 
extra days at Christmas 2018 and require staff to allocate leave to cover the 
other one and a half closure days, if applicable. 

11.11 As with other councils, emergency out of hours arrangements will be put in 
place to ensure any urgent matters can be addressed during the period of 
closure.

11.12 It is recommended that leave allowances are implemented with effect from 1 
April 2019 and incorporate Christmas closure within ongoing arrangements.

Table 1.2: Proposed Annual Leave2 from 1.4.2019

Grade Basic After 2 years After 5 years
1-7 25 days 28 days 32 days
8-10 26 days 29 days 34 days
ELB 30 days 33 days 34 days

Plus: 8 Public Holidays and an additional day and a half awarded to be taken during 
the Christmas closure.

11.13 The intention is to increase annual leave levels to increase rates more quickly 
than other near neighbours of councils.

11.14 From the 1st April 2019, it is also proposed to allow staff to buy up to five days 
of annual leave with agreement by their line manager.  There is an employee 
benefit of this, as well as employer benefit through reduced national insurance 
and LGPS costs.  Such requests to buy additional annual leave would need to 
be approved only in line with the business needs of the organisation.

11.15 In July 2015, the Council moved away from a fixed annual leave year based 
on 01 April to 31 March and introduced a flexible leave year to reflect the 
month in which an employee commenced employment with the Council.  The 
Council also moved away from having fixed core hours for staff.

11.16 This is not universally seen as a benefit to staff but to enable the 
implementation of the proposed increase in annual leave and the option to 
buy additional leave, there will be consultation with staff at upcoming all staff 
briefings on whether to revert to a fixed leave year (April – March) so that 
there is consistency across the Council.  The annual leave calculation will also 
be considered as to whether days rather than hours for full time staff are more 
appropriate.

Proposed changes to flexible working arrangements

11.17 The current policy allows employees to accrue an additional 8 hours per 
calendar month (“Flexi time”) and to take the accrued time off, capped at one 
day per month.  The purpose of having flexible working hours is to promote 

2  Pro rata for part time staff

Page 304



work-life blend and help employees to manage both their work and domestic 
commitments.

11.18 It is also proposed to move to fully flexible hours in common with other 
councils, in that staff may work at any time over a 24 hour period if necessary 
for the business.  This also enables staff to manage personal appointments 
etc and still work ‘a full day’.

Proposed changes to salary scalesand assimilation to new pay scales

11.19 The NJC pay scales have been set nationally and as an employer who follows 
the national pay regime, the Council must ensure that staff are moved to this 
new pay scale.  The Council must assimilate staff onto new nationally agreed 
pay scales from the 1st April 2019.  The new pay scales include an uplift of 2% 
across the scale to comply with the national pay bargaining position and these 
have been agreed nationally by the unions.

11.20 As part of the movement to a new pay scale there is an opportunity for the 
Council to modernise the pay structure.  The proposals set out in this paper 
remove the excessively long grades that currently exist, with many grades 
having nine spinal points, and move all grades up to scale 9 to a six spinal 
point model.  Reduction to a six point pay scale is essential to ensure the 
Council meets equality of pay requirements.  The proposals for moving the 
grades to be more competitive from grade 6 and above are covered 
elsewhere in this paper.

11.21 The existing salary scales were established in the late 1990’s but are now 
recognised as poor compared to other local authorities both financially at 
points and due to long nature of the grades as set out in Appendix B and as 
highlighted in the graph below (blue bar):

Page 305



Graph 1: Comparison of pay grades

-10.0%

-8.0%

-6.0%

-4.0%

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

existing
propos
ed

Comparison of pay grades vs other authorities - % 
variation

       3                 4                    5                    6                     7                     8                  

11.23 The number of staff at different grades is outlined below in table 1.  This 
provides some context for the number of staff who could be impacted by 
changes at different levels.  However, not all staff will be impacted by the 
change; it will only be those at the top of certain grades, and those in the 
bottom three spinal points of a grade.

Page 306



Table: 1 Headcount by Grade

Grade Headcount Impact
Scale 1 1 Living Wage
Scale 2 7 Living Wage

Scale 3 115
Removal of bottom 3 spinal 

points

Scale 4 130
Removal of bottom 3 spinal 

points

Scale 5 87
Removal of bottom 3 spinal 

points

Scale 6 82

Removal of bottom 4 spinal 
points and increase of spinal 

point at the top of grade

Scale 7 24

Removal of bottom 4 spinal 
points and increase of spinal 

point at the top of grade

Scale 8 18

Removal of bottom 5 spinal 
points and increase of two 
spinal points at the top of 

grade

Scale 9 6

Removal of bottom 4 spinal 
points and increase of spinal 

point at the top of grade

11.24 However, there is a cost to this as the bottom grades of spinal points will be 
removed, so staff on those lower spinal column points will move up to the new 
bottom point in the scale.

11.25 There is also a proposal to move the scales for 6, 7, 8 (with two points at this 
grade to prevent any overlap of grades) and 9 SCP so they are one spinal 
point higher at the top of grades.  This places the Council salaries at market 
median but as shown at the graph, some of the salary grades are still slightly 
below market median.  However, at grade 7 this is £500 below median, £1,100 
at grade 8 and £1,500 at grade 9.  At present, grades 8 and 9 are over £4,000 
below the median levels.  It is expected that this improvement, alongside other 
benefits highlighted in this paper, such as the increase ot annual leave,will 
improve the Council’s overall market position.

11.26 Grades 3, 4 and 5 are showing comparative increases to the median even 
though the top of the scale is not proposed to increase.  This is because the 
bottom scale points have been removed, so that the middle of the pay scales 
are more competitive.  With such long grades currently, it can take up to nine 
years for a member of staff to progress through the pay grade.

11.27 The proposed revised spinal points are included in appendix B and can be 
implemented at a cost of £227K. 

Page 307



11.28 If the Council wishes to pay at the top level of pay, and assuming all staff are 
currently at the top of scales (which they are not), the increased cost above the 
proposed increases would be a minimum of £900k.

11.29 A revised salary scale for grade 10 and Director, CX scale was implemented in 
2017 as part of the senior level restructure.  These roles are classed as Chief 
Officer and no further assimilation is required as the revisions put the 
comparative grades at just above the median point. 

Implementation Timetable

02 November 2018 Initial discussion with Unison

02 November 2018 Intial discussion with Portfolio 
Holder for Professional Services

22 November 2018 Consideration by Personnel 
Committee

End November / early December All Staff Briefings

12 December 2018 Consideration by Cabinet

Early January 2019 Feedback to Unison

Mid January 2019 Notify staff of agreed pay spines

February Notfiy staff of individual changes

February/March 2019 Amend Payroll and simulate pay 
run using new data

01 April 2019 New Pay Scales in place

Conclusion

11.30 Proposals are included as recommendations for the Personnel Committee and 
then to Cabinet to enhance the overall employment package but within an 
affordable financial envelope.  This recognisees the Council’s financial position 
and enables a comparative pay package with best in class other elements of 
the employment package to improve recruitment and retention and the offer to 
Council staff.

12 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

12.1 Retain the employment package as it currently stands.  This option is rejected 
as the employee strategy sets out to change the overall package to increase 
the Council’s competitiveness in the market and to enhance the Council’s 
recruitment and retention levels.  There are many examples across the Council 

Page 308



where there are recruitment and retention concerns and the Council has little in 
its existing package to differentiate itself.

12.2 Pay scales could be increased to top quartile.  However, this has been rejected 
as it is only being applied where the SCP is significantly away from the 
comparator average and so impacting on recruitment and retention.  Almost all 
pay scales now are within 5% above or below the median pay range of 
comparative councils.  Pay anomalies at senior staff grade 8 have been 
addressed to bring the mid point of this grade much closer to the average.

12.3 The Council could opt for an average annual leave comparative figure, with no 
further exploration of other employee benefits; i.e. the status quo with a small 
enhancement to annual leave.  This has been rejected, as the pay amounts are 
around the average across grades; an average offer for non pay benefits is 
unlikely to make any impact in attempting to recruit staff from other councils 
and the private sector, nor will it assist retention significantly when neighbouring 
councils have a substantially better pay and benefits offer.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:-

Previous Committee Reports:-

PER304 – 27 November 2017: The Employee Strategy 

Other Background Documents:-

NJC pay scales 2019-20

APPENDICES:

Appendix A – comparative pay data

Appendix B – proposed revised pay scales

Page 309



Appendix A – Comparative annual leave 

LENGTH OF SERVICE
Salary Point Up to 5 

Years
After 5 Years After 10 

Years
After 20 
Years

After 30 
Years

Up to Pt 17 22 27 28 30 32
Pt 18-28 23 27 28 30 32
Pt 29-32 24 27 28 30 33
Pt 33+ 26 27 29 32 35
JNC Grades Up to 5 

Years
After 5 Years After 10 

Years
After 20 
Years

After 30 
Years

11 - 14 32 33 34 35 36
CD’s/CX 33 34 35 36 37
+ 8 x public holidays

Period of Continuous Service
Grade      0 - 5 

years   
5 - 20 
years Greater than 20 years

Hourly Paid 
Employees 21 25 28

Grades 1-4 21 25 28

Grades 5-6 21 26 29

Grades 7-11 22 27 30

Managers Grade 25 30 33

Directors 30 35 38

Page 310



Appendix B – Comparative pay data

Source: Comparison against neighbouring councils3 as at 2017 pay amounts

WCC Grade 2017 Salary range Comparison 
against the mean 

average

Comparison 
against the mean 

average – new 
salary range in 
2017 figures4

3 17,681 – 21,074 2.3% 5%

4 21,074 – 27,358 2.3% 6.7%

5 27,358  -34,106 1% 5.2%

6 34,106 – 40,858 -2.8% 2.4%

7 39,661 – 46,965 -5.4% -1.1%

8 44,697 – 52,813 -8.4% -2.1%

9 52,813 – 61,389 -6.8% - 2.4%

3 Comparator Councils – Rushmoor, New Forest, Chichester, Fareham, Eastleigh, Test Valley, 
Basingstoke

4 Modelled on 2017 comparative amounts with other Councils, but on the proposed pay scale ranges 
(but in 2017 salary ranges) as comparator Council 2019 pay ranges are unknown at present

Page 311



Appendix C – Table Revised spinal points and grades – only showing SCP used
Model 7 - Assimilation + grade length reduced to 6 scps
+ 1 scp uplift @ Scales 6,7 & 9
+2 scp uplift @ Scale 8

4
4
5
5
6
6 SC3

19,554 7
19,945 8
20,344 9
20,751 10
21,166 11
21,589 12 SC4
24,799 19
25,295 20
25,801 21
26,317 22
26,999 23
27,905 24 SC5
30,507 27
31,371 28
32,029 29
32,878 30
33,799 31
34,788 32 SC6
37,849 35
38,813 36
39,782 37
40,760 38
41,675 39
42,683 40 SC7
43,662 41
44,632 42
45,591 43
46,749 44
47,904 45
49,113 46 SC8
50,337 47
51,591 48
52,885 49
53,869 50
54,918 51
55,958 52 SC9
58,040 54
59,078 55
60,116 56
61,154 57
62,617 58
63,860 59

18,426

18,795

19,171

Page 312



CAB3118

CABINET (HOUSING) COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 21 November 2018

Attendance:

Councillors
Horrill (Chairman)

Brook Miller

Other Invited Councillors:

Berry Izard

TACT:

Mr M Fawcitt
Mrs M Gill

Deputies in attendance:

Councillor McLean (deputy for Councillor Burns)

Others in attendance who addressed the meeting:

Councillor Rutter

Apologies:

Councillor Burns

1.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 4 JULY 2018 

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the Cabinet (Housing) Committee held 4 July 
2018 be approved and adopted.

2.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Ian Tait spoke regarding the Council’s register for the provision of sites for self-
build properties as had been highlighted by a local resident (Michael Gibbons) at 
a previous meeting of the Committee on 22 November 2017.  In summary, he 
queried whether the measure was working effectively as, to his knowledge, only 
one site since had received planning permission.

The Chairman confirmed that offering a mixture of tenures was an important 
element of the Council’s Housing Strategy and offering sites for self-build was 

Page 313

Agenda Item 17



2 CAB3118

one part of this.  The Portfolio Holder for Built Environment would examine this 
further as part of the forthcoming Local Plan Review.  In addition, the Chairman 
requested that the Head of New Homes Development investigate this matter.

3.   DISPOSAL OF LAND AT MOUNTBATTEN PLACE, KINGS WORTHY
(Report CAB3104(HSG) refers)

The Chairman emphasised that building new affordable homes and offering a 
variety of options was a key part of the Council’s housing strategy.  The Council 
had previously worked with Footsteps Living Limited on a scheme in 
Otterbourne.

During public participation, Ian Tait spoke in support of the scheme, which he 
noted had previously been considered by Winchester Housing Trust (of which he 
was a Director) but the Trust had suggested Footsteps might be a more 
appropriate organisation to deliver the scheme due to design issues.

At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor Rutter spoke as a local Ward 
Councillor and in summary, whilst not objecting to the proposals overall, raised a 
number of concerns:
 The proposed size of the flats was very small and whilst possibly large 

enough for one person, would not allow for growing families. Would the 
person become ineligible for other affordable housing options if they wished 
to sell and move on?

 She requested reassurance about the level of demand for such properties 
locally;

 Why was the site being offered to Footsteps to develop rather than the 
Council developing itself?

On behalf of TACT, Mrs Gill stated that the TACT view was the Council should 
develop the site itself.  Mr Fawcitt also queried the status of Footsteps as it was 
not a registered provider.

The Head of New Homes Delivery responded to questions raised during public 
participation, in addition to concerns raised by TACT and some of the other 
invited Members present, as summarised below:
 At 35 sq.m, the flat size was acknowledged to be small.  However, officers 

had visited other similar schemes and had been impressed by the standard 
of design.  Research undertaken amongst younger members of Council staff 
had indicated there was a demand for the option to buy such properties as an 
alternative to equivalent priced private renting of a room in a shared HMO 
property.

 Any resident whose situation “outgrew” their accommodation was able to sell 
and move on.

 Conditions of sale of properties would include a restriction on sub-letting.
 Footsteps had undertaken investigatory work into the site and specialised in 

offering this type of product.  In the longer term, it might be appropriate for 
the Council to build on experience of this scheme to develop other similar 
schemes itself.  However, for this project, it was considered preferable for 
Footsteps to be given the opportunity to develop, within a stated timeframe.

Page 314



3 CAB3118

 Footsteps were considered to be too small an organisation to qualify as a 
registered provider but their work was consistent with such an organisation.

 The Head of New Homes Delivery emphasised that the potential surplus 
generated for the Housing Revenue Account by the sale of land was 
dependant upon further investigations not highlighting additional costs.  

 On the wider issue of providing additional housing, the Leader confirmed that 
the possibility of establishing a Housing Company was still under 
investigation and the Corporate Head of Housing (Interim) advised it was 
intended to bring a further report on the matter in early 2019.

During further discussions it was suggested that additional details (including 
photographs) of similar schemes undertaken by specialist providers, in addition 
to the research into potential demand, be shared with Committee Members.  

The Committee agreed to the following for the reasons outlined above and set 
out in the report.

RESOLVED:

1. That the disposal of the land at Mountbatten Place, Kings 
Worthy, as shown outlined in the plan attached as Appendix 1 to the 
report, to Footsteps Living Limited be approved in principle, subject to the 
Corporate Head of Asset Management negotiating terms and conditions 
with a further report to approve.

2. Subject to final approval, that the Corporate Head of 
Housing be authorised to take the appropriate action to terminate any 
tenancies of garages affected by the scheme.

3. That the Corporate Head of Asset Management be 
authorised to negotiate and agree terms for easements, wayleaves and 
related agreements with utility providers, Highway Authority and 
neighbours in order to facilitate the development. 

3.   HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) BUDGET OPTIONS 2019/20
(Report CAB3098(HSG) refers)

The Chairman drew Members’ attention to key elements of the report, namely: 
the 1% rent reduction; rectification works required for Victoria House; and 
funding for the Wickham Community Land Trust.

The Head of Housing Finance advised that the calculations within the report 
were prepared prior to the Government announcement about the removal of the 
HRA debt cap. The results of the recent consultation on “right to buy” sales was 
also awaited.  Once both had been received it would be possible to undertake a 
full review of options.  The Chairman stated this would include a plan for 
providing additional new homes.

Mrs Gill and Mr Fawcitt confirmed that they had met with the Head of Housing 
Finance prior to the meeting and TACT were happy with the contents of the 
report.

Page 315



4 CAB3118

In response to Members’ questions, the Corporate Head of Housing (Interim) 
advised that she could provide a profile of types of properties sold under “right to 
buy”. It was highlighted that over the previous year, the Council had built more 
new homes than had been sold under “right to buy”. 

The Committee agreed to the following for the reasons outlined above and set 
out in the report.

RECOMMENDED (TO COUNCIL):

THAT SUBJECT TO THE CORPORATE HEAD OF HOUSING 
BEING SATISFIED THAT SUITABLE DELIVERY ARRANGEMENTS 
ARE IN PLACE AND THE COMPLETION OF A FUNDING 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN WICKHAM COMMUNITY LAND TRUST 
(WCLT) AND THE COUNCIL, A SUPPLEMENTARY CAPITAL 
ESTIMATE OF £410K BE APPROVED AND A GRANT AWARD OF 
THIS SUM BE MADE TO WCLT FOR THE PROVISION OF 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING.

RESOLVED:

1. The revised forecasts for the HRA for 2018/19, as detailed 
in Appendices 1 and 2 be approved.

2. The amended capital programmes for Housing Services and 
New Build Projects together with the funding schedule for 2018/19 to 
2027/28 as detailed in Appendices 3, 4 and 5 are approved.

3. The rent reduction for Council dwellings of 1% in 2019/20, 
as highlighted in paragraph 11.7, in line with MHCLG rent setting policy is 
approved.

4. The latest forecast for the rectification works, as outlined in 
paragraph 11.11, for Victoria House are noted.

3.   HOME LOSS AND DISCRETIONARY PAYMENT POLICY
(Report CAB3097(HSG) refers)

The Chairman stated that this was a new Policy which set out a framework of 
possible payments available for tenants whose property was directly affected by 
the council’s planned development proposals.
 
The Head of New Homes Delivery outlined the key elements of the proposed 
policy, highlighting that some payments were statutory and some discretionary.  
Discretionary payments would not exceed the statutory amount.  The policy set 
out procedures for Officers to follow and emphasised that tenants should engage 
with the Council at an early date.

Page 316



5 CAB3118

Mrs Gill confirmed that comments from TACT had been taken into account in the 
drafting of the Policy.  

In response to Members’ questions, the Head of New Homes Delivery advised 
that the policy stipulated that the level of compensation claimed would be 
reasonable.  Early discussions between tenants and officers should highlight any 
situations where this might be an issue.

The Committee agreed to the following for the reasons outlined above and set 
out in the report.

RESOLVED:

1. That the Home Loss and Discretionary Payment Policy be 
approved.

2. That delegated authority is given to the Corporate Head of 
Housing to approve discretionary and statutory compensation.

3. That delegated authority is given to the Corporate Head of 
Housing to authorise and sign Demolition Notices.

The meeting commenced at 4.35pm and concluded at 5.35pm

Chairman

Page 317



This page is intentionally left blank



CAB3122

CABINET (CENTRAL WINCHESTER REGENERATION) COMMITTEE

27 November 2018

Attendance:

Councillors:

Horrill (Chairman) (P)

Ashton

Warwick (alternative member of Cabinet)

Brook

Other invited Councillors:

Burns Hutchison
Mather Murphy

Others in attendance who did not address the meeting:

Councillor McLean

Apologies:

Councillor Ashton

1.   DISCLOSURES OF INTERESTS 

There were no disclosures of interests from Members of the Committee.

2.   MINUTES 

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the previous meeting of the Committee held on 
25 September 2018 be approved and adopted.

3.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Richard Baker, speaking on behalf of the City of Winchester Trust, in summary 
stated that the brief for the Strategic Adviser should have focus and a single 
brief to work on the Central Winchester Regeneration Area rather across other 
Council projects; it should have emphasis to reflect the brief of the 
Supplemental Planning Document (SPD) and it should have a timetable for 
appointment so that momentum on the project was not lost.

Tim Fell, in summary, spoke of his role on the Advisory Panel for the lower High 
Street and Broadway.  He expressed disappoint that a recommendation to open 

Page 319

Agenda Item 18



CAB3122

up the waterways underneath the CWR site was not brought to this Committee.  
He also expressed disappointment that Report CAB3106 did not recommend to 
seek tenders from urban design specialists, to look at the Lower High Street and 
Broadway, with consideration to its medieval layout. 

Terry Gould, in summary stated that the appointment of a Strategic Advisor 
should not be driven by the more technical aspects of commercialism and 
needed to reflect overall planning urban design.  He explained that at the 
Meanwhile Use Advisory Panel, of which he was a member, there was good 
discussion and he was looking forward to its next meeting.  He welcomed the 
ideas that were being discussed for the bus station site and the old Friarsgate 
Surgery site, as well as the Broadway works.

The Chairman stated that the points raised above would be covered in the 
Progress Report - CAB3106 (CWR) and thanked the public speakers for their 
contributions.

4.   THE NUTSHELL – PRESENTATION

Councillor Horrill informed the meeting that part of the former Antiques Market 
was being used by The Nutshell as a meanwhile use.

Harriet Morris and Hannah Harding from The Nutshell were present at the 
meeting and gave a short presentation on the work that was being carried out to 
promote the Antiques Market as a performance space.

In summary, it was stated that the Antiques Market had been used by The 
Nutshell from September 2018.  Challenges had been the heating of the 
premises, dealing with the acoustics of the building when two floors were in use 
and fundraising (with £15,000 raised to date).

There had been success in hiring out the space to local groups including the 
Youth Theatre Company and the Theatre Royal who had use the premise’s 
studio space to rehearse its Christmas pantomime, Beauty and the Beast.  Two 
shows had also been staged at the premises and had sold out with 75 people 
attending each.  The shows had generated excitement in local people and a 
comprehensive performance programme for the New Year was being devised, 
including productions to involve young people, acting lessons, mothers with 
babies, arts and crafts and groups to combat loneliness.

There had been support and sponsorship from local organisations, and The 
Nutshell had featured on BBC television.  The Wessex Hotel had donated chairs 
for the venture and Travelbag had donated office furniture, with Warrens and 
local paint shops also providing assistance.  It was working in partnership with 
the Theatre Royal, Unit 12, The Guildhall and the Railway Inn, which increased 
the vibrancy of arts provision in Winchester.

The Nutshell’s website was https://www.thenutshellwinchester.com and the 
Chairman stated that the Council would help promote its performance 
programme through its own social media.

Page 320

https://www.thenutshellwinchester.com/


CAB3122

The presenters gave their thanks to Melissa Jepson and Graeme Todd in the 
City Council’s Estates Department for helping them to get established.

RESOLVED:

That the presentation be noted.

5.   CENTRAL WINCHESTER REGENERATION PROGRESS
(Report CAB3106 (CWR) refers)

The Committee received an introduction from Councillor Horrill which provided 
an update on the Central Winchester Regeneration Project and the meetings of 
the Advisory Panels.  Councillor Horrill informed the meeting that following a 
meeting of the Coitbury House Advisory Panel and interviews with potential 
architects, the firm of Henley Halebrown had been appointed to prepare plans 
for the future of Coitbury House.

The Head of Programme outlined the content of the Report.  The regeneration 
area was a complex site with a lot of aspirations, and to make sure that the 
correct decisions were made it was proposed to appoint the Strategic Advisor 
from a multi disciplinary practice that knew the market both nationally and 
internationally and could advise on funding and options.  As an ambitious 
Council, it was now intended that the Strategic Advisor could be called upon as 
a resource to provide advice on the Council’s other programmes.  Meanwhile 
uses were progressing, with, for example, a letting to The Nutshell, and other 
potential uses would be subject to a feasibility study in the New Year.  In respect 
of the public realm, it had been decided not to proceed with existing designs for 
the area from the lower High Street to the King Alfred statue and further thought 
was now being given to designs, and these would be brought to this Committee.

Councillor Horrill added that the Strategic Advisor would supplement the officer 
resource.  The Central Winchester project was key and it would make better use 
of the Council’s time and resources if the Strategic Advisor was also available to 
provide advice on other Council projects.  With regard to the comments raised 
regarding the Broadway by Mr Fell in public participation, the matter would be 
discussed with the Chairman of the Advisory Panel in order that the correct 
articulation was expressed.

In summary, the following matters were raised by Members and the Chairman, 
Strategic Director: Place and Head of Programme responded as set out below:

i. It was important that the City Council worked closely in partnership with 
Hampshire County Council on the installation and maintenance of 
improved public realm in the Broadway.

ii. There would need to be flexibility in selecting meanwhile uses so that if 
one venture did not go well it could be replaced by another.

iii. An officer did not accompany Members on their site visit to Bath due to 

Page 321



CAB3122

illness.

iv. The delivery paper was circulated in September within the outline 
delivery strategy.  It was required to be logical in expressing how the 
project could be delivered; there was also the SPD and a focus on 
meanwhile uses whilst deciding on how the project moved forward as a 
whole.

v. In terms of urgency, the Leader was also keen for the project to progress.  
The City Council’s capacity for delivery and skills gap were being taken 
into consideration when considering the sensible use of procurement of 
multi disciplinary expert advice across a number of projects.  The 
Strategic Director: Place provided focus and direction for the projects.

vi. Cabinet had a wider remit and that was why the brief for the Strategic 
Advisor would be taken to it.

vii. It was envisaged that the Council would have a long-term working 
relationship with the Strategic Advisor, who would be trusted and 
understood the values of Winchester and have the correct thought 
processes.

viii. Under the contract, the Strategic Advisor would report to the Strategic 
Director: Place (as senior client) and the Heads of Programme, and the 
officers would then report to the Committee.

ix. Facilitation would be given further consideration and the brief for specific 
pieces of work that were deliverable would be taken forward by the 
Council in the most appropriate way.

x. In terms of the timeframe, work on projects could be taken forward at 
different times and this may be over a five year period.

xi. It was more efficient for the Council not to carry the cost of project 
professional expertise in house over this period but to secure it as and 
when required, with the option of terminating the contract if it was not 
working.  The budget would also need to be controlled by Cabinet.

xii. The Brief included reference to compulsory purchase as it was a core 
skill that may be required, but it would hopefully not be needed.

xiii. The Brief could be made more specific that a local knowledge of place 
was a requirement.

xiv. The appointment would be under the normal procurement rules.

xv. The opening up of the waterways would take into consideration the latest 
advice on flood alleviation in the town, in order that an integrated scheme 
could be delivered alongside the works to be carried out at Durngate.  It 
was noted that the Council’s Head of Drainage and Special Maintenance 

Page 322



CAB3122

was a member of the Advisory Panel that would consider the proposals 
at its meeting in January 2019.

xvi. It was possible to deliver the proposals for the lower High Street to the 
King Alfred statue as a standalone project, as this brief could be 
delivered in stages.

xvii. The opening of the waterways at the bus station was an option in the 
brief, but this would involve capital works rather than the meanwhile uses 
that were being looked at for this area over a period of 3 to 5 years.  A 
Member mentioned that the neighbouring residents at St John’s 
Almshouses should be consulted with when considering meanwhile uses 
for this area.

xviii. Councillor Horrill stated that the comments on the brief for the Strategic 
Advisor would be considered and the brief amended if appropriate to 
reflect the points raised by the Committee prior to its consideration by 
Cabinet.

The Committee agreed to the following for the reasons set out above and 
outlined in the Report.

 RESOLVED:

1. That the progress with the project and the comments 
of the advisory panels be noted.

2. That the work to complete the business case for 
meanwhile use work stream as outlined in paragraphs 11.12 to 
11.30 and to delegate authority to the Head of Programme to 
finalise the brief in consultation with the Portfolio Holder be 
approved.

3. That further design work around public realm in lower 
High Street and Broadway as set out in paragraphs 11.31 to 11.41 
and to delegate authority to the Head of Programme to make 
minor amendments to the brief in consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder be approved.

4. That, subject to considering the comments of the 
Committee, the brief for a Strategic Advisor as at appendix A be 
recommended to Cabinet.

The meeting commenced at 4.30pm and concluded at 6.00pm

Page 323



This page is intentionally left blank



CAB3116
CABINET

REPORT TITLE: USE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMERGENCY POWERS – WEST 
OF WATERLOOVILLE OPEN SPACE

12 DECEMBER 2018

REPORT OF PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Cllr Caroline Brook Built Environment 

Contact Officer:  Simon Finch    Tel No: 01962 848271 Email 
sfinch@winchester.gov.uk 

WARD(S):  DENMEAD

PURPOSE

Under the Council’s Constitution, decisions made under Section 6 A.2 of the Scheme 
of Delegation to Officers (use of Chief Executive’s emergency delegated powers) 
should be reported to Cabinet or the appropriate Committee as soon as practicable 
after the decision was taken.

The Chief Executive was requested to use her delegated powers to approve a 
supplementary budget estimate in respect of drainage works at Darnel Road, 
Waterlooville. 

Members are asked to note the Decision.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Decision made under Section 6 A.2 of the Scheme of Delegation to 
Officers, as detailed in Exempt Appendix 1, be noted. 

Page 325

Agenda Item 19



2 CAB3116

IMPLICATIONS:

1 COUNCIL STRATEGY OUTCOME 

1.1 The drainage works to this area of open space are consistent with improving 
the quality of the District’s environment outcome and in particular; work with 
strategic partners to continue to develop flood resilience measures to protect 
our communities.

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 A budget of £75,000 was approved by Cabinet on 19 September 2018 
(CAB3070) and a supplementary estimate of £59,000 bringing the total 
budget to £134,000 is required to complete the alternative works:

 Initial cost of drainage works £62,000

 Additional cost due to diversion £72,000

 Total cost of works £134,000

2.2 These works will be financed from the S106 funds transferred to the City 
Council as part of the transfer agreement for the open spaces in Waterlooville.  
This will have an impact on the length of time this funding stream supports 
these open spaces and will mean that effectively the Council have to support 
financially their maintenance earlier than planned.

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 None specific to the use of the Chief Executive’s emergency powers.

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 None.

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 None 

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION 

6.1 Cllr Horrill (Leader of the Council) and Cllr Learney (Chair of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee)  were consulted prior to the Chief Executive exercising 
her emergency delegated powers authorising the additional expenditure to 
complete the drainage works . The Portfolio Holder for the Built Environment 
was also consulted and  supports the drainage works.  

Page 326



3 CAB3116

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS

7.1 The drainage enhancements are designed to prevent water from the open 
space discharging on to the public highway (Darnel Road).

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT 

8.1 None

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

9.1 None

10 RISK MANAGEMENT 

Risk Mitigation Opportunities
Property The water 
discharging onto the 
highway is from open 
space owned and 
managed by the Council.

Carryout drainage 
improvement works.

Community Support
Timescales Delaying the 
works would add to the 
costs to the Council as the 
contractor could charge for 
plant left on-site even 
where works have ceased 
for operational reasons 
and the issues created by 
water discharging onto the 
highway need to be 
resolved as quickly as 
possible (see other 
below).

Agree to additional funding 
without undue delay using 
the Chief Executive’s 
emergency powers to 
enable the drainage works 
to be completed.

Project capacity
Financial / VfM
Legal
Innovation
Reputation
Other Hampshire County 
Council, as highway 
authority, have raised the 
issue of water being 
discharged onto the 
highway and the issues 
this can cause for highway 
users particularly in winter. 

Agree to additional funding 
without undue delay using 
the Chief Executive’s 
emergency powers to 
enable the drainage works 
to be completed.

Page 327



4 CAB3116

11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION:

11.1 The Council is responsible for an area of open space which serves the new 
housing development at the West of Waterlooville Major Development Area 
(MDA) known as Newlands.  This land is adjacent to Darnel Road on the 
western edge of the MDA and lies to the south of Hambledon Road which 
links Waterlooville and Denmead.  Power lines run across the site.

11.2 Additional drainage works are needed to alleviate water from the open space 
running on to the highway which presents a safety issue.  Hampshire County 
Council has raised this matter with the City Council with the expectation 
drainage will be put in place to prevent water from reaching the road. A piped 
scheme to deal with this issue was therefore designed which connects the 
existing pond in the north east corner of the land to the wider drainage system 
of the open space and a contractor (Rocon Construction) was appointed to 
implement these works.

11.3 Works have commenced on site and approximately half of the new drainage 
run has been completed by Rocon Construction.  The work has been stopped 
by the SSE due to the size of the excavators and plant operating under the 
electricity pylons which presents a serious safety issue.  It is understood that 
ordinarily carrying out these types of work under powerlines would not be a 
safety issue.  However, in this case, it is the characteristics of these particular 
lines which mean that SSE has stated that the plant needed for this job 
cannot be operated safely beneath the lines.

11.4 In order to complete the planned drainage works the route needs to be 
changed in part to avoid working under the powerlines.  The scheme’s design 
has therefore been amended to enable most of the work to be undertaken 
without requiring plant to operate beneath the powerlines.

11.5 However, the scheme in its amended form,  has resulted in an increase in 
cost from £62k to £134k for the following reasons:

 The diverted route of pipe is 50m longer than the designed length of 
drain.

 Due to the re-positioning of the diverted route away from the overhead 
lines, it is now necessary to deepen the excavations from an average 
of 1.95m to 4.1m, due to the rise in ground level away from the power 
lines.

 It is now necessary to carry out the works with larger plant and heavier 
duty boxes (to retain the earth safely when installing the pipe work) 
because the route of the trench is now within the made up ground as 
opposed to the virgin ground originally encountered in the designed 
route.

 The manholes (at every 100m) will also be much deeper to suit the 
revised drainage depths.

 There will be 2 additional manholes to accommodate the change in 
direction of the revised drainage pipes.

Page 328



5 CAB3116

 An additional provisional allowance of £750.00 for replacement trees / 
shrubs to replace any plants that can not be saved when transplanting 
along the revised route has been made.

11.6 As explained above there is a need to complete these drainage improvements 
without delay because the highway authority expects the Council to deal with 
the issue of water running onto Darnel Road as soon as possible.   The 
contractor could also seek to recover on-going costs from the Council if work 
was delayed further as they have plant on-site. Consequently, it was 
expedient for the Chief Executive to use her emergency powers to agree to 
the additional funds which means that works on the revised scheme were able 
to re-commence quickly. 

12 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

12.1 A number of options were explored before settling on re-routing part of the 
pipe across the open space including running drainage beneath Darnel Road 
itself or connecting into the existing highway drainage system.  However, for 
technical reasons or issues of cost, the option of revising the previously 
agreed route was considered the most appropriate course of action. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:-

Previous Committee Reports:-

WWF108 – Progress Report of the West of Waterlooville MDA - 6 November 2018

Other Background Documents:-

None. 

APPENDICES:

Appendix 1 – Decision under Section 6 A.2 of the Scheme of Delegation to Officers 
(EXEMPT)

Page 329



This page is intentionally left blank



Strategic Director: 
Resources

City Offices
Colebrook Street
Winchester
Hampshire
SO23 9LJ
Tel: 01962 848 220
Fax:01962 848 472

email ngraham@winchester.gov.uk
website www.winchester.gov.uk

Forward Plan of Key Decisions

January 2019

The Forward Plan is produced by the Council under the Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. The 
purpose of the Plan is to give advance notice of Key Decisions to be made by the Cabinet, 
Cabinet Committees, Portfolio Holders or officers on its behalf.  This is to give both 
Members of the Council and the public the opportunity of making their views known at the 
earliest possible stage. 

This is the Forward Plan prepared for the period 1 - 31 January 2019 and will normally be 
replaced at the end of each calendar month.  

The Plan shows the Key Decisions likely to be taken within the above period.  Key 
Decisions are those which are financially significant or which have a significant impact.  
This has been decided, by the Council, to be decisions which involve income or 
expenditure over £200,000 or which will have a significant effect on people or 
organisations in two or more wards. 

The majority of decisions are taken by Cabinet and its committees, together with the 
individual Portfolios held, where appropriate.  The membership of Cabinet and its 
committees, and their meeting dates can be found via this link. Other decisions may be 
taken by Portfolio Holders or Officers in accordance with the Officers Scheme of 
Delegation, as agreed by the Council (a list of Portfolio Holders used in the Plan is set out 
overleaf).

The Plan has been set out in the following sections:

Section A – Cabinet and Committees  

Section B - Individual Portfolio Holders

Section C – Officer Decisions 

Anyone who wishes to make representations about any item included in the Plan should 
write to the officer listed in Column 5 of the Plan, at the above address.  Copies of 
documents listed in the Plan for submission to a decision taker are available for inspection 
on the Council’s website or by writing to the above address.  Where the document is a 
committee report, it will usually be available five days before the meeting.  Other 
documents relevant to the decision may also be submitted to the decision maker and are 

Page 331

Agenda Item 20

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1


available on Council’s website or via email democracy@winchester.gov.uk or by writing to 
the above

Regulation 5 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012 refers to the requirement to provide notice of an 
intention to hold a meeting in private, inclusive of a statement of reasons.  If you have any 
representations as to why the meeting should be held in private, then please contact the 
Council via democracy@winchester.gov.uk or by writing to the above address.  Please 
follow this link to definition of the paragraphs (Access to Information Procedure Rules, 
Part 4, page 32, para 10.4) detailing why a matter may be classed as exempt from 
publication under the Local Government Acts, and not available to the public.

If you have any queries regarding the operation or content of the Forward Plan please 
contact David Blakemore (Democratic Services Manager) on 01962 848 217.

Cllr Caroline Horrill

Leader of the Council 3 December 2018

Cabinet Members: Portfolio Held:

 Cllr Caroline Horrill Leader & Portfolio for Housing Services

 Cllr Rob Humby Deputy Leader & Portfolio for Business 
Partnerships

 Cllr Guy Ashton Finance

 Cllr Caroline Brook Built Environment

 Cllr Stephen Godfrey Professional Services

 Cllr Lisa Griffiths Health & Wellbeing

 Cllr Stephen Miller Estates

 Cllr Jan Warwick Environment

Page 332

mailto:democracy@winchester.gov.uk
mailto:democracy@winchester.gov.uk
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/get-asset?id=fAAxADgAMAA5AHwAfABUAHIAdQBlAHwAfAAwAHwA0
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/get-asset?id=fAAxADgAMAA5AHwAfABUAHIAdQBlAHwAfAAwAHwA0
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/get-asset?id=fAAxADgAMAA5AHwAfABUAHIAdQBlAHwAfAAwAHwA0


Item Portfolio 
Holder

Key 
Decision

Wards 
Affected

Lead 
Officer

Documents 
submitted to 
decision taker

Decision 
taker 
(Cabinet, 
Committee, 
Portfolio 
Holder or 
Officer

Date/period 
decision to 
be taken

Committee 
Date (if 
applicable)

Open/private 
meeting or 
document? If 
private meeting, 
include relevant 
exempt 
paragraph 
number

1  Leisure Centre 
- Operator 
Procurement

Portfolio 
Holder for 
Health and 
Wellbeing

Expend-
iture > 
£200,000

All 
Wards

Andy 
Hickman

Committee 
Report

Cabinet 
(Leisure 
Centre) 
Committee

Jan-19 14-Jan-19 Part exempt
3

2  Central 
Winchester 
Regeneration 
Progress

Leader and 
Portfolio 
Holder For 
Housing

Signifi-
cantly 
effects 2 
or more 
wards

Town 
Wards

Veryan 
Lyons

Committee 
Report

Cabinet 
(Central 
Winchester 
Regenerati
on) 
Committee

Jan-19 22-Jan-19 Open

3  Electric 
Vehicle 
Charging 
Strategy

Portfolio 
Holder for 
Environ-
ment

Signifi-
cantly 
effects 2 
or more 
wards

All 
Wards

David 
Ingram

Committee 
Report

Cabinet Jan-19 23-Jan-19 Open

4  Land 
Transaction

Portfolio 
Holder for 
Estates

Expend-
iture > 
£200,000

All 
Wards

Kevin 
Warren

Committee 
Report

Cabinet Jan-19 23-Jan-19 Part exempt
3

5  Car Parks 
Major Works 
Programme 
2019/20

Portfolio 
Holder for 
Environ-
ment

Signifi-
cantly 
effects 2 
or more 
wards

All 
Wards

Richard 
Hein

Committee 
Report

Cabinet Jan-19 23-Jan-19 Open

P
age 333



Item Portfolio 
Holder

Key 
Decision

Wards 
Affected

Lead 
Officer

Documents 
submitted to 
decision taker

Decision 
taker 
(Cabinet, 
Committee, 
Portfolio 
Holder or 
Officer

Date/period 
decision to 
be taken

Committee 
Date (if 
applicable)

Open/private 
meeting or 
document? If 
private meeting, 
include relevant 
exempt 
paragraph 
number

6  The future of 
the 
Traffic/Transp
ort and On 
Street Parking 
Agency 
Agreements

Portfolio 
Holder for 
Environ-
ment

Expend-
iture > 
£200,000

All 
Wards

Richard 
Botham

Committee 
Report

Cabinet Jan-19 23-Jan-19 Part exempt
1,2,4

7  HRA Budget 
2019/20 & 
Business Plan

Leader and 
Portfolio 
Holder For 
Housing

Expend-
iture > 
£200,000

All 
Wards

Richard 
Burden

Committee 
Report

Cabinet 
(Housing) 
Committee

Jan-19 30-Jan-19 Open

8  Tenant 
Involvement - 
Appreciation 
and Incentive 
Scheme

Leader and 
Portfolio 
Holder For 
Housing

Signifi-
cantly 
effects 2 
or more 
wards

All 
Wards

Janette 
Palmer

Committee 
Report

Cabinet 
(Housing) 
Committee

Jan-19 30-Jan-19 Open

9  Final Business 
Approval – 
The Valley 
New Homes 
Development

Leader and 
Portfolio 
Holder For 
Housing

Expend-
iture > 
£200,000

St Luke Andrew 
Palmer

Committee 
Report

Cabinet 
(Housing) 
Committee

Jan-19 30-Jan-19 Part exempt
3

10  Rental 
Exchange 
Initiative

Leader and 
Portfolio 
Holder For 
Housing

Signifi-
cantly 
effects 2 
or more 
wards

All 
Wards

Chris 
Pope

Committee 
Report

Cabinet 
(Housing) 
Committee

Jan-19 30-Jan-19 Open

P
age 334



Item Portfolio 
Holder

Key 
Decision

Wards 
Affected

Lead 
Officer

Documents 
submitted to 
decision taker

Decision 
taker 
(Cabinet, 
Committee, 
Portfolio 
Holder or 
Officer

Date/period 
decision to 
be taken

Committee 
Date (if 
applicable)

Open/private 
meeting or 
document? If 
private meeting, 
include relevant 
exempt 
paragraph 
number

11  Tenancy 
Policy

Leader and 
Portfolio 
Holder For 
Housing

Signifi-
cantly 
effects 2 
or more 
wards

All 
Wards

Amber 
Russell

Committee 
Report

Cabinet 
(Housing) 
Committee

Jan-19 30-Jan-19 Open

12  Tenancy 
Strategy

Leader and 
Portfolio 
Holder For 
Housing

Signifi-
cantly 
effects 2 
or more 
wards

All 
Wards

Kenna-
Sian 
Young

Committee 
Report

Cabinet 
(Housing) 
Committee

Jan-19 30-Jan-19 Open

P
age 335



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 337

Agenda Item 22
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 31 October 2018.
	8 Council Strategy Update
	CAB3094 Council Strategy - appendix 1
	CAB3094 Appendix 2

	9 Medium Term Financial Planning
	10 Q2 Financial and Performance Monitoring
	11 Winchester Flood Relief Scheme ( Durngate ) Phase II – Allocation of additional funds/Planning Permission
	CAB3072 Appendix A Flood Depth Plans
	A01 Updated Baseline Model 100yr Return Period +CC based on 20% increase in flows F1
	A02 Sluices option - 50% open 100yr Return Period +CC based on 20% increase in flows F1
	A03a Sluices option - 50% open 100yr Return Period +CC based on 20% increase in flows. Increase in flows F1
	A03b Sluices option - 50% open 100yr Return Period +CC based on 20% increase in flows. Increase in flows F1

	CAB3072 APPENDIX A DurngateFlood Defences ModellingReport

	12 Approval of Brief for Strategic Development Advisor
	CAB3105 Appendix A
	CAB3105 Appendix B

	13 Adoption of revised Statement of Community Involvement
	CAB3086(LP) APPENDIX 1
	CAB3086(LP) APPENDIX 2

	14 Community and Voluntary Sector Grants Review (Report and Addendum)
	CAB3079 - Community and Voluntary Sector Grants Review APPENDIX 1
	CAB3079 - Community and Voluntary Sector Grants Review APPENDIX 2
	CAB3079 - Grant Review - Cabinet report Addendum

	15 Minute extracts from Winchester Town Forum held 14 November and Personnel Committee held 22 November 2018
	16 Review of Terms and Conditions of Employment
	17 Minutes of Cabinet (Housing) Committee held 21 November 2018
	18 Minutes of Cabinet (Central Winchester Regeneration) Committee held 27 November 2018
	19 Use of Chief Executive's Emergency Powers - West of Waterlooville Open Space (less exempt appendix)
	20 To note the future items for consideration by Cabinet as shown on the January 2019 Forward Plan.
	22 Use of Chief Executive's Emergency Powers - West of Waterlooville Open Space (exempt appendix)

